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OUR MISSION

We make products that are trusted to protect
the world’s militaries and first responders.

Our dedicated teams achieve this by
developing mission-critical solutions that enhance
our customers’ performance, efficiency and
capability, whilst providing ever-increasing
levels of protection.

With a portfolio that includes respiratory and
head protection systems, we are renowned for our
innovative thinking and our steadfast approach
to manufacturing unrivalled products,

FINANCIAL HEADLINES

Orders received Revenue Adjusted operating profit Operating ioss

$2801m  $271.8m 510.Tm S(2.3)m

Adjusted basic earnings per share Basic loss per share Dividend per share Closing order book

20.4c [25.1)c 44.9¢c $151.3m



“HIGHLIGHTS

Our mission is only achievable as a result of the exceptional people we have across
the business. We are incredibly proud of their hard work and dedication
and have watched them achieve great things together this year.

WE ARE GROWING OUR CORE BY
MAXIMISING OPPORTUNITIES

Delivering Growing The Core: Kent's Story on page 27

Read more on our strategy on page 26

WE ARE ADVANCING OUR PRODUCT

DEVELOPMENT TO PROTECT PEDPLE

Advancing Product Development: lustin’s Story on page 29

Read more on aur strategy on page 26

WE ARE INTEGRATING RECENT ACQUISITIONS

TO BUILD A STRONGER BUSINESS

Integrating Acquisitions: Lauren’s story on page 31

Read more on our strategy on page 26
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AT A GLANCE

OUR PURPOSE

We make products that are trusted around the world to protect militaries
and first responders in the most hostile of environments. Our products enable
our customers to not only complete their mission safely and with confidence,

but also enhance their capability and performance.

Pre-emptive
We use our Ingenuity to design
next generaton protection,
constantly anticipating and
adapting to the ever-increasing
needs of our customers.

Growing
the core
We are recognisad as the leader
within our chosen market segrnents.
There are further opportunities
1o maximise growth from our
product portfolio,

OUR CULTURE

[ Fearless
We are leaders in our field,
‘ pushing the boundaries of what
‘ others think is possible
J

Read more on our culidre on page 52

—————————

Targeted
We set a clear strategy, identifying
key priotities and the resources
we require for success - and then
work to make this a reality to
grow and evolve.

ﬁ—_vqﬁﬁﬁii -

OUR STRATEGY

Selective product
development
We have a reputation for
technoiegical excellence and
innovation, with a strong tradition
of new product development

Read mare an our strategy on zages 26-31

Value enhancing
acquisitions
We target carefully selected,
value enhancing acquisitions to
complement our arganic growth
and enable us to enter adjacent
praduct and marker segments

—

Our people Robust risk " Responsible approach
and culture | management to sustainability
Qur pecple are at the heart i We have an established We have a fundamental
of everything we do process for tne identifcation ) role 1o play In mimmising
and management of risk. gurenvicsnmental impact

dead more cnpage 52

SUPPORTED BY

ar the world

Head more n71 page 62 Aead are 31 age 42
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| Effective
‘ governance
We are committed 1o high
standards of corporate
Javernande as set outn
the UK. Corporaie
Goverrance Code

i Zead ~ore ¢ oage 72



OUR PROBUCTS

of revenue (excl. armor)

Respiratory protection
We have an extensive history of providing respiratory
protection and a comprehensive knowledge of our customers’
requirements for respirators, powered and supplied air systems,
filters, spares and accessories.

Read more on page 16

of revenue {excl. armor)

Head protection
We have a deep undersianding of traumatic brain
injury (TBI) which enables us to design next generation
ballistic helmets and bump protection helmets, as well as
helmet liner and retention systems.

Read morc on page 18

OUR MARKETS

U.S.DOD Commercial Americas

$130m

Total market opportunity

S5218m

Total market opportunity

Read mare on page 10

Read rore on page 12

U.K. & International

SEB1m

Total market opportunity

Read more on page 14

OUR PEOPLE

Global operations
We operate on a global scale with sites
lacated in the 1S, and the LK.

B

Sites in the UK, and the LS,

Talented people
Our people are at the heart of everything
we do, with everyone focused on
protecting our customers.

1,000+

Number of employees

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection ple
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INVESTMENT CASE

OUR INVESTMENT CASE

IS DRIVEN BY OUR CLEAR

STRATEGY TO GENERATE
LONG-TERM GROWTH

!

LARGE ADDRESSABLE INVESTING IN
MARKETS INNOVATION

Our world-leading portfolio, combined with strong We continue to develop our product portfolio in partnership
relationships with our long-term customers, like the U S DOD with our customers to ensure their exacting performance
and UK MOD, positions us well in growing markets with requirements are met, whilst providing a committed
opportunities for share gain. and commercial route to market to maximise our retum

Qn nvestment

$9.8bn 4-7%

Total market opportunity Total R&D as a percentage of revenue
(2021-2030)

Reac more about Gur markets on page 10 Read mere sbout 2urkus ress mcdel o page 20

TALENTED AND
DEDICATED PEOPLE

Our people are at the heart of everything we do. We aim to
attract and retain the best people 1o establish a culture that
gives all indviduals the opportunity and support 1o develop o
their full potential,

We are committed to making Avon Protection a great place
ta work by Investing in the development and welibeing of

our people, celebrating diversity and inclusion and listening
and responding to our colleagues through increased levels

of engagemsnt

Tesd e aToul Ou' e Gy 2a-02 I 2000307 o7 Degl 32
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WE HAVE A HIGHLY SKILLED TEAM,
STRONG MARKET POSITIONS AND
WORLD-LEADING TECHNOLOGY.
COMBINED WITH OUR LONG-TERM
STRATEGY TO DRIVE SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH WE ARE CONFIDENT IN
OUR ABILITY TO DELIVER VALUE
FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS.

STRONG CASH
CONVERSION

Our objective of delivering adjusted EBITDA cash conversion
of 90% or more provides the cash flow to fund our
growth strategy.

90%+

Adjusted EBITDA cash conversion

Read maore about aur f nancial perfarmance on nage 56

DISCIPLINED APPROACH
TO CAPITAL ALLOCATION

INNOVATION
IMPROVED
PERFORMANCE CASH
GENERATION
TRUST

DEVELOPING
SUSTAINABILITY AGENDA

We protect; it's ingrained within our culture and is at the heart
of everything we do. This includes a commitment to protecting
the communities and environment in which we operate to
ensure a sustainable future for us all.

2045

Net Zero target

Key priorities for capital

1. Invest in the business « R&D pipeline (including

business development)
« Manufacturing capacity
« New products

2. Dividends

- Target increase in cover before
returning to dividend growth
3. Other M&A « Strict discipline on value creation

4. Other returns to shareholders « Special dividends and
share buybacks

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection pic
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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

A STRONG PIPELINE OF
OPPORTUNITY

| want to thank our people for their continued effort, focus and
commitment to delivering this year’s results.

Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

I want to start by thanking our people in our operations across the world,
who have continued to work with enthusiasm and determination in what
has been a challenging pericd for the Group. As COVID-19 restrictions
eased, | and the rest of the Board were delighted to have the opportunity
to visit our U'S. operating sites and meet a number of our teams face to
face. It is clear 1o sée that at the core of our DNA is pride for our praducts
and the protection they provide the user.

Strategy and results

AL Avon Protection, our purpose is clear - to provide trusted and
innavative soiutions 1o enable those at risk to perform their mission safely
and with confidence,

To deliver this putpose and create value for all our stakeholders, our strategy
has three main efements, Firstly, we grow the core by leveraging our existing
product portfolio to widen our customer base. Secandly, we invest selectively
in new product development to maintain our leadership in innovation and
fimaily we aim (o extend our business capabilities and accelerate our organic
growth through carefully selected, value enhancing acquisitions

2022 has been my first full year as Chair of the Board and has presented
bath challenges and opportunities for the Group. In the first half of the
year, we experienced subducd demand post-Afghanistan and pre-
Ukraine leading 1o delays in orders and approval pracesses, impacting
Bath operational planning and supply chain management. As reported
at the half year, additional manufacturing costs due to supply chain

and process inefficiencies and the level of product development wark
impacted profitability In addition, following the strategic decision to exit
the armor business announced last year, body armor has continued to be
& headwind in our reported results, but we expect to have fully exited this
business by the end of 2023

6 Avon Protection plc Annual Repert and Accounts 2022

After the challenges encountered during the first half, | am pleased

to report the second half was characterised by a step-up in financial
performance and improved operational delivery. Given the current
increased threat environment, prompted by the ongoing events in
Ukraine, the Group experienced increased demand with more urgency

n order placement and technical appravals In Respiratory, we have
delivered over 65000 50 series respirators to protect military, government
and humanitarian personnel in Likraine throughout the year. This increase
in demand has given us confidence to buy-forward inventory and lean
forward into production which has improved our ability to react 1o the
current higher threat environment

In Head Protection, the award of the U5, DOD next generation Advanced
Combat Helmet {ACH GEN II) contract earlier in the year and the first
delivery order in September from the U.S. Army under the Next Generation
IHPS (NG IHPS) contract have established Avon Protectton as the glabal
leader in head protection technology. This has been achieved by
combining the strengths of Ceradyne’s ballistic shell technology with
Team Wendy's helmet liner and retention system technologies

Now more than ever it is clear our world-leading products and solutions in
both the respiratory and head protection markets have a key role to play in
prameing service personnel in an increasingly unstable environment.

Dividend

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 30.6 cents per share which
together with the 14.3 cents per share interim dividend, gives a total
dividend of 449 cents, consistent with last year

Cur pelicy 15 ta grow dividends in line with adjusted earnings growth
Grven the declne in earmings over the last two years, we would not seek
to grows divicends ‘urther ahead of anncrease 'n divicend cover.



DEA

We talked to Jos Sclater,
incoming Chief Executive Officer,
on his appointment.

Q Can you tell us about your career history?

A I've spent the last three years as Graup Chief Financial
Officer at Ultra Clectronics ple whieie }led ¢ broad-based

transformation programme focused on improving growth

and efficiency. | also had group-wide responsibility for
the Finance, Treasury, IT, Procurement, Transformaton,
Continuous Improvement and Risk funcrions, as well
as direct oversight of Ultra's Forensic Technalogy and
Energy business.

Prior to this, | was Group Chief Financial Officer at Castrol

Lubricants and, before that, spent seven years at GKN plg,
including as Group Chief Financial Officer and Director of

Corporate Finance and Strategy. | started my career as a
qualified solicitor and have held in-house legal and M&A
rales at ICl ple, AkzoNobel N and GKN plc.

Q What excites you about joining Avon Protection?

A Avon Protection 15 a business with a proud history and an

exciting future. The Group has unigue technologies with
global market-leading positions in respiratory and head
protection markets. | am excited by its growth potential,
and I'very much lock forward to leading the next stage
of its development

Jos Sclater
Incoming Chief Executive Officer

Advancing our sustainability agenda

£stablishing the foundarions of our sustainability agenda has becn a
key focus in 2022 and | am pleased with the progress made this year. We
recognise the iImportance of ensuring we proactively engage with our
stakeholders in this area as expectations continue to grow, This year we
carried out a materiality assessment to ensure our efforts are focused on
the sustainability aspects that are most material to our stakeholders.

We committed in last year's report to achieving net zero by 2045 at the
latest. This year we have focused on gaining a better understanding of
our data, in order 1o ensure accuracy and set an appropriate base year for
setting targets against, as we continue working on our detaiied Net Zero
Plan_In addition, this year is our first year publishing our Task Force on
Climate-Related Financial Disclosures {TCFD) Statement. To ensure frcis
and greater transparency of our sustainability agenda, a new governance
framework has been putin place. The Board takes overall responsibility
for our sustainability agenda, disclosure and reporting. A Sustainability
Steenng Lomimitter, chaited by our Chief Finandial Cfficer, Rich Cashin,
has been establ'shed with 1esponsibility lor the implementaticn anc
delivary of our sustainability agenda on behalf of the Board.

Health, safety and wellbeing of our people

Protecting the health, safety and wellbeing of our people remained a key
priority in 2022, In line with our goal of zero harm, we continue to actively
promaote a strong safety culture at all our sites.

Previously, the Board established a Glabal Employee Advisory Forum as
its employee engagement mechanism. This has generated a significant
increase in dialogue between the Board and the Group's employees. With
easing travel restrictions, the Board this year has been able to visit the sites
in person and hear directly from employees about ssues they face on a
day-to-day basis.

Governance and the Board

The Board brings together a diverse range of relevant skills and expertise.
There have been several changes to the Board during the year Nick Keveth
retired as Chief Financial Officer om 31 March 2022 and was replaced by Rich
Cashin, who has proved to be a strong addition to the Goard. After 5 years
as Chief Executive Officer, and mare than 19 years with the Company, Paul
McDaonald stepped down as Chief Executive Officer on 30 Septermber 2022
On 17 October | was delighted to announce }os Sclater will join the Board
as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 16 January 2023. As previously
confirmed 1o shareholders in September, | have taken on the role of Executive
Chair for the interim period untii Josis In place as our new Chief Executive
Officer. The Board therefore currently comprises one Executive Director,
three independent Non-Executive Directars and myself as Executive Chair.

We conducted an internal Board performance evaluation this year and
remain confident that the Board continues to operate to high standards as
a cohesive body with a good balance of support and challenge. Full detalls
of this year's evaluation are contained in the Governance section of this
Annual Report. The Board regularly reviews its composition to ensure it has
the necessary breadth and depth of skills and experience to support the
development of the Group and will repeat this review once the new Chief
Executive Officer is in place and established.

Looking ahead to 2023 with confidence

We have made good prograss in 2022 preparing Avon Protection for a new
chapter of growth and future value generation, including restructuring several
areas of the business, improving operatonal efficiency, nght-sizing overhead
costs and strengthening Executive management with the appointments

of Rich Cashin as Chief Financial Officer and Jos Sclater as our new Chief
Executive Officer While not underestimating the challenges in execution of
our strategy, | am confident the Group is well positioned moving forward to
deliver long-term sustainable growth far the benefit of all our stakeholders.

Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

22 November 2022
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I TRULY FEEL LIKE | AM PART OF A
GROUP THAT MAKES A DIFFERENCE
AND | STILL GET CHILLS WHENEVER
| HEAR ONE OF OUR HELMETS HAS
HELPED SAVE A LIFE.

Ryan Doris
Mechanical Engineer

STRATEGIC
REPORT
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MARKET OVERVIEW

MARKET OVERVIEW
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Defence budgets are expected to flatten over the next
five years, but the U.S. will remain the world’s largest and

most sophisticated market.

2022 ANNUAL REVENUE OPPORTUNITY FOR BALLISTIC HELMETS
AND RESPIRATORY PROTECTION IN ADDRESSABLE DOD MARKETS*

RESPIRATORY

S92m

HELMET

S126m

TOTAL

$218m

ForecasTim 2521 oh0T e Wkra ne €00 10t an e OIPEr Marke! Cey e CEMmeEnTs

HEIGHTENED THREAT
ENVIRONMENT

The warin Ukraine has had far-reaching
consequences on the geopolitical climate

In response, the LS. has led military support
1o Ukraine and has provided significant
security assistance, including technology and
equipment transfer, In addition, the U.S. and
other countries around the world have imposed
unprecedented sanctions and export controls
restncting Russia’s access o funding and
citical technofoqy,

INCREASED SPENDING

The U.5 announced 1t will increase spend

1o $813 billion or 3 8% of GDP. China also
announced an increase in military spending,
with a 7.1% rise planned for 2022 relative to the
previous year Neither appear 10 be directly
related to the war in Ukraine, but rather to
international and regional geopolitics. China's
growing assertiveness in and around the South
and Bast China Seas has also become a major
driver of military budgeting in countries such
as Austiald dnd Japan

10 Avon Protection ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022

MANAGING INFLATION

Erergy prices have been nising since last year
as the economic recovery from the pandemic
encountered overburdened supply chains
and the war in Ukraine has caused trade and
production disruptions Despite global defence
budgets being increased, we expect them o
be put under pressure by increased inflation,
Inflation is expected to have an impact on
business operations and emphasises our
continued focus on international expansion
to mitigate the risk of exposure to fixed-price
contracts which are common in the U'S



LINK TD STRATEGY

GROWING
THE CORE

Enduring revenue streams

We are the sole-source supplier to the

U5, DOD for the Jaint Service General
Purpose Mask (JSGPM), MES Alreraw mask,
M53A1 mask and powered air system and
ACH GENI, as well as dual-source supplier
of the NG IHPS. These contracts solidify
our position as the principal choice with
the Us DOD o respratoty and head
protection with four major branches of the
DOD using our products including the Army,
Navy, Air Force and Marine Corps. Our large
base also positions us well for through-life
SUpPCrt programmes,

ADVANCING PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

New programmes

We received the first delivery order from

the U.S. Army worth $42.1 million for

the NG IHPS. Manufacturing ramp-up

is progressing to plan after completing
rigorous testing. Fhe receipt of this first
delivery order s an important milestone for
the NG IHPS, and a critical step in getting our
advanced life-saving techrology roiler. out
to U.S. military personnel This programrme
cements our position as a giobal leader in
head protection technology, and specifically
as a centie of excellence in high-specification
ballistic helmerts.

INTEGRATING
ACQUISITIONS

Cross-functional collaboration
During the year, Head Protection
collaborated to develop an updated liner
system for the NG IHPS which utilises
technaiogy from the Tearn Wendy product
ling This is expected to be introduced

in 2023 following the receipt of the first
delivery order.

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc
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MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

MARKET OVERVIEW
COMMERCIAL AMERICAS
MARKET

The increased threat posed by terrorists and civil unrest is driving
demand for more advanced respiratory and head protection.

2022 ANNUAL REVENUE OPPORTUNITY FOR BALLISTIC HELMETS AND
RESPIRATORY PROTECTION IN ADDRESSABLE COMMERCIAL AMERICAS MARKET*™

NORTH SDUTH
AMERICA AMERICA

$82m $48m\

TOTAL

$130m

* Forecast r 2021 cngrio Jkrame corfl crand cther migr<gt gane cpmerts

INCREASED VIOLENT DEMONSTRATIONS CHANGING THREAT

Terrorist attacks, civil unrest and organised crime are multiplying The world is confronting overlapping cnses of unprecedented scope
the risks of chemical, biclogical, radiological and nuclear (CBRN) and and scale. Arrongst other redative conseguences, the pandemic
ballistic threats conunues to hamper economic and social activity and the threat

environment continues to shift acrogs the world,
The frequency and severity of violent demonstrations has increased across

aimost all regions of the world resulting in clashes with first responders. First responders are expected to react to these shifting threat
Novth Arnerica recorded the second largest deterioration of any region in emvironments which continue 1o demand the level of protection often
the 2022 Global Peace Index. associated with military applications

12 Avan Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



LINK TO STRATEGY

GROWING
THE CORE

Sales record

The team in Cleveland has completed four
major annuial e-commerce sales this year for
Team Wendy helmets including Fourth of
July and Amazon Prime Day.

During the Fourth of July sale, the team
pracessed 800+ orders with total sales 72%
higher than last year with the EXFIL LTP the
most popular helmet sold.

ADVANCING PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

Recognised for innovation

The CH15 Compact Escape Hood won Best
International Industrial Product Design award
at The Plastics Industry Awards, an annual
event dedicated to rewarding innovation
and exceptional performance. One of the
key design objecrives for the product was
10 reduce the number of companents
compared to the previous generation
product, which ted to an overall reduction
in mass by 22%.

INTEGRATING
ACQUISITIONS

Strengthened brand recognition
For many years Team Wendy has been

at the forefromt of traumatic brain injury
prevention, through participation in cutting-
edge research programmes and thoughtful
design of complete helrmet systems from the
inside our,

Though Team Wendy and Aven Protection
are distinct brands with different product
lines, their shared dedication to protecting
those wha risk their lives every day makes
them complementary within the Group.

Annual Regart and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc
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MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

MARKET OVERVIEW
U.K. & INTERNATIONAL
MARKETS

The current threat environment is driving a greater focus on protective
technologies and capabilities throughout Europe and beyond, giving rise
to a dynamic-demand environment.

2022 ANNUAL REVENUE GPPORTUNITY FOR BALLISTIC HELMETS
AND RESPIRATORY PROTECTION IN ADDRESSABLE U.K. &
INTERNATIONAL MARKETS*

MENA

S95m

APAC

S184m

AFRICA

S14m

EUROPE

$268m

CHANGED SECURITY THREAT

We continue 1o see the ever-present threat

of the use of CBRMN capabilites aganst NATO,
with China conunuing to increase its stockpile
of nuclear capable weapons, tran claiming to
be nuclear weapcn capable and North Karea
testng missiles of varying ranges to carry
nuclear and chemical warheads.

The naon-state threat s alsc high as toxic
industrial chemicals are unregulated in most
countries presenting little obstruction te those
who would use them to achieve their aims.

TOTAL

S56Tm

NATO RESPONSE

Even if CBRN threats are considered a remote
possibility, the effects of such an attack would
be devastating and are increasingly considered
by NATO naticns and their broader allies as they
recapitalise and grow investment in their ability to
defend against such an attack, whilst continuing
to operate in the hostile conditons It creates,

Sorecast ™ 2021 phor to Ucaire conficr and orher marke™ deveropments

NATG pursued the biggest overhaul of its
coflective deterrence since the Cold War this
year. The number of troops on high alert has
increased from 40,000 to 300,000 troops ard
it has also pledged to provide Ukraine with
protective equipment agamst CBRN threats,

14 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

INCREASED BUDGETS

We are seeing higher public defence spending

as a result of the increased demand for personal
protective equipment in the medium and long-
term, with world military spending reaching an

all-time high of 52.1 trillion in 2021

tMany NATO countnes have also announced
clear plans 1o reach 2% GDP target by 2024
Thus will likely result :n upgrade programmes
across NATO and mifitaries gfobaliy over the
CoMing years




LINK TO STRATEGY

GROWING
THE CORE

Diversified customer base

The sole-source framework respirator
contract with the NATO Support and
Procurement Agency (NSPA), which allows
NATO and associate members to order

from our portfolio of respiratory products
under standard pre-negotiated terms, is

an important route to market for us The
benefits of this contract are ever-more
evident in the current environment where
ease of erdering is paramount in a fast-
moving situation. On behalf of various NATO
governments, we have delivered over 65,000
50 series respirators to protect miitary,
government and humanitarian personnel in
Ukraine throughout the year.

ADVANCING PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

Adjacent technologies

In response to rising cherical weapon
threats, we developed the EXQSKIN range of
CBRN boots and gloves to protect personnel
without compromising the wearer's tactical
agility in the field. In expanding our offerings
INto protective garments, we aim to provide
the full scope of integrated protective wear
that can be scaled to suit changing threat
environments and readiness levels

INTEGRATING
ACQUISITIONS

Working in partnership

Head Protection has collaborated on majar
tender processes as well as opportunities to
enhance our helmet portfelic. In particular,
collaborated efforts have focused on the
development of the F90, our first combined
commercial helmet for first responders

and Rest of World militaries. This helmet
combines the Ceradyne baflistic helmet shell
forming capabilities and Team Wendy's liner
and retention,

Annual Report and Accounts 2622 Aven Prote (fion ple
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

RESPIRATORY
PROTECTION

Our leading range of respiratory protection includes respirators, powered and supplied air
systems, filters, spares and accessories, as well as underwater systems and CBRN protective wear.

POWERED & SPARES &

RESPIRATORS SUPPLIED AIR ACCESSORIES

16 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



EXAMPLES OF OUR RESPIRATORY
AND CBRN PROTECTION PORTFOLIO

RESPIRATODRS

50 SERIES

The M50 and FM50 masks are the most advanced military general service respiratory
protection masks to date, offering significant improvement in comfort, usability,
operational effectiveness and protection. The C50 mask is based on the M50 and is
the leading mask used by U S. law enforcerment agencies, offering high protection,
outstanding field of vision, and superior comfort. The PC50 was developed for
hudget challenged prisons, correctional officers, border control and other non-CBRN
requirernents that require protection in dangerous and contaminated environments.
The FM53 and FMS4 masks were developed specifically for specialist applications
where the user needs to respond to ever-changing operational conditions.

GSR

The standard issue to all UK. service personnel across the Army, RAF and Navy, the
General Service Respirator's {GSR) twin-canister, single-visor design is to the UK,
MOD's precise specification and features high-performance filtration technology.

SPARES AND ACCESSORIES

We offer service support to global custamers through replacement filters, spares,
accessories and tactical mask communication systems providing through-life
SUPPOrT to our range of respirators and other life sustaining equipment.

ESCAPE HODOS

Our range of escape hoods, including the new CH15 escape hood, provides
portable protection. The ultra-low profile makes them more convenient to carry and
enhances the range of respiratory protection available to escape a hostile situation.

POWERED AND
SUPPLIED AIR

Designed for specialist capabilities, our cormplementary value-added subsystems
extend operational capability. Qur range of Powered Air Purifying Respirators (PAPR),
Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) or a combination of the two (C5-PAPR}
can be deployed with our respirators to provide clean, breathabie air.

UNDERWATER
SYSTEMS

Our MCMI00 is a fully closed circuit, electronically controlled, mixed gas rebreather
suitable for a range of spedialist military or tactical diving disciplines, such as mine
clearance or explosives dispasal.

THERMAL
IMAGING
CAMERAS

Qur Mi-TIC range of Thermal Imaging Cameras includes the lightest and smallest
thermal imagers available certified to comply with NFPA 1831:2021, alongside a
wider range of cameras developed from the same technology.

CBRN
PROTECTIVE
WEAR

With an extensive knowledge of military and first responder CBRN requirements,
we developed EXOSKIN-B1 CBRN Bools and EXOSKIN-GT CBRN Gloves, designed to
meet the unigue requirements of the modern warfighter and tactical operator.

Annual Heport and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO CONTINUED

HEAD
PROTECTION

Our head protection portfolio is focused on next generation ballistic helmets
and bump protection helmets, as well as helmet liner and retention systems.

LINER AND
RETENTION HELMETS
SYSTEMS

18 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022




EXAMPLES OF OUR HEAD
PROTECTION PORTFOLIO

ACH GEN I NG IHPS
HELMETS
ACH GEN I 1s a new lighter The Next Generation Integrated
weight version of the U.S Head Protection Systern (NG
military’s general issue IHPS} is one of four major
ballistic helmet, making it components of the US Army’s
mare comfortable for the Soldier Protection System. The
LISer TO Wear. NG IHPS provides lightweight
and high-performance head
protection to U.S. soldiers.
FSD EXFIL BALLISTIC SL
The FS0 ballistic helmet features The EXFIL Ballistic is the general
the perfect combination of issue ballistic helmet for the
performance and lightweight Australian Deferice Force, whilst
materials at an econamical price the EXFIL Ballistic SLis used
point. lnnovative 'No Thru-Hole’ by elite teams and agencies
technology for mounting around the world including
accessories increases the shell’s LAPD and Brazilian DPF,
effective protection area.
EXFIL LTP SAR
The EXFIL LTP (Lightweight, BABKEDUNTRY
Tactical, Polymer) bump helmet The Team Wendy SAR is the
provides iImpact protection and first purpose-built search
a stable, comfortable platform and rescue helmet 1o
for mounting njghr vision and provide accessory mounting
other accessories capabilities while meeting key
industrial and rmountaineering
performance standards.
LINER AND CAMFIT ZORBIUM ACTION
RETENTION RETENTION PAD [ZAP) 7-PAD
SYSTEM NSN LINER SYSTEM
SYSTEMS

The CAM FIT Retention System
uses 3 micro-adjustable BOA

Fit System that stabilises

the weight of the helmet by
distributing light, even pressure
around the head.

Since 2005, the ZAP 7-Pad

NSN Liner System 15 the

standard issue systern authorised
for use in all Us. Army, U5
Marine Corps and U.S. Navy
ground combat helmets. More
than seven million pad sets

have been supplied since the
programme’s inception.

EPIC AIR LINER
SYSTEM

The EPIC Air design utilises
proven Zorbium foam
technolagy, offering leading-
edge impact protection
without adversely affecting
weight or heat dissipation.

EXFIL MARITIME
LINER SYSTEM

The EXFIL Maritime Liner
Systern features sealed pads
optimised to withstand routine
exposure to water. The liner’s
quick-drying capability helps
reduce the added helmet
system weight and discormfort
that results from waterlogged
helmet pads.

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc Ve
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BUSINESS MODEL

OUR RAOBUST
MODEL

Our products and services maximise the capabilities of our customers
and create value for all our key stakeholder groups.

HOW WE CREATE VALUE

OUR COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

Intellectual Property Efficient manufacturing In-house capabilities
We protect our global market-leading We aim to optimise and refine our Our people provide extensive skiils
position by registering trade marks product design for manufacture and experience to strengthen
and filing patents that protect our and strive for high asset utilisation ! our in-house capabilities and
innovative solutions. and productiv ty. manufacturing excellence

Reinvest Understand
for growth customer
needs

Provide
world class Protecting
service and pecple
maintenance

Perform
research and
development

Bid on new Design and
programmes manufacture
life-saving
products

SUPPORTED BY OUR VALUES ANDO CULTURE

Pre-emptive Fearless Targeted

Avan Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022




RESOURCES AND RELATIONSHIPS

SKILLED PEDPLE

We have highly skilled teams across our
business with 1,000+
emplayees across six sites.

UNIQUE TECHNOLOGY

We have a reputation for
technological excellence and
innovation, with a strong traditicn
of new product development.

ROBUST PARTNERSHIPS

We parmner closely with our customers to
design products to enhance their capability as well
as provide increasing levels of protection.

ESTABLISHED DISTRIBUTION

We have a mature agent and
distributor network to provide a range
of commergial products in over
60 countries

THE VALUE WE CREATE

OUR PEOPLE

1,300+ 55%

hours of e-learning employse
content viewed engagement
CUSTOMERS

200K+

respirators delivered
to NATO countries

90K+

helmets delivered
around the world

COMMUNITIES & ENVIRONMENT

§108BK+  97%

in charitable waste recovered
donations or recycled at our
U.K. facility
SHAREHOLDERS

44.9c

dividend per share

60%+

active shareholder
engagement
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

SIGNIFICANT
LONG-TERM GROWTH
OPPORTUNITY

Our leading technology and product offering, together with our
long-term contracts and a strong pipeline of opportunities,
underpin our confidence in cur future growth prospects.

We have made significant progress during the year towards delivering
our strateqy to strengthen and grow our respiratory and head protection
afferings. Our key strategic achievernents throughout the year include:

- Organic growth in our respiratory portfolio

NSPA continues ta be a strong vehicle for providing our mission-
critical personal protection 1o NATO countries

- Good progress in developing our head protection portfolio
- First delivery order received for NG IHPS
» Award of US DOD ACH GEN Il contract in February
+ In-sourcing of helmet shells for legacy Team Wendy products
« Integration of cur helmet design and manufacturing capability
Continued new product development

« Launch of the EXOSKIN boots and gloves range to address growing
threats and broaden our CBRN preduct portfolio

- Strong derand environment

- Current threat environment driving greater focus on protective
technologies and capabilities throughout Europe and beyond

A robust core business

Our 20-year relationship with the U.5 DOD a5 a sole-source provider

of general-purpose respirators, tactical forces respirators, powered air
purifying respirators and tactical self-conteined breathing apparatus
solutions has seen us design, develop and maintain a portfolio of
innovative and world-leading respiratory protection systems We also have
a long-standing relationship with the UK MOD, and, in October 2020,
were awarded the NATO Support and Procurerment Agency contractin
relation to our full respiratory range. The irnportance of these long-term
partnerships has come 1o the fore as the risk environment has increased
and we are actively engaged with aur customers as they decide how to
co-ordinate their response to world events

The acquisitions of 3M's ballistic protection business and Tearn Wendy
have added head protection to our portfolio, combining world-leading
technolegy in helmet shells and protective inserts. The combination of
the two wiil position Avon Protection as the [eading helmet provider
to the U.S DOD as we commence deliveries on programmes we have
already won
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Qur longer-term strateglc aspirations include selling a wider range of both
respirators and helmets 1o our glabal customer base. During the year,

we have taken further steps 10 integrate the two acquired businesses,
resulting in a more streamlined organisation with significant opportunities
for realising manufacturing and technological synergies that will drive
longer-termn value creation for the Group.

We have cantinued to invest during the year 1o maintain our market-
leating positions through continued development of our existing
portfolio of innovative products, and development of the next generation
of products that will deliver future growth for the business. We conunue
to develop our product portfolic in partnership with our customaers to
meet exacting performance requirements whilst providing a commercially
robust route to market 1o maximise our return on investment,

Qur people are at the heart of everything we do, and at the core of

our DNA is pride for eur product and how it protects the user. The
recrganisation 10 Integrate the two head protection businesses and
streamline the Group, as welt a5 aur financial performance, has been a
challenge for our peaple this year. However, we are making progress and
continuing aur joumney to shape our culiure for the future. We are grateful
1o our colieagues for their ongoing commitment as we continue to align
the business for future growth.

Additional programme wins

Following the contract award from the U.S. Army for the NG IHPS in 2021,
we received the first delivery order worth $42.1 million in September 2022,
Manufacturing ramp-up is progressing to plan after completing rigorous
testing, with initial deliveries expected in the first half of FY23

The award of the ACH GEN Il contract in February 2022 15 a further
demonstration of the strength of our head protecton portfolio Our ACH
GEN Il helmet will be submitted for first article testing (FAT) in early FY23
with initial reveniue expected in FY24

When NG IHPS and ACH GEM Il enter service life with the U S. DOD, this
will position Avon Protection as the leading helmet supplier to the US
DOD, validating the strategic rationale for bringing the two helmet brands
together by combining Ceradyne’s helmet shell moulding capabilities and
Team Wendy's helmet hiner and retention systern technologies.

We contirue to make progress with our MCMI100 underwater rebreather, with
several countries having taken delivery, and others canducting full dive
test programmes,



STRATEGY IN ACTION
GROWING THE CORE

FM50 MASKS PROTECTING
UKRAINE PERSONNEL

On behalf of various NATO gavernments, we have delivered
over 65,000 50 series respirators to protect military,
government and humanitarian personnel in Ukraine.

The 50 series family of respirators 1s built on the FM50, a CBRN
full face mask, specifically designed to meet the latest NATO
forces military mask requirements. The twin filter conformal
system sits close against the face, providing the wearer with
high protection and very low breathing resistance. Wearer
cormfart s enhanced by the system’s twin filters, and vision

is enhanced by our wide panoramic flexible visor that
incorporates both visual clarity and integral durability.

Our rnasks are manufactured o the highest standards

with the aim of protecting the wearer from harmful CBRN
agents they may encounter. Thanks to our ability to ramp-up
production across our facilities we have been able to deliver
these orders quickly, and everyone at Avon Protection is
extremely proud to know our eguipment is supporting
personnel in Ukraine

The FM50 is widely deployed by NATO military and
peacekeeping forces including Belgium, Denmark, Finland,
The Netherlands, Norway, Latvia, and Lithuarnia. More than
3.5 million systems have been delivered warldwide, making
the FM50 the most cperationally proven depleyed respirator
in the world

65,000

FMS50 masks delivered to
Ukraine personnel

WE HAVE MADE FURTHER
SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS AGAINST
OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

TO DELIVER MEDIUM-TERM,
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH,

DESPITE THE CHALLENGING
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT.

Revenue split by market ($)

us Dan
99.1m 98.7m
Commercial Americas
2022
UK. and international
65.7m
53.8m
U5 DOD
Commercial Americas
2021 125.2m
UK and International
62.8m
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW CONITINUED

A heightened threat environment

The current threat environment is driving a greater focus on protective
technolegies and capabilities throughout Europe and beyond, giving rise
ta a dynamic-demand environment,

NATO nations continue to safeguard against the possibility of adversarial
use of CBRN capabilities, and our core competence in these areas leaves us
weli-placed to protect against the increased threat level.

The sole-source framework respirator contract with the NATO Support and
Procurement Agency, which allows NATO and associate members to order
from our portfolio of respiratory products under standard pre-negotiated
terms, is an important route to market for us. The benefits of this contract are
evident in the current envircnment where ease of ordering is paramount In
a fast-moving situation. On behalf of various NATO governments, we have
delivered over 65,000 50 series respirators to protect military, government
and hurnanitarian personnel in Ukraine throughout the year,

We are anticipating higher public defence spending ta address the
increased need for personal protective equiprment in the medium and
long-term. This will likely resultin upgrade programmes across NATO and
militaries globally over the coming years, for which we are well positioned

Cur leading position in the CBRN market means we are well positioned
to continue our growth in supporting aur customers around the

world to improve and enhance their pratective measures To further
expand our capabilities in the important CBRN market, we developed
the EXOSKIN range of boots and gloves to protect personnel without
compromising the wearer's tactical agility in the field In expanding our
offerings inta protective garments, we aim to provide the full scope of
integrated protective wear that can be scaled to address changing threat
ervironments and readiness fevels

Successfully addressing challenges

As a result of global supply chain issues, which in some cases pushed lead
times of components that were once 6 weeks closer to 40 weeks, we took
the initative 10 buy-forward inventory where we had identified the most
fisk, particularly electronics and textiles. Whilst this increased our working
capital, it greatly improved our ability to react to the higher demand
environment which we now find ourselves in. This has also enabled us 1o
run our facilities at improved levels of productivity and efficiency.

We have made significant progress against the previously announced cost
savings programrmes. Half of the $15 mullion anrounced in Decernber 2021
has been executed, with the remainder linked to the dlosure of the armor
bus ness. We have also delivered the ingremental $6 mullion reductuon
announced in May 2022, although as stated at the time of announcement
this cost reduction was more variable in nature and costs will be added
back into the business as revenue continues to grow

Following FAT approval for the Defense Logistics Agency Enhanced Small
Arms Protective Insert (DLA ESAPI) body armor, we started to deliver
product to the U.S DO in H2 2022, This leaves us on track to fulfil our final
contractual obligations and aliow the orderly wind-down of the armor
busness to concluce by ke end of Fr23.

The appointments of Rich Cashin as Chief Financial Officer in March 2022,
and of Jos Sciater as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 16 January
2023 brings a wealth of expenence and impressive track records within the
aerospace and defence sector to Avor Protection and positions us well for
future growrh.
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Sustainability

We protect; it's ingrained within our culture and is at the heart of
everything we da, and is why sustainability is so important to us We
recognise we are at the start of our sustainability journey to achieving net
zero by 2045 at the latest. This year, we commenced work on a high-level
sustainabiiity vision linked to our purpose and strategy.

We have concentrated our efforts on the following:

1) ldentifying key sustainability areas

To ensure we focus our efforts on the sustainability issues that are most
material, we engaged our stakeholders through a materiality review
process. Targeting the rmaost material sustainability areas, we have
developed an impact ptan consisting of four distinct pillars: an empioyec-
centric approach, environmental impact, sustainable supply chains and
cybersecurity and data protection.

2) Assessing our existing greenhouse gas (GHG) data and
building an action plan for delivering net zero

We have committed to achieving net zero by 2045 at the latest by

reducing our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions (compared to

2021). During the year, we have been focused on ensuring data accuracy

and understanding the process by which scope 1 and 2 emissions are

generated 1o provide an appropriate base year for reporting targets

against Following this work, we have now improved our data collection

and will use 20271 as a base year. We will be carrying out a further scope of

work based on recommendations to add detaill to the Net Zero Plan

3) Governance of our sustainability agenda and

TCFD reporting
To ensure focus and greater transparency of our sustainability agenda, a
new governance framework has been put in place The Board takes overall
responsibility for our sustainability agenda, disclosure and reparting.
During the year a Sustainability Committee, chaired by Rich Cashin,
was established with responsibility for the design, implementation and
delivery of our sustainability agenda on behalf of the Board. This approach
will ensure that delivery has top-level support and is underpinned by
StrOnNg governance,

We have made substantial progress over the past 12 months in setting the
foundaticns for our sustainability agenda which will continue to evolve
over the corming months and years



STRATEGY IN ACTION
AODVANCING PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

LAUNCH OF EXDSKIN CBRN
PROTECTIVE WEAR

The CBRN threat is a growing concern for military forces, with
the use of chermical weapons rising among both state actors
and terrorist groups. In response, we have developed the
EXOSKIN range of boots and gloves to supplement its CBRN
respiratory protection products to protect personnel without
compromising the wearer's tactical agility In the field

Designed to allow for the handling and operation of
electronic touch screen devices, the EXOSKIN-GI glove
offers a critical operational advantage. The ambidextrous
glove features a rubberised outer layer textured to maintain
grip in wet conditions, with an intelligent, seamless inner
knitted liner that has a conductive tip on both the thumb
and forefinger. Together these layers optimise the wearer's
dexterity and allow them to complete their mission safely

The EXOSKIN-B1 boot allows improved durability and agility
in the field, with quick-release straps to secure the garment
over standard footwear. A highly textured sole improves

the wearer's manoeuvrability in all underfoot conditions,

In addition, it is 100 percent leak tested

Manufactured from our proven rubber technolegy, both
the EXOSKIN-G1 glove and EXOSKIN-B1 boot offer Chemical
Warfare Agent and Toxic Industrial Chemical protection and
are impermeable to biological agents, Designed for quick
donning and doffing, they integrate with many protective
suit ensembles including the standard issue UK. and U.S,
CBAN protective suits.

With more than 100 years of experience delivering
innovatively designed and engineered CBRN solutions, the
EXOSKIN range leverages our matenal science capability and
deep knowledge of protective CBRN technalogy.

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc
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STRATEGY IN ACTION

WE’'RE

GROWING

The focus of Growing the Core is to maximise our performance
and efficiency to improve guality and operational excellence.
It relies on selling more of our existing portfolic to a global
customer base by Investing In our arganic sales and support
teams, including expanding our reach to new customers

and geographies.

Growing the Core also includes a focus on our intemal processes
and we are comrnitted to investing in our global facilities and
supply chain, 1o improve the quality, efficiency and performance
of cur operations. We will continue to work in partnership with
our suppliers, ensuring they are a part of our value proposition
to supply the best products and solutions at the highest gualty
and value.

Growing the Core ensures that we continuously Improve our
existing portfoiio, while operating in a sustainable way and as a
force for good within our communities.

THE CORE

ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE YEAR

1 Successful delivery of over 200,000 masks by the second year of aur
NATO cantract

2 Upgraded automated inspection as part of our filter production with
barcade tracking of each unigue filter

3 Record-breaking year for MI-TIC thermal imaging camera range, with
a 30% increase in revenue

4 Record e-commerce sales of Team Wendy helmets in Fourth of july
and Amazon Prirme Day sales

5 Continued progress with our underwater portfolio bringing
the total number of countries using the MCMI100 underwater
rebreather 1o seven

Composition of order intake for FY22

$128.9m

120

90

&m

60

30

$68.4m $70.5m

Us. DOD
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Revenue split by product ($)

70.5m

2022

193.0m

73.2m

201

168.6m

Respiratory

Head Protection

Respiratary

Head Protection

DELIVERING GROWING THE CORE

KENT’S STORY

The US DCD s always locking for a means to bath
improve performance and reduce weight. There's

a saying that 'ounces equal pounds, pounds equal
pain’, so anything that we can do to reduce the
warfighter burden from a weight perspective is a
good thing. Cver the last 20 years, helmets worn by
mast soldiers have not changed in weight, Given the
availability of new materials and technology, the
S, Aty has now turned its concentration towards
weight reduction, comfort and increased protection
In its requirements, hence the introduction of IHPS
and now the ACH GEN I,

Being the primary helmet producer to the U.S. Arry
is an incredible privilege, one we can all be proud of
and one that carries immense responsibility. | have
mentioned reduced weight and increased performance
in the ACH GEN |l as well as the enhanced features
of the NG IHPS, but what we can't lose sight of is

the key protective capabilities these systems provide.

| think what matters most is that our scldiers will
have confidence they have the best head protection
available, manufactured for them by a committed
and passionate partner in Avon Protection.

Kent Moeller
President, Avon Protection Ceradyne
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STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED

WE’'RE

ADVANCING

PRODUCT

DEVELOPMENT

Our customers continually evolve, as do the threats they face.
We will continue to investin product development each year,
working in partnership with our customers to develop new
technolegies and expand our pertfolic into a wider range

of products and solutions to enhance the capabilities of our
customers We undertake projects to develop equipment to
specifications that no other product has ever mer.

R&D expenditure composition (%)

10.9m

2022

Zastomerfumdea CTasie weg  Mor-tabre sed
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ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE YEAR

1 First order for the NG IHPS received from the U'S. Army

2 Mulu-year contract to supply the U.S. Defense Logistics Agency with
the ACH GENII

3 Launch of the EXOSKIN boots and gioves range

4 CH15 Escape Hood won the Best International Product Design
award following a reduction in mass by 22% over the previous
generation NH1S

B Launch of innovative headset adaptor for the WS, DOD's IHPS to
seamlessly integrate with the 3M™ PELTOR™ CamTac™ system

19.1m

2021



RE&D SPEND BY LINE OF BUSINESS AOVANCING PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

JUSTIN’S STORY

Respiratory Development contracts are a great prospect
for us; they provide us with the opportunity o
2021 2022 research new and future technology, sometimes

moving a concept to a protatype, while covering
7 8 m B D m the costs associated with the research and
[ ] ] development required.

Throughout such programmes, cur teams work
rinsely with the customer, government scientists,
end users and stakeholder communities, buitding
close relationships and taking part in user feedback
workshop sessions. We get to hear first hand from
the stakeholder communities on any issues with
2021 2022 their existing product or technology, whether that is
related to use, maintenance, integration with other
5 4 4 9 equipment or training, and then present solutions
. I I I . I I I back to them. It’'s also beneficial in that we learn
abaut our customer’s future requirernents and
can actively be a part of the sotution, aligning our
upcoming praduct offerings and technology with
their needs.

Head Protection

Justin Hine
Category Director — CBRN
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STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED

WE'RE

INTEGRATING

ACQUISITIONS
FOR A STRONGER

Our priority owver the past year has been the integration of 3pM's
pballistic protection business and Team Wendy, which were
acquired ir 2020 These steps have resulted in @ mare streamlined
organisation with significant opportunities for realising
commercial synergies that will drive longer-term value creation
for the Group.

We are also committed 1o further developing our integration
model so we are able to onboard these acquisitions inte the Aven
Pratection family with a consistent process and in an efficient
manner as we allow these businesses to invest and grow,

Longer term, we will continue 1o invest in M&A to further
accelerate the Group's development and continue to deliver an
industry-leading perfoermance fevel. As we continue to buiid a
growing, more efficient business, we will look to investin the
acguisition of carefully selected, value enhancing businesses 1o
further accelerate our growth. These acquisitions will not anly add
scale, but will extend our businegss into adjacent markets and new
geographies, adding new rechnologies to enhance performance,
efficiency and protection levels for aur customers.
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BUSINESS

ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE YEAR

1 Undertaking 3 portfolio review to align offerings and determine
future investment and development

2 Integration of our heimet design and manufacturing capability,
with synergies to lollowvs

3 In-sourang of helmet shells far legacy Tearn Wendy products

4  Work being undertaken to integrate HR and 1T systems across
the business

5 Continucus engagement and inclusion In core employee
engagement programmes to help therm feel part of the business



EXPANDING OUR CAPABILITIES INTEGRATING ACQUISITIONS

LAUREN’S STAORY

Talented people joining Jaining the Avon Protection family following the
our team acquisition of 3M's ballistic protection business,
along with the addition of Tearm Wendy, has

4 U U + positioned us as part of a global team at the
farefront of innovative protective technologies,
The timing of the integration during the COVID-19
pandemic presented challenges not only for IT
integration, but also getting to meet new colleagues
and truly feeling like part of the business. However,
we have been welcomed into the global team and

we are able 1o effectively share 1deas between the

New helmet product lines
different sites.

added to our portfolio
The team really comes together under pressure,

8 and everyone does what it takes to get the job done
It is highly motivating to work for a company that
makes life-critical products!

Lauren Zinger

Quality Assurance Supervisor
Invested facilities expanding

our in-house capabilities

4

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc

31

1HO¢3d D1931vHLS



FUTURE PRIORITIES

PROGRESS ON OUR
STRATEGY

Strategy focus area Metrics

Qur ambition is to create substantial value for ali

of our stakeholders. BRDWING DUR >EUU,UUU

To achieve this, our strategy is based upon three

key elements: CORETOM AXIMISE FM50 masks delivered

to NATO forces
+ Growing the core by maximising organic revenue D PPU RTU NlTIES
growth from within the current producr portfolio
and improving our operational efficiency; >1 5 U

- Advancing our product development to protect
people and maintain our innovative leadership
positian; and

product and process
attributes streamlined

- Integrating our recent acquisitions to build a S'gn'_f'cant progress made against
stronger business and accelerate growth. previously announced cost
reduction programmes

Our intentian as a pratecton-focused organisation
does not stop at developing lifesaving systems; we
care and are committed (o ensuring we execute

our strategy while contnbuting positively to the
communities and environment in which we operate.

Read more on page 26

AOVANCING OUR >100 years
PRODUCT of material science capability

DEVELOPMENT TO
PROTECT PEOPLE §204m

contract won for ACH GEN I

innovative range of protective
boots and gloves launched

Read mare on page 28

Bringing together
INTEGRATING RECENT
ACQUISITIONS TOBUILD ¢
A STRONGER BUSINESS world-leading portfolios

Aead ~aore gn page 30
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Quraim

How we achieve this

Progress during the year

We are recognised as the |eader
within respiratory, underwater
and head pratecticn markaotr,

This year, we have continued
10 invest in our core products,
maintaining our position at the
forefront of the market.

Leveraging the product and
customer base

Responding to custorners’
growing needs

Offering new medels and sclutions

Expanding our reach
through distribution

Enhancing our commercial effectiveness

Continuing focus on
operational excellence

We have completed our first year of delivering against a ten-year
framework contract to supply @ complete CBRN personal respirator
system ta NAIQ and affiliated countries.

We have continued to serve a major customer in the US. DOD
having received a large order for our M61 filters, compatible with
M50 rmasks, worth $15)m.

We have also introduced a state-of-the-art automated inspection
process as part of our filter manufacturing operations, removing
the possibitity for human error in the Iife-saving products that we
produce. With over 150 product and pracess attributes captured
for each product, the data ensures highest quality product while
facilitating data-driven continuous improverment.

We have a reputation for
technological excellence and
innovation, with a strong legacy
of new product develzpment.

Acguisitions have been a part of
our growth strategy far a humber
of years.

Moving up the value chain in
respiratory and head protection

Enabling technologies and
ntegrated systems

We have cantinued to invest to maintain our innovative technology
leadership position across our existing portfolio as well as focusing
on developing the next generation of new products that will deliver
future growth for the business. Gur main focus has been the first
article testing programmmes for both NG IHPS and ACH GEN I,

We continue to design our development pipeline in partnership
with our customers so their exacting performance requirements are
met whilst ensuring we have a committed and cornmercial route to
market to maximise cur return oh investrnent.

We have continued to meet the demands of ever-increasing

CBRN threats through the launch of two products under our new
‘EXOSKIN range. The EXOSKIN-81 CBRN Baot provides improved
durability and agility in the field, with guick release straps to secure
the overboot over standard footwear. Our EXOSKIN-GT CBRN Gloves
are designed ta allow handling and ease of operation of electronic
touch screen devices, offering users a critical operational advantage.

In the short-term, we are focused
onthe integration of our current
operations and bullding our
respiratory and head protection
business organically

In the medium to long-term, we
will return to acquisitions as a driver
for growth

Following the acquisitions of both 3M’s ballistic protection business
and Team Wendy, we have worked to bring together the peaple
and product offerings, allowing us to offer the best helmet
moulding, shell and liner and retention capabilities in a single
platform to benefit our customers

Oncein service, the awards of the ACH GEN Il and NG [HPS cantracts
will confirm our position as the leading helmer supplier to the US,
DOD, reinforcing the synergies of bringing the knowledge and
expertise of twe world-leading organisations together.
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KPlis

HOW WE MEASURE
FINANCIAL KPIS

The adjusted performance section contains further explanation for adjusting
items which are summarised below. The Group uses a variety of key performance
indicators which are in line with our strategy and investor proposition.

CLOSING ORDER BOOK

$151.3m

+5.7%
$1431m $151.3m
$101.8m
FY20 £Y21 ry22

Reason for choice
Provides an indication of revenue to be
recognised in the next financial period.

How we calculate

Orders received by the Group and not
yet fulfilled. This is measured by the value
of future revenue attached to orders not
yet fulfilled.

ORGANIC CONSTANT CURRENCY REVENUE GROWTH

9.1%

+1260 bps
9.1%
0.1% (3.5)%
FY20 FY21 Fy22

ADJUSTED EBITDA MARGIN

9.4%

-570 bps
22,9%
15.1%
9.4%
FY20 FY¥21 Fy22

“he Drectens oe
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Reason for choice
Indicates the rate at which the Group’s
business activity is changing over time

How we calculate

Growth in revenue excluding acquisitians,
comparing current pertad revenue with
prior period revenue transfated at 2022
exchange rates.

Reason for choice

Pravides a measure of the underlying
profitability of the ordinary activiues of the
business and their patential to genarate cash

How we calculate

The ratio of adjusted EBITDA to revenue
Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating
profit before depreciation, amortisatior and
excepuional items, It excludes any effect of
discontinued operations.

o7 Sage
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Comments on results

Qur closing order book of 5151 3 million
(51209 mitlion excluding armor) provides
streng visibility going into FY23, including
542 millian for our NG IHPS ballistic helmet

Link to strategy

Comments on results

Revenue was up 91% on an organic constant
currency basis, reflecting strong growth

in respiratory notably driven by the NSPA
contract, offsetting a small decling in

head protection,

Link to strategy

Comments on results

Our adjusted EBITDA margin has seen a
decling as a result of the conunued tosses
in the winding-down armor business, as
well as operational challenges affecting the
core business

Link to strategy
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Key

Growing the core

Selective product development

Value enhzncng acquisitions

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT % OF REVENUE

4.0%

-370 bps
71.7%
5.5%
4.0%
FY20 FY2 FY22

CASH CONVERSIDN

142.7%

+5,950 bps
142.7%
81.6% 83.2%
FY20 F¥21 Fy22

Reason for choice

Provides a measure of the Group’s investment
In new products and processes, Investment
provides a foundatien for the Group's

future growth.

How we calculate

Total expenditure on R&D including amounts
funded by customers, develapment
expenditure capitalised and amounts
expensed directly to the incorne statement
expressed as a percentage of revenue.

Reason for choice

Provides a measure of the managerment of
working capital and the ability of the Group
to convert profits to cash.

How we calculate

The ratio of cash generated from operations
before the effect of exceptional items to
adjusted EBITDA

ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

20.4c

-40.2c
98.6¢
60.6¢
20.4c
Fy20 FY21 Fy22

Reason for choice

Measures the abllity to generate a return to
shareholders It takes into account our success
in growing our business organically and by
acquisition, coupled with management of the
Group's financing and tax.

How we calculate

Adjusted profit for the year divided by the
welghted average number of shares in issue,
Adjusted profit excludes exceptional iterms
and discontinued operations.

RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED

3.0%

-280bps
22.3%
5.8%
3.0%
FY20 FY21 FY22

Reason for choice
Measures profitability and the efficiency with
which capitat is employed.

How we calculate

Adjusted operating profit as a percentage of
average capital employed. Capital employed
is the sum of sharehotders’ funds, non-current
liabilities and current borrowings.

Comments on results

Whilst we continue to invest in selective
product development, levels have dropped
from the record high seen in FY21 as

a number of large projects have core

to fruition.

Link to strategy

Comments on results

Cash conversion has improved due to more
favourable timing of F¥22 revenues, as well as
tight control of receivables In the last quarter
of the period.

Link to strategy

Comments on results

Adjusted eamnings per share declined due to
the impact on profit from the armor business
and operational challenges for the Group

Link to strategy

Comments on results

With a stable capital base, the decrease in
operating profit results in lower return on
capital employed.

Link to strategy
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36

KPIs CONTINUED

HOW WE MEASURE
OPERATIONAL KPIS

The Group uses a variety of key performance indicators
which are in line with our strategy and investor proposition.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

5%

-1,300 bps
64% 68%
55%
FY20 Fy21 Fv22

GENDER DIVERSITY

21%

-700 bps
29%
21%
FY21 Fyaz

HEALTH AND SAFETY

5

-69%
16
5
Fy21 F22

Reason for choice

QOur people are crucial to delivering future
business success. This is an objective way to
assess how engaged our employees are with
the business.

How we calculate

Employee engagement is measured through
regular surveys which ask empioyees to
respond to five statements with how much
they agree or disagree.

Reason for choice

A diverse and inclusive workforce is critical

10 ensuring innovative thinking and business
growth. Gender diversity at senior levels ensures
our people are led by a leadership team that is
representative of our gender-diverse workforce
and the communities in which we operate

How we calculate

We calculate this based on the number of
fernales in leadership positions, expressed as
a percentage.

Reason for choice

We want 1o keep everyone safe and well
with the support of a strong health and
safety culture.

How we calculate

We track this using a Lost Time Incident
Rate which measures the number of LT13
per LOCG emplovees

Avon Protection plc Annual Repart and Accounts 2022

Comments on results

The rearganisation to integrate the two
helmet businesses and streamline the Group,
as well as our financial performance, has been
a challenge for cur peaple this year, However,
we are making progress and continuing our
Journey to shape our culture for the future.

Link to strategy

Comments on results

The Board is committed to continuous
improvernent in this area and acknowledges
that there remains some way to go to ensure
a diverse workforce. We will continue 1 drive
internal Initiatives to champion more women
Into leadership roles

Link to strategy

Comments on results

We are pleased with the progress we have
made to reduce the number of Lost time
Inciderts acrass all of our sites globally. In line
with our goal of zero harm, we continue o
actively promote a strong safety culture.

Link to strategy



Key

Growing the core

ON TIME DELIVERY

82%

N/A
82%

Fy22

SUPPLIER QUALITY

883

-15.2%

1,041

883

FY21 Fy22
ENVIRONMENT
39.9
+11.5%

35.8 39.9
FY21 Fy22

Selective product development

Yalue ennancing acquisitions

Reason for choice

Ensuring that we are meeting our customers
delivery expectations is a core component of
maintaining high levels of satisfaction

How we calculate

We calculate this based on the percentage of
orders received, which are delivered on time
o QuUr Customers expectations.

Reason for choice

Partnering with our suppliers to ensure

the best quality materials are used in our
products underpins value for our customers

How we calculate

We measure the success of our supplier
quality in ‘Defective Parts per Million” which is
calculated by taking the number of defective
units in a same size, dividing that number

by the total sample size, and multplying by

1 million

Reason for choice

Qur rission Is to be a growing business
with a shrinking environmental impact,
targeting net zero by 2045 by reducing
our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions
(compared to 2021},

How we calculate

We measure the success of this with an
intensity ratio calculated using the amount
of scope 1 and 2 GHG emitted per Sm

of revenue

Comments on results

FY22 was the first full year of tracking on
time delivery and as such we do not have
any comparative data. Moving forward we
are committed to improving this result,
providing superior levels of satisfaction for
our customers

Link to strategy

Comments on results

We are making good progress with
decreasing our Defective Parts per Miilion
and we have seen a 15% reduction. There is
maore wark to do in this area to meet our goal.

Link to strategy

Comments on results

We have made progress over the past 12
months In setting the foundations for our
sustainability agenda and develaping our
transition to net zero by Improving data
collection processes We hope to see more
progress on this result in the future.

Link to strategy
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$172 STATEMENT

ENGAGING WITH OUR
STAKEHOLDERS

The Board acknowledges that positive Interaction with all stakeholders is key to underpinning positive engagement and fully informed decision making
on material issues. As part of ensuring the requirements of section 172 are met and the interests of all stakeholders have been regarded, stakeholder
engagement by the Board and the wider business takes place across the Group at all levels. This includes engagement with the Group's employees,
shareholders, customers and suppliers and the communities within which we operate,

Further information an how the Board has discharged its duties and considered the factors relating to section 172 are found throughout our Annuai
Report, with specific details included in the Governance section of this report.

Key

Growng the core

ODUR PEOPLE

Seective product development

Value enhancng acquisitons

Our people drive our culture. Continuous engagement with our people is

fundamental to ensure an engaged employee base that supports how we do
business and which is at the heart of our ability to drive value creation.

How we engage

Throughout the year the Executive Board and the
Board of Directors have hosted townhalls at the sites,
presenting Company updates to employees and
holding Q&A sessions,

Each year engagement surveys are undertaken with
all employees, seeking their feedback on a wide range
of topics, and the output creates our focus areas of
improvement for the year ahead.

Executive Board members and senior leaders host
monthly Q&A live events for employees to hear from
leadership on a specific topic and submit questions.

CUSTOMERS

Key topics of engagementin 2022

- Asafocus area highlighted inthe
engagement survey, we have looked for
feedback on how our employees would
like to see thelr work recognised and what
makes them feel valued.

- e have also discussed our employees’

views on sustainability and how we should

approach itin the future

+ Regular communications including
roadshows, townhalls and live events have

been used to provide an update on business

pragress and facus for the future,

How we responded

« Following feedback gathered
on recognition, a remuneration
review was launched during
the summer to explore our pay
philosophy and grade structures

« With input from our employees,
we have developed our
sustainability agenda Read more
on page 42,

Link to strategy

Our customers are at the forefront of our employees’ mind, and we are proud

of the products we create for the end users. We partner closely with our
customers and gain feedback from multiple levels within the user base to
design products which enhance their performance, efficiency and capability.

How we engage

38

Throughout the product development process

we engage with our custamers to ensure we are
respanding to their developing needs and to identfy
future opportunities.

We have dedicated leadership channels to manage
and prioritise our customer relationships and hold
User Advisory Councils to explare feedback from
specific and key users,

We work closely with country specific sclentific
communities, such as the Defence Science and
Technaology Laboratory in the UK, which provide
insight on the future capability requirements within
their military user base

Key topics of engagement in 2022

+ The majority of our product development
pipeline is designed in partrership with
our customers to ensure we are in active
dialogue and that their performance
requirements are mer,

- This year we have also engaged with aur
custormers on aur sustainability approach
o determing ther pr-orities around our
future direction

Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

How we responded

« We have developed long-
standing relationships with
our customers which provide
opporunities to work with user
groups ta ensure their evolving
operational needs are anticipated
in future product developments.

- We maintain an assessment of
broader technology trends we
could adopt quickly to deliver
disruptive technology solutions
to our customers, providing them
with capability advantages

Link to strategy




REACHING KEY
DECISIONS

Q What are your priorities as Directors for
our stakeholders and the engagement
we have with them?

A For the continued success of the Group and

for the benefit of the Company’s members as
Bruce Thompson awhole, we as a Board recognise all decisions
Executive Chair must be taken with regard to long-term

outcomes and any iImpact these have on

alt our stakeholders Throughout the year,

we have interactions with our stakeholders

regarding any long-term decisions that could

hawve an impact on them. For our people, we

always want to account for their interests

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

Engagement with employees has been

a focus for the Board of Directers and
Executive Board duting 2022 with travel
restrictions now eased. Roadshows have
taken place across the sites and townhall
meetings have provided our employees
an opportunity to hear from both Boards,
pravide their feedback and discuss
priorities and focuses. Teams across the
business have alsc been invited to take
part in discussion lunches to have one-to-
cne time with Board members,

and align our decisions to ensure they have
the best experience with Avon Protection.
It's a priority to foster strong relationships
with our customers, suppliers and other key
stakeholders, maintaining our reputation for
high standards of business conduct and the
need to act fairly.

Itis also & priority for the Directors to identify
any impact the Company's cperations

have on the community and environment,
This year we have autlined our approach

16 sustainabibity and becoming net zero by
2045 at the latest

WE AS A BOARD RECOGNISE ALL DECISIONS
MUST BE TAKEN WIiTH REGARD TO LONG-TERM
OUTCOMES AND ANY IMPACT THESE HAVE ON

ALL OUR STAKEHOLDERS.

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection ple
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$172 STATEMENT CONTINUED

Key

Growing the core selective product develcoment

COMMUNITIES

Valug ennanding acquisitions

We have an established community initiative focused on economic, sccial and

environmental sustainability in our local communities. We continually work
with and for the communities in which we operate, recognising our role as a
major local employer and our responsibilities with regard to any impact we

have on them.

How we engage

+ Within our community initiative is our Charitable Giving Programme,
providing match funding and donations 1o the organisations in our
local areas which our employees have close ties with.

« We have continued our sponsorship for Bath Rugby's community
programmes, including support for its Primary Education programme
centred around developing numeracy skills and pramoting health
and wellbeing. We also sponsor Bath Rugby's Girls Partucipation Hubs,
an inftiative that aims to Increase female participation in the sport,

+ We offer work experience and internship opportunities to
enthusiastic students looking to start developing employability skills
and have oppaortunities across engineering, sclence and commergial
job roles.

SUPPLIERS

Key topics of
engagement in2022
We engage with local
organisations and charities on
their funding needs and how
our danations ran support
their causes.

We have provided a number of
internship and work placement
opportunities to students in
our local areas. In Cadillac, 124
high school students visited
our facility to learm more about
rmanufacturing and who we are.

How we responded

« During FY22, we made $108,403
of charitable contributions
talocal communines and
organisations, nominated by our
employees and as part of our
community programmes.

We actively encourage
emnployees to use the charitable
giving options we provide

Link to strategy

We strive to build long-term relationships with our suppliers, and ensure

they adhere to our supplier code of conduct and quality expectations.
We continuously engage with our suppliers to develop our knowledge

and product range.

How we engage
- Committed teams aim to build long-term relationships we strive for
with all our suppliers.

- Through site visits and a programme of supplier audits, we ensure
their standards and expectations of behaviour reflect aur own
Group-wide standards and we have a Supplier Code of Conduct to
suppart this.

SHAREHOLDERS

Key topics of

engagementin 2022

+ Consistent delivery of quality
materials and services from
our long-term suppliers and
a clear understanding of our
expectalions on ethical and
sustainable trading in the
supply chain

How we responded

« Promipt and fair payments help to
build the long-rerm relationships
wie strive for with all our suppliers.

~ Continuous review of our supplier
code of conduct and terms and
compliance against ther

Link to strategy

The Group regards regular communications with shareholders as extremely

important to understand their views and concerns and ensure their ongoing

investment and support.

How we engage
We consuit with our shareholders through open and frequent

carmmunicatons, predominantly led by the Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer.

- There are open channels of communicanons during the Annual
General Meeting (AGM) and through the Company Secretary where
shareholders can raise questions for the Directors

+ Regular dialogue takes place with institutional shareholders,
including follawing half and full year results and other milestone
announcements with a series of direct meetings throughout the year,

« The Chair held over 20 indnidual reetings with shareholders during
the year to discuss key issues of concern,
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Key topics of

engagementin 2022

- How we are addressing
challenges has been a key topic
of conversation during the year
Chief Executive Officer
succession plan following
Pzul McDorald's -esignation.
Consultation with shareholders
an our sustainability agenda

» Throughaout the first half of
the year we undertook a share
buy back scherne, which was
discussed with shareholders,

How we responded
Continucus open
communication with our
shareholders rernains a priority.

We have developed our
sustainability agenda Read
more on page 42

Link to strategy



REA

CONTINUED

Q What is in place to identify when

decisions should be made by the Board?

A The Group has a robust governance framework

in place where day-to-day decision making
is delegated to management. There are
certain financial and strategic thresholds

in place to identify matters requiring

Board consideration and approval and any
key decisions relating to strategy and its
implementation are taken by the Board.

We as a Board have a clear framework for
determining the matters within our remit and
have approved terms of reference for matters
dalegated to the Committees. We strive
have interactions with all stakeholders to
underpin decision making on material issues.

CUSTOMER RELATIONS

Criven by governments’ research and
development needs, our teams have been
working on what the future of protection
locks like through development contracts,

These contracts are essential to progress
and provide the opportunity to hear

user feedback first hand, build strong
relationships with our customers, and
partner with other compantes to gain
more knowledge of technology cutside
our areas of expertise, all whilst developing
future protection concepts and true
technology improvernents.

Q How does the Board gain an oversight

of engagement with the wider business?

A In addition 1o the surmmary of engagement

detailed within this report, Executive
management prepares reports which detail
engagement activity across our stakehclder
group. Board rmembers also attend Executive
management meetings when relevant,
giving the Board the oppartunity to interact
and discuss any stakehelder issues which
may need 1o be escalated to the Board by
management. In my position as Executive
Charr, | have spent a great deal of time working
more closely with the eams across the
business and have enjoyed getting to know
everyone more whilst | have been on site.

| HAVE SPENT A GREAT DEAL OF TIME WORKING
MORE CLOSELY WITH THE TEAMS ACROSS THE
BUSINESS AND HAVE ENJOYED GETTING TO KNOW
EVERYONE MORE WHILST | HAVE BEEN ON SITE.

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Aven Protection ple
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SUSTAINABILITY

OUR AMBITIOUS APPROACH TO
SUSTAINABILITY w

We protect; it’s ingrained within our culture and is at the heart of everything we do.
This includes a commitment to protecting the communities and environment in which
we operate to ensure a sustainable future for us all. Last year, we commenced work
on a high-level sustainability vision linked to our purpose and strategy.

OUR IMPACT PLAN

ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT

SUSTAINABLE
SUPPLY CHAINS

SUPPORTED BY OUR STRONG GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

We have made significant progress over the past 12 months to build
the foundations of our sustainability agenda. We recognise we are still
at the beginning of our sustainability journey and our approach in this
area will continue to evolve, We have concentrated our efforts in the
following areas.

1) Identifying key sustainability areas

To ensure we focus cur efforts on the sustainability issues that are most
material, we formally engaged our stakeholders through a materiality
review process. This was carried out via industry benchmarking, anline
surveys and one-to-one interviews with employees, customers, suppliers
and investors. The results of this helped inform the development of our
sustainability agenda and our impact plan, comprised of the following
four pillars:

- Environmental impact
- Sustainable supply chains
- Cybersecurity and data protection

« Anemployee-centric approach

We have adopted the UN Sustainable Developrment Goals (SDGs) within
curimpact plan to further demanstrate our alignment with universal goals
and opportunmities far collective action

further details on ourimpact plan can be found on page 44,

2) Assessing our existing GHG data and building an
action plan for delivering net zero

We have committed o achieving net zero by 2045 at the latest by

reducing our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions {compared to

2021). Dunng the year, we have been focused or ensuring data accuracy

and understanding the process by which scope 1 and 2 emissions

are generated to provide an appropriate base year for reporting

targets against.

42 Avon Protection pl¢ Annual Report and Accounts 2022

CYBERSECURITY AND
DATA PROTECTION

EMPLOYEE-CENTRIC
APPROACH

Read mare cn page 43

We have carried out a review of existing dara in addition to undertaking

interviews with representatives from cach of our sites to further |
understand our processes that generate GHG emissions. Fallowing this !
work, we have now improved the accuracy of our data management

processes and will use 2021 as a base year

We will be carrying out a further scope of work based on recemmendations to
add detal! to the Net Zere Plan Furtherwork is also required to look at scope 3.
See page 46 for our Net Zero Plan, !

3) Governance of our sustainability agenda and

TCFD reporting
We recognise the importance of putting in place a rabust governance
structure to Gversee our sustainability agenda going forward. The Board
will continue ta oversee and have overall respansibility for setting and
ensuring delivery of our sustainability agenda. During the past year, we
have established a Sustainability Steering Committee which is chaired by
our Chief Financial Officer, Rich Cashun The Committee will review the
Company’s progress towards the targets, reporting regularly to both the
Executive Board and main Board.

In addition, we have been preparing to report against TCFD for the

first time. As part of this process, we have spent time develcping our
understanding of our exposure to climate change risk We have also
carried out a gap analysis to full TCFD alignment to identify an action plan
to work towards meeting the four TCFD thematic areas of governance,
strategy, risk management and metrics relating to climate-related risks and
opportunities We identfied that the Group already fulfils many of TCFD's
recarnmendations; however, there remains work 1o do ta ensure we are
fully aligned. We have alsa outlined two qualitative scenano narratives 1o
help us explore the potential ciimate change implications in gur business,
See page 54 for our TCFD disclasure



GREATER
TRANSPARENCY

To ensure focus and greater transparency of our sustainability
agenda, a new governance framework has been put in place.

The Board takes overall responsibility for our sustainability agenda,
disclosure and reporting. During the year a Sustainability Committee,
chaired by Rich Cashin, was established with responsibility for the
implementation and delivery of our sustainability agenda on behalf of

the Board. The Sustainability Committee wilt recommend to the Board for
approval sustainability-related targets and review the Company’s progress
towards those targets, reporting regularly to both the Executive Board and
rmain Board. This approach will ensure that delivery of our sustainability
agenda has top fevel support and is underpinned by strong governance.

EMBEDDING SUSTAINABILITY

We expect that aur approach to governance of our sustainability agenda is
likely to continue to develop, alongside our evolving approach in this area.
Set out below is an overview of how the governance of our sustainability
agenda will be integrated into cur existing governance structure,

Board of Directors
oversees and has overall responsibility for Avon Protection's sustainability agenda, disclosures and reporting.
This includes, but is not limited to, clirmate risks and cpportunities.

See page 74 for details or our Board of Directers and membership of the three Cornmittees of the Boara

Nomination Committee
is responsible for ensuring
the membership of the
Board and the pipeline
for succession planning
purposes reflects diversity

Audit Committee
is responsible for risk
managerment Including
chimate-related risks.

See page 82 “or the Aud t
Commttee Report,

See page 873 for the
Nominaien Committes Report

Executive Board
is responsible for integrating
sustainability into strategic
management,

Remuneration
Committee
is responsible for remuneration
policies and packages,
including integrating
sustainability into the executive
remuneration structure,

See page B for the Remuneration
Committee Repart

Sustainability Steering Committee
Chaired by Rich Cashin, Chief Financial Officer
acts an behalf of the Board to oversee delivery and implementation of our sustainability agenda. Makes recommendations
to the Board including on sustainability-related targets and climate related matters The Committee is made up of leaders
from across the business that have been identified as enablers for the sustainability agenda

Employee engagement forum
is responsible for promoting the views
and mterests of the workforce,

Site level working groups
embed the sustainability agenda inta the Group's
operational processes.
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

MAPPING WHAT
MATTERS MOST

Introducing our new sustainability agenda
One of our objectives during the year has been to put in place a high-level
sustainability agenda.

As a business we recognise our operations around the world impact upoen
a number of systainability areas. We understand we must make progress

in each of them to ensure we protect society, the environment and our
customers to secure a sustainable future for the Group and its stakeholders
aver the long-term. Alongside this, we recognise the importance of having
a sustainability agenda that reflects those issues that are most material

1o our business and our stakeholders and on which we can have the
greatestimpact.

As we take our first steps in owr sustainabllity journey, jtwas decided action
should be focused on these areas considered material, which means they
have the potential to substantively affect our ability to create value in the
snart, medium or long-term, and are of importance 1 our stakenolders

2022 MATERIALITY MATRIX
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Our methodology: starting with materiality

Throughout 2022 we undertook a full materiality assessment, with

the goal of evolving our sustainability agenda. A benchmark of peers,
competitors and customers was carried out to create a defined list of
sustainabflity areas relevant 1o our business. Stakeholder engagement
was undertaken to understand the importance of each sustainability area
to our employees, customers and shareholders. Consideration was also
given to understand the impact of each issue on the Company's ability to
generate value versus the likellhood of the impact. This has culminated in
our materiality matrix which is shown below

The themes shown In the top right-hand corner are those identified as
maost material, although all issues are important. It is important to highlight
we do not view these themes in isolation, as in many cases they are
interconnected. The resuits of cur materiality matrix have underpinned
the evolution of our sustainability agenda, with the creation of the four key
pillars that make up our Impact plan

1. Cybersecurity and data protection
2. Business conduct and ethics
Sustainabifity 1n supply chain
4, Low carbon transition and

chmate impacts
5. Energy use and GHG ernissions
6. Product design and life cycle
7. Human rights and labour standards
8. Waste management and the
circular econorny
Talent attraction, development
and retention
10. Remuneration and payment practices
11, Water management
12. Occupational health, safety

and wellbeing
13. Diversity, inclusion and

equal opportunimies

Yery hign
14. Community wellbeing

SHAREHOLDERS

All employees were given the apportunity .

to contribure 1o the proyect. A survey was
created and employees were asked to say
on a scale of one to ten how important
each sustainability area was to thern,

+ One-t0-ong interviews with
representatives from across the business
including members of the Executive Board
logked at the scorings of this survey and
examined how much impact each issue
has on our ability to create value against
the likelihond of the impact

A benchmarking activity was conducted,
outlung our key customers’ stance on
sustainability areas through the review
of climate and sustainability policies

and leqgislas an.

We engaged with customers 1o allow the
opportunity to state what matters maost
to them, and in some cases, one-to-one
interviews were held.
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- We engaged with a number of investors 1o
identify the material sustainablity areas that
matter most to thern, and how they expect
us to respand 10 emerging issuesin the
COMmINg years.



OUR IMPACT PLAN

Taking the five most material sustzinability areas, we have developed an impact plan consisting of four distinct pillars
for action over the coming years. This underpins our sustainability agenda and ensures we are progressing in the areas
that matter most to our key stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT

SUSTAINABLE
SUPPLY CHAINS

Topics include;
- Direct and indirect
GHG emissions

Topics include:
» Responsible procurement

- Transparency, traceability,
policies, standards and
reviews related to the
environment

« Energy use
< Efficiency

- Exploration of scope

. » Lab ights, hurnan rights,
3 emissions abourrng Y 9

forced or child labour,

« The low-carbon transition and ethics

Minimising business
continuity risks

- Management of climate nsk

+ Regulatery and
reputational risks

Alignment to 5DGs Alignment to SDGs

Read more or page 44 Read mare on page 50

Our alignment with the United Nations SDGs

This is the first year that we are reporting on our alignment with the United
Nations Sustainable Developrment Goals (SDGs). They are a collection of

17 globzl objectives adopted by the United Nations in 2015 (o eradicate
poverty, protect the planet and build a peaceful and prosperous world. We
have chosen to report our contribution to SDGs within our impact plan
further demonstrate our alignment with universal goals and cpportunities
for collective action.

The Group contributes 1o six SDGs. Throughout the year we undertake
projects that contribute to other aspects of sustainability as part of our
everyday stewardship and as such we may also influence other SDGs.

CYBERSECURITY AND
DATA PROTECTION

EMPLOYEE-CENTRIC
APPROACH

Topics include: Topics include:

« Information security » Employee engagement

« Risk management » Diversity and inclusion

- Privacy of data - Health, safety and wellbeing
- Security of products and + Pay and benefits

services with internet
i + Personal development
connectivity

- Community engagement

Alignment to SDGs Alignment to SDGs

Read more on page 5t Readt more on page 52

Looking forward

We will be setting ourselves challenging targets against each of the four
pillars within cur impact plan. These targets will be monitored at a Group
{evel by our new Sustainability Steering Committee and reported regularly
tc both the Executive Board and Board of Directors.
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SUSTAINABILITY CCNIINUED

OUR JOURNEY TO
NET ZERO

At the heart of what we do is designing and manufacturing innovative mission-critical protection systems and this makes us accountable
for the emissions that we release as part of everyday operations (scope 1 and 2). We also have a responsibility to influence our emissions
impact through our value chains, product life cycle and operating efficiencies which are classed as scope 3. This is also becoming an
increasing consideration for our stakeholders and the communities within which we operate and was highlighted as a key sustainability

area in our materiality assessment; see page 44,

OUR NET ZERD MILESTONES

We are comnmitted to achieving net zero by 2045 at the latest by reducing our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG ermissions

plan of action for all sites to implement.

Employee focus

The net zero transtion was highlighted as an area of importance

for employees amongst other sustainability areas in our materiality
assessment. Qur employees are keen 1o support us and sustainabllity
objectives have been ermbedded into performance managernent
reviews for our employees

Over the coming year we will engage with our employees further on
the direction of our sustainability agends, targets and Net Zero Plan.
Our employees’ engagement with our Net Zero Plan will be crtical for
implementing projects and collectively achieving aur goals.

2021 cornpared o 2021

This target ensures we limit ourimpact on irreversible climate change, providing both risks and opportunities for us. As we become

mere sophisticated in this area we expect o expand our knowledge and data available to us which could alter the target date.

Qur 2045 target supports the UK's agreement to limit global warming to well below 2 degrees Celsius compared to pre-industrial

levels which the UK and other countries that we operate in have committed to. To achieve this, cauntries must reduce their GHG

ermissions and many countries including the UK. have set aims 1o achieve net zera GHG ernissions by 2050. As part of this, governments

are enacting policies which include requirements to detail transition plans and evidence climate resilience to drive change.

During the year we carried out a review of our existing GHG dataand - 2022 milestones:
eiee started to build an action plan to delivering net zero. As part of this - Data collection and reporting methadology have

we carried out meetings with site representatives to understand our been improved

operational emissions. .

- We have determined that 2021 (s an appropriate
The result of the review has led 1o a recommendation of seven base year for measuring targets against
i 1 2 GHG . .
act|orjs fottherGroup j2o] focu} on, to reduce scope 1 and 7 - Production of a case study to determing the scope 3
cmissions, and in parallel begin the assessment of scope 3 emissions . .
ernissions resulting from air travet

These actions include:

1. Embed a net zero mindset and assign accountability

2 Assess energy efficiency options and set an enerqy

reduction target
3. Assessrenewable electricity options and set a renewable
electricity target

4 Reduce natural gas consumption

5. Reduce other scope 1 impacts

6. Plan for residual ermissions

7. Assess scope 3 emissions

Refine the plan Share short to medium-term net zero
2023 & We believe it is approprate to continue to verify the actions above targets and action plan publicly
ONWARDS before setting short to medium-term targets and releasing a detailed Following these steps, we will be able to deliver a

considered set of short to medium-term targets
and site actions that have had the appropriate level
of engagement with our employees (who will be
responsible for actioning) and the Board (which will
sign thern off}.

Scope 3 categories

There are 15 areas of scope 3 for us ta explore and
determine the most relevant to report and track
Utilising our representatives 3cross the business we will
conduct a review of ail scope 3 categories to determine
which are the most matenal for reporting against in

the future
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LEVERAGING EXPERTISE
ACROSS THE BUSINESS

We have many talented technical experts across
the business, including material scientists and

technicians, They provide research and development

capabilities in a wide range of rubbers and polymers
and have access 1o state-of-the-art lasoratories.

Qur strengths lie in the skills and experience of our
people, many of whom are award winning and
accepted as leading industrial experts in their field

Udilising the skills and knowledge of our people
will be crucial for developing solutions to meet the
exacting needs of the future including developing
new materials and sclutions to reduce our
greenhouse gas emissions,

10

material scientists and technicians
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SUSTAINABILITY CONITINUED

OUR IMPACT PLAN
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Our approach

Energy use and GHG emissions in addition to low-carbon transition and
climate impacts came out as two sustainability areas our stakeholders
value as important te the business; due to the interconnected approach,
we have combined these themes under one pillar As the economy deals
with the soaring cost of energy as well as an increased level of scrutiny to
reduce reliance on carbon and other environmental impacts, this will be
an area of importance for us and our stakeholders for many years.

Last year we committed to being net zero by 2045 at the latest by reducing
our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG {compared to 2021). We have undertaken
a project with a sustainability consultant during the year to review our
operational (scope 1 and 2) GHG emissions to determine actions that will
help us achieve aur target, Off the back of this work, we have created our
Net Zero Plan which provides direction for the Group afigned to these
actions which we will continue 1o refine

Our Net Zero Plan and the supporting strategy to follow support our
arnbition to minimise the glabal impact of our operations and protect our
environment as well as our response 1o and management of climate risk.

dead mere on page 46

Energy consumption

Our energy consumption in FY22 was 41,021 MwWh, of this, the U K. accounted
for 28% of our global energy use. Several factors have contributed to the
increase in the Group's energy use, including a rarmp-up of production

in several locations which includes offering last time buys for key armor
busness custo~ers as we wnd-gown the business, A defay in cortracts
also resulted in Increased energy use that would have atherwise been
generated during FY21,

The focus for the year has been to Improve our process for capturing
data relating tQ energy consumption and set an apprepriate base year
for measuring against which has been achieved. As a result, we did
nat undertake any Group-led energy efficiency projects dunng the
vear; hawever, it 15 likely that site-led pracess improvements have been
undertaken that have positively iImpacted energy efficiency but these
have not been captured
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Carbon disclosures

A representative at each of our sites has responsibility for the reporting of
energy use throughout the year. The collected data allows us to calculate
and monitar carbon emissions and Is a vital tool for measuring progress
towards reducing our emissions.

During the year we reviewed the sources of GHG emissions generated
at our sites 1o ensure we are reporting all the relevant emissions. As we
start to extend our reporting inte scope 3 we will continue to reportin
alignment with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Standards.

In FY22 our carbon emissions amounted to 10,856 1CO e; of this, the UK.
accounted for 20% of our total scope 1 and 2 emissions {location based).
With a revenue of $771.9 million this gives us an :ntensity ratio of 398 1CO e
per $million revenue. We have established that tennes of CO,e per Smillion
revenle 15 an appropriate business metric which we will continue

use to define our emissions data and will be helpful for assessing our
performance as we evolve,

Scope 3 - business travel

Scope 3 emissians quantify a company's indirect GHG throughout the
value chain. This includes everything from the impact of purchased
products and services to transpartation and distribution all the way

10 end-of-life treatment of sold products. In total, there are 15 scope 3
categones that need 1o be accounted for Atop-level view on which scope
3 categories are likely to be relevant suggests ‘purchased goods and
services category’ as significant and likely to be greater than our scope 1
and 2 ermissions We will be staging projects throughout the coming years
10 set up appropriate data callection and research Into each category

The avaitability of data on business travel enabled us to measure our
impact ahead of schedule. Due to aur COVID-19 travel policy and country
requlations our business travel was limited in 2021 resulting in 80tCO &
since travel has been allowed our business has ensured every trip has an
intended purpose The business recognises the importance of meeting
with our colleagues outside of the virtual environment, but must track the
environmentalimpact F¥221s a mare reflective year of travel amounting
©382tl0e

There is further work ongoing on other scope 3 emMIssions 50 we car
deterrmine how relevant the scope 3 categones are for the crgamisaron
We will continue to monitor business travel and report on it




Site management

Dur UK operations continue to conform to 150 14001-2015 which
reinforces how we manage our environmental responsibilities. In April, we
also obtained certification for our US. site in California as part of bringing
all our manufacturing sites under this certification. In support of this we
have undergone further strengthening of cur management by appointing
EHS coverage at all sites which will be responsible for managing our
licences. We will look 1o undertake two further certifications next year,

Global GHG emissions (tonnes CO,e)
FY22  FY21'?

Scope 1
UK. B 905 1,184
Qutside LK. 2,598 14N
Total 3,503 2,595

Scope 2 (location based)

UK. 1,294 1461
Outside UK. 7 6,059 4,82“87
Total 7,353 6,289
Scope 2 (market based) 7,518 6,525
Total scope 1 and 2 {location based) 7
UK. 2,199 2,645
Qurside UK. 8,057 6239
Total 10,856 8,884
Intensity ratio
WOe (scopeVT and 2) per $millicn revenue 399 35;8-_
Selected scope 3 GHG emissions reporting
(tCO.e)
Indirect emissions for business travel 382 80

Energy consumption

Energy consumed (MWh)

UK 11,648 13,356
Qurside UK. 29,373 13721
Total 431,021 33,077

1 2021 data has ceen restated as a result of improvemnerts made to reportiing methodclogy and
more accarate energy data Ongina figures intne 2021 Anrua' Report were 11,448 1C0 e total
GHE eruss ons and 33,911 Mwk erergy corsumptior

2 Market based emissicn factors o yinclude (O ard have beer calculated usirg UK suppher
speciis rates as wel as 2019 and 2020 U S Greer-e Energy Residual Mix Emissions Bates

3 Tearn Wenay was acqured in Noveriber 2020, however data for tne Creveland faclity s
rouaed for the “Ull 2021 financial year tc provide a oase year

Ciata has been compiled accod rg to the operananal boundary approack . n e Greenhouse 54s

Protocs Corparate Accournung and Feparting Sancard and aligrs 7o Streamlhired Erergy ard

Carbon Repcrting (SECR)

Ovessl consurip: on nas been calcdlated usng imvoiced data Esnmazed data s used where

Avaiced data s noT availlabie withir the tmehne ‘or consolidaticr of year end dare Two smaa

cffice s tes use o537 Mared emissions nased on CREEM data for neating ard electncity consumpticn

oersq fr

Emussian factors have beer calculatea using 2020 and 2021 U < Covernmer: &G Jorversion

Factors for Company Recarting and the 2020 EPA eGRID conwersiors

Water usage

Water cansumption across all six of our sites is limited to mainly domestic
use, for drinking and sanitary disposal. Where water discharges do

occur due to product testing, they are disposed of in line with iocal
goverrment guidelines.

Waste

During the year we established centralised tracking and monitoring of our
different waste streams at our UK. headquarters which identified that over
97% of waste generated from operations at this site is either recovered

or recycled (290.15 tennes of waste generated during FY22). For the
purpose of establishing baseline waste figures for the Group and assessing
our scope 3 emissions we will look at setting up similar data reporting
requirements at our other sites.

We also cormnmenced our partnership with one of our suppliers,

AK industries Limited, to reuse packaging for all products delivered. All
packaging the site receives from AK Industries is sent back to the supplier
in Correx packaging for them to reuse, which resulted in 5,000 boxes being
reused during the year, By doing this we help to conserve resources, reduce
waste and avoid emissions generated through needless reprocessing.

Any hazardous waste generated, as defined by the Control of Substances
Hazardous to Health and U.S. Environment Pratection Agency (US. EPA),
is disposed of in line with local guidelines.

Environmental incidents

There have been no environmental incidents as defined by the UK.
Environment Agency or the U.S, EPA at any of our sites or in relation to our
supply chain throughout the 2022 financial year.

Lcoking forward

In FY23 we will continue 1o focus on employees’ engagement

building in greater connection with our Net Zera Plan through internal
information campaigns. We will also expand our data collection to include
waste, water and other scope 3 categories,

HIGHLIGHTS

0 2

sites certified to
1SO 14001 2015

environmental incidents
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

OUR IMPACT PLAN
SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAINS

Our approach

Primarily, we consider sustainable supply chains to encapsulate ethical and
enviranmentally responsible practices, Recent supply chain disruption,
which has resulted from macro events such as the ongoing conflict in
Ukraine and COVID-19 lockdowns, has heightened our stakeholders’
awareness of supply chains and ensyring they can operate sustainably.

The risk of further disruption through extreme weather and sea level
change is suggested to fncrease over time under certain climate scenarias,
see page 63, To reduce this risk, we are working towards net zero by
reducing our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions {compared to 2021},
and recognise we must support our supply chain to do the same.

This 15 the first year of detailed reporting on ssues relating 1o our supply
chain and over the coming year we will ook to develop our direction and
set targets within this pillar.

Supply chain

For us to achieve our long-term ambitions in sustainabitity, we recognise
that the management of and support from our suppliers will be vital to
ensure they are responsible for conveying the same level of compliance to
their supply base as we are. When we consider a new supplier to provide
preducts or services, a suppler survey must be completed before they
can be approved which includes evidence that they have implemented

a comprehensive Quality Managerment System, or progress towards
developing one with the goal of the Sub-Supplier confarmity to 1ISQ 9001

Rationalisation

Foltowing the acquisition of 3M's ballistic protection business and Team
Wendy, we have undertaken projects to ratioralise our supply chain to
create manufactunng efficiencies and reduce the monitoring burden.

Policies

Cur suppler Code of Conduct provides a minimum set of requirements
for aur suppliers to adhere to and also encourages suppliers to implement
their own Code of Conduct for their employees and to cascade this
throughout their supply chain If suppliers have concerns regarding any
of the matters covered in this Code of Conduct, we expect thern to bring
these to our attention
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OUR SUPPLY CHAIN

603

approved production suppliers

Rear more o~ cur Code of Congact on cur webse

Read micre ¢ our Modesn Slavery ST3Temers an cur wens.te

Product development

Product safety and quality Is at the core of all our business practices The
majority of our products are approved to customer or industry safety
standards which involves rigorous testing Our production employees
receive mandatory product safety training, and all of our products
undergo internal safety and quality testing programmes, Where standards
require, external safety audits are conducted on our products.

We recognise it is essential 1o develop products that generate long-term
value for the business and do not comprormise the environments and
community inwhich we operate or influence through cradle to grave
As we work tawards our net zero GHG target, we will be reviewing

our products’ scope 3 emissions which will inform our transition over
time to reduce the GHG emissions generated through the life cycle of
our products,

Looking forward

In FY23 we will continue to develop our know!edge of our supply chain
and how this mpacts our scope 3 emissions as well as take opportunites
to support our suppliers to further this agenda



OUR IMPACT PLAN
CYBERSECURITY & DATA PROTECTION

Our approach

Cybersecurity and data pratection came out strongly as a key sustainability
issue that was highlighted in our materiality assessment. As a contractor
for the U.S, DOD we have an abligation to be compliant and ensure the
highest levels of security are met

Managing data protection

As a contractor to militanes, we handie defence-related data. Through our
work with the U.S, DOD we are subject 1o the International Traffic in Arms
Regulations (ITAR) which mandate that access 1o data related to defence
and military technologies is restricted to U.S. citizens only A violation

of ITAR could result in fines and/or loss of export licences. As with many
organisations, we face risks from external threats that could cause sensitive
data to be lost, corrupted or accessed by unauthorised users, leading to
financial or reputational loss. Over the past 12 months, we have started

an integration programme to ensure our newly acquired sites are running
on our latest and most secure network. This programme is ongoing

and will continue into the next year as we cover key aspects including
infrastructure, ERP, desktop equipment and applications.

As of 2022, we have revisited and updated our Information Classification
Policy. We commaonly exchange information, some of which could have
security classifications with external customers and partners, so as a Group,
we prioritise the placement of appropriate markings, disclosure agreements
and secunty measures. In addition, during the past year we have launched
the Group's new Compliance Programme alongside a reviewed and revised
Information Security Policy and Code of Conduct. These documents define
the standards expected of each employee, contractor and third party
acting on behalf of Avon Protection, inciuding meeting physical, digital and
data security requirements. Over the next 12 months we have a target to
introduce additional compliance training covering each of our three core
compliance pillars spanning organisational governance, export compliance
and security in an approach very similar to our proven and successful
cybersecurity training programme,

DUR ACHIEVEMENTS THIS YEAR

>90% 2022

employees completed annual Compliance
cybersecurity training Programme launched

Cybersecurity

As workplace COVID-19 restrictions reduce, we continue to be a flexible
employer, allowing individuals to work from home where possible and,

as a result, continue o maintain the enhanced monitoring of phishing
attempts and other security threats both within and outside of our core
locations. We have policies and mandatory online training delivered by

a leading provider throughout the year, continually raising awareness of
such risks with our employees to avoid any data breach of confidential
information. Training includes online courses and questionnaires
surrounding tapics such as protecting personal and sensitive data and
how to recognise social engineering attacks, with industry benchmarking
data suggesting users are six times less likely to be prone to a phishing
attack 12 months after this training. With 91% of successful data breaches
starting with a spear phishing attack, we also run regular security tests to
ensure our employees continue to utilise the tools provided to them in
addition to their training. Since joining the programme, our cyber tests
have proven our phish-prone rating to be half that of the industry average.

Cybersecurity training 1s a key line of defence for the Group and

continues T support Us as we work towards meeting the requirements

of Cybersecurity Maturity Model Certification (CMMC) 2.0. CMMC 2.0 s a
requirement far all contractors and subcontractors of the U.S. DQD, as the
model brings toegether many cybersecurity reguirements to better protect
Controlled Unclassified Information {CU1)

Looking forward
As an organisation that handles CUI we are working towards meeting the
requirements of CMMC 2.0,
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

OUR IMPACT PLAN
AN EMPLOYEE-CENTRIC APPROACH

Employee engagement

We are committed o maintaining a high level of employes engagement
across all sites and providing an environment where all employees can
fulfil their potential.

Maintaining high levels of communication with all employees is a focus
across the Group as we host monthly leadership events with members of the
Executive Board. This provides the opportunity for the Executive Board to give
an update on the business, their vision for the future and what requires further
focus in a single clear message to all employees. These events also provide
employees with the opportunity to ask guestions directly and anonymously if
they so wish. Qver FY22, we have also held maore in-person townhall meetings
during each Executive Board site visit, praviding employees with a further
oppROrtuNnity to engage, ask questions and hear directly from leadership.

We greatly value employee feedback and continue our initiative to celebrate
and enhance the culture at Avon Protection. Culture Champions have been
selectad from every level of the organisation with the intention of playing a
crucial role in maintaining an open communication culture within the Group
Their role includes speaking ta our employees on matters such as leadership,
learning and development, and social connection. The Executive Board

also actively meets and engages with Culture Champions during each of its
site visits

Our biannual surveys provide ermployees with a further oppertunity to
provide feedback and suggest improverments on aspedcts such as leadership
communication, employee engagement, team culture and work environment
Results from these surveys are then presented 1o the Board of Directors, the
Executive Board and the wider leadership team with areas for improvement

at both site and Group level discussed. Gur Culture Champions then support
in the implementation of the changes and give feedback to our employees,
This discussion is two-way, as Culture Champions then feed back on how this
change or feedback has been accepted across the business

Health, safety and wellbeing

In fine with our goal of zero harm, we continue to actively promote a
strong safety culture. We have mandatory training and policies in place for
all production employees on workplace safety and practices

This year, acrass our cperational sites, we recorded a total of 5 workplace
lost time cases. We track incidents on a monthly basis and have a gfobal
target to reduce our incident rate to zerg, against which we are making
progress Qver the past year, we have also globally aligned the way in
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which we collect safety data across all of our sites. We have developed an

online hub for UK employees, providing therm with access to equipment-
specific safety training courses to become certified by the business upon

course completion. The online hub, once implemented across all sites, will
play an integral partin achieving our zero-incident target.

The health and wellbeing of our empioyees is important to us and throughout
the year we share resources with them on how to look after their mental
and physical wellbeing, We hold @ multitude of wellbeing webinars based
on key ropics throughout the year, such as work-life balance, exercise and
seasonal nutrition. These webinars allow employees to switch off from
work for an hour and ask our expert presenters questions, increasing our
employee engagement and involvernent

Diversity and inclusion

Diversity provides a better culture for all. We are committed to equality
for all employees as we strive to provide an enviranment where every
individual can meet their full potential

Female representation acress our Executive Board and direct reports

is 21% and we are committed to improving this in the future Across all
employees, we have achieved a ratio of 42% (420 out of 995) fermale and
58% {575 out of 995) male,

As part of our pledge to continucusly improve the balance of female

to male employees across all our sites, we have signed the Women in
Defence UK. charter This charter reffects our aspirations 1o see women
represented and empowered across the defence sector and our intention
to work with fellow industry leaders to enhance the gender balance.

Having established the Balance@Avon fnitiative two years ago, we are
proud of whatwe have achieved so far in addressing gender inequalities
in the warkplace The initiative aims to meotivate, empower and suppart all
ernployees, particularty thase who may feel that they are in a mimority, to
understand themselves and their aims and how they might work towards
achieving thern To continue our efforts, we regularly rotate the members
of the Steering Committee to ensure that everyone has the opporiunity 1o
cantribute new ideas. Following the most recent rotation, the Cormmittee
is in the process of establishing a framewark 1o expand the Bariance@Avon
umbrella o give employees a guide for how they can create further sub-
groups for other areas of diversity and inclusion.




PUTTING QUR PEOPLE FIRST

Personal development

We strive to provide an environment that offers training and
development opportunities for all. We have continued with
our Prafessional Development Programme (PDP), a year-long
talent development programme, with the aim to identify,
encourage and support the next generation of internal
talent to contribute to the business beyond the scope of
their current roles. Participants set personal development
targets which are worked on for the year with internal
mentor support. Mentors are Executive team members who
provide a source of advice and suppert for the participants in
addition to therr line manager.

Our tafent management process that we calf the Global
Performance Managerent Process (GPMP) is a critical toot
that enables the Group to ensure all employees are working
towards goals aligned with business objectives, their career
aspirations and devalopment needs are being discussed and
reviewed. We also continue to focus on early careers, giving
those at the beginning of their career journey the help and
support that they need to establish a successful and fulfilling
career through work experience, internships, placement
years, apprenticeships and graduate programmes.

We believe our employees thrive the most when they can
improve and enhance their skill sets and work on their
personal development. We have provided our employees
with access 10 1e0ls, such as LinkedIn Learning, to help

with their career pregression and personal development in
whichever way works best for them, With over 30,000 videos
watched over the past year, Linkedin Learning has praven to
be an invaluable tool for our employees 1o complete online
courses in any areas of Interest to progress their career paths
and expand their knowledge.

1% 30,000+

activated licences  elearning videos watched

Qur U5, sites report equal ermployment opportunities data annually
to the US. Government and to the State of California under pay equity
reguirements, Affirmative action plans are also in place which outline
goals for women and minorities, veterans and people with disabilities
by estabhishment.

Our average U K. gender pay gap for FY21 (reported in April 2022) is 37%.
The pay gap is due to the Company having mare women in operations
and assembly roles in the lowest quartile (55.2%) compared to more

men in the top quartile (82.1%) and does not stemn from paying men and
women differently for the same or equivalent wark. While the percentage
of men in the upper quartile of pay has reduced since FY20, our existing
focus to address the gender balance at our Company leadership team
levels continues thraugh initiatives such as Balance@Avon, which will
help to close the overall pay gap with more female representation at this
level. Our gender pay gap data can be found in the Governance section of
our website.

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS THIS YEAR

69% 85

reduction in members in
lost time cases Balance@Avon community

16

executive leadership
engagements

30%

pledged female
representation through
the Women in Defence
U.K. charter

Pay and benefits

During 2022 we have engaged an HR consultant to help us with defining
our remuneration philasophy and reviewing our pay and benefits in order
1o retain and attract talented individuals. Gar aim has been to align and
simplify our approach, ensuring we are fair and consistent in the way we
treat our employees, regardless of location,

Community engagement

We continually work with and for the communities in which we operate,
recognising our role as a major local employer. We have recently expanded
our partnership with Bath Rugby, to support its Primary Education
programme centred around developing numeracy skills and promoting
sport, health and wellbeing. ‘Attacking Maths', the programme aimed at
developing numeracy skills, has seen over 100 sessions of numeracy and
tag rugby delivered to 20 primary schools In the South-West of the UK.
The Girls Participation Hubs programme has seen aver 450 young girls
participate in training sessions and games led by Bath Rugby’s grassroots
coaches. Feedback fram this programme has been very positive, with
high-quality, exciting teaching for the children, upskilling of members

of staff at the scheol and enthusiasm shared between teachers, children
and parents.

From sponsoring local sports teams and charitable events to our incredible
employees who choose to push themselves for a great cause, this year we
have approved charitable giving requests totalling in excess of $108,403.
Our employees have undertaken ten-hour, 48km hikes and local carporate
challenges spanning months to name but a few, and we will continue to
encourage such efforts, requests and donations throughout FY23,

Looking forward

In the coming year we will continue to embed the new onling health and
safety hub across our sites and expand on our successful Balance@Avan
umbrella to enable further areas of improvement in diversity and inclusion.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

OUR APPROACH TO TCFD

(TASK FORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES}

This is the first year we have reported on TCFD requirements, as per Listing Rule LR2.8.6R. Whilst we acknowledge that we are only partially compliant this year, we
have conducted a gap analysis to identify the key areas for action to ensure that we are fully compliant against each of the four thematic areas and 11 underlying
recommendations by 2024. Our govemance disclosure is fully compliant, during FY22 we established an appropriate governance structure which we intend to
further ernbed in the coming year, Qur strategy disclosure is partially compliant; during the year we have worked towards improving compliance by developing
two qualitative climate scenarios for identifying climate-related risks and opportunities, Having identified these risks, we are now looking to better understand the
impact these have on businesses strategy, financial planning and budgeting, in addition to enhancing cur approach to ciimate scenario analysis and modelling
Our risk management disclosure is partially compliant; using climate scenario analysis we have identified and assessed climate-related risk and opportunities in
FY22 which we have begun to Integrate into our Group Risk Management process, and we will continue te review our processes for embedding the identification,
assessment and management of climate risks into the business, Over the coming year we will further develop our climate scenarios and look at opportunities for

quantitative assessment of short, medium, and long-terrm nisks. Gur metrics and targets disclosure is parualty-compliant, during FY22 we focused on improving
our data collection processes which will be a platform for disclosing additonal details on targets, metrics and scope 3 ernissions. In FY23 we will investigate a
wider breadth of metrics which may be applicable, and we believe this will enable us to be fully compliant in the next disclosure.

GOVERNANCE

Board oversight of climate-related
risks and opportunities and
management’s role in managing
climate-related risks and opportunities
During the year we have established a formal
governance structure with responsibility for delivering
our sustainability agenda and the management
of climate-related risks and opportunities.

The Board oversees and has overall responsitility
far Avon Protection’s sustainability agenda,
disclosures and reporting. This includes, but is
not limited to, the identification, assessment and
management of climate risks and opportunities.

During the year a Sustainability Committee,
chaired by Rich Cashin, was established with

STRATEGY

What are our climate-related risks, in
the short, medium and long term?

We received technical advice on the requirement
to disclose against TCFD; part of this was to
identify an appropriate climate scenario 1o
support Avon Protection's analysis of risks and
opportunities. See the case study on page 63 for
more details on our approach.

We identified climate-related risk and opportunities
through the development of our qualitative climate
scenarios During the year, these were reviewed
with each business unit and the Risk Committee
identified four new risks to be integrated inta our
Group Risk Management process, see page 63. Each
business unit applied bespoke impact assessment
measures based on finanaal indicators and other
Impacts relative 1o the size of the business unit

o each of the identified risks This review did not
nghlight any material risks that would impact the
business in the year ahead.

We can split the findings into transitiona and
physical risks and opportunities

responsibility for the implementation and
delivery of our sustainability agenda on behaif
of the Board. The Sustainability Committee
meet monthiy and will recommend to the Board
for appraval, sustainability-related targets and
review the Campany’s progress towards those
targets, reporting regularly to both the Executive
Board and main Board. The employee forum

is responsible for promoting the views of the
warkforce. Please see the diagram on page 43
that illustrates at a high level how sustainability
and climate-related issues are integrated into our
governance and Board Committee structures,

The Board oversees risk management using the
Three Lines of Defence methodology which is
described within our Risk Management section
on page 62

Risks and opportunities

Transitional

- Technology adoption and change in
customer requirements (new): Lack of
techrnology adoption and innovation to
reduce embedded carbon within products
risks increased costs and misalignment with
custormer requirements. Innavation 1n this
area could put us ahead of our competition

+ Inability to recruit and retain talent: Poor
sustainability results and progress towards
our net zero target may reduce our ability to
recruit and retain talent.

« Failure to reduce reliance on carbon
{new): The business could be impacted
by emerging regulations and palicies,
leading to increased costs in procurement,
manufacturing and distribution operetions as
well as fines and litigation

+ Deterioration of stakeholders’ perception
of the defence sector (new): Stakeholder
pressure for businesses 1o act responsibly
continues to grow, The deferice sector currently
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Management s responsible for assessing and
managing these climate-related risks and
opportunities at the operational level and raising
to the attention of the Risk Committee any risks
that constitute as emerging {a risk in the next 0
t0 3 years that has the potential to becormne an
increasingly higher risk through either increased
likelihood and/or increased size of impact).

Looking forward

To strengthen ownership on climate-related
matters we will be carrying out internal
campaigns 1o raise awareness, We will also
consider training opportunities for our Board
and management teams.

forms a significant part of governments’ GHG
emissions and there is a repurtational risk it
defence suppliers are seen as not meeting
expectations on climare change.

Physical

+ Plant closure due to incident ar natural
disaster: Likelihood of extreme weather
events such as heatwaves, extreme winds
and flooding will lead to increasing disruption
on production under a 4°C scenario.

Supply chain disruption (new): Supply
chain becomes IncCreasingly susceptible 1@
chmate-related disruption impacting our
ability to deliver and negatively impacting
our reputation under a 4°C scenarno

The establishment of a clhimate scenario was part
of a phased approach and we recognise that our
scenanos will zeveiop overtime 1o distinguish
risks that are short, medium ar lorg term



STRATEGY CONTINUED

What is the impact of climate-

related risks and opportunities

on our business, strategy and

financial planning?

« Products and markets: Cur products and
thase of cur competitors inherently have
embedded carbon. Climate-related mitigations
will evolve the way we design, manufacture
and rmanage our product portfolio. This offers
opportunities for us to lead in innovation, as
wuslormers' reguirements may be altered to
favour low-carbon embedded technology.

- Operations: Our operational footprint
covers six manufacturing facilities across two
developed markets which are expected to
have increasing levels of climate scrutiny and
monitoring requirements. We acknowledge
that physical risks (such as extrerne weather
events) have potential to affect our cperations
and we will continue to develap our continuity
plans to be more forward looking.

RISK MANAGEMENT

What are the processes through
which we identify, assess and
manage climate-related risk and
how are these integrated into our
risk management programme?

Last year we identified sustainability as a new
principal risk ta be developed during 2022
which would include climate-related risks and
opportunities, see page 62

During the year with the help of a consultant,
and through consultation with a cross section of
our leadership team, we developed a qualitative
climate scenaric narrative (see case study on
page 63) which has provided us with a tool

1o review our likely physical and transitional

risks and opportunities through the lens of

METRICS AND TARGETS

Metrics used to assess climate-
related risks and opportunities and
the targets we use to manage the
risks and opportunities

Many of the climate-related risks and
opportunities we face are related to our
transition to net zero, Therefore, greenhouse gas
emissions data is the key metric we are currently
using to assess these risks. See page 49,

We have also established that tonnes of COe
per million revenue is an appropriate business
metric to define our emissions data. This is a
new operational key performance indicator
which s in line with our strategy and investor
proposition, see page 37.

To support the progress towards these targets,
the Rernuneration Committee established

- Strategy: Last year we committed to being
net zero by 2045 at the latest by reducing
our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions.
During the year we have been focused
on setting an appropriate base year for
measurement and action in the coming years
and 2021 was agreed to be appropriate. Net
zero considerations have been added to aur
strategy documents; further refinement and
communication with management teams
are required 1o influenca the direction of our
strategy in relation to climate change.

Financial planning: We recognise that
assessing the financial implications of cimate
change will be an essential step and we
commit to conducting this assessment in line
with refining our approach.

two different climate scenarios. This was the
first step In refining our approach to climate-
related risk. We also undertaok a materiality
assessrent of sustainability themes which
included stakeholder feedback and assessment
of operational and reputational impact to the

business. This wark, alongside our Net Zero Plan,

has helped to identify areas of climate change
risks and opportunities.

During the year, business units reviewed

these risks and opportunities. The risk review
committee identified six items to be escalated
and managed through the Group Risk
Management process, including measures to
mitigate risk, see page 63 for details on this
process. We will continue to monitor and track
other risks and opportunities through a detailed

ESG-related objectives as part of the bonus
scherne for Executive Directors in 2021 and it is
anticipated that these measures will continue
to feature as part of the bonus structure

going forward.

Qur scope 1,2 and 3 GHG emissions
During the year greenhouse gas scope 1 and

2 emissions from all sites were reviewed by

a consultant to allaw us to improve our data
collection and reporting processes.

A top-evel view on which scope 3 categories
are likely 1o be relevant suggests the ‘purchased
goods and services’ category as significant

and likely to be greater than our scope 1

and 2 emissions. We will be staging projects
throughout the coming years to determine

How resilient is our business strategy
to different climate scenarios?

We recognise that climate change does have an
impact on our business under the two different
scenarios that have been explored, see page

63, The assessrment indicated that under a
below 2°C scenario transitional risk would be
mare significant whereas physical risk would be
more pertinent in the 4°C scenario. As we gain
experience in assessing climate-related risks and
opportunities we will look for opportumities t
start developing guantitative information to
illustrate these outcomes in the coming year

Looking forward

As our approach to clirnate-related risks and
opportunities matures we will be refining

our climate scenarios to quantfy impact on
the organisation’s business strategy, financial
planning and budgeting, as well as developing
our approach to identifying short, medium and
long-term risks.

sustainability sub-register, Several climate-
related risks and opportunities have been
highlighted to the Risk Committee as emerging,
however they are not believed to have an
impact on the business in the year ahead.

The risk scores from the business unit registers
are combined to determine our highest
considered risks across the Group which are
then presented to the Audit Committee, in
addition to the list of emerging risks.

Looking forward

We will continue 1o evolve how we identity and
maoniter risks and opportunities and the process
by which we escalate a risk ta the Group Risk
register process

appropriate data collection into each category.
The availability of data enabled us to measure
our impact on scope 3 greenhouse gas
emissions through business travel ahead

of schedule

See page 49 for disclosure of our scopes 1 and
2 and a review of scope 3 emissions generated
through business travel.

Looking forward

During the year we were focused on improvin
our data collection and setting a base year
which will be a platform for disclasing
additional details on targets, metrics and
scope 3 emissions relevant to net Zero a* . -
sustainability agenda in the next discle ..t
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

SIGNIFICANT |
LONG-TERM GROWTH
OPPORTUNITY

Full year results underpinned by a significant
step-up in H2 financial performance.

Avon Protection has seen strang revenue growth in 2022 wath revenue of $271.9 million up 9 5% (31% on an organic constant cuniency basis) compared
to the prior penod However, a shift in product mix, along with operational challenges including supply chain constraints, have impacted profitability,
resufting in an adjusted operating profit of $10 1 miffion (2021: $22.0 mifiion) which includes $73.3m of losses refating to the armar business, and a statutory
operating loss of $2.1 million (2021: loss of $29.0 million}).

Organic
change
1 October 2October (constant }
2022 2021 currency)? ‘
Orders received ) $2B0.1m 5282.7m {1.6%)
Closing order book $1513m  $143.7m 7.8%
Revenue $271.9m $248.3m 9156
Adjusted EBITDA $255m  S376m  (385%)
Adjusted EBITDA margin 5.4% 151% (710bps)
Adjusted’ o"perating profit $10.1m 522.0m (61.4%)
Adjusted net finance casts ${4.0im Ss3m 3339
Adjuste-d profit before tax 7 ) $6.1m $18.9m (74.4%)
Eusted' taxation - B $0.0m $00.3)m
Adjusted profit after tax $6.2m $186m (73.1%)
Adjusted basic eamiﬁgs per share 20.4c 606¢ (72.9%)
Dividend per share 44.9¢ 439¢ 00%
Net debt excluding lease liabilities s44.2m  S268m 649%
Cash convérsfon - 142.7% 832%
Statutory results
Cperat‘\ng loss $@um  S0%mm
Net finance costs $(6.43m 5(6.5/m
Loss before tax i $(8.5tm 5(35.6)m
Taxation 52.9m S1.0m B
Loss after tax from continuing ope“rat\'ons - $(5.6)m $(24.51m
Loss from discontinued operations $(2.0)m S0 m B
Loss for the period ' ’ $76m  S25Em
Basic loss per share from continuing operat\on; {18.5)¢ (799)c
Net debr $68.0m $559m
1 TreDirecters oe £ve Tt ad Jsted Meesares provide 3 s ul zompa’ sor of Dusiress sreras ane performance Agusled reiu ts exclutle 2x020t 003 TETh ard discortinues Srerat ars T ne T

ad.usted snctdefired urge

2 Increscus pet ods e Srouap recorted firgrg o starements 1o 30 zegt

RS anC may ~oT Te COMIatah e wiln AT ATy Tt ed measares lsea by OTREr COMEaries
¥’

dates ro wh o the tnangial statemens were raan ue T s Pas fo MCact or prey Gy repoted rumgers

3 Drgemicconsient carrercy measures 2ve oroy ged rreie 11 of the adjusted o

“fermance meesdres w2Ci on

swer this be rg the Compary's aciourt ry refererce date —2ad rgs fo7 The Camrenl oo Loar per od N s o e 307U

Order intake totatied 52801 million {2021 $282.7 rrullion) in the year, down 0.9% {1.6% on an arganic constant currency basis), with increases in head

protection, including the previously announced 542 1 million arder for NG IHPS, offset by decreases in respiratory following the receipt of several large NSPA
orders in the prior year. Order intake excluding armor toralled $5267.9 milion (2021 $281.0 millan), down 4.7% (5 4% an an organic constant currency bass).

The closing order book of $151.3 milkon (2021 $143 1 million) reflects an increase of 5.7% (7.8% on an organic constant currency basis on the prior period,
Closing order book exciuding armar of $120 9 million {2021 $116.5 million) reflects an increase of 3.8% (6.2% on an crganic constant currency bass).

Revenue totalled 52719 million (2021- 5248 3 millian), up 9.5% {3.1% on an organic constant currency basis), reflecting strong growth in respiratary notably
driver by tre NSPA contract, offsetting a small decline 1n head protection Revenue excluding armor totalled $263.5 millon 12021 5241.8 m llion), up 3.0%
(8.6% on an organic constant currency basis),
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STRATEGY IN ACTION
INTEGRATING ACQUISITIONS

EXPANDBING OUR HEAD
PROTECTION PORTFOLID

We recoanise the Importange of Integrating recent
acquisitions to build a stronger business. Our priority

over the past year has been the integration of the 3M’s
ballistic protection business and Team Wendy which were
acquired in 2020.

During 2022, we launched the Cleveland [T Integration
Programme, with the objective of transitioning Team Wendy
onto the Avon Protection infrastructure and standardising T
seryices under the management of the Aven Protection IT
team Achieving this will enable our business to operate more
efficiently and puts us in an even greater position to meet the
2024 cybersecurity requirements for the militaries and first
responders we supply.

We were also pleased to incorporate our Cleveland
employees into our ADP Payrall systerm and ADP Mobile
App, providing all employees with 24/7 access to their
payroll information from their mobile device at any time,
from anywhere.

Progress has been made to intertwine our cuiture with

our acquisitions. Culture Champions have been selected

from every level of the organisation to allow for an open
communication cufture within the Group. Looking forward,
Culture Champions will be recruited at the Cleveland site also.
This year's Professional Development Programme (FDP} is
also the first to include participants from Team Wendy,

2

World-leading portfolios

WE HAVE SEEN STRONG REVENUE
GROWTH IN 2022. HOWEVER, A
SHIFT IN PRODUCT MIX, ALONG
WITH OPERATIONAL CHALLENGES
INCLUDING SUPPLY CHAIN
CONSTRAINTS, HAS IMPACTED
PROFITABILITY.

Adjusted EBITDA of $25.5 million is down 32 29 (38.5% on an organic
constant currency basis) compared to the prior period (2021: $37.6 million)
with operational ¢hallenges including supply chain disruptions and
manufacturing inefficiencies, along with shifts in product mix being the
predominant factors for the decrease. Adjusted EBITDA margin of 9.4%
represents a decline of 570bps {710bps on an organic constant currency
basis). Adjusted EBITDA losses for armor totalled $13.3 million with a large
overhead base supporting low levels of throughput prior 1 FAT approval,
resulting in adjusted EBITDA excluding armeor of $38.8 million, down 15.7%
(21.8% on an organic constant currency basis) compared to the prior year
(2021: $46.0 million), and EBITDA margin excluding armor of 14 79, down
430bps. Headwinds were alleviated somewhat in H2 with cperationat
impirovernents and benefits of the overhead reduction programmes,

Adjusted operating profit of $10.1 mitlion (2021 $22.0 milticn) is after
adjusted depreciation, amortisation and impairment of $15.4 million (2021:
$15.6 million), a decrease of 54.1% (61.4% on an organic constant currency
basis) compared to the prior peried following the decrease in EBITDA.

Statutory operating loss was $2.1 million {2021: [oss of $28.0 mullion)

after $12.2 million adjustments (2023: $51.0 million adjustments} with

the decreased loss as a resuit of the large amount of armor related
impalrments in the prior year. The adjusted performance section contains
further explanation for adjusting iterns which are summarised below.

2022 2021
$m sm
Statutory operating loss (2.1 (29.0)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 6.8 14.2
Impairments and provisions related to 1.8 46.8
armor assets
Release of contngent consideration (3.9) (15.7)
Impairment of non-current assets 36 07
Restructuring costs 33 R
Acquisition and transaction costs 0.6 26
Wémory fair value adjustments — 24
Adjusted operating profit 101 220

Adjusted net finance costs increased to $4 0 million (2021: 531 miilion) due
to higher net debt and variable interest charges.

After an adjusted tax credit of $0.1 million {2021: charge of 50.3 million), the
Group recorded an adjusted profit for the period after tax of 56 2 million
(2021: $18.6 milhon),

Adjusted basic earnings per share decreased by 66.3% to 204 cents
(2021: 60.6 cents).

Statutory net finance costs of $6.4 million (2021: $6.6 million} include

$1.3 million (2021: $1 3 millicny of discount unwind relating to the UK,
pension scheme and a discount unwind of $1.1 million {2021: 2.2 million)
relating to the contingent consideration payable to 3M
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Statutery loss ne‘ore tax from continuing aperations was $8.5 million (P021: lass of $35.6 mill on) and, after a tax credit of $2.9 million (7071: credit of
S111 million), the loss for the perind from continuing operatio=s was $&.6 million (202 1:1oss of 324.5 mullion), Basic losses per share from continuing

operations were 18.5 cents {2021: losses of 79.9 cents)

Revenue
2022 2021
Head Head
Respiratory  protection Armor Total Respiratory  protection Armor Total
$m $m $m sm $m $m $m sm

Us oD 63.2 355 — 987 86.1 391 — 1252
Commévcnal Americas 40.57 252 — 65.7 404 224 - 62.8
UK. &lInternational 89.3 9.8 — 99.1 421 1.7 — 538
Total excluding Armor 193.0 70.5 — 2635 1686 732 — 24 «ST
Armor — — 8.4 84 — — 6.5 %)
:I'Vorta\ 1930 70.5 84 2719 168.6 732 65 248.3
U.5.DOD U.K. & International

.S, DOD revenue declined by 21.2% to $98.7 million (2021, $125.2 miliion).

LS DOD respiratory revenue declined by 26.6% to 563.2 milhan {2021
5861 million) as a resuit of the M9 contract coming to an end, reduced
volumes of Powered Alr Purifiers, and a strong prior year comparator for
spares and accessories. Head protection revenue declined by 9.2% to
$35.5 million (2021° $39.1 miillion) following the completion of the first-
generation IHPS contract. Deliveries against the follow-on NG IHPS will
commence in FY23,

U S DOD closing order book for 2022 of 3923 million (2021; $62.1
million) provides excellent revenue visibility for 2023 and is comprised of
$39.0 million respiratory orders and $53.3 million head protection orders.

Commercial Americas
Commercial Americas revenue increased by 4.6% to $65./ million
(7021: $62.8 million).

Commercial Americas respiratory revenue grew by 0.2% 10 540.5 million
(2021 $40.4 million) with price increases within aur commercial portfolia
throughout the period giving strong maornentum in the second half after
a weaker start. Head protection revenue graw by 12.5% 10 525.2 milion
(2021: 522.4 million), predominantly reflecting the additional month of
Team Wendy ownership.

Commercial Americas closing order book for 2022 of $§7.9 million
(2021 $5.2 million), comprises $4.5 million of respiratory orders and
534 million of head protection orders.

58 Avon Protection plc Annual Repert and Accounts 2022

UK & International revenue increased by 84 29 (88.9% on an organic
corsiant cutrency basis) o $99.7 miffen (2021: 553.8 miflion),

U K & International respiratory revenue grew by 112.1% (120.0% on an
organic constant currency basis) to $89.3 miflion {2021: $42.1 million) as a
result of continued expansion of the NSPA contract, with deliveries made
to seven countries within the period, whilst head protection revenue
sawv a decline of 16.2% {18 8% on an organic constant cutrency basis) 1o
558 million (2021 $11.7 million} fellowing the switch of the Australian
Defence Forces Tiered Combat Helmet (TCH) program from preduction
ta sustainment and refurbishment.

UK. & International closing order book for 2022 of $20 8 million
(2021: 5493 millian) follows strong deliveries to NSPA resulting in

a decreased respiratory order book of $16.7 millon (2021: $48.5
million), partizlly offset by an increase in the head protection order
bookto 541 million (2021: 506 million) after 2 strong launch into the
European market,

Armor
Armor revenue increased by 29.2% to $8.4 million (2021: $6 5 million)
following commencement of DLA ESAPI deliveries.

Armor closing order book of $30.4 million (2021: $26 6 million} comprises
4201 million of DLA ESAPI and $10 3 million of flat armor

IN LINE WITH DUR STRATEGY

TO MAINTAIN OUR TECHNOLOGY
LEADERSHIP POSITIONS, WE
CONTINUE TO INVEST IN OUR
PORTFOLIO OF PROBUCTS. TOTAL
INVESTMENT IN RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT AMOUNTED TO
$10.9 MILLION [2021: 513.1 MILLION).



STRATEGY IN ACTION
GROWING THE CORE

A RECORD-BREAKING YEAR
FOR MI-TICS

This year we celebrated 8 record-breaking year for our
thermal imaging camera range. Contributing to this success,
were orders from the US Navy, amounting to 584 Mi-TIC S
thermal imaging cameras.

The MITIC S s a premium, lightweight thermal imager with
industry-leading dynamic range and large display for top
performance in the most extreme firefighting environments
The camera provides a crystal-clear image with a dynamic
range up to 2000°F (1100°C). It allows users to clearly view
extremely high temperatures without whiteour, as well

as very low temperature objects. Proven in some of the
toughest operating envircnments, the Mi-TIC S is in use with
both sea and shore-hased firefighters glabally.

Warking closely with the U.S Navy, we specifically tailored the
Mi-TIC 5 to meet the reguirements of the U.S. Navy Damage
Controlman firefighting teams. These cameras are being
rolled-out across the fleet as part of an ongoing equipment
rmodernisation programme

The growth and success of our Mi-TIC range this year not
only demonstrates our ability 1o successfully grow our core
business but also our ability to understand and meet our
customer's requirements.

Research and development expenditure

In line with our strategy to maintain our technology leadership positions
we continue to invest in our portfolio of products. Total investment in
rescarch and development {capitalised and expensed) amounted to
$10.9 millign {2021; $19.1 millien), of which $6.0 millign (2021 $7.8 million)
related to our respiratory portfolio, and $4 9 million {2021 55 4 million)
to the development of cur head protection portfolio. Total research and
development as a percentage of revenue was 4.0% (2021: 7.7%), with

the decrease following cessation of armor related developrment, which
amounted to $5.9 million in FY21.

2022 2021
$m $m
Total expenditure 10.9 19.1
Less customer funded (1.4) (2.3)
Group expenditure 9.5 16.8
Capitalised {5.8) (15.0)
Amortisation and impairment of 6.7 124
development expenditure
Total income statement impact 104 14.2
Revenue 2719 2483
R&D spend as a % of revenue 4.0% 7.7%

Within respiratory, investment centred around the development of the
EXOSKIN range of boots and gloves, and improvements to the supplied air
5T54 tactical self-contained breathing apparatus.

Development expenditure for the head protection portfolio has focused
on the NG IHPS and ACH GEN |l programmes,

Net debt and cash flow

2022 2021
$m $m

Adjusted EBITDA 255 376
Share-based payments and defined benefit 8 19
pension scheme costs
Working capital a1 (8.2)
Cash flows from continuing operations 364 31.3
before exceptional items
Restructuring, transaction and acquisition (1.6) (4.4)
costs paid
Cash flows from continuing operations 3438 26.9
Cash flows from discontinued operations {1.3) {3.3)
Cash flow from operations 335 236
Payments to pension plan (8.5) (2.9)
Finance costs from loans and leases (3.7) 2.7)
Repayment of lease liability 4.1 (3.7)
Tax received/{paid) excluding capital gains tax 37 (4.3)
paid on divestment-
Capital expend'\tu-re ) (8.9 (ﬂ
Acquiswtior-ws and divestments (3.2) i {137.1)
Purchase of own shares - LTIP and share b-ﬁyback (12.4) 4.3)
Dividends to shareholders (13.4) (12.1)
Foreign exchange - (0.4) 0.6
Change in net debt (17.4) (174.5)
Opening net debt, excluding lease liabilities (26.8) 1477
Closing net debt, excluding lease liabilities {44.2) (26.8)

Working capital exc udes Sremilicn armor inventory imparmert 12021 $17 rihor) ang
S2d4mrlicn imwentory acqais hon accounting ad ustments n 2021 These are inc uded wite -
charges ©irvertony e the statutary recencniat on of casn f ow from opersr ans

2 Cashflows "o~ divesirignts nthe pno- per od are snowr net of 58 0 millon capital g+
pad Thisisincluded in tax oad inthe Consol dared Cash Flow Statement
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Net debt and cash flow continued

Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional items were
5364 million 2021: $31.3 million). Tatal capital expenditure was $8.9 millian
(2021: 531.6 million), with the decrease followng large amounts of spenc
related 1o one-off IT software programmes and armar development in the
prior year.

Dividends and purchase of own shares were $25.8 millign (2021
$164 million) reflecting the snare buykack programme started in January
and paused in May.

Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional Items as a
percentage of adjusted EBITDA (cash conversion) was 142.7% {2021: 83.2%)
reflecting Improved working capital managerent

Net debt was $68.0 million (2021 net debt $559 million), which includes
lease liabilities of $23.8 million {2021: $29 1 million). Excluding lease
ligbilities, net debt was $44.2 million 2021: net debt $26.8 million). The
increase in net debt is principally due to the share buyback programme
and accelerated pension plan payments to lock in enefits following the
increase In bond yields

During the period we exercised our option to extend the maturity of
5142 million from the total $200 million revelving credit faclity (RCP 1o
8 September 2025. The remaining $58 million matures on 8 September
2024, subject 1o a cne-year extension option to 8 September 2025. As at
1 October 2022 $53.7 millon of the RCF was drawn,

The RCF is subjectto financial covenants measured on a biannua! basis.
These include a hmit of 3.0 times for the ratic of net debt, excluding lease
liabilities, 1o adjusted EBITDA (leverage). The Group carmptied with all
financial covenants during the current and prior financial periods

in addition to the RCF our US. operations have access to a $5.0 million
overdraft facility.

Armor update

Following January’s announcement regarding the decision to wind down
the armor business, the following tables surnmarise the contribution of the
armor business 1 the Group's financial statermments for 2022

2022 2021

Armor $m m

Orders received §12.2 $1.7
aosing order book 5304 536?

Revenue ) $8.4 56.5

Respiratory

Armor & head Total

2022 adjusted $m $m $m

Orders received 12.2 2679 2801
Closing order book 30.4 1208 1513

Revenus 8.4 2635 2719

Adjusted ERITDA (13.3) 38.8 255
Adjusted EBITDA margin (158.3)% 14.7% 9.4%

PEusted operating (\oss-)/proﬂt (133)_ 234 ’ 10.1
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Respiratory
Armor & head Total
2022 adjustments $m $m sm
Revenue — —_— -
EBITDA 04 (1.6} (1.2)
Cperating profit/{lossy 0.2 (12.4) (12.2)
Respiratory
Armor & head Total
2022 total $m $m $m
Revenue ) 84 . 2635 2719
EBITOA ) (12.9) B 37.2 24i
Operating profit/lossy (13.1) 1.0 2.1

1 Armoer cperating loss adjustments tosalling a crecit of $G 2 my Lor cormpnse 3 gan of
$39mill 210 red e the prows.ontor contingent onsagranar payable 1o M, kzs
41 € muillion armer mMventary provisions, 50 & rillar ransact om ceits. 54 2 milbon nen-corrert
assetimparrme-tsand 51 3 Tilhen armor spec nic restruc turnng costs

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operated a contributory defined benefit plan to provide
pension and death benefits for the employecs of Avon Protection plc and
its Group undertakings in the UK. employed prior to 31 January 2003. The
plan was closed to future accrual of benefit on 1 October 2009 and has

a weighted average maturity of approximately 12 years. The net pension
Lability for the scheme amounted to $6.3 million as at 1 Qctober 2022
{2021: 568 3 millon). The reduction is due to a higher discount rate bieing
applied to pension liabilities, partially offset by a fall in plan assetvalues,

During the perod the Group made payments to the plan of $8.5 milion
(2021: 2.8 mullion) in respect of scheme expenses and deficit recovery plan
payments, including a $4.0 million prepayment covering all contributions
due in FY23, In accordance with the deficit recovery plan agreed following
the 31 March 2019 actuarial valuation, the Group will make payments in
Fy24 of 543 million in respect of deficit recovery and scheme expenses.
These payments are subject to review following the March 2022 actuarial
valuation which will be finalised in 2023

Plan assets include Liability Driven Investments (LD of $54.4 million
(20271: 5122 9 million), whick are held to manage funding risk. The fall in LDI
valuation reflects increases in government bond yields through 2022,

The Group is in close contact with the trustees of the scherme to monitor
cash liquidity nsk in the context of recent market volatlity, inciuding
collaterat requirernents for the LD To the date of this report, the scheme
has covered all LDf collateral requirements.



STRATEGY IN ACTION
GROWING THE CORE

SUPPORTING REQUIREMENTS
FOR THE MILITARY DIVER

Military diving operations are a critical component of
delivering underwater assets in rnodern maritime forces.
Today's military and special forces divers are required to
undertake a wider range of tasks within a single mission. This
has led to requirements from leading militaries for diving
apparatus that enables divers to complete missions that are
longer, deeper and more complicated than ever before.

The MCMI00 is a configurable platform that offers & step
change in meeting underwater breathing apparatus operability
requirements. Itis & fully closed circult, electronically controlled,
mixed gas rebreather, CE tested to 100m and suitable for a large
range of tactical diving disciplines including shallow or deep
Mire Counter Measure, Explosive Ordnance Disposal, Mine
Investigation and Exploitation and Special Operations Forces
underwater vehicle use.

The system’s critical advantage lies in its advanced electronics
architecture. With multiple redundancy electronics, it features
advanced digital oxygen sensors and has a maisture tolerant
digital carbon dioxide sensor This comnbined with data
acquisition facility with Bluetooth capability, and a backlit
coleur handset with automated pre-dive and comrmand-based
alarms enables missions of greater duration than tradtional
systemns at extreme work rates and depths.

“We are leading the world in military diving rebreathers with
the MCM10Q0, as illustrated by its selection by major defence
forces,” said Kevin Gurr, Underwater Systems Director for
Avon Protection. “The military diving mission is evolving, and
legacy systems simply do not provide the capability reguired
going forward. The MCM100 is & step change in technology
and safety, and its modular design is developed to ensure
operational readiness is maintained whilst reducing the
through hife cost to militanes.”

Foreign exchange and interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to transiational foreign exchange risk arising when
the results of sterling denominated companies are conselidated into the
Group presentational currency, U.S. dollars, Group pelicy is not to hedge
translational foreign exchange risk. Due to the translational effect, a one-
centincrease in the value of the US. dollar against sterling would have
decreased revenue by approximately $0.2 million and increased operating
profit by approximately $0.2 millien.

RCF borrowings are floating rate priced using the U.S. Secured Overnight
Financing Rate {SOFR). In 2022 the Group has implemented a new hedging
policy using interest rate swaps to fix a portion of SOFR floating rate
interest. The notional value of interest rate swaps at 1 October 2022 was
$30.0 million {2021. 5nil), expiring on 8 September 2025 in line with the RCF
The financial value of interest rate swaps at 1 October 2022 was a 50.5m
{2027 5nil), an asset position as hedged fixed rates are lower than current
market forecasts for SOFR,

Dividends

The Board is recommending a final dividend of 30.6 cents per share {2021
306 cents) which together with the 14.3 cents per share interim dividend,
gives a total dividend of 44.9 cents (2021 44.9 cents), consistent with last
year, The final dividend will be paid in pounds sterling on 10 March 2023
1o shareholders on the register at 10 February 2023 with an ex-dividend
date of 9 February 2023. The final dividend will be converted into pounds
sterling for payment at the prevailing exchange rate which will be
announced prior to payment,

The recommended dividend results in an adjusted cover ratio of 0.5 times
(2021: 1.3 times). On a statutory continuing basis, the ratio was a deficit

of 0.4 times (2021: deficit of 1.8 times). In recommending this year's final
dividend, the Board has taken into account its expectations that the
adjusted cover ratio will improve in the 2023 financial period.

Our policy is to grow dividends in line with adjusted earnings growth.
Given the decline in earnings over the last twa years, we would not seek
1o grow dvidends further ahead of an increase in dividend cover,
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

HOW WE IDENTIFY
AND MANAGE
RISK

We have completed a full year of managing risks using our enhanced
risk management process and have begun to integrate climate-related
risks and opportunities into our process for review.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

62

Implementation and compliance responsibility

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsible for the Group's risk framework and ensuring the risk management process is robust and continuously improved

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Responsible for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group risk framework,
including the integration of climate-related risks
RISK COMMITTEE

Conducts a second line of assurance assessment of those net risks highlighted by the business units {and challanges If necessary)
and maintains the Group risk register. Proposes risk management methadology

BUSINESS UNITS

Fach business unit has its own risk register Senior leaders provide an update to the Risk Committee on a six-monthty basis.
They are responsible for the implementation of Group risk rmanagement at the operational level

2022 RISK RATING ANOD MOVEMENT

RISK RATING

High

toderdte

Standard

1. Project delivery

and new product

introduction risk
2. Marketthreatto
core business

sapgisuodsal Buniodai pue uonesynusp! ysiy
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Talent management
Cybersecurity and
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Financial management
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legal matters

Political and

economic stability

10. Sustainability risk




APPROACH TO ASSESSING
CLIMATE-RELATED RISKS
AND OPPORTUNITIES

As part of meeting TCFD, the expectation is that companies use
scenano analysis on an iterative basis and over time to test the resilience
of the Company’s strategy by challenging the usual way of thinking,

e identify opportunities and dreas where businesses may be expoesed
to climate-related risks.

As afirst step it was decided that a qualitative assessment was
appropriate and two possible climate scenarios were anatysed:

- abelow 2°C scenario outlining a rapid system transition with
significant annual GHG emission reductions required for a low
carbon economy; and

- a4°C scenario where no additional action is taken to address
climate change.

The scenatio analysis used information from various reference scenarios
such as the Representative Concentration Pathways (RCPs) and other
relevant research to better understand how climate-related risks and
apportunities could impact businesses aperations. Senicr {eaders from
across the business were also consulted as part of this process.

Under TCFD there are two main categories of risk associated with
climate change (transitional and physical) which can alse preduce
some cpportunities We have identified these through the exploration
of these two climate scenarios in addition to other work undertaken

in the vear, such as the review of our material sustainability themes
ard progress made towards our Net Zero Plan,

Transitional
Policy & Legal
« Fossil fuel transition

- Carbon taxation

» Regulation

« Disclosure burden

+ Climate change litigation

Technology
- Shiftto low carbon technelogies/ recyclable products

Market and Reputation
« Climate change damages the reputation of the defence sector

« (Changing customer requirements

Physical
Operations
» Extreme weather events disrupt operations

+ Changing equipment design requirements

Supply Chain
+ Increased disruption
Increased costs and price volatility

Under both scenarios we will face climate-related financial risks and
opportunities. Under the 2°C scenario, the transitional risks are likely
to be more significant with the focus on the shift to low emissions
technolagies and energy efficiency projects. Under the 4°C scenario
the impact of physical risks on the business are fikely to be higher

We recognise we are just starting and that as we gain more experience
we will start to develop quantitative information to illustrate potential
pathways and outcomes.

Our approach

Having made a number of improvements to our Group risk management
pracess last year 1t was important to embed these during the year. Each
husiness unit has continued to provide updates to the Risk Committee
on a six-monthly basis which has allowed a full year of risk capture and
trerd anafysis.

The method for measuring likelinood and impact by each business

unit invehves bespoke Impact assessment measures based on financial
indicatars and other impacts relative to the size of the business unit

The Risk Committee conducts a second line of assurance and manages
the Group risk register which combines the results of the business unit
registers. The risks which are considered to be higher than the Group's
talerance level when assessed individually or as a collective are highlighted
to the Audit Committee. These most significant risks and mitigation plans
are regularly reviewed and the Risk Committee assesses whether key
controls are effective and risks mitigated to an acceptable level

The Risk Committee has continued with the process of annually revicwing
and categorising the principal risks affecting the Group to ensure they
rermain current and this year sustainability was added as e principal risk to
encapsulate climate-related risks and opportunities alongside other new
risks forming in the sustainablity space.

During the year we have increased our understanding of climate-related
risks to the business having developed our first gualitative climate scenario
narrative with the help of a sustainability consultant. We have undertaken
our first review with business units and, as a consequence of viewing our
business through these two contrasting scenarios, we have identified new
risks and oppartunities. This first review did net highlight any climate-
related risks or opportunities that could impact the business in the year
ahead. OQur approach to identifying and managing climate-related risks will
be refined as we mature over time,

Further enhancements to the risk management process have been
identified but not yet implemented. These include aligning the process
with the detailed financial modelling of risk which will support our TCFD
disclasure. The Audit Committee has also recognised that recruiting a
dedicated risk and assurance lead role would further suppert a clear,
independent second line to drive the risk management and internal
audit agenda.

Principal risks

The risk rating graphic sumimarises the Group's principat risks for 2022 and
going into financial year 2023 by significance and their directional trend
during the year, alongside the newly added sustainability risk. The graphic
has been populated by reference to the net risk assessment during the
year. The following pages show the categorised risk thernes within the
principal risk areas and their mitigations. We have also highlighted where
risks have the potential to impact our strategy and sustainability agenda.

Annual Repart and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc 63

1HO43H D1D3LYHLS



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Emerging risks

Emerging risks are captured at the six-monthly updates through
discussions with business unit leaders. These are included in the regular
reviews by the Audit Committee. Emerging risks are those that are

néw or expected to increase through increased likelihood or impact

10 the business,

The Risk Committee has identified the emerging risks expected to
generate increased risk across the Group 1n the coming year The most
prominent are summmarised below:

= The Ukraine conflict has the potential to increase cornpetition/new
market entrants due to the limited surge capacity amongst the existing
industrnal supply base

- Thensk around integrating the successful Team Wendy business into
the Avon Protection family without damaging the brand or causing
confusion in commercial markets

- Limited ability to address sole source dependencies for respiratory
raw material and components without re-engineering and
reapproving products

Risk of reductions in U.S. first responder customer funding from the
Democratic Government in FY24

+ Lack of clarity of U'S. Government funding routes for development of
future respiratory technology and the absence of long term U.S. DOD
respirator framework contracts

- Continued US DOD customer revenue dependency/concentration
as the NG [HPS and ACH GEN Il helmet programmes move into
full production

- Limited ability to flow through to custamers input price ingreases and
maintain profit margins under long term contracts
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Sustainability was highlighted as an emerging principal risk {or the
business last year. Through our climate scenario work we have added a
number of new risks to the register. As we embed our climate scenario
process and understanding in this area we have identified some emerging
climate-related risks, but these are not cxpected to Impact the business

in the year ahead:

- There is growing sustainability scrutiny and requirement for a coherent
strategy, communication and action in this area which may influence
employee recruitment patterns and customer purchasing habits

- Our products are inherently oil based and we face the challenge
of specifying furure ~aterials for replacing these components

We are reliant on investment in products, technology and processes
to deliver our Net Zere Plan and there will be ather competing
demands for capex



PROJECT DELIVERY AND NEW
PRODUCT INTRODUCTION RISK

Business risk
Failure to identify correct
strateqic projects orto
deliver them

- Failure to identify and
implement new products

- Failure to identify, complete
and integrate acquisitions

Impact on
- Strategy delivery

-« Sales, costs and profitability

+ Employee morale

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Link to sustainability

What happened in 2022

First delivery order received for
the NG IHPS

Continued delivering new
product programmes 1o meet
customer requirements within
capex budget

Quarterly strategy review
pracess to embed and align
strategy across the organisation

Wider integration of Team
Wendy and development of
Tearn Wendy liners with NG
IHPS helmet

Development of our
sustainability agenda, in
particular the environmental
initiatives that will result in
delivery of our net zero target

Decision to wind down the
armor business following VTP
ESAPI FAT failure

MARKET THREAT TD

CORE BUSINESS

Mitigation

Overall trend

Board oversight of clear strategy
definition and communication
combined with effective
management

Product development linked to
Group strategy and customer
requirements

Well resourced product
development and programme
management teams

Clear acquisition strategy and
alignment with divisional
structures

Well-resourced acquisition
team with appropriate external
advisors retained

Link to strategy

Focus for 2023

NG [HPS volume manufacturing

ACH GEN 1| FAT approval and
initial production

Continue delivering new
product programmes to meet
customer requirements within
capex budget

Revisit strategy under new
leadership team

Consideration of new
technology strategies for U.S.
DOD respirator products

Continued commercial
integration of Tearm Wendy and
approval of Teamn Wendy liners
with NG IHPS helmet

Further investment in
programme management office
10 oversee programme delivery

Define detailed sustainability
agenda, in particular the future
environmental initiatives that
will result in delivery of our net
zero target

Link to sustainability

Business risk

« Lack of sales growth/ threat
to current sales

« Loss of major bids/tenders

+ Threat from competitors

Impact on
Sales and profitability

+ Strategy delivery

Key
Trend

No change

Strategy

Increasing

Decreasing

What happened in 2022

Growing the core
Selective product developrent

¥a ue enkhancing acqu $itons

Maximised NATO framework
contract opportunities and
considered technology transfer
strategy for customers who
require indigenous production

Bid for major military
opportunities, e.g further DOD
helmet opportunities

Aligned helmet pertfolio for
UK and International market

Focused on continuing to grow
our market share with our
international and first
responder customers

Sustainability

Mitigation

Customer relationships prioritised
and managed through dedicated
{eadership channels

Product differentiation/
innovation/diversification and
protection of intellectual property

Diversified sales channels with
comprehensive distribution/
intermediary network

Effective and up-to-date
competitor monitoring
and analysis to maintain
competitive advantage

Long-term sole source
programmes of record

Coherent and targeted
pricing strategies

Ermvironireenta impact

Sustainable supoly chains

Cybersecunty and data proiecton

Errployee-centric approach

Focus for 2023

Focus on continuing to grow
our market share with cur
internaticnal and first
responder customers

Expand international sales
presence/footprint

NSPA boots and gloves proposal

Pricing strategies to maximise
win rate while passing on input
cost Increases where possible

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection pl [

140d3H 31931vH1S



PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

TALENT

MANAGEMENT

Business risk
Inability to recruit and
retain talent

« Poar employee competence
and failure to train and develop

Dysfunctional organisational
structures

Impact on
- Strategy delivery

- Sales, costs and profitability

- Employee morale

Overalltrend Link to strategy

What happened in 202§

+ Commenced implementation
of new HR system to autemate/
IMpProve processes

Commercial review of
indirect staff pay and benefits
10 SUPPOTT recruitment

and retention

< Held flagship talent
development programme after
hiatus last year due to COVID-19

Managed disruption arising
from the implementation of the
S, vaccine mandate

Continued high degree of focus
on safety practices across sites

Continued focus on people,
culture and prioritisation

of actioning employee
feedback, aligned with
sustainability agenda

« Continued focus on
employee safety measures
against {OVID-19

CYBERSECURITY AND
INFORMATION TECHNDLOGY

Business risk

Business interruption/cash cost
of cyber crime and fraud

IT system or communications
faillure could lead to business
centinuity event

Military security requirements
result in excess cost and
management time

Failure to comply results inloss
of contract

Impact on
« Ability 1o ship products
- Financial loss

« Reputational damage

Mitigation
Robust succession planning

and effective performance
management pracess

« Effective training and
development strategy
and activities

- Appropriate crganisational
structure with clear lines of
authority and communication

Maintaining positive Avon
Protection culture — Great
Place to Work

- Well invested and structured
HR team

Overalltrend Link to strategy

What happened in 2022

< Commenced implementation of
new HR systern

- Improved reporting In the
ballistic protection business

« Implemented business
intelligence and rmaster data
managernent strategy

+ Continded investment in
cybersecurity and CMMC 20

- Implementation of a new CRM
systern was put on hold

« Changein ERP strategy
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Mitigation
IT strategy anticipates
forthcoming requirements
IT sufficiently resourced with
specialists to ensure compliance
+ Robust network/IT contrels and
security protocols/policy

+ Cyberinsurance and iT disaster
recovery plan and backup

Link to sustainability

Focus for 2023

Focus for 2023

Complete implementation of
new HR system

Complete pay and
benefits review

Raview annual bonus scheme
structure including production
worker incentive schemes

Launch annual Employee
Opinion Survey following hiatus
during COVID-19 lockdown

Heightened focus on succession
plans for key roles

Link to sustainability

Implement standalone ERP
systern for Team Wendy

Continue investment in
cybersecurity and CMMC 2.0
compliance

Continue to support
the implementation of
new HR system

Implementation of
cybersecurnty response plan and
infarmation security policies

SUPPROrT ContINUOUS
improvement in business
systems and reportung



5 CUSTOMER DEPENDENCY

Business risk

- Gver-reliance on customers, e.g.
the U.S. DOD, and its funding
and contract process

- Failure 1o diversify
custorner base

Impact on
+ Sales and profitability

What happened in 2022

- Continued to manage the
challenge of having the U.S
DOD as our main customer

- Focused on executing first
responder and military
strategy in FMFA and major
contract wins

- S DOD M50 stocking
progremme/technology
insertion strategy

+ Consolidated relationship/future
bids with UK. MOD

- Maximised opportunity to
engage with NATC countries
under NATO framewaork contract

B FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Link to sustainability

Mitigation

- Strong customer relatonship
management with an
apprapriate team structure,
communication and
customer service

« Understanding our military
customer requirermnents and
forthcoming procurement
requirements

« Strategy provides for
diversification of customer
base with particular focus
on Rest of World and first
responder customers

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Focus for 2023

+ Improved engagement with the
U.5. 0OD on helmet supply

Expand position with NATO
through further proposals

+ Implement international
strategies including the
Middle East through in-
country resource

+ Deliver international sales of
MCMI100 underwater rebreather

+ Revisit strategy for
diversification under
new leadership

Link to sustainability

Business risk

- Insufficient management
of risks related to tax, cash
flowws, interest and foreign
currency exposure

- Insufficient funding capacity to
meet strategic objectives

- Insufficient overhead
control and working capital
management erode margins or
impair investment ability

« Poor quality financial reporting
and business information
impact decision making

Impacton
- Costs and profitability

+ Reputational darmage

Key
Trend

No change

Strategy

Increasing

Decreas™g

Growing tne core
selectve aroducs developrent

Va ue enhanaing acquisitions

What happened in 2022

« Improved business information
and decision making
(capex, opex, inventory and
working capital)

» New investment committee
established to review and
approve capital investments
aligned with strategic priorities

- Implementation of a new
hedging policy using interest
rate swaps 1o fix a portion of
floating rate interest

Sustainability

Mitigation

- Robust and professional
corporate finance function
sufficiently well resourced
and supported by network
of professional advisars

- Full compliance with bank
facility covenant requirernents

- Improving internal financial
control and reporting
progedures supported by
the external and internal
audit process

+ Effective foreign exchange and
interest rate risk monitoring
and management

Emvircnmental ‘mpact
Sustaab e supply chains

Cybersecunty and datd protecton

Errployee-centr'c approach

Focus for 2023

« Continuous improverment in
business information recording
and reporting, and decision
making (manufacturing
variances, capex)

- Launch revised approval
pracess for capital expenditure
and tracking

- Review and continue to improve
internal contrel procedures
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

7 MANUFACTURING RISK

Business risk

Shocks to the global supply
chain impact our ability o
source key materials and the
cost of manufaciuring

« Quality contral pracess fallure
leads to product failures or recall

- Environmental or health and
safety incident results in plant
closure and prosecution/fines

Poorly managed distribution
or logistics network impacts
delivery and reputation

= Delays in new product

introductions

Impacton
- Sales, costs and profitability

What happened in 2022

Leveraged UK. facility
Manufacturing Licence
Agreement to increase 50 series
production and reduce reliance
on Cadillac facility

Reviewed supply chain risk
mitigation plan robustness,
defined additional sources for key
raw materials and components,
increased sourcing resource, and
addressed areas of supply chain
weakness that have developed
through the COVID-19 pandemic

Launched integrated business
planning process project

First delivery order received for
the NG IHPS

Renewed focus on business
continuity planning for our
facilities, including focus on
environmental/climate risks

Created sustainability agenda
across all sites to bring the U.S,
sites up tothe sarme standard
asthe UK.

DLA ESAPI FAT approval and
managed exit plan from
armor business

B COMPLIANCE AND LEGAL MATTERS

Business risk

+ Failure to comply with export
controls slows or removes ability
to ship abroad

+ Prosecution, fines and negative
publicity resulting from biribery
and corruption

Lingation increases cost and
management time, negatively
impacting other areas

+ Faiture to comply with
gaovernment contract obligations
results i loss of contract

Impact on
Ability to ship products

Fimancial loss

Reputational damage

What harppened in 2022

Deloitte FY22 internal audit
work programme

Pragramme of compliance
training under new compliance
brand with a relaunch of cur
Code of Conduct, redefined
Informatian Classification Policy
and cybersecurnity training

Clean UK export contro! audit
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Overalltrend Link to strategy

Mitigation
- Robust supplier audit and
quality rmanagement

- Written supply agreements in
place including dual source
where necessary

- Robust manufacturing/
operational disciplines
and fully functioning and
effective systems

+ Strong site leadership
and engaged, motivated
manufacturing workforce

Insurance and effective business
continuity planning

Prioritisation of workforce safety
and wellbeing through the
COVID-19 pandemic

Overall trend

Mitigation
- Effective export control policy
supported by training

« Effective ant-bribery and
corruption policy supported
by training

« Embedded and effective Code
of Conduct

- Effective internal legal and
finance functian

- Effective government contract
specialist knowledge reporting
at a senior level

Link to strategy

Link to sustainability

Focus for 2023

Focus for 2023

Continuation and delivery of
integrated business planning
tool under SIOP project
launched in 2022

Development of sustainability
strategy at site lavel

Impiementation of managed
exit frorn the armor business
including closure of the
Lexingtan site

Implement standalone ERP
systern for Team wWendy

Investrnent in helmet ,
and respirator production
capacity/flexibility

Continued focus on recording
supply chain risk and sole
source dependencies

Link to sustainability

Deloitte FY23 internal audit
work programme

Revised and updated internat
control policies

Implement 2023 internal
romphance training prograrmme



9 POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC STABILITY Overalltrend Llinktostrategy Link to sustainability

Business risk

Unpredictable timing/amount
of federal funding for first
responder customers

+ US DOD budgets/
funding withdrawn

- Macro events rrigger negative
Impacts on; trade, regulation,
people, contracts and
intellectual property

Impacton
« Sales and profitabitity

- Ability to ship praducts
« Financial Ioss

« Reputational damage

What happenedin 2022

+ Managed ongoing impact of
COVID-19 on US. DOD processes

- Recruited additicnal supply
chain/sourcing resource
to manage disruption to
supply Chigin

- Focused on mitigating potential
labour shortage risk due to U'S
vaccine mandate and tight US.
labour market

+ Monitored and managed
impact of VS, Federal
Government Continuing
Resolution on US. DOD budget
and order flow

1 n SUSTAINABILITY

Business risk

- Fallure to make progress
towards net zero target

+ Changing customer
reguirements and technology
nnovation impact demand for
our products

+ Extreme weather causes
disruption to our operations
and supply chan

Impact on
- Reputatianal damage

+ Sales, cost and profitability

Key
Trend

No change

Strategy

inCreasing

Decreasing

Growing Te Come
Se ectve product deve'opment

Value enhanc'ng acquisimions

Mitigation
+ Close monitoring of federal
funding and budget position

+ Lobbyist/government advisors
and key influencers aligned to
Avon Protection’s interests

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Focus for 2023

- Vaccine mandate dropped for
LS. sites to support recruitment
ta fill vacancies

» Continued efforts to reduce sole
source supplier risk on key raw
materials and components

+ Continued manitoring and
management of impact of U.S.
Federal Government Continuing
Resolution on U S. budget and
order flow

- Increase stock and surge
capacity to improve ability
1o supply urgent demand
requirernents from cngoing
and new conflicts

Link to sustainability

New
What happened in 2022 Mitigation Focus for 2023
- Engaged with employees, - Monitor climate-related - Continue to define our
customers and investors regulations sustzinability agenda in

to determine sustainability
areas most materal to our
stakeholders

« Established a governance
structure for overseeing
sustainability matters including
but not limited to climate-
relazed risks and opportunities

- Developed our
sustainability agenda

Developed our first gualitative
climate scenarios and reviewed
this with senior leaders to
identify climate-refated risks
and opportunities. This did not
highlight any material risks that
would impact the business in
the year ahead or significantly
impact assumptions used in
forward laoking forecasts in
supporting the carrying value
of assets on the balance sheet.

Sustainability

- Maintain strong relationships
with custorners and
technology partners

Sufficient focus on sustainability
at all levels of the business
and all sites

- Agreed and deliverable
Net Zero Plan

Ervironmental impact
Sustainable supsly chains

Cybersecurity and daza protection

Emoloyee-centric anproach
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particular environmental
initiatives that will result in
delivery of our medium-term
carbon net zero targets

Ermbed the sustainabiiity
agenda into the business and
Sustainability Committee
operating cadence

- Roll out KPIs aligned to our
sustainability agenda

+ Review scope 3 categories 1o
determine the most relevant
tor future repering
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OUR PRODUCTS ARE LIFE-SAVING DEVICES; THERE

IS NO ROOM FOR ERROR. THAT IS ONE OF MY
FAVORITE THINGS ABOUT BEING A PART OF THE

AVON PROTECTION TEAM; WE PRODUCE LIFE-SAVING
EQUIPMENT FOR THOSE THAT PROTECT US AND | GET
TO MAKE SURE THAT IT MEETS THEIR REQUIREMENTS
BEFORE IT LEAVES THIS BUILOING.

Dariane Dushane
Quality Auditor
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CHAIR’S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

A STRONG |
TEAM

The Board is committed to achieving high standards of governance designed
to protect the long-term interests of all other stakeholders, while promoting
the highest standards of integrity, transparency and accountability.

Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

Dear Shareholder,

l amn pleased to present our Corporate Governance Repart. This report
describes our governance structures and procedures, and surmmarises

the work of the Board and its Committees and how the Board evaluared
its effectiveness in 2022. As a Board we recognise the fundamental
importance of ensuring robust governance practices are implemented
and followed in order to promote the long-term sustainable success of the
Company, generate value for shareholders and contribute to wider society.

Stakeholder engagement

The Baard recognises its obligation to ensure effective engagement

with its stakeholders, to understand thew different perspectives and to
ensure theirinterests are considered in Board discussions and decision
making. While we understand the importance of balancing all stakeholder
views, this year we have sought to increase the mechanisms under

which we engage with and receive feedback from our employees,
including additional in-person townhail meetings and site visits, Details
of stakeholder engagement activities during the year are outlined on
pages 38-41.

Purpose and culture

At Avon Protection, our purpose 15 clear - to provide trusted and
innovative solutians 10 enable those at risk to perform therr mission safely
and with confidence. This underpins everything we do, including our
culture and values. The Board understands the imgortance of its rale in
setting the right tore from the top and embedding it throughout the
Group Inaddition to the Board, the Executive Board has respansibility to
ensure that the policies and behaviours ser at Board level are effectivery
communicated and implemented throughout the Group.

72 Avon Protection plic Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Qur refreshed Code of Conduct, which was approved by the Board during

the year, reflects our purpoese and our values, and sets out the standards of
behaviour and business conduct expected from anyone working for or on

behalf of the Group.

Board and Committee evaluation

During the year we completed an evaluation of the Board and its
Committees. The 2022 evaluation was internally facilitated using
questannaires, ied by me and the Company Secretary. It concluded
that the Board, its Committees, the individual Cirectors and the Chair
performed effectively during 2022, both individually and as a collective
unit, It was neted that following the relaxation of COVID-19 restrictions, i
relationships between the Board and wider management tearn hacd

impraved significantly aver the prior year, In addition, the following areas

of focus were identified for 2023 and beyond, the need to review the

strategy process, further developrent of the risk process, succession

planning and the need for increased interactions between the Board and

managerment teams. Further details can be found on page 78

Sustainability

Given its significance, the Board decded 1o retain responsibility for
development and oversight of our sustainabiiity agenda directly, rather
than establishing a specific Board-level committee. At the management
level, we have established 2 Sustainabiity Steenng Commuttee, chaired by
Rich Cashin, cur Chief Financial Officer, to lead the implementation of our
agenda and impact plan. This Committee will regularly report 1o the Board
an progress Further details on the remit of the Sustainability Steering
Comrutter can be found on page 43



AS A BOARD WE RECOGNISE THE FUNDAMENTAL IMPORTANCE OF ENSURING
ROBUST GOVERNANCE PRACTICES ARE IMPLEMENTED AND FOLLOWED IN
ORDER TO PROMOTE THE LONG-TERM SUSTAINABLE SUCCESS OF THE COMPANY,
GENERATE VALUE FOR SHAREHOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTE TO WIDER SOCIETY.

Annual General Meeting

The 2023 AGM of Avon Protection plc will be held at Hampton Park West,
Semington Road, Melksham, Wiltshire SN12 6N8, at 10.30am on Friday 27
January 2023 Further detalls, including the resolutions to be proposed

to our shareholders, cah be found in the Notice of Meeting on pages 172
w0 176. The result of the votes on the reselutions put forward at the AGM
will be publicly announced to the stock exchange and published on our
website as soon as possible following the conclusion of the meeting. | will
be in attendance at the AGM and will be very happy 1o take any questions
you may have regarding the operation of the Board during the year. We
look forward to seeing you there

Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

22 November 2022

Compliance with the U.K. Corporate Governance Code
The Company reports against the Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC)
UK. Corporate Governance Code 2018 ('the Code’), which is available
at www.frc.org.uk. The Board has applied all Principles and complied
with all Provisions in the Codle for the year ended 30 September 2022,
with the exception of Provision 38 1n relation to alignment of Executive
Directors’ pensions with those of the wider workforce. As explained
on page 74, we were in full compliznce with this provision as from

1 April 2022, when Executive Director pensions were aligned with the
wider workforce. Further details on how the Company apphied the
principles of the Code during the year can be found as follows:

See page
BOARD LEADERSHIP AND
COMPANY PURPOSE
Long-term value and sustainability 2,42
Culzure bS]
gh_a:reholder engagement 7 40
Employee engagement 38
Other stakeholder engagement 38
Conflicts of interest 107
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
Role of the Charr 6
Division of responsibifities 76
&EnfExecutive Directors 76
COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND
EVALUATION
Appointments and succession planaing " 77
Skills, expericnce and knowledge 7 75
Length of service 75
Evaluation 78
Diversity 80
AUDIT, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL .
Audit Corﬁmittee 82
Integrity of financial sfa_te_ments 83
lair, balanced and understan@\e 90
intemal controls and risk management ) 84
Exterma-\ auditor 8727
Principal and emerging nsks 62-
REMUNERATION
Policies and practices - 89
thTwmemt with purpose, values and Iomg-teﬁ:nl strateqy ‘8&\_
Independent Judgement and discretion a5
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A BOARD WITH
EXPERIENCE

Our business is led by our experienced Board of Directors,
which focuses on developing the Group’s strategy and supporting
management to execute against it.

Bruce Thompson Rich Cashin
Executive Chair Chief Financial Officer

Chloe Ponsonby Bindi Foyle Victor Chavez CBE
Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Senior Independent Director

Board membership key
Audit Committee

Namination Committee
Remuneration Committee
Chair

Independent Director
Miles Ingrey-Counter
Group Counsel and
Company Secretary

74 Avon Protection ple Annual Report and Accounts 2622



Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

First appointed: March 2020
Appointed Chair: Decermber 2020

Skills and experience: Bruce joined the Board
in March 2020 During his executive career,
Bruce was Chief Executive Officer of Diploma
PLC, the FTSE 250 specialised technical products
and services business, for over 20 years, Prior to
Joining Diploma, Bruce was a Director with the
technology and management consulting firm
Arthur O Little Inc, both in the UK. and the U5
le is currently the Senivn Independent Non-
Executive Director of discoverlE Group plc

Rich Cashin
Chief Financial Officer

First appointed: April 2022

Skills and experience: Before joining Aven
Protection, Rich was President, Strategy and
Corporate Developrnent for Ultra Electronics
Holdings plc from June 2019, Prior to this, he
was Group Head of Investor Relations and,
subsequently, a divisional Finance Director for
Meggitt PLC and held a number of investment
and finance roles at Rolis-Royce plc and UBS AG.

Chloe Ponsonby
Non-Executive Director
Senior Independent Director

First appointed: March 2015

Skills and experience: Chlce has spent
her 20-year career in financial services, first in
equity fund management at Jupiter, and then in

Investment banking at Altium and Oriel Securities

{now owned by Stifel) and currently at Panmure
Gordon where she is a Managing Directar in
investment banking. She is a Chartered Finandial
Analyst and has a first class Economics degree
from the University of Manchester.

Bindi Foyle
Non-Executive Director

First appointed: May 2020

Skills and experience: Bindi has been Group
Finance Director of Senior plc, a manufacturer
for the aerospace, defence, land vehicle and
power and energy markets, since july 2017,
having served as an Executive Director since
May 2017 Bindi joined Senior in 2006 as

Group Financial Controller before becoming
Director of Investor Relations and Corporate
Comrnunications in 2014, Prior to Joining Senior,
she held senior finance roles at Amersham plc
and General Electric, having previously worked
with BDG Stoy Hayward,

Victor Chavez CBE
Nan-Executive Director

Board gender diversity (%)

First appointed: December 2020

Skills and experience: Victor has over

30 years of experience in the defence and

security sectors. His early career focused on 2
telecommunications and software before

Joining Thales UK. in 1999, He was appointed

Chief Executive in 2011, retiring in 2020 having

successfully integrated and grown the business

during this period. In recognition of his services

to defence and security for the UK. and France,

victor was appolinted a CBE in 2015 and a

Chevalier of the Légion d'Honneur in 2020. Female

Male
Miles Ingrey-Counter
Group Counsel and
Company Secretary
First appointed: October 2007 Independence (%}
Skills and experience: Miles is a qualified
soliciter; he joined the Group in January 2004
and has been a member of the Executive Board
since 2008. Miles zlso has responsibitity for all
Greup HR matters and is Chair of the Retirernent 2
and Oeath Benefits Plan, Prior to joining Avon 3
Protection, Miles was a solicitor with Osborne
Clarke LLP.

Executive (including CFO and
Executive Chalr)

Non-Executive {excluding Chair)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Introduction

This Corporate Governance Report, along with information in the Strategic
and Remuneration Reports, explaing how the principles and provisions of
the UK. Corporate Governance Code 2018 ('the Code’) have been applied.
A copy of the Code can be found on www.frc.org uk.

Statement of compliance with the Code
We are pieased to confirm that the Board has complied with all provisions
of the Code throughout 2022, with the exception of the following:

« Provision 38 The Code stipulates that pension contribution rates for
Executive Directars should be aligned with those availabie to the
workforce, Pension contributions for new Executive Directors are
aligned with the rate available to the workforce. Paul McDonald's
pension was aligned with thart available to the warkforce from 1 April
2022 when it was reduced from 15% to 7.5%, to coincide with the
appointment of Rich Cashin as Chuef Financial Officer

Board leadership

Bruce Thormpson, who was previously the Non-Executive Chair, was
appointed Executive Chair with cffect from 1 October 2022 until our new
Chief Executive Officer is in place. The Board therefore currently comprises
the Executive Chair, the Chief Financial Officer, who is an Executive
Director, and three Non-Executive Directors. On 17 October it was
announced that Jos Sclater would join the Board as Chief Executive Cfficer,
with effect from 16 January 2023, following which Bruce will step down as
Executive Chair and resurme his role as Chair of the Board. Further details
about the appeointment of the new Chief Executive Officer are disclosed
on page 81. The Board regularly reviews its composition to ensure it has
the necessary breadth and depth of skills to support the development of
the Group We believe that the Board continues to have a strong mix of
experienced individuals who provide a unique perspective on Company
matters and bring specific skills 1 the Board.

Biographical details for each member of the Board can be found on pages
74 and 75 of this Annual Report, &l Directors will stand for re-appointment
by shareholders at the 2023 AGM

Company purpose

The Company purpose is stated on page 2. The Board recognises its role in
establishing the purpose, values and strategy of the Group and ensuring
that these are embedded throughout the business. Qur purpose unites us,
guides our decisions and inspires us wherever we operate,

Our culture

The Board clearly recognises the importance of culture and its ink to
delivering our purpose and strategy. Assessing and monitoring our
culture is iImportant 1o ensure we retain a successful culture as we grow
Through our emplayee engagement initiatives, explained in maore detail
on page 38, the Board has sought to achieve greater engagement with
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the warkforce. The Board considers the most effective way of achieving
this engagement is via a Global Employee Advisory Forum, which was
established last year

Division of responsibilities

Throughout the financial year until 30 September 2022, there was a clear
division of responsibility between the running af the Board by the Chair
and the running of the Group's business by the Chief Executive Officer. For
an interim period from 1 October 2022 until Jos Sclater joins the Board as
Chief Executive Officer on 16 January 2023, the Chair has been apponted
Executive Charr.

The Chair is responsible for the leadership of the Board and ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of 1ts role, The Chief Executive Cfficer manages
the Group and has the primary role, with the assistance of the Board, of
developing and implementing business strategy. The Chair ensures that
meetings of Non-Executive Directors take place without the Executive
Directors present. Whilst the Chair is performing the role of Executive
Chair, the Senior Independent Director assists with these responsibilities.

Rules concerning the appaintment and replacement of Directors of the
Company are contained in the Arucles of Association, Amendments to the
Articles must be approved by a special resolution of shareholders. One of
the roles of the Non-Executive Directors, under the leadership of the Chair,
is to undertake detailed examination and discussion of strategies proposed
by the Execurive Directars, so as to ensure that decisions are made in the
best long-term interests of shareholders and take proper account of the
interests of the Group’s other stakeholders.

The Nan-Executive Directars are appointed by the Board on terms

which allow for termination on three months' notice. Copies of Executive
Directors’ service contracts and tarms and conditions of appointment for
Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the registered office,

How the Board operates

The Chair ensures, through the Company Secretary, that the Board agenda
and all relevant information are provided sufficiently in advance of meetings
and that adequate time is avaitable for discussion of all agenda items, In
particular strategic issues. The Chief Executive Officer and the Company
Secretary discuss the agenda ahead of every meeting At meetings, the
Chatr ersures that all Directors are abile 1o make an effective contribution
and every Director 15 encouraged to participate and provide opinions on
each agenda item. The Chair always seeks to achieve unarimous decisions
of the Baard following due discussion of agenda tems

The Non-Exacutive Directors fully review the Group's operational
performance and the Board as a whole has, with a view to reinforcing 1ts
oversight and conitrol, reserved a hist of powers solely ta itself which are
not to be delegated to management,

This listincludes appropnate strategic, financial, organisational and
compliance issues, including the approval of high-level announcements,
circulars, the Annual Report and Accounts and certaim strategic and
management issues, which include:



- approval of the annual operating budget and the three-year
strateqic plan;

- the extension of the Gronp's Artivities into new areas of business and/or
geographical areas {or their cessation);

- changes 1o the corporate or capital structure;

- financial issues, including changes in accounting policy, the approval of
dividends, bank facilities and guarantees;

- changes to the constitution of the Board;

- the appraval of significant contracts, for example the acquisition or
dispesal of assets worth more than £1,000,000 or the exposure of the
Company or the Group to a risk greater than £1,000,000;

+ the approval of unbudgeted capital expenditure;

+ the approval of quotations and sales contracts where the sales
commission payable to an intermediary exceeds 10% of the net invoice
price; and

- consideration and approval of all proposed acquisitions and mergers.

Fach Director has full and timely access to all relevant information and
the Board meets regularly with appropriate contact between meetings.
All Directors receive a tailored induction to the Group from the Company
Secretary on joining the Board. When appointed, Non-Executive
Directors are made aware of and acknowledge their ability to meet

the tirme commitments necessary to fulfil their Board and Cormnmittee
duties. Procedures are in place, which have been agreed by the Board,
for Drrectars, where necessary in the furtherance of their duties, to take
independent professional advice at the Company's expense and all
Directors have access to the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that all
Board procedures and governance requirements are complied with, The
removal of the Company Secretary is a decision for the Board as a whole

Attendance at meetings

Committees of the Board

Of particular importance in a governance context are the three
Committees of the Board, namely the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Cormmittee and the Audit Committee. Each Cormmittee
operates under clear terms of reference, copies of which are available on
our website Details of the operation of each Committee are provided
within the relevant Committee report

Bindi Foyle is Chair of the Audit Committee. The Board is satisfied that
Bindi has recent relevant financial experience and her profile appears
on page /5.

Bruce Thompson is Chair of the Nomination Committee burt, in accerdance
with the Committee's terms of reference, is not permitted to chair
meetings when the Commitree is dealing with matters relating to the
Board Chair's position,

Chloe Ponsonby Is Chair of the Remuneration Committee, The
Remuneration Committee’s principal responsibilities are to decide

on reruneration policy on behalf of the Board and to determine
remuneration packages and other terms and conditions of employment,
including appropriate perfermance-related benefits for the Executive
Directors and other senior executives. The Remuneration Committee alsc
has regard to the remuneration of the wider workforce. More details of the
activities of the Rermuneration Committee are set out in the Remuneration
Reporton pages 86 to 105.

Composition, succession and evaluation

The Nemination Committes is responsible for leading the process

for Board appointments and making recommendations to the Board,
putting in place plans for succession and regularly reviewing the Board's
structure, size and composition. The Committee takes into account the
challenges and oppertunities facing the Group and the skills, knowledge
and experience needed by the Board and makes recommendations to the
Board with regard to any changes Further information and the activities of
the Nomination Committee during the year are detailed on page 81.

All Commitrtee and Board meetings held in the year were quorate, Directors’ attendance during the year ended 30 September 2022 was as follows:

Board
(7 scheduled and 2 ad

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

hocmeetings) {4 scheduled meetings) {4 scheduled) {2 scheduled)
Bruce Thompson 3(9) o 4{4) W 4{4) - 21{2)
Bindi Foyle - 9 (5) o 414 4 (4-‘) 22
Chice Ponsonby 9 (9) 4 (4L)-‘ 7 4{4) - 242
Victor Chavez ? (9)_ 444} - 4{4) 2(2
Paui McDonald 29 7 - - -
NE( Kevetf-w_ S o 5(5) o - - -

Rich Cashun? 414

The maximum number of meetings which each Director could have attended is shown in brackets,

I Nick <eveth stepoed down from the 3oard ar 31 Marck 2022

2 FRick Lashinwas apoointea tc te 3oard cr 31 Mergn 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONIINUED

Performance evaluation

The Board continually strives to improve its effectiveness and conducts
an annual review of its performance and that of its Committees and the
individual Directors to enhance overall Board effectiveness. Given the
number of changes to the Board during the year, with the appointment
of Rich Cashin as Chief Financial Officer on 31 March 2022 and the
announcement that Paul McDonald would step down from the Board on
30 September 2022, it was agreed that the 2022 Board evaluation process
would be conducted internally using guestionnaires and interviews led by
the Company Secretary. Consideration will be given to the 2023 evaluation
being externally facilitated.

The Board evaluation questionnaire, completed by all Beard members
and the Company Secretary, was structured to provide Directors with
the opportunity to express views on a variety of wopics including Board
remit and responsibilities, skills and dynamics of the Board, meetings and
content, Group strateqy, internal contral and risk management, decision
making and communication.

A detailed discussion of the findings from the performance evaluation
took place at the September 2022 Baard meeting. Overall, the evaluation
concluded that the Board, its Committees, the individual Directors and
the Chair performed effectively during 2022, both individually and as

a collective unit. It was noted that following the relaxation of COVID-19
restrictions, relationships between the Board and wider management
team had improved significantly over the prior year.

The following areas were identified by the Board as areas of focus for 2023
and beyond:

« review of the strategy process to maxirnise efficicncy and effectiveness;

- further development of the risk management process to ensure
sufficient integration into the operational side of the business;

» continuing focus of the Nomination Committee on succession
planning; and

- increased interactions between the Board and management teams
outside of scheduled monthly meetings.

Audit, risk and internal control

The Board has an established framework of internal controls covenng
bath financial and non-finandcial controls, In addition, there is a process for
identifying, evaluating and managing significant business risks, including
emerging risks, faced by the Group. This process was in place throughout
the 2022 financial year.

The Code requires that Directors establish procedures to manage nisk,
oversee the internal control framewaork and determine the nature and
extert of the principal nisks the Company is willing 1o take in order to
achigve its long-term strategic objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviews the effectiveness of

the Group's system of internal controls on & continuing basis. The scope

of this review covers all contrals including financial, operational and
compliance contrals, as well as risk management. The Audit Commitiee
has responsibility to review, monitor and make policy recommendations 1©
the Board upaon all such matters

The Audit Committee keeps this system under continuous review and
formally considers its content and its effectiveness on an annual basis,
Such a system can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against matenal misstatements or losses The section on internal

control in the Audit Committee Report on page 84 and the following
paragraphs describe relevant key procedures within the Group's systems
of internal cantrol and the process by which the Directors have reviewed
tneir effectiveness.
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Systerns exist throughout the Group which provide for the creation of
thrae-year plans and annual budgets; monthly reports enable the Board
to compare performance against budget and 1o take action where
appropriate, Procedures are in place to identify all major and emerging
business risks and to evaluate their potential impact an the Group. These
risks are described within the Strategic Report on pages 62 1c 69.

Risk management

Risk is managed by the Executive Board during the year, led by the Risk
Committee, which is led by the Company Secretary. Various enhancements
to the risk management process were implemented during the year and
thase are set outin mare detail in the Principal Risks and Risk Management
section on pages 62 1o 69.

The Audit Committee carried out guarterly reviews of the key risks facing
the Group and risk management activities undertaken during the year,
following the risk reviews conducted by the Risk Committee with the
business leadership. The Audit Committee also carried out a robust annual
assessment of the major business risks and emerging risks affecting the
Group, Including macro risks

Internal control

There Is a clearly defined delegation of authority from the Board to the
business units, with appropriate reporting lines to individual Executive
Directors There are procedures for the authorisation of capital expenditure
and investrment, together with procedures for post-completion appraisal.

Internal controls are in existence which provide reasonable assurance

of the maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of
financlal infarmation used withun the business or for publication. The
Group finance department manages the financial reporting process

1o ensure that there is appropriate control and review of the financial
information including the production of the consohdated annual accounts,
Group finance is supported by the eperational financial managers
throughout the Group, who have responsitility for providing infarmation
in keeping with the policies, procedures and internal best practices

as documented in the internal contral manual and are accountable
under these,

The Board has issued a Code of Conduct which reinforces the importance
of a robust internal control framework throughout the Group. The Board
racognises that an open and honest culture 1s key to understanding
concerns within the business and to uncovering and investigatng any
potential wrongdoing. The Code of Conduct sets out the procedure
whereby individuals may raise concerns in matters of financial reporting or
any ather matter of concern with management or directly with the Chair
af the Audit Committee, or anonymously through our “Speak Up’ process,
10 ensure independent investigation and appropriate follow-up action
The Code of Conduct is reviewed annually

Although the Board itself retains the ultimate power and authority in
relation to decision making, the Audit Committee meets at least four
times a year with management and the external auditor to review specific
accounting, reporting and financial control matters

This Committee also reviews the interim, preliminary and annual
statements and has primary responsibility for making a recommendaton
on the appaintment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor.



Relations with shareholders

The Directors regard regular communications with shareholders as
extremely important. Al members of the Board receive copies of analysts’
reports of which the Compariy s made aware and receive an investor
relations report from the Chief Financial Qfficer at every Board meeting.
The Board reports formally to its shareholders in a numiber of ways,
including via regulatory news announcements, press releases, routine
reporting obligations, a detailed Annual Report and Accounts and, at the
half year, an interim report.

Regular dialogue takes place with institutional shareholders, including
presentations after the Company's preliminary announcements of the half
and full year results. The Board receives comments from analyst meetings
and shareholder meetings after both interim and final results and at other
tines during the year. The AGM includes a presentation by the Chief
Executive Officer on aspects of the Group’s business and shareholders
have the opportunity to both ask questions and to leave written questions
with the Company Secretary for the response of the Directors. Directors
also make themselves available after the AGM to talk informally to
sharehclders, should they wigh to do so, and respond throughout the year
to any correspandence from individual shareholders.

Special Security Agreement

On 8 December 2020, our US . subsidiary Avon Protection Ceradyne, LLC
{(APC) and the Company entered into a Special Security Agreement with
the U'S. Department of Defense, The 55A was entered into in support

of the U.S. DCD contracting and product development elerents of the
hallistic protection business and permits APC to perform classified US.
defence contracts. There are g number of specific protocels that the
Company and APC are required to comply with under the $SA, including
the appointment to the APC Board of two independent outside U.S.
Directors approved by the US, Government. The S5A imposes certain
restrictions on the degree of influence the Company can exert over

APC and it is therefore important that the Company maintains a strong
relationship with the APC Board, in order to ensure that we are fulfilling our
own governance obligations A member of our Executve Board is an inside
Director on the APC Board, We anticipate increased engagement with APC
and the outside Directors in the coming year under the governance of the
S5A 1o support synergy oppeortunities across APCs product portfolio for
the benefit of cur Head Protection business.

Disclosure and Transparency Rules {DTR)

Disclosures in respect of the DTR requirerments under DTR 7.2 6 are given
in the Directors’ Report on pages 106 ta 109 and have been included

by relerence.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
which the Directors believe 1 be appropriate for the following reasons:

The Directors have prepared a going concern assessment covering the
12-month period from the date of approval of these financial statements.
The assessment indicates that the Group will have sufficient funds to meet
its liablities as they fail due for that period.

As part of their assessment, the Directors considered a base case and a
severe downside scenario involving a 27% decline in bank-determined
adjusted EBITDA against the base case. Even in this severe downside
scenario, the assessment indicates that the Group will have sufficient funds
to meet its liabilities as they fall due, and will continue 1o comply with its
loan covenants throughout the forecast period. The Group has comrmitted
RCF facilites of 5200 million {see note 5.1) and related loan covenants
include a limit of 3.0 times for the ratio of net debt, excluding lease
liabilities, to bank-determined adjusted EBITDA {leverage)

On this basis, the Directors are confident that the Group and Company
will have sufficient funds to continue tn meet their liabilites as they fali
due for at least 12 months from the approval of these financial statements,
Accordingly the Group and Company continue 1o adopt the going
concern basis in preparing their financial statements

Viability Statement

The Directors have assessed the viability of the Group over a three-year
period to September 2025, taking account of the Group's current position,
and the potential impact of the principal risks documented in the Strategic
Report. Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet
its liabilities as they fall due over the period to September 2025

In making this statement, the Directors have considered the resilience

of the Group, taking account of its current position, the principal risks
facing the business in severe but plausible downside scenarios, and the
effectiveness of any mitigating actions. This assessment has considered
the potential impacts of these risks on the business model, future
performance, solvency and liguidity over the pericd. In making their
assessment, the Directors have taken account of the Group's RCF facility
which provides financing until September 2025 The Directors have a
reasonable expectation that similar financing could be obtained at the end
of the current RCF facility, should this be required for continued operation
or otherwise considered in the Group's best interest. During the period
the Group has complied with all covenant requiremenits attached to its
financing facilities.

The Directors consider the three-year lookout period to be the most
appropriate as this aligns with the Group's own strategic planning period.
The Group has developed an annual business planning process, which
comprises a strategic plan, a financial forecast for the current year and a
financial projection for the forthcoming three years. This plan is reviewed
sach year by the Board as part of its strategy setting process. Once
approved by the Board, the plan provides a basis for setting all detalled
financial budgets and strategic actions that are subsequently used by the
Board to monitor performance. The forecast performance outlook 1s also
used by the Remuneration Committee to establish the targets for both the
annual and long-term incentive schemes,

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection nic e

IONYNYIADD



80

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

LETTER FROM THE
CHAIR

Bruce Thompson
Chair of the Nomination Committee

Attendance at Nomination

Committee meetings

During the year the Nomination Committee held two
scheduled meetings. Attendance of the members of
the Cormnmittes 1s tecorded 1in the table below:

Eligible
Scheduled meetings Attended to attend
Bruce Thompson - 2 2
Chloe Pansonby 2 2
Bindi Foyle 2 2
Victor Chavez ] 2

I
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The Nomination Committee cornprises all the Non-Executive Directars.

Main responsibilities
The main responsibilities of the Committee are as follows:

o regularly review the Board's structure, size and composition, taking
into account the challenges and epportunities facing the Group and
the skills, knowledge and experience needed by the Board and to make
recommendations to the Board with regard to any change;

+ 1o putin place and periadically review succession plans for Directors
and, more generally, senior executives; and

tolead the process for Board appointments and make
recommendations to the Board.

The Committee’s terms of reference are available within the Corporate
CGovernance section of the Company's website and are reviewed annually.

All Directors are appointed by the Board following a ngorous selection
process and subsequent recommendation by the Committee.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity and believes the Board's
perspective and approach are greatly enhanced by gender, age and
cultural diversity. The Nomination Committee is responsible for the Board's
policy in this area, Diversity of skills, background, knowledge, international
and industry experience, and gender, amongst many other factors, will

be taken into cansideratian when seeking ta appomt new Directors ta

the Board. Notwithstanding the foregoing, all Board appointments will
always be made on merit. The Board's Diversity Policy can be found in the
Corporate Governance section of the Company’'s website.

The Balance@Avon inluative, supported by the Committee, aims to help
develop and promate our fernale leadership, create a forurn where we can
identify, nurtura and develop the female teaders of the future and ensure
that all wormen at Avon Pratection thrive in their careers. The initiative

is driven by a steering group which collaborates on long-term ideas to
help shape the future face of Avon Protection and create an agenda and
platform o help build our future female talent pipeline,

During 2022 we have supported a number of Balance@Avon initiatives,
including International Women's Day and the iaunch of a female
mentornng programme. We have achieved our minimum target of 33%
fernale representation on the Board and continue 1o work to achieve the
same rminimum target representation for the Group Executive team and its
direct reports.

Further information, including the number of women in senior
management and within the organisation, is shown in the Sustainability
Report on page 52.



THE COMMITTEE REGULARLY REVIEWS THE BOARD'S STRUCTURE AND
GIVES FULL CONSIDERATION TO SUCCESSION PLANNING FOR DIRECTORS
AND OTHER SENIOR EXECUTIVES, TO ENSURE WE ARE BEST RESOURCED

TO DELIVER THE GROUP’S STRATEGY.

Activities during 2022
During the year, the Committee:

commenced the search for a new Chief Executive Officer to replace Paul
McDonald, who stepped down from the Board on 30 Septernber 2022;

considered and confirmed the appointment of Rich Cashin as
Chief Financial Officer following the departure of Nick Keveth on
31 March 2022,

reviewed the composition of the Board and its succession plan;
carrled out an annual review of the Committee's terms of reference;

- recommended re-election of the Board at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting; and

reviewed the Board performance evaluation process.

Board changes

Nick Keveth retired as Chief Financial Officer and stood down from the
Board on 31 March 2022. Rich Cashin joined the Group as Chief Financial
Officer designate on 7 March 2022 and was appeinted to the Board as

an Executive Director on 31 March 2022, The process followed for Rich’s
appointment was disclosed in last year's report. Rich's biography, together
with those of all Board Directors, is included on page 75.

As znnounced to shareholders on 24 May 2022, after five years as Chief
Execurive Officer and 19 years with the Company, Paul McDenald stepped
down from the Board as Chief Executive Cfficer on 30 September 2022,

The recruitment process 1o find Paul's replacement commenced in May,
led by me as Chair of the Committee. Independent executive search
consultants Korn Ferry were retained and provided with a detailed
description of the role and assaciated skills and experience required.
Korn Ferry compited a longlist of potential candidates based on initial
interviews, from which a shortlist of candidates was selected by

the Committee.

Following an extensive interview and assessment pracess involving

all Directors, the Cammittee recommended Jos Sclater to the Board

as its preferred candidate. The Board considered and accepted the
recommendation and Jos Sclater was appainted to the Board as Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 16 January 2023. When Paul stepped
down from the Board as Chief Executive Officer, | was appointed intenm
Executive Chair while the recruitment process for his replacement 1 will
resume my role as Chair when Jos joins the Board on 16 January 2023,

The Committee has previously agreed that all Directors should be put
forward for re-appointment by shareholders each year at the AGM. Taking
into account the performance and value that each Director has brought
to the Board, the Committee has considered whether the appointment
of each Non-Executive and Executive Director should be renewed for a
further year and has confirmed that this is indeed the case. Accordingly,
resolutions to re-appoint each Director are being put to shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM

Succession planning

The Committee reviews succession planning for the Board formally at
least once a year in order to ensure the Board is adequately prepared for
potential changes to key Board positions. In addition, the Committee
reviewed the executive leadership needs of the Group during the year
and progress was made on the longer-term succession planning of the
Group Executive management team and its direct reports and this will
rermain a priority for the coming yesr.

Alongside this, the Committee alse retains oversight of the programmes
in place to assess and facilitate talent development amongst the
management teams to ensure there is a structured approach to
growing, developing and retaining the Company's future leaders. This
year the Committee oversaw the running of the Group's Professioral
Development Programme.

Committee evaluation

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Committee was conducted
as part of this year's Board performance evaluation. The outcome of the
2022 Committee review was positive and highlighted the need for the
Committee 1o retain focus on the Group strategy and risk management
pracess. Further detail on the result of the Board evaluation exercise is
included on page 78 of the Corporate Governance Report.

Bruce Thompson
Chair of the Nomination Committee

22 November 2022
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

LETTER FROM THE
CHAIR

Bindi Foyle
Chair of the Audit Committee

Attendance at Audit

Committee meetings

During the year the Audit Comrnittee held four
scheduled meetings. Attendance of the members of
the Committes s recorded in the table below:

Eligible

Scheduled meetings Attended toattend
Bruce Thompson 4 4
Chloe Pansonby 4 4
Bind Foyle 4 4
4 4

Victor Chaver

Avon Protection plec Annual Report and Accounts 2022

The Committee monitors the integrity of the Group's financial statements
and supports the Board with its angeing monitoring of the effectiveness
cf the Group's risk management and internal control systems,

During the year, the Audit Committee continued 1ts key oversight role for
the Board of the Group's financial management and reporung to reassure
shareholders that their interests are properly protected.

The Audit Commirttee works to a set programme of activities, with agenda
items established to coincide with the annual financial reporting calendar
The Committee reports regularly to the Board on its work,

During the 2022 financial year, the Committee has continued to monitor
the integrity of the Group's financial statements and supporied the
Board with its ongoing monitoring of the Group's risk management and
Internal control systems, The Committee also determined the focus of
the Group's internal audit activity, reviewed its findings, and verified that
recommendations were being appropriately implemented.

In accordance with the Code, the Committee continued to have oversight
of the Group’s whistleblowing function, known as ‘Speak Up’ together
with the assediated policies and procedures. The Committee received
regular updates on the number and types of Speak Up reports and agreed
follow-up actions throughaout the year from the General Counsel,

During 2022 the Audit Committee undertook a full evaluation exercise of
KPMG's sudit approach, to ensure the effectiveness of the external audit
function. Reviewing the results of the evaiuation of the external audit process,
we are satisfied with both the auditor's independence and audit approach

The Audit Committee acts on benalf of the full Board, and the matters
reviewed and managed by the Committee remain the responsibility of
the Directors as a whale.

Main responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has delegated authority from the Board set out in its
written terms of reference. The terms of reference for the Audit Committee
are available forinspection at the Company's registerad office and on

our website,

The key objectives of the Audit Committee are

o provide effective governance and contral ovear the integrity of the Group's
financial reporting and roviewr the significant finangial reporting judgements;

» tosupportthe Board with its ongaing monitoring of the effectiveness
of the Group’s system of internal controls and risk management systems;

+ o monitor the effectiveness of the Group's internal audit function and
review its material findings;

- 1o oversee the relationship with the external auditor and make
recornmendations to the Board in relation to the re-appointment of
the exterral auditer and monitor the external auditor's objectivity
and indepe-dence;

+ toreview the adequacy of the Company's whistleblowing arrangements
and the provisicn of appropriate investigation of any matters raised; and

+ to advise the Board on whether the Committee believes the
Annual Report and Accounts, taken as 2 whols, s fair, balanced,
and understandable and provides the informaton necessary for
sharehclders to assess the Company's position and performance,
business medel and strategy.



THE COMMITTEE MONITORS THE INTEGRITY OF THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPORTS THE BOARD WITH ITS
ONGOING MONITORING OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE GROUP’S
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The members of the Committee are set out on page 77 of the Corporate
Governance Report. The Committee members are all independent
Non-Executive Directors and have the appropriate range of financiel

and commercial expertise necessary to fulfi the Committee’s terms of
reference. The Board considers that as a serving Group Finance Director
of a UK. listed company, | have both the current and relevant financial
experience required to chair this Committee.

The Committee typically invites the Board Chair to attend all Committee
meetings together with the Executive Directors and the Group
Financiaf Cantrofler.

2022 Annual Report
The main areas of focus considered by the Committee during 2022 were
as follows:

+ The presentation of the financial statements and the guality and
acceptability of accounting policies and practices including the
presentation of adjusted performance measures and the adjusting
items. The Committee teviewed papers prepared by management,
challenged management's judgements and estimates, and reviewed
the disclosure of adjusted items within the Group's half year and full
year results, agreeing that the position taken in the financial staternents
is appropriate.

« The clarity of the disclosures and compliance with financial
reporting standards and relevart financial and governance reporting
reguirements. Material areas in which significant judgements have been
applied are discussed separately in more detail below,

- Atthe request of the Board, the Committee considered whether the
2022 Annual Report was fair, balanced and understandable and whether
it provided the necessary information for shareholders to assess the
Company's position and performance, business madel and strategy.
Having taken account of the other information provided to the Board
throughaout the year, the Committee was satisfied that, taken as a whole,
the Annual Reportand Accounts was fair, balanced and understandable.

The Committee was content, after due challenge and debate, with the
assumptions made and the judgements applied in the accounts and
agreed with management's recommendations. In addition, the Committee
reviewed and recommended the approval of the statements on corporate
governance, internal control and risk management in the Annual Report
and Accounts and the haif year results announcement.

Significant judgements and estimates considered

by the Audit Committee

After discussions with management and the external auditor, the
Committee determined that the key risk of material misstatement of the
Group's 2022 financial statements arose In the following areas:

- development costs and ongoing valuation in the financial
statements; and

« estimation of the defined benefit pension cbligation.

Development costs
The Group capitalises the development costs of new products and
processes as intangible assets or property, plant and equipment.

Initial capitalisation and any subsequent impairment are based on
management's judgement of technological and commercial viability,
including regulatory approvals required and forecast customer demand. In
determining the amounts to be capitalised the Group makes assumptions
regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount
rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits. If either
technological or commercial viability is not demonstrated then the
capitalised costs will be written off to the Income statement.

The key issues reviewed in the financial year included the ongaoing
valuation of assets in relation to the General Service Respirator supplied
to the U.K. MoD, the MCM100 underwarter rebireather and the category
of escape hoods. The Committee concurred with management that
the carrying values as included in the 30 September 2022 balance sheet
wore appropriate.

The external auditor explained its audit procedures to test development
costs and, based on the work undertaken, KPMG concluded the carrying
values were acceptable. Further analysis and detail on the Group's
development costs are set out in note 3.1 of the financial statements

Estimation of the defined benefit pension assets

and obligations

The Group operated a contributory defined benefit pian to provide
pension and death benefits for the employees of its UK. Group companies
employed before 31 January 2003. The plan was closed to future accrual of
benefits on 1 October 2009

The investments held by the pension scheme include bath quoted and
unguoted securities, the latter of which by their nature involve assumptions
and estimates to determine their fair value. Where there is no active market
for the unguoted securities, the fair value of these assets is estimated by the
pension trustees based on advice received from the investment manager
whilst also using any available market evidence of any recent transactions for
an identical asset. The assumptions used in valuing unguoted investrments
are affected by current market conditions and trends which could resultin
changes in fair value after the measurement date.

Estimation of the defined benefit pension obligation involves significant
iudgements concerning future changes in inflation, mortality rates, and
the selection of a suitable discount rate, as well as the future performance
and valuation of the scheme's assets. Changes to these actuarial judgements
could have a significant impact on the estimated pension obligation.

An independent actuary is engaged to estimate the defined benefit
pension obligation, undertaking a valuation of the scheme’s assets and
assessment of current and future pension labilities. The Commitiee
reviewed a report from the independent actuary on the appropriateness
of the assumptions used In assessing the assets and liabilities of the
scheme and agreed that the defined benefit pension obligation was being
estimated appropriately with reasonable judgements being applied.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Estimation of the defined benefit pension assets

and obligations continued

The external auditor applied its audit procedures to test the carrying value
of the net pension obligation and, based on the work undertaken and
assessment of the actuarial judgernents used, reported no inconsistencies
ar misstaternents that were material in the context of the financial
staternents as a whole. Further analysis and detail on the Group's defined
benefit pension scheme is set out in note 6.2 of the financial statements

External auditor

The Audit Committee considers the appointment of the external auditor
each year. KPMG LLP (KPMG) was appointed as the Group's external auditor
for the 2019 audit following a tender process in 2018 202215 KPMG's fourth
year as the Group's external auditor and Andrew Campbeh-Orde has acted
as audit partner since KPMG's appaintment.

The Committee oversees the relationship with the external auditor, and
monitors all services provided by, and fees payable to it, to ensure that
potential conflicts of interest are considered and that an objective and
professicnal relatonship is maintained

In particular, the Committee reviews and monitors the independence

and objectivity of the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit
nrocess, At the outset of the annual audit process, the Committee receives
a detailed audit plan from the auditor, identifying its assessment of the key
risks and its intended areas of focus, This is agreed with the Committee to
ensure coverage Is appropriately focused.

The Cornmittee also holds separate discussions with the external auditor
without Executive management being present. In addition, | held separate
meetings with the external auditor during the course of the year.

Review of the effectiveness of the external auditor

The Cammittee evaluates the effectiveness of the external auditor
annually. This evaluation inciudes a review of the effectiveness of the
external audit process, consideration of whether management had been
adequately challenged, interaction with the Commuttes and quality of the
audit work. The 2021 review included reports from the external auditor
and management incorporating feedback against a formal assessment
framework from key members of the Group’s finance tearn and those
employees who had interacted with KPMG during the audit This report
was reviewed at the Committee’s meeting in March 2022, Overall feedback
was positive and where opportunities for improvement were identified in
respect of earlier discussion with management regarding developments
and changes during the year, KPMG was asked 1o take account of that
feedback in the planning for future audit activity. KPMG and management
also undertook to work together to more clearly define the information
required from management during the audit to aid increased audit
efficiency This review concluded that the audit was conducted t© a good
standard with appropriate focus and challenge on the key audit risks.

KPMG has discussed more generally the firm's process for enhancing audit
quality which includes internal quality reviews.
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AQR of the Avon Protection 2021 audit by KFMG
During the year, the 2021 audit of Avon Protection plc by KPMG was
reviewed by the FRC's Audit Quality Review (AQR) team,

The AQR highlighted specific areas for improvermnent related to how

KPMG evaluated or challenged the required disclosures in relation to the
Company’s financial reporting period. The Committee considered the
findings, discussed them with management and KPMG and is satisfied that
the Company's financial reporting period for 2022 and the comparative
pericd is appropriately disclosed in the 2022 half year results and Annual
Report and Accounts. The AQR raised no concerns on the audit challenge
over the significant risks referenced in the Auditor's Report

No changes were required to the accounting applied in the Annual Report
and Accounts 2021

Audit fees and auditor re-appointment

During 2022, the Committee reviewed and approved the proposed audit
fees and terms of engagement far the 2022 audit and recommended o
the Board that it propases to shareholders that KPMG be re-appointed

as the Group's external auditor for 2023 at the AGM to be held on

27 January 2023,

Auditor independence

To ensure the independence and ohjectivity of the external auditor and
aveid a situation where the auditor's farmiiarity with the Group's affairs
results in excessive trust, the Committee maintains a formal Auditor
Independence Policy. The palicy follows the ethical guidance on auditor
independence issued by the FRCin December 2019 and was reviewed
during the year to ensure 1t remained appropriate, Under the policy all
non-audit services permitted by the FRC require the specific approval of
the Audit Committee,

The policy also establishes guideiines for the recruitment of emplayees
or former employees of the external auditar, To ensure compliance with
this policy, the Audit Committee carried out a review during the year; this
included consideration of the remuneration received by KPMG for audit
services, audit-related services and non-audit work.

The breakdown of the fees paid to the external auditor is included in note

2.5 of the financial statements. KPMG also conducted a half year review on
the interim financial results of the Group. No other non-audit services were
provided by KPMG during the year.

Internal control

The Committee regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Group's system
of internal controls and risk management. This Involves the monitoring
and review of the effectiveness of internal audit activiues, which included
a review of the audits carried out including the recommendations arising,
management’s responses and actions to address recommendations and
approving the internal audit programme and resourcing for 2023

The internal audit programme is comprised of risk-based audits
undertaken by Deloitte Deloitte reports directly 1o the Audit Cormrnittes,
which considered and approved the scope of the 2022 internal audit
programme to be undertaken. The Chair of the Commuttee also haolds
separate meetings with Oeloitte, without Executive managernent being
present, During the vear, Deloitte focused its internal audit wark on the
purchase to pay process and management, business continuity and [T
resilience, supply chain and procurement, and capital management —
intangible spend.



several improverncnts were identified in respect of developing and
enhancing the Group's risk management processes, better documenting
the operanon of controls, further integration of purchasing processes
and further enhancing processes around management and timeliness of
reviews of capitalised expenditure,

As part of the internal control framewaork, site controllers and plant
managers are obliged to positively confirm, on a biannual basis, that

the contrals as documented in the internal control manual are in place
and are being adhered to, with specific reference to key controls such as
bank and control account reconciliations. This process has been in place
for the year under review and up to the date of approval of the Annual
Report and Accounts. it has been reviewed by the Board and continues
to be monitored by the Committee, which remains satisfied with

the drrangements,

As part of its work, and in line with its terms of reference, the Committee
aiso considers the discharge of the Board's responsibilities in the areas

of corporate governance, financial reporting and internal contral,
including the internal management of risk, as identified in the Code and
the FRC Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related
Financial Business Reporting. In 2022, the Group further strengthened

its risk management procedures and these have been reviewed by the
Committee. Risk management activities are dealt with in more detail in the
Principal Risks and Risk Management section on pages 62 to 69 and the
Corporate Governance Report on page 78.

Audit Committee effectivenass review

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Audit Committese was
conducted alongside the Board effectiveness review, information on
which is provided in the Corporate Governance Report on page 78.
The review concluded that the Audit Committee continued to cperate
effectively during the year.

Bindi Foyle
Chair of the Audit Committee

22 November 2022
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

LETTER FROM THE
CHAIR

Chloe Ponsonby
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Attendance at Remuneration

Committee meetings

During the year the Remuneration Committee held
four scheduled meetings. Attendance of the members
of the Cornmittee s recorded in the table below:

Eligible
Scheduled meetings Attended to attend
Chloe Ponsonby 4 4
Bruce Thompson 4 4
Bindi Foyle 4 4
Victor Chavez 4 4

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the
Directors’ Remuneration Report for the 52 weeks ended
I Octoner 2022. This includes the following three sectiors

This Annual Statement which summarises the work of the
Remuneration Committee (‘the Cammittee'} in 2022 and
sets aut the context in which pay decisions were made

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy {'the Policy’) which was
approved by sharehalders at the 2021 AGM and sets the
parameters within which Directors are remunérated.

The Annual Report on Remuneration which provides

(i} d=tails of tne remuneration earned by Directors an
the ling cetween Company perfermarce and pay in the
52 weeks erded 1 October 2222 and (i) now we intend
to irmplement the Folicy in 2023,

The Annual Staternent and the Annual Report on Reruneration
will, together, be subject 1o the usuai advisory shareholder
vote at the AGM on 27 January 2023. The Policy, which was
approved in jJanuary 2021, will continue ta apply for the 2023
financizl per od, the thisd year of tre trres-year Policy.

Business context

As referred ta in the Chair's Statermment and the Strategic
Feport, 2022 has presented both challenges and
opportunities far the Group. Itis pleasing to see results
which reflect solid order intake and a much improved
operational perfarmance in the second half of the year, after
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a challenging first half, We have successfully navigated the retirement
and replacement of the Chief Financial Officer back in March and the
subsequent departure of the Chief Executive Officer, and the Group has
made solid progress In 2022, We are now well positionad geing into 2023
under a new Executive team.

The Committee has been particularly mindful of the challenging
economic environment and the impact this has had on all our employees.
The Committes has had good visibility of pay practices across the Group
and in particular the significantly higher than normal annual pay increase
for the wider workforce which was implemented on 1 October 2022, This
was between 5% and 8%, with our hourly paid workforce receiving 8%.
The annual increases made to senor executive pay this year were at the
lower end of thoze made for the wider warkfarce at c.5% for the Executive
Beard and 2 5% for the Chief Financial Officer. It is pleasing to see the
Group's financial performance triggering an annual borus payment after
the miss last year, but disappointing that the performance over the fast 3
years has not been sufficient to permit the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
award 1o vest

Remuneration outcomes for FY22

The annual bonus for 2022 was dependent on a scorecard of measures
which included adjusted operating profit (40%j, cash conversion (20%j,
revenue {2096) and the delivery of strategic objectives (209)

Based on the Company’s financial performance for the year and
achievernent against the strategic objectives, the Committee determined
the bonus outcome to be 44.3% of maximum far Paul McDonald and Nick
Keveth and 48 3% of maximum for Rich Cashin, Full details can be found
on page 98,

Vesting of the Long Term Incentive Plan awards made on 17 March 2020
was based on two measures — relative TSR and EPS growth — over the
three-year performance period The Group did not meet the threshold
targets and therefore the awards will lapse in full.

No discretion was applied in determining the annual borus and LTIP
vesting outcomes. The Committee agreed the final remuneration
outcomnes reflected Group performance over the respective performance
periods and was satisfied the Policy had operated as intended.

Updates on the terms of the 2022 LTIP award

Atthe time of signing off last year's Remuneration Report, the Board

was undertaking a strategic review of the armiar business and the
Rernuneration Committee wished ta see the outcomne of the review before
setting the three-year targets for the 2021/22 award The measures and
targets, which remain relative TSR and EPS growth, were set outin the
RNS at the time the award was made on 1 February 2022, Reflecting the
fall in the Company’s share price and the impact this had on the number
of awards bieing granted, the Committee agreed 1o make a reduced LTIP
grant of 1258 of salary to Paul McDonald instead of a 175% of salary grant
as perrnitted under the Directors’ Remuneration Policy Full details of the
award granted are set out in the Annual Repart on Remuneration,

Board changes

As ser out In the prior penod report, Nick Keveth retired from the Group as
Chief Financial Officer and ceased to be an employee on 31 March 2022
Nick received salary and contractual benefits untl the date of cessation
and received no payrnent in lieu of notice or payment far loss of office

As a good leaver and having worked for the first six months of the financial



THE COMMITTEE SEEKS TO SUPPORT THE DELIVERY OF THE GROUP’S
STRATEGY THROUGH ESTABLISHING REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS
WHICH SUPPORT SUSTAINABLE VALUE CREATION FOR OUR
SHAREHOLDERS AND INCENTIVISE MANAGEMENT.

year, Nick was eligible to receive a pro rata bonus for the 2021/22 financial
year and will receive a bonus of 44.3% of maximum. Nick also retained

an interestin the LTIP awards that were granted to him in 2019/20 and
2020/21. The performance condituons for the 2019/20 LTIP award were
not achieved (see above) and his 2020/21 awards will vest subject to the
achievernent of performance criteria and will be subject to a pro rata
reduction for time served. Nick did not receive an LTIP award in 2021/22.

In May 2022, the Board announced that, after 5 years as Chief Executive
Officer and 19 years with the Company, Paul McDonald would step down
as Chief Execunive Officer an 30 September 2022, For the remaining term
of his 12-month notice period and in line with his service agreement, Paul
rernains avallable to carry out certain duties of his employment and during
this time will receive his salary and contractual benefits. Reflecting his
long service with the Company, Paul has been treated as a good leaver
for incentive purposes and will receive a bonus for the 2021/22 financial
year of 44 3% of maximum. Paul's 2019/20 LTIP award did not vest as the
performance criteria were not achieved. His 2020/21 and 2021/22 awards
will vest subject to performance on their normal vesting dates. These
awards will be reduced pro rata to reflect time served and will be subject
t2 a two-year holding period.

Rich Cashin joined the Group as Chief Financial Officer designate on

7 March 2022 and after a brief handover period was appointed Chief
Financial Officer on 31 March 2022 with an annual base salary of £350,000
p a. Consistent with our palicy, Rich has an annual bonus opportunity
of 125% of salary and a maximum annual LTIP grant of 150% of salary.
For 2022, Rich's bonus opportunity has been pro-rated for his time in
employment and he received a reduced LTIP award upon joining with a
face value of 100% of base salary to reflect his joining part way thraugh
the financial year. His pension provision is aligned with the standard
UK. pension arrangement for the wider waorkforce in the UK, being an
emplayer contribution of 7.5% of salary

After the year end, on 17 October 2022, we were pleased to announce

the appointment of Jos Sclater as Chief Executive Officer with effect

from 16 January 2023 Jos' base salary has been set at £526,594 p.a. and

he will receive a UK workforce aligned pension centribution of 7.5%

of base salary. In line with the shareholder approved policy, Jos' bonus
opportunity will be 125% of base salary {pro-rated for time served in
2022/23) and he will be eligible for an LTIP grant of 175% of salary upon
joining. Jos has not forfeited anmy remuneration upon joining the Company
and therefore there has been no need to make a one-off buyout award.

Jos' base salary has been set based on the market rate for the role following
a comprehensive internal and external search. It reflects what was

required 1o recruit someone of Jos’ calibre and in setting his base salary,

the Remuneration Committee took into account his salary at his previous
employer and an appropriate premium for taking the role of Chief Executive
Officer. The Committee also took into account Paul McDonald's base salary
(£513,750) which took effect from 1 October 2027 and has set Jos base
salary by applying a 2.5% increase for 2022 which is a modest assessment of
current salary nflation. A 2.5% increase compares with a workforce increase
of between 5% and 8% of salary depending on position in the Company
from * Qctober 2022,

During the period between Paul McDonald stepping off the Board on

30 September 2022 and Jos Sclater joining in January 2023, 8ruce Thompsan
has taken the role of Executive Chair. Bruce agreed with the Remuneration
Committee that he would not receive any additional fees for acting as
Executive Chair and would continue to recelve his Chair's fee only. Bruce
will revert to his positicn as Chair of the Board following Jos Sclater's arnival
During the period of Bruce's appointment as Executive Chair, it was agreed
that he would step down as a member of the Remuneration Committee

How the policy will be applied in 2022/23

The Committee will seek to implement the Policy as follows.

Base salaries

Reflecting the inflationary environment, a range of salary increases will
apply across the business with the general workforce increase for 2022/23
being between 5% and 8% of salary, depending on position in the
Company. The Committee determined that Rich Cashin's increase would
be 2 5%, therefore increasing his salary from £350,000 to £358,750. As set
out above, Jos Sclater's base satary will be £526,594 p.a. when he joins the
business in January 2023, which is 2 5% higher than his predecessor's salary
which was last reviewed in October 2021,

Annual bonus

Consistent with the approved Policy, the maximurm annual bonus
opportunity will be 125% of salary, with 25% of any benus earned deferred
into shares for two years. The bonuses will be based on operating profit
{40%), a metnic based on cash generated by the business (20%), revenue
{20%) and strategic objectives (20%). The targets are commercially sensitive
but will be disclosed in full on a retrospective basis In next year's report,

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The Committee intends to grant LTIP awards to senior executives in

2023. As evidenced with the approach taken to last year's LTIP grant,

the Remuneration Committee considers the prevailing share price and
changes over time when determining the LTIP grant, Both Rich Cashin and
Jas Sciater are new recruits 1o the business and were not in office when
the Company experienced significant market volatility. Recognising this,
the Committee has determined that their LTIP grants will be set at 150%
and 175% of base salary respectively, which is in line with our policy. The
LTiP will be subject to two metrics - relative TSR and EPS growth,

Shareholder and employee views

Under the UK. Corporate Governance Code, we are required 1o establish
a mechanism for gathering the views of the workforce or all matters,
including pay Last year the Board agreed that the most effective way

of achieving this in our business with employees across six sites (five of
which are in the U.5) was to create a Global Employee Advisory Forum.
Topics of discussion this year have focused on the challenges of the cost of
living crisis and the plans we have developed to address it for our people.
In addition, we are conducting a remuneration review to ensure that our
pay practices are fair for all and competitive in the market. As part of this
work, our bonus schemes are being evaluated and the Global Employee
Advisory Forum will be consuited on the cutcomes of this work.

We have entered the final year of our Directors’ Remuneration Policy

and later th s year the Remureraticn Committee will consider the design
of a new policy to apply from the 2023/24 financial year. In this regard, | am
always happy ta hear from the Company's shareholders and if you would
like to provide feedback on our pay arrangements, ar if you have any
questions on this report or mare generally in relation to the Company’s
remuneration, you ¢an contact me via the Company Secretary.

Chloe Ponsonby
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

22 November 2022
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONITINUED

REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE

The key elements of Executive Directors' remuneration packages and our approach to implermentation in 2023 are summarised below

Salary
{annual base)

FIXED PAY

Remuneration 2022

CEQ (Paul McDonald). £513,750
CFO Nick Keveth): £359,625
CFO (Rich Cashin): £350,000

Remuneration 2023

CED: £526,594 (upon joining in
January 2023)
CFO: £358,750

A 7.5% of salary employer contribution

Performance measures: revenue (20%),

« 25% of the overall arnount deferred into

Performance measured over three years

Pension CEQ reduced to 7.5% of salary from 1 April 2022
CFC 7.5% of salary from the appointment of Rich  rate applies. This is aligned with the UK
Cashin as CFO (effective from 1 April 2022) warkforce cantribution rate
Benefits Includes car alfowance, private healthinsurance  Includes car allowance, private health
and life insurance insurance and life insurance
ANNUAL BONUS Maximum CEO: 125% of salary 125% of salary
opportunity CFOx 82.5% of salary each, reflecting Nick Keveth's )
retiremnent from the Board on 31 March 2022 CEQ s bonus pra rated for peniod as
and Rich Cashin's appointment on 1 April 2022 2 Director
Operation Performance measures: revenue (209),
operatng profit (40%), cash conversion (2044) operating profit {40%), a metric based
and strategic abjectives (209) on cash generated by the business
259 of the overall amount deferred into (20%) and strategic objectives (20%)
shares which vest after two years
Malus and clawback provisions apply shares which vest after two years
« Malus and clawback provisions apply
LONG-TERM Award level CEO: 125% of salary CEQ 175% of salary grant on appeintrment
CFQ (Nick Keveth) no award was granted
INCENTIVES CFO: 100% of salary, reflecting Rich Cashin CFO:150% of salary
joining partway through the financial year
Operation + Performance measures; relative TSR (50% of Perfarmance measures. relative TSR
award) and EPS with a ROCE underpin (50% of (50% of award} and EPS with a ROUCE
award) underpin (50% of award)
Performance measured over three years
+ Two-year additional halding pencd appliesto  + Two-year additional holding period
vested awards applies 1o vested awards
Malus and clawback provisions apply « Malus and clawback provisions apply
SHAREHOLDING In employment 200% of salary 200% of salary
Post-employment 200% of salary to be held for twa years 200% of salary to be held for two years
¥

post-employment

post-employment
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

This section of the report sets out aur Directors’ Rernuneration Policy
which was approved by shareholders at the AGM on 29 January 2021 and
took formal effect from that date.

Guiding policy
The Campany's quiding palicy on executive remuneration is that:

« executive remuneration packages should be clear and simple, taking
into account the linkage between pay and performance by both
rewarding effective management and making the enhancement of
shareholder value a critical success factor in the setting of incentives,
both in the shortand the long term;

the overall level of salary, incentives, pension and other benefits
should be competitive (But not excessive) when compared with other
companies of a similar size and global spread and should be sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors of superior calibre in
order 1o deliver long-term success; and

performance-related components should form z significant proportion
of the overall remuneration package, with maximum total potenual
rewards being earned through the achievement of challenging
performance targets based on measures that are linked 1o the
Company's KPls and 1o the best interests of sharehalders,

Considerations when determining remuneration policy
The Committee undertock a comprehensive review of the current
Directars’ Remuneration Policy during 2020 to ensure, prirmarily, that

it continues to: (1) suppart the strategy and promote the long-term
sustainable success of the Group; (i) align executive remuneration with
Company culture, purpase and values and clearly provide linkage to

the successful delivery of the Company’s long-term strategy; (il attract,
retain and mativate executive management of the quality required 1o
run the Company successfully twithout paying more than is necessary);
and {iv) have regard to the views of our shareholders and other
stakeholders and appropriately reflect the best practice expectations of
instituzional investars.

The UK. Corporate Governance Code has been a key touchstene and

we have been carefu! to take full account of the remuneration-related
provisions in our design considerations, With regard to how we have
sought to comply with the six factors outlined in Provision 40 of the Code,
for example, we believe the following are worth noting in particular:

« Clarity Qurremuneration framewaork is structured to support financial

delivery and the achievement of strategic objectives, aligning the
interests of Executive Directors with those of our shareholders. Qur
Policy is transparent and well understood by our senior executive team.
It has been clearly articulated to our sharehotders and representative
bodies {both on an ongoing basis and during consultation when
changes are being made).

Simplicity - Our remuneration framewark is straightforward to
communicate and operate. We have operated the same simple and
transparent overarching structure for many years and appliediton a
consistent basis across all employees,

Risk - Qur incentives have been structured to ensure that they are
aligned with the Board's system of risk management and sk appetite.
Inappropriate risk taking is discouraged and mitigated through, for
example: (i) the operation of arrangements that provide an appropriate
balance of fixed pay to short and long-term incentive pay and through
multipte performance measures based on & blend of financial, non-
financial and shareholder return targets; (i) the deferral of a proportion
of annual bonus into shares and the operation of a2 post-vesting holding
period for the LTIP; (iii) the operation of significant in-employment and
post-employment shareholding guidelines; and {iv) the operation of
robust recovery and withholding provisions.

Predictability — Our incentive plans are subject to individual caps,
with our share plans also subject to market standard dilution limits.
The Committee has full discretion to alter the pay-out leve| or vesting
outcome to ensure payments are appropriately aligned with the
underlying performance of the Company.

Propartionality ~ Ensuring Executive Directors are not rewarded for
faiture underscores our approach to remuneration {e.g. the significant
proportion of our packages is based on long-term performance targets
linked to the KPls of the Company, through our ability and openness

to the use of discretion to ensure appropriate outcomes, and through
the structure of our Executive Directors’ contracts). There is a clear link
batween individual awards, delivery of strategy and our long-term
performance. As mentioned above, formulaic incentive outcomes are
reviewed by the Committee and may be adjusted having consideration
to overall Group performance and wider workforce remuneration
policies and practices.

Alignment to culture - Our Pclicy is aligned to Aven Protection’s
culture and values. The Committee strives to instil a sustainable
performance and continuous improvement culture at the management
level that can cascade down throughout the Company. The Board sets
the framework of KPls against which we monitor the performance of
the Company and the Committee links the performance metrics of
our incentive arrangements to those KPls We are alsa keen to foster a
culture of share ownership throughout the Company and operate all-
employee share arrangements in pursuit of this objective.

Further details of the role of the Committee and its decision-making
process can be found in the Annual Report an Remuneration on page 97
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Policy table

The table below sets out the main components of the current Remuneration Policy for Directors, together with further information on how these aspects
of remuneration operate. The Remuneration Committee has discretion to amend remuneration and benefits to the extent described in the table and the
written sections that follow it

Element of
remuneration

Purpose and link
to strategy

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance targets

Basic salary

To provide competitive fixed

remuneration.

To attract and retain
Executive Directors of
superior calibre 1n order
to deliver long-term
business success

Reftects individual
experience and role

The Committee's aim is to
position salaries around
the mid-market level of
companies of a similar size,
scale and complexity.

Norrally reviewed annually by
the Rernuneration Committee
with increases typically effective
1 Cerober

Individual salary adjustmenits
take into account each Executive
Directer's role, competence

and performance. Significant
adjustments are infrequent and
normally reserved for material
changes in role, a significant
increase in the size/complexity of
the Group, or where an individual
has been appointed on a low
salary with an intention to bring
them 1o market levels over time
and subject to performance.

Other factors which will be taken
into account will include pay

and conditions elsewhere in the
Group, progression within the
role, and competitive salary levels
in companies of a broadly similar
size and complexity.

No prescribed maxirmum or
maximum increase.

The normal approach will be to
limitincreases to the average
level across the wider warkfaorce,
though increases above this

level may be awarded subject

to Committee discretion to take
account of certain circumstances,
such as those stated

under ‘Operation’.

On recruitment or promotion,
the Committee will consider
previous remuneration and pay
levels for comparable companics
(for example, companies of a
similar size and complexity,
industry sector or location),
when setting salary levels. This
may lead 1o salary being setata
lower or higher level than for the
previous Incumbent

Although there are no
formal performance
conditions, any increase
in base salary is only
implemented after
careful consideration of
individual contribution
and performance and
having due regard to
the factors set out in the
'Operation’ column of
this table.

Benefits

To provide competitive
fixed rernuneration.

To attract and retain
Executive Directors of
superior calibre in order
tc deliver lorg-term
business success.

Executive Directors are enutled
1o benefits such as travel-
related benefits including a
carar car allowance, medical
asSSESEMENTS EVEry two years,
private health insurance and life
assurance, Executives will be
eligible for any other benefits
which are intraduced for the
wider workforce on broadly
sirrilar rerms

Any reasonable business-related
expenses {and any tax thereon)
can be reimbursed if determined
to be a taxable benefit.

Executive Directars will be eligible

to participate in any all-employee
share plan operated by the
Company, on the same terms as
other eligible employees

For external and internal
appointments or relocations,
the Company may pay certain
relocation and/or incidental
expenses as appropriate,

As it is not possible to calculate in
advance the cost of all berefits, a
maximurm s not pre-determined.

The maximum level of
participation in all-employee
share plans is subject to the limits
impased by the relevant tax
authority from urme to time,

Net applicable,

90 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Element of

Purpose and link

remuneration to strategy Operation Maximum potential value Performance targets
Pension To reward sustained The Company funds contributions  Cormpany contribution up Not applicable,
contributions by providing to a Director’s pension as to 7.5% of salary from 1 April 2022.
retirement benefits, appropriate through contribution
1o the Company's money future appaintments to the
purchase scheme or through the Board will receive contributions
provision of salary supplements in line with the prevailing rate
ar a combination of these, offered to the general workforce
{currently 7.5% of salary in the UK)
in the country where they are
based at the time.
Policy amendment post approval
- The maximum employer
contribution level for all Executive
Directors from 1 October 2022 s
the workforce contribution level.
Annual bonus Rewards the achievement of  Bonus is based on performance in - Capped at 125% of salary. The Committee sets

annual financial and business
targets aligned with the
Group’s KPIs.

Maximum bonus only
payable for achieving
dermanding targets.

Deferred element
encourages long-term
shareholdings and
discourages excessive
risk takirg.

the refevant financial period. Any
payment is discretionary and will
be subject 1o the achievement of
stretching performance targets.

Bonus is normally paidin cash,
except 25% of any bonus which is
deferred into shares for two years.

Bonuses are not contractual
and are not eligible for
inclusion in the calculation of
PENSION arrangemenrts.

Recovery and withholding
provisicns apply in cases of
misconduct, corparate failure,
reputational damage, error

in calculation of a bonus and
material misstaterment of
finarcial results.

Dividends or dividend equivalents
may accrue on deferred shares.

performance measures
and targets that are
appropriately stretching
each year, taking into
account key strategic
and financial priorities
and ensuring there is
an appropriate balance
between incentivising
Executive Directors

to meet targets, while
ensuring they do not
drive unacceptable
levels of risk or
Inappropriate behaviours,

Financial measures will
normally determine &t
least 75% of the bonus
opportunity and the
balance may be based on
non-financial, strategic,
personal and/or ESG-
related objectives.

A graduated scale of
targets is normally set for
each measure, with no
pay-out for performance
below a threshold level
of performance.

The Committee has
discretion 1o amend
the pay-out should any
formulaic outcome not
reflect the Committee's
assessment of overall
business performance
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Policy table continued

Element of Purpose and link
remuneration to strategy Operation Maximum potential value Performance targets
Long Term Designed to align Executive  Awards of conditional shares or nit  Executive Directors may receive Performance measures
Incentive Directors’ interests with cost option awards which normally — an award of up to 175% of basic may include, and are not
Plan those of shareholders and vest after three years subject to salary per annum limited to, relative TSR,
to Incentivise the delivery the achievement of performance EPS, strategic measures
of sustainable earnings targets and continued service. The Committee will consider and ESG-related
growth and superior the prevailing share price when objectives,
shareholaer returns. Ar additional two-year holding deciding an the number of shares
period applies after the end of the o be awarded as part of any The Committee retains
three-year vesting period. Recovery  LTIP grant, discretion to set
and withhaolding provisions apoly alternative weightings or
in cases of misconduct, corparate A 10% N ten years dilution limit performance measures
failure, reputational damage, error 9OVEINIng the issue of new for awards over the life of
in calculation of award and material  shares to satisfy all share schemes  the policy.
misstatement of financial results.  operated by the Company
will apply. 100% of awards vest for
Dividend equivalents may be paid stretch performance,
for awards to the extent they vest. up to 20% of an award
vests for threshold
The Comimittee retains discretion performance and no
to adjust vesting levels in awards vest below this
.excepponm circumstances, Underpins may apply.
intcluding but not limited to
regard of the overall performance
of the Company or the grantee’s
personal performiance.
Share Ta increase alignment Executive Directors are required Executive Directors are required Not applicable.
ownership between Executives and to retain at [east 50% of their net to bulld up and maintain an in-
guidelines shareholders. of 1ax vested awards until the employment shareholding waorth

in-employment shareholding
guideline is met,

NIt cast options which have
vested but are yet to be exarcised
and deferred bonus awards
subject to a time condition only
may be considered ro count
towards the in-employment
shareholding on a notional
posttax basis

200% of salary (100% for ather
$eNI0r Management).

Executive Directors are normally
required to hold shares at a

level equal to the lower of their
shareholding at cessation and
200% of salary for two years post-
employment excluding shares
purchased with own funds and
any shares from share plan awards
made before the approval of

this policy).
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Element of Purpose and link
remuneration to strateqy Operation Maximum potential value Performance targets
Chair To provide compensationin  Fees are normally reviewed No prescribed maximum fee or Not applicable,
and Non- line with the demands of the  annually taking into account maximum fee increase
Executive roles at a level that attracts factors such as the time ) )
Directors’ high-calibre individuals and  commitment and contribution ‘”5’935?5 will be lnfqrmed by
§ reflects their experience of the role and market levels in taking inte account internal
ees benchmarks such as the salary

and benefits

and knowledge

companies of comparable size
and complexity.

The Chalr is paid an all-inclusive
fee for all Board responsibilities.

Fees for the other Non-Fxerutive
Directors may Include a base fee
and additional fees for further
responsibilities {for example,
chairship of Board Comrittees
or halding the office of Seniar
Independent Director),

The Company repays any
reasonable expenses that a
MNon-Executive Director incurs
in carrying out their duties as

a Director, including travel,
hospitality-related and other
modest benefits and any tax
liabilities thereon, if appropriate.

If there is a temporary yet materal
increase in the time commitments
for Non-Executive Directors, the
Board may pay extra fees ona

pro rata basis to recognise the
additional workload.

increase for the general workforce
and will have due regard 1o the
factors set out In the Operation’
colurmr of this table
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Hustration of the application of the Policy

The balance between fixed and variable ‘at risk’ elements of remuneration changes with performance. Our policy results in a significant proportion of
remuneration received by Executive Directors being dependent on perfarmance. The charts below illustrate how the Policy would function for minimum,

on target and maximum performance in 2022/23

Total fixed remuneration Anmual banus P Share price growth
£'000 CEO
£2,500 - - — - -
2,262
20%
£2,000
1,801
51% 1%
£1,500 -— S — —
1,107
£1,000 42%
26% 21%
£500 213 21%
100% 37% 23% 18%
0 - -~ - - -
Min Target Max WMax with
growth

Assumptions for the chart above

« Minimum: comnprises fixed pay for the year made up of base salary levels
(applying from 1 October 2022 for Rich Cashin and from appointment in
January 2023 for Jos Sclater), the value of pension at 7.5% of annual basic
salary and the estimated value of benefirs.

« On-target bonus achieved at 50% of the maximum opportunity, i.e.
62.5% of salary and with the on-target level of vesting under the LTIP
taken to be 50% of the face value of the award at grant, 1 e. 75% of salary.

Maximurn: full bonus achieved and LTIP vesting in full 1.e, 125% of salary
bonus pay-out and LTIP awards to the value of 150% of salary.

«+ Share price appreciation of 50% has been assurned for the LTIP awards
under the final ‘Max with growth’ scenario

« Amounts relating to all-employee share schemes have, for simplicity,
been excluded from the charts

Selection of performance measures and targets
Arnual bonus

The Executives annual bonus arrangements are focused on the
achievernent of the Company’s short and medium-term financial
ohjectives, with financial measures selected to closely align the
performance of the Executive Directors with the strategy of the business
and with shareholder vatue creation Where non-financial objectives are
set, these are chosen 10 support the delivery of the longer-term strategic
milestanes and which link to those KPIs of most relevance to each
Director's individual responsibilities

Details of the measures used for the annual bonus are given in this
Remuneration Report.
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1,653
16%
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39% 33%

891
30% 32% 27%

398 25%
100% 45% 29% 24%
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Long-Term Incentive Plan

The aim of the LTIF is to motivate Executive Directors and other senior
executives to achieve performance superior to the Company’s peers and
to maintain and increase earmings levels whilst at the same time ensuring
that it is not at the expense of longer-term shareholder returns, This 13
reflected in the LTIP's performance conditions which are based on relative
TSR and EPS growth,

The Committee will review the choice of perforrmance measures and the
appropriateness of the performance targets prior to each LTIP grant

The TSR measure takes the total return recetved by the Comparny's
shareholders in terms of share price growth and dividends over a
three-year period and compares it with the total returns received by
shareholders in companies within a predetermined and approprate
comparator group. The Remuneration Committee’s intention is 1o reward
only TSR performance which outperforms the comparator group.

The EPS rmeastire is based on growth in adjusted earnings per share
over the performance peniod The target range is a sliding scale set at
the time of award taking account of internal and external forecasts, to
encourage continuous improvernent and incentivise the delivery of
stretch performance, The Committes will also assess the Group's ROCE
performance when approving the vesting outcome under the EPS
efernent of awards.



Flexibility, discretion and judgement

The Remuneration Committee operates the annual bonus and LTIP
according to the rules of each respective plan which, consistent with
rarket practice, include discretion in a number of respects in relation to
the operation of each plan. Discretions include:

+ who participates in the plan, the quantum of an award and/cr payment
and the timing of awards and/or payments,

determining the extent of vesting;

« treatment of awards and/or payments on a change of cantrol or
restructuring of the Group;

« whether an Executive Director or a senior manager is a good/bad leaver
for incentive plan purpases and whether the proportion ul awards thal
vest do so at the time of leaving or at the narmal vesting date(s);

+ how and whether an award may be adjusted in certain circumstances
(e.g. for a rights issue, a corparate restructunng or special dividends);

what the weighting, measures and targets should be for the annual
bonus plan and LTIP awards from year 1o year;

+ the Committee also retains the ability, within the paolicy, if events occur
that cause It to determine that the conditions set in relation to an
annuat bonus plan or a granted LTIP award are no longer appropriate
or unable to fulfil their original intended purpose, 1o adjust targets and/
or set different measures or weightings for the applicable annual banus
plan and LTIP awards with, in the case of LTIP awards held by Executive
Directors, adjusted performance conditions being not matetially less
difficult to satisfy than the original conditions would have been but for
the relevant event(s); and

- the ability to override formulaic cutcomes in line with policy.

All assessments of performance are ultimately subject to the Committee’s
judgement and discretion is retained to adjust payrnents in appropriate
circurnstances as outlined in this Policy Any discretion exercised (and the
rationale) will be disclosed.

Legacy arrangements

For the avoidance of doubt, in approving this Remuneration Policy,
authority was given to the Company to honour any previous
commitments entered into with current or former Directors (such as
the payment of a pension or the unwinding of legacy share schemes ar
historical share awards granted before the approval of this policy} that
remadain outstanding.

Approach to recruitment remuneration

New Executive Directors will be offered a basic salary in line with the
Policy This will take into consideration a number of factars including
external market forces, the expertise, experience and calibre of the
individual and current level of pay. Where the Committee has set the
salary of a new appointmert at a discount to the market level initially until
proven, it may receive an uplift or a series of planned increases 1o bring
the salary to the appropriate market position over time For external and
internal appointments, the Committee may agree that the Company will
meet appropriate relocation and/ar incidental expenses as appropriate.

Annual bonus awards, LTIP awards and pension contributions would not
be in excess of the levels stated in the Policy.

Depending on the timing of the appointment, the Committee may deem
It appropriate to set different annual bonus performance conditions

for the first performance year of appointment. An LTIP award can be
made shortly following an appaintment fassuming the Company 1s not
in a close pericd). In the case of an internal appointment, any vartable
pay element awarded in respect of the prior role would be allowed to
pay out according to its terms, adjusted as relevant to take into account
the dppointment.

In addition, the Committee may offer additional cash and/or share-based
buyout awards when it considers these to he in the hest interests of the
Company {and therefore shareholders) to take account of remuneration
given up at the individual’s former employer. This includes the use

of awards rade under 9.4.2 of the Listing Rules Such awards would

be capped at a reasonable estimate of the value forgone and would
reflact, as far as possible, the delivery mechanism, time horizons and
whether performance requiremenits are attached to that remuneration.
Shareholders will be informed of any such payments at the time of
appointment and/or in the next published Annual Report.

For the appointment of a new Chair or Non-Executive Director, the
fee arrangement would be set in accordance with the approved
Rernuneration Policy

Service contracts, letters of appointment and policy on
payments for loss of office

Executive Directors

The Company’s palicy is that Executive Directors should normally be
employed under a contract which may be terminated by either the
Company or the Zxecutive Director giving no more thar 12 months’ notice.

The Company may terminate the contract with immediate effect with
or without cause by making a payment in lieu of notice by mantaly
instalments of salary and benefits, with reductions for any amounts
received from praviding services to others during this period. There are
no obligations to make payments beyond those disclosed elsewhere in
this report.

The Remuneration Committee strongly endorses the obligation on an
Executive Director to mitigate any loss on early termination and will seek
to reduce the amount payable on termination where it is apprapriate to
do so. The Committee will also take care to ensure that, while meeting its
contractual obligations, poor perfarmance is not rewarded. The Executive
Directers’ contracts contain early termination provisions consistent with
the Policy outlined above.

The Group may pay outplacermnent and professional legal fees incurred by
Executives in finalising their termination arrangements, where considered
appropriate, and may pay any statutory entitlements or settle compromise
claims in connection with a termination of employment, where considered
in the best interests of the Company. Outstanding savings/shares under
all-employee share plans would be transferred in accordance with the
termns of the plans.

A pro-rated bonus may be paid subject to performance, for the period of
active service only. Qutstanding share awards may vest In accordance with
the pravisions of the various schemne rules,

Under the Deferred Borius Plan, the default treatment is that any
outstanding awards will continue on the normal timetable, save for
farfeiture for serious misconduct. Clawback and malfus provisions will also
apply On a change of control, awards will generally vest on the date of a
change of control, unless the Committee permits (or requires] awards to
roll over into equivalent shares in the acquirer.

Under the LTIP, any outstanding awards will ordinarily lapse; however, in
‘good leaver’ cases the default treatment is that awards will vest subject to
the original performance candition and time pro-ration and the holding
period will normally cantinue to apply

For added flexibility, the rules allow for the Committee to decide not to
pro-rate (or pro-rate o a lesser extent) if it decides 1t is appropriate to do
s0, and to allow vesting to be triggered at the point of leaving by reference
to perfarmance to that date, rather than waiting until the end of the
performance period. On a change of control, any vesting of awards will be
subject to assessment of performance against the performance conditions
and normally be pro-rated.

Where a buy-out award 1s made under the Listing Rules then the leaver
provisions would be determined at the time of the award.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Service contracts, letters of appointment and policy on
payments for loss of office continued

Chair and Non-Executive Directors

All Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment rather than
service cantracts and are appointed on a rolling annual basis, which may
be terminated on giving three months' notice at any time by either party.

Chair and Non-Executive Director appointments are subject 1o Board
approval and election by shareholders at each Annual General Meeting.

All service contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection
at the Company’s registered office.

External appointments

The Company recognises that its Execurtive Directors may be invited to
become Non-Executive Directors of other companies Such Non-Executive
duties can broaden a Director's experience and knowledge which can
benefit Avon Protection. Subject to approval by the Board, Executive
Directors are allowed to accept Non-Executive appaintments, provided
that these appointments are not likely 1o lead to conflicts of interest,

and the Commmittee will consider its approach to the treatment of any

fees received by Executive Directors in respect of Non-Executive roles as
they arise,

Consideration of shareholder views

The Committee is committed to an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and welcomes feedback on Directors’ remuneration. The Committee seeks
to engage directly with major shareholders and their representative bodies
on changes to the Policy. The Committee also considers shareholder
feedback received in relation to the remuneration-related resolutions

each year following the AGM. This, plus any additional feedback received
from time to time {including any updates to sharehoiders’ remuneration
guidelines), 1s then considered as part of the Committee's annual review of
remuneration policy and its implementation

The policy approved by shareholders was subject to a comprehensive
consultation which elicited feedback from shareholders holding over 65%
of shares in issue, as well as from the main shareholder representative
bodies. This feedback belped shaped the policy which was approved by
shareholders in January 2021
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Consideration of employment conditions eisewhere
in the Group

The Committee closely monitors the pay and conditions of the wider
waorkforce and the design of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy is
inforred by the policy for employees across the Group,

While employees are not formally consulted on the design of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, the Board receives views through a Global Employee
Advisory Forum comprising representatives from our Culture Champion
nerwork Another way in which the Board engages with employees across
the Group an remuneration is through the Employee Opinion Survey,
which includes a section dedicated to pay and benefits. The results of this
are shared with the Board.

Differences in pay policy for Executive Directors
compared to employees more generally

As for the Executive Directors, general practice across the Group is

1o recruit employees at competitive market levels of remuneration,
incentives and benefits to attract and retain ernployees, accounting for
national and regional talent pools, When cansidering salary increases
for Directors, the Committee will take into account salary increases

and pay and employment conditions across the wider workforce, The
pension contribution for Executive Cirectars 1s cansistent with that for the
general workforce. 36% of employees are able to earn annual bonuses
for delivering exceptional performance, with corporate performance
measures aligned to those set for the Executive Directors All employees,
including the Executive Directars, have the opportunity to participate in
the tax-approved share incentive plans

There are some differences in the structure of the Remuneration Policy

for the Executive Directors compared to that for other employees

within the organisation, which the Committee believes are necessary to
reflect the differing levels of seniority and responsibility. At senior levels,
rermuneration is increasingly long term, and at risk” with an increased
emphasis on performance-related pay and share-based remuneration. This
ensures the remuneration of the Executives is aligned with both the leng-
term performance of the Company and the interests of shareholders.
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Role and composition of the Remuneration Committee
The Board is ultimately accountable for executive remuneration and
delegates this responsibility to the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible for developing and implementing
a remuneration policy that supporis the Group's strategy and for
determining the Executive Directars’ individual packages and terms

of service together with those of the other members of the Group
Executive management team. When setting the remuneration terms for
Executive Directors, the Committee reviews and has regard to workforce
rernuneration and related pelicies and takes close account of the UK.
Corporate Governance Code requirements for clarity, simplicity, risk
mitigation, predictability, propertionality and alignment to culture,

The Remuneration Caommittee's terms of reference are available on the
Company's website and include:

- determining and agreeing with the Board the policy for the
remuneration of the Company's Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chair and Company Secretary and such other members of the
senior management team as it chooses to consider or is designated to
consider {currently the Group Executive management team), having
regard to remuneration trends across the Groupy;

- putting in place a remuneration structure that supports strategy and
promotes long-term sustainable success — with executive remuneration
aligned to Company purpose and values and clearly hinked ta the
successful delivery of the Company’s long-term strategy - and
which attracts, retains and motivates executive management of the
quality required to run the Company successfully without paying
maro than 1§ necessary, having regard to views of sharcholders and
other stakeholders;

. reviewing the pay arrangements put in place for the broader workforce;

- within the terms of the agreed policy, determining the total individual
rermuneration package of each Executive Director including, where
appropriate, bonuses, incentive payments, share options and
pension arrangements;

- determining the targets for the performance-related bonus schemes for
the Executive Directors and the Group Executive management team;

- reviewing the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the
Board and shareholders;

for any such discretionary plans, determining each year whether awards
will be made, the overall amount of such awards, the individual awards
1o Executive Directors and the Group Executive management team {and
others) and the performance targets to be used; and

- agreeing termination arrangements for senior executives.

The Committee currently comprises Chloe Ponsonby {Chair), Bindi Fayle
and Victor Chavez. Bruce Thompson has stepped down from his role on
the Remuneration Committee during the period of his appointment as
Executive Chair from 1 October 2022,

By invitation of the Committee, meetings are also attended by the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary {who acts
as secretary to the Committee), who are consulted on matters discussed
by the Committee, unless those matters relate to their own remuneration.
Advice ar information is also sought directly from cther employees where
the Committee feels that such additional contributions will assist the
decision-making process

The Committee is authorised to take such internal and external advice as it
considers appropriate in connection with carrying aurt its duties, including
the appointment of its own external remuneration advisers. During the
period, the Committee was assisied in its work by FIT Remuneration
Consultants LLP. FIT was appointed in December 2012 and has provided
advice in relation to general remuneration matters and the review of the
remuneration policy, Fees paid to FIT in relation to advice provided to

the Committee during the current period were £51,170 {excluding VAT),
charged on a time/cost basis. FIT also provided advice to the Company

on technical share plan implementation matters but other than this did
not provide any other services to the Company. FIT is a member of the
Remuneration Consuitants Group and, as such, voluntarily operates under
the Code of Conduct in relation to executive remuneration consulting in
the UK. The Committee is satisfied that the advice it received from FIT was
objective and independent.

The Committee addressed the following main topics during the
financial period:

- reviewed guidance from investor bedies and institutional shareholders;

. reviewed and approved the remuneration packages for our current
Executive Directors;

- determined the termination arrangements for the departing Chief
Executive Officer and the terms of the incoming Chief Financial
Officer's package;

« approved the annual bonus outcarne for the 2021/22 financial perniod;

- reviewed and confirmed the vesting of the LTIP awards granted in
March 2019; and

» reviewed and approved the terms of the 2022 LTIP awards and
monitored the performance of the outstanding awards against their
performance targets.

since the end of the 2022 financial period, the Committee has:

+ determined the package for the incoming Chief Executive Officer;

« approved annual bonus outcormes to the Executive Directors and
the Executive Board, following completion of the external audit in
Neovernber 2022 and undertaken a final assessment of the TSR and EPS
performance conditions attached to the March 2020 LTIP awards (based
on performance to 1 Cctober 2022); and

« agreed the annual bonus structure for the 52 weeks ended
30 Septernber 2023,

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc 97

IONYNYIAOD



A

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

NNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Single total figure of remuneration for Directors for the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 (audited}
Directors’ single total figure of remuneration for the 52 weeks ended 1 Octaber 2022 was a5 follows:

Basic Fixed Variable
salary Other remuneration Annual remuneration Total
and fees Pension’  benefits* sub-total bonus LTIP2 sub-total remuneration
£'000 £°000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Current Executive Directors
Rich Cashin’ 2022 199 15 5 e 106 - 06 325
Eormer Executive Directors
PaulMcDonald 2022 sz 58 w  ses 285 - 285 873
o 201 500 75 16 59 - 228 228 BE
Nick Keveth 2022 1w 2 10 a7 99 - P 36 '
2621 350 51 16 47 - 158 7158 575
Non-Executive Directors
Bruce Thompson 2022 175 - - 175 - ‘_i_ - ?;
Chloe Ponsonoy 2022 es -~ 65 - - T e
o e - e -y
BindiFoyle 202 e - - & - - g
- om s - - s - - Ty
Victor Chavez 2022 50 - - Tse oo T s
R T T
I
e
DavidEvars® 2022 - - - T
R

Notes to total figure of remuneration table

1
2

4

3

Rich Casrin joined rhe Board on 31 March 2022

The TIP amaeurts for 2021 relate to the long-term incentve awara wricn was granted «r 2019 Tnese figares nave been updated frarm the pror cenod Remunerat on Recer: ra reflect e aczaal value
of wested shares usiry the share orice acteved or tne s esting dare an 20 Dece moer 2021 (£11 575, rather than rhe esiimateg value provided previously

Paul McDone'd and # cn Cashin we-e mempers of the Croup's money ourcnase scheme Contr butiors 20 the seheme wee £4x “or Rich and £4k for Paul Remnaining pens oncont” But ors we e paid as
asalary supolemant M ck Keveth's cartrioutions wee pa.d ennirely 33 a salary supo'ement

Banefits for 2022 incluce a Car 41 cwarce, the costaf private heallr msurance, o Lo liness cover end executive Med.od.

P.mervaat ard Dawvid Evars srepped off the 8oa+d on 29 Jarve-y 2027 and 2 Decamper 2020 respective ¥

Annual bonus for the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 (audited) '

Th

e annual bonus cpportunity for Executive Directors for 2022 was 125% of salary and this was based on targets relating to respiratory and head

protection revenue (20%), respiratory and head protection adjusted operating profit {40%), Group cash conversion (20%) and the achievernent of strategic
objectives (20%)

The targets applying 1o each measure and performance against them are set out in the table below:
Threshold Stretch Actual/ % Bonus payable
{0% payable) (100% payable) reported achievement (% of maximum)
Revenue (2G%) $250.0m $2750m §263.5m 616% 123%
Adjusted operating profit {(40%j) $310m 337.2m $23.4m - Q0% 00%
C;h conversion (ZW‘ - &0.0% - 100.0% E*MO 496 100.0% 20.0-g
Strategic objéct(ves {20%) Setoutin morre detail below T

Revenue for the year was $263.5 million which resulted in a partial pay out under this measure. Operating profit was below the threshold while the cash
conversion measure was achieved in full,
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Rich Cashin's objectives were half based on the scorecard of measures applying to Paul McDeonald and Nick Keveth and half based on objectives refating
to setthing into the role to reflect his joining partway through the year.

The strategic element of the bonus for 2022 was based on six broad categories with objectives assigned to each. The categories and achievements are set

outin the table below,

Head protection: Establish leading position
in head protection by Securing contracts and
approvals to support short and mediurn-term
growth of business

Partially met: Crders secured for some but not all contracts tendered.

Qutstanding orders for first generation Integrated Head Protection System {I[HPS) were compieted.
IHPS approvals were mostly completed and the first order was received ACH GEN I programme
tender completed and contract awarded but submission of FAT samples were delayed.

Respiratory protection: Maintain leading globat
pasition in respiratory protection

Partially met: Second year of order fulfiiment under the NSPA coritract, some of which went to Ukraine

Us DOD requirements met but long term M5C procurement strategy yet to be clarified.

Body and flat armor: Manage the orderly wind-
down of the armor business

Partially met: Wind down plan agreed and final crder quantities are being manufactured.
Sale options have been explored.

Operations: Upgrade cperationat capability to
significantly improve conversion of orders into
revenue on a consistent basis

Partially met: Progress in sales, inventory and operational planning and towards plans for
enhancing the helmet production footprint.

Organisation/overheads: Streamline organisation
1o better reflect strategic priorities and to establish a
sustainable level of overhead cost

Partially met: Overhead reductions well advanced but will not be delivered in full until body and
flat armor business is closed. Organisational structure review underway as part of strategy review
for consideration by new CEQ

ESG: Finalise the ESG policy, strategy and
implementation plan. agree with Board and

Partially met: Good progress made on defining the ESG policy but implementation plan requires
further development and not yet communicated to shareholders.

communicate to shareholders

Objectives within each of the categories were partially met which has resulted in a 60% pay out against the strategic scorecard.

509 of Rich Cashin's strategic objectives related to his overall performance since joining in March 2022 (with the other 50% based on delivery of the
objectives in the above 6 categories). The Committee determined that Rich's performance and contribution since joining has been strong, in particular the
leadership of the Executive Board and the wider business shown after it was announced that Paui McDaonald would be standing down as CEC . Therefare,
Rich was adjudged to have achieved an overall score of 80% against his strategic objectives (based on 60% achievement of the objectives set out sbove
and 100% achievermnent relating to his performance since joining}

The Committee believes bonus pay outs of 44 3% of maximum for both Paul McDanald and Nick Keveth and 48.3% of maximum for Rich Cashin are
reflective of the perfoermance of the business aver the 12 month period. They are also considered appropriate in context of the nil bonus pay out in the
prior period, and the nil vesting of the 2020 incentive award set out below,

Incentive awards vesting (audited)

Awards were granted on 17 March 2020 under the LTIP to the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and these are based on three-year
performance targets. Half of the award was subject to a relative TSR condition {measuring performance against the constituents of the FTSE All-Share
excluding investment trusts) and the other half was subject to EPS growth targets.

The TSR measurermnent period ended on 1 October 2022. The Company's TSR over this period was confirmed as {35.7)% which ranked the Company below
the median of the peer group and therefore this part of the award wilt lapse in the 2023 financial period. The Company delivered an adjusted basic EPS of
204c, which was below the threshold growth target. Therefore, this element of the award will also lapse.

Actual
Weighting Threshold Maximum performance % Vesting
TSR 50% Median Upper quartile Below median 0%
% TSR
Adjusted basic EPS 50% 133.5¢ 162.1¢ 204c¢ 0%
LTIP awards granted in the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 (audited)
The table below provides details of share awards made to Paul McDonald on 1 February 2022 and Rich Cashin on 8 March 2022:
Number of shares Face value of % vesting End of
Type of award Basis of award under award’ award (£'000) at threshold performance period
Paul McDgnald? Nil cost option 125% of salary 59,973 642 20% (TSR) 31 January 2025 {TSR)
0% (EPS) 30 September 2024 (EPS)
Rich Cashin® Nil cost option 100% of salary 32,686 350 20% (TSR) 31 January 2025 {T5R}
0% (EPS} 30 September 2024 (EPS)

1 Tre nurber of 3wards was sasea cna snare price ot £10.71 whien was tve Company s fve-cay average share arce cver 25 jaruary 202210 31 Jaruary 2022
2 PauiMcDona d's awars was pro-rated down to 19.9%1 when he stepped down “om the Board on 31 Septerizer 20622 The grant date face value of the remaiming 19,591 skares was £ 214k

3 RichCashin's awad upon & rirg was reduced to 100% of salary "o reflect hus ,0iring date of 7 March 2022

The Committee 100k INto account the prevailing share price at the time of grant and decided to reduce the Chief Executive Officer's grant level from 175%
of salary to 125% of salary to reflect the year-on-year fall in share price. The Chief Financial Officer's grant level was set at 100% of salary which reflected his
Joining part way through the financial year.
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LTIP awards granted in the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 {audited) continued
The performance conditions for this award will be measured over a three-year performarice periad and are as follows:

The first performance condition for 50% of the award compares the Company's total shareholder return (TSR) performance over the performance period
relative to a comparator group. The comparator group far the TSR element is the constituents of the FTSE 250 Index (excluding investment trusts) as at the
start of the performance period. No pertion of the TSR element may vest unless the Company’s TSR performance over the performance period at [east
equals the median TSR performance within the comparator group, for which 20% of the TSR element may vest, rising on a straight-line basis to full vesting
of the TSR element for upper quintile or better relative TSR performance

The secand performance condition for the other 50% of the award is based on the Campany’s adjusted basic earnings per share (EPS} over the three-year
performance period commencing on 1 October 2021, No portion of the EPS elerment may vest unless the adjusted EPS for the 2024 financial periad is

at least 100 U S, cents, for which 0% of the EPS element may vest, nising on a straight-line basis to full vesting of the EPS elernent for EPS of 140 U5, cents
or better. The EPS element of the awards is subject to a return on capital employed underpin in respect af which the Remuneration Committee retains
discretion to reduce the extent of vesting of the EPS element by regard to the Company's ROCE performance over the perfermance period.

The Remuneration Committee also retains a general discretion to reduce the extent of vesting of the awards generally if it considers that the underlying
business perfarmance of the Company does not justify vesting.

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests and position under shareholding guidelines (audited)
Beneficial interests of Directors, their families and trusts in ordinary shares of the Company at i Gctober 2022 were:

Number of Unvested shares
shares owned subject to Shareholding as a Shareholding
outright {including performance % of salary as at guidelines
connected persons) conditions? 1 October 2022 (200% of salary) met?
Paul McDonald 62,654 70,494 137% No
Rich Cashin 0 32,686 0% Mo
Nick Keveth 30,468° 28,237 N/A N/A
Bruce Thompson 11,000 - N/A N/A
Chloe Ponsonby 4550 - N/A N/A
Bindi Foyle 500 - N/A N/A
Victor Chavez 1,015 - N/A N/A
1 Thisfigure incluges 883 deferred bonus shaves
2 Unvesied LTIP shares
3 Number of shares owrest outrght by Mick Kever are sta*ed as at the date of »us et remert
Qutstanding LTIP awards {audited)
OQutstanding
Award held at Granted Vested Lapsed awards at

Award date 2 October 2021 in the period in the period in the period 1 October 2022

Paul Mchonald 01.02.22 - 592873 - {39.982) 19,991
B 02.62.21 28153 - 8,384) 18,769
170320 31,734 - ) - - 31.7?

o 20.03.19 38,599 - {19,299 {19,300) -
Nick Keveth 020227 19,707 - - (9,853) 9,854
o 17.03.20 22,059 - - (3.676) E;;
o Z0.0ST—_ 26,722 - (13,361) {13,361 -
Rich Cashin 08.03.22 - 32,6856 - - 32,686

The outstanding awards are subject to two performance criteria Half the awards are subect to a relative TSR measure and the other half are subject toan
EPS growth condition,

Total Directors’ remuneration for the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 under Schedule 5 (audited)

2022 2021

£'000 £000
Aggregate remuneration, excluding gains on exercise of share options - 1,864 1,375
;ggregate gqins on the exercise ofshTeopt—\or; i__f}&ﬁ 1,675
Aggregate contribution to defined contribution pensicn scheme - g 3]

I %a=san exerse of sha'@ Cpres arg srowr attre acTaad salue of vestea shaves o5 g ~~e westng dare a2 orce

During the period pensicn contributions were paid to defined contrbution schemes for two Directers (2021: one Director)
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Dilution

The Company reviews the awards of shares made under the all-employee and executive share plaps in terms of their effect on dilution himits in any rolling
ten-year period. In respect of the 5% and 10% limits recommended by the Investment Association, in the period of 10 years ending on 1 October 2022, we
issued 300,000 shares in 2013 to satisfy awards under all our share plans, which represents 0.99% of our issued ordinary share capital at 1 October 2022,

It rernains the Company's practice to use an Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) in order to meet its liability for shares awarded under the LTIP.

At 1 October 2022 there were 261,714 shares held in the ESOT which will either be used to satisfy awards granted under the LTIP to date, or in connection
with future awards, A hedging committee ensures that the ESOT holds sufficient shares to satisfy existing and future awards made under the LTIP by
buying shares in the market or recommending the Company issues new shares Shares held in the ESOT do naot receive dividends.

As at 1 October 2032, the market price of Avon Protection plc shares was £11.24 (2021: £19.42). During the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 the highest and
lowest daily ciosing market prices were £20.74 and £7.39 respectively.

Share Incentive Plan

The Cutnpany cutrently aperates the Avon Rubber p.l.c. Share Incentive Plan (5P}, approved by shareholders at the AGM in February 2012, All UK. tax
resident employees of the Company and its subsidiaries are entitled to participate. Under the SIP, participants purchase shares in the Company monthly
using deductions from their pre-tax pay. Paul McDonald and Rich Cashin were not members of the SIP in 2022, Nick Keveth was @ member and as at

30 September 2022 had purchased 534 shares through this scherne, On Nick’s retirement liom the Company he rerroved his SIP shates from the scheme.
The maximum contribution each month under the SIP is currently £150, a sum which is set by the Government

Payments to past Directors, including payments for loss of office (audited)

Nick Keveth

Nick Keveth retired from the Board and stepped down from his role as Chief Financial Officer on 31 March 2022, Nick received his salary and contractual
benefits {including pension allowance/contributions) up to the date he ceased employment, 31 March 2022 He did not receive a payment in lieu of notice
and he did not receive any payments by way of compensation for loss of office.

Nick will recelve 2 pro rata bonus for & months worked ar 44.3% of maximum and his cycle L LTIP award granted in 2020 will lapse based on performance
to 30 September 2022, As a goad leaver, Nick's deferred bonus awards will be released on the announcement of the Company’s 2022 annual results
subject to the rules of the plan. His outstanding unvested LTIP awards will vest on their narmal vesting dates subject to achieverment of performance
criteria and a time pro rata reduction. Any LTIP awards that do vest will have a two-year holding period.

Nick Keveth was a participant in the Aven Rubber Share Incentive Plan (SIP). On his retirement from the Company he was permitted to remove/sell all
shares from the SIP in accordance with the $iP rules and in line with all other employees, which follow legislation and HMRC guidance for tax advantaged
plans in the UX

Paul McDonald

Paul McDonald stepped down from the Board and Aven Protection on 30 September 2022. Paul will continue to receive bis salary and cortractual benefits
{including pension ailowance/contributions) up until the end of the contractual notice period on 31 May 2023, These payments in lieu of notice remain
subject to mitigation in the cvent Paul finds alternative employmment.

Paul will receive a full bonus at 44.3% of maximurn and his cycle L LTIP award granted in 2020 will lapse based on performance to 30 September 2022. Asa
good leaver, Paul’s deferred bonus awards will be released on the announcement of the Company's 2022 annual results subject ta the rules of the plan. His
outstanding urvested LTIP awards will vest on their normal vesting dates subject to achievement of performance criteria and a ime pro rata reduction.
Any LTIP awards that do vest will have a twa-year holding period.

Service contracts and letters of appointment
The table below summarises key detaits in respect of each Executive Director’s contract.

Company Executive

Contract date notice period notice period

Paul McDonald 14 February 2017 12 months 12 months
Rlick Kewveth - 9 May 2017 B 12 maonths 12 months
Rich Cashin o 6 January 2022 12 months 12 months

Bruce Thompsen was appointed as Executive Chair on 1 Qctober 2022, Given this was an interim appointment only, he was not given an Executive
contract of emplayment,

The date of each Non-Executive appointment is set out below, together with the date of their last re-election by shareholders.

Date of initial Date of
appointment last re-election

Chloe Ponsonby 1 March 2016 29 January 2021
Gruce Thompson ' ) I March 2020 28 January 2021
Bindi Fovle - B ) May 2020 29 January 2021
Victor Chavez B - 1 December 2020 29 January 2021

All service contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection at the Company's registered office.

Annual Keport and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection ple 101

AANYNYIAOD



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Other appointments
Rich Cashin is not currently appointed as & Non-Executive Director of any company outside the Group.

Total sharehoider return performance graph

The following graph illustrates the total return, in terms of share price growth and dividends on 2 notonal investment of £100 in the Company over the
last ten years relative to the FTSE 250 Index {(excluding investment trusts) and the FTSE All-Share Index {excluding investment trusts). These indices were
chosen by the Remuneration Comrmittee as a competitive indicator of general UK. market perfonmance for comnanies of a broadly similan size.

Total shareholder return performance graph
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Chief Executive Officer's remuneration
The total remuneration figures, including annual bonus and vested LTIP awards (shown as a percentage of the rmaximurm that could have been achieved),
for the Chief Executive Officer for each of the fast ten financial penods are shown 1n the table below.

Peter Slabbert retired an 30 September 215 Rob Rennie stood dawn from the Board and was replaced by Paul McDonald on 15 February 2017, Paul
McDonald stepped down as Crief Executive Officer on 30 Septembey 2022,

CEO single figure Annual bonus

of total pay-outagainst Long-term

remuneration maximum incentive

Financial period CEO £'000 opportunity vesting
2022 Paul McDonald 873 A4% 0%
'ZQZI Pau! McDona\dh - 819 - Oé;b 7 S0%
2_020 Paul McDonaWd ) ‘_7586 - 66% - 100%
2019 Paul McDon;ld - 928 7 55% 8007
2018 Paul McDonald ' ka4 80% ey
2017 Paul McDonald - 663 81% - 99%7
201/ Rob Rennie - 23 57% I
2016  RobRennie - 484 5w -
2015 Peter Slabbert 1676 91% 100@
2014 Peter Slabbert - - 1,525 ) 91% - 96%
5313 S Peter Slabbert - 1,289 - B6% - *IOO%-

1 IPC J@es remurerator rece waC © "R pennt Znor 12 b anpointment as irecisr 201
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Percentage change in remuneration of Directors compared with other employees

The following table shows the percentage change in each Executive and Non-Executive Director's remuneration compared with the average change fur
all ernployecs of the Company tor the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022. Changes for prior pericds are also shown which are building up over time to caver
a rolling five-year period.

Salary/fee Pension and other benefits Annual bonus

2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020 2022° 201 2020
Paul McDonald 2.8% 22.0% 5.1% (17.6)% 15, 2% 545% N/A (100.0)9% 257%
Nick Keveth - (;;6)% 22 8% ”5‘6% (44.8)% 13 6% 37.2% MN/A (100.0)% 26.4%
Rich Cashin N/A NAA NAA N/AA o NAA M/A o M/A MN/A N/A
Bruce Thampson’ 13.6% 5417% N/A N/A N/A N/A NA N N/
Chioe Pansonby (3.0)% 19.6_% 8.8% N/A N/A N/A . M/, MNAA NAA
Bindi Foyle* 5._3% 2353% N/A NZA N/A JN/A N/A B NAA N/,
Victor Chavez? i 19.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Pim Vervaat® N—/‘A (58.91% 0.0% N/A N/A NAA N/A ) N/A N/A
David Evans—"- N/A {82.91% 0.0% NAA N/A (100.01% NZA N/A N/,;\—
All employees® 33% 4. 7% 6.0% 3.9% 6.8% 6.9% N/A (100.0% 382%

Bruce Thompson was appointed ¢5 Chair on 2 December 2020
Bindi Foy'e was appeinted to the Board as Non-Executive Director with effect from 1 May 2020 ana ook over as Chair of the Audit Committes on 29 tanuary 2021
victor Chavez was appeented te the Buard with effect from 1 Secermber 2020,

2im Vervaat ard David Evans s1epped o'f the Board on 2% January 2021 and 2 Secemnber 2020 respectively

wooE W o —

As the only Avon Protecticn olc emoloyees are the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finanaal Officer, comearative figures for a | UK employees of tne Groug have been set out on a voluntary
pas.s, To aid companson, the group of employees selected are rthose fullime L K emoloyees who were ermployed over the comp'ete two-year pernod

6 12021 noe bonuses were payable to Directors or employees, mearing percentage cranges are not applicable for 2022

Chief Executive Officer to employee pay ratio
The table below sets out the ratic between the total pay of the Chief Executive Officer and the total pay of the employees at the 25th, 50th (median} and
75th percentiles of the UK. workforce.

Financial period Method 25th percentile Median 75th percentile
2022 A 3610 281 191
2021 A 361 291 201

*# The 2021 figare has been uadated from the “gure show last yaar to reflect the actual value of vested sha<es, rather than “He esnmated value used o caiculeee te frguras last year

The 25th, 50th and 75th percentiie ranked individuals have been identified using Option A in accordance with the reporting regulations, selected on the
basis that this provides the most robust and statistically accurate means of identifying the relevant employees. The day by reference to which the 25th,
50th and 75th percentile employees were determined was 1 October 2022. The Chief Executive Officer pay figure is the total remuneration figure as set
out in the single figure table and equivalent figures (on a full-time equivalent basis) have been calculated for the relevant 25th, 50th and 75th percentile
employees.

The total pay and benefits figures used to calculate the ratios for each of the 25th percentile, median and 75th percentile employees are set out below:

Financial period 25th percentile Median 75th percentile

2022 £24,460 £30,919 £46,882

The salary element for each of these figures is set out below:
Financial period 25th percentile Median 75th percentile

2022 £22,896 £28,828 £42,5%0

The Committes is satisfied that Chief Executive Officer remuneration is reasonable and consistent with the Company’s wider policies on employee pay,
reward and progression,; see page 96 for further details.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Relative importance of spend on pay

The following table shows the change in Group expenditure between the current and previous financial periods on remuneration and asseciated costs
for all employees globally, set against distributions to sharehalders and other uses of profit or cash flow, being profits retained within the business,
investments in research and development and other capital expenditure,

2022 2021
$m $m % change
Overall expenditure on pay {nate 6.1} 827 78.0 6.0%
Ei-\ndends‘_—_r S S 7 12.4 124 10.7%
Eretamed (loss for the per\rod less dividénds and share buyback) (33.4) ‘(3/—?) - " 4%_
h&D expenditure (including?azlmd development costs) - 10,9 121 {42.91%
Other capi-tal expendit-ure (exc\udirng capl[al'\séd development costs) - - 31 7 166 7 (81.3)%

Implementation of policy for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2023

Basic salary

Rich Cashin's base salary will be £358,750, an increase of 2.5%, The wider workforce incredse was between 5% and 8%, with the hourly paid warkforce
receiving 8%.

2022 2023
£ £
Jos Sclater - 526,594
Rich Cashin - ) - 3_’;0,000 35;3%)(
Jos Sclater will join the Board as Chief Executive Officer on 16 January 2023.
Non-Executive Director fees
There are no changes to Non-Executive Director fees
2022 2023
£ £
Chair 175,000 175,000
Non-Executive Director - - 50,600 SO.OOVCT
Committee Chair 7 10,0—00_ ——1M
-Se—mor Independent Director o T 10,000" ) 10,000°

T Thergisa max mdm sadit ona fee o £13,000 7 the Seror nedepencent Oirector alsa chairs o Comm Tieg

Benefits
Benefits remam unchanged and include a car allowanze, the cost of private nealth insutance, life nsurance, critical iness insurance and executive medical.

Pension
The Executive Directors receive a contribution towards pension of 7.5% of basic salary, paid either as a non-pensionable salary supplement or delivered
through the Group's money purchase scheme. This contribution rate isin line with the UK workforce rate,

Annual bonus
For the 2023 financial period, the maximum opportunity under the annual bonus plan will be 125% of base salary for both Executive Directors. 25% of the
total bonus payment will be deferred into shares for two years.

Boruses will be based on Group revenue (20%), Group eperating profit (40%}, a metric based on cash gererated by the business {20%) and the
achievernent of strategic olyjectives (20%). The actual targets are commercially sensitive and will be disclosed on a retrospective basis

2023 LTIP awards
The Cormnmittee expects to make LTIP awards to senior executives in 2023,

Itis expected that the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer will receive awards of 175% and 150% of salary each, respectvely. 50% of the
awards will be subject to & relative TSR conditian versus the constituent of the FTSE 250 excluding Imvestment Trusts and 50% will be subjectto an EPS
measure for financial penod 2025 The detalls of the targets and measures 10 be appliad will be commurnicated in the accompanying BNS when the LTIP
awards are made, The EPS element of the award is subject to a ROCE underpin in which the Reruneration Commitiee retains discretion to reduce the
extent of vesting of the EPS element by regasd to the Company’s ROCE perfarmarce or progress over the performance penod.
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Statement of shareholder voting on the Remuneration Report

The shareholder vote on the Remuneration Report for the 53 wecks ended 2 Cetober 2021 at the AGM which touk place on 28 January 2022 was

as follows'
Votes for Total {excluding
{including Votes against withheld and third
Resolution discretionary) % for {excluding withheld) % against party discretionary  Withheld
Approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report 22,486,438 99.16% 189,367 0.84% 22,675,799 8058

This Remuneration Report has been approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Chloe Ponsenby
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

22 November 2022
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DIRECTORS" REPORT

The Directors submit the Annual Report and audited financial statements
of Avon Protection plc (the Company’} and the Avon Protection group of
companies (the Group’) for the year ended 1 October 2022. The Company
is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in England and
Wales with company registration number 32965. The Company's subsidiary
undertakings, including those located outside the UK., are listed in note
7.3 of the financial statements.

Strategic Report

The Strategic Report, which contairs a review of the Group’s busiress
(including by reference to key performance indicators), a description of
the principat risks and uncertainties facing the Group, and commentary on
likely future developments is set out on pages 10 to 69 and is incorporated
into this Directars’ Report by reference

Financial results and dividend

The Group statutory loss for the period after taxation amounts 1o $76
million (2021: loss $25.6 million), Full detals are set out in the Consolidated
Staternent of Comprehensive Income an page 127,

Aninterim dividend of 14.3 U5 cents per share (converted to 11.88p) was
paid in respect of the year ended 30 September 2022 (2021: 10 34p).

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 30.6 US. cents per share,
which will be converted into GBP prior to payment to shareholders (2021
22.51p) resulting in a total dividend distribution per share for the year 10
30 Sepremnber 2022 of 44.9 LS cents per share (2021-44.9¢)

Share capital

The Company only has one class of share capital, which comprises
ordinary shares of £1 each. On 28 January 2022, the Company announced
a Share Buyback Programme, which cancluded on 13 April 2022 following
the purchase of 765,098 shares. The Board has no present intention of
purchasing further shares under the share Suyback Programme As at 22
November 2022 the Company has 30,258,194 shares In issue, with 765,098
held in treasury, and no shares were issued during the year. All shares
forming part of the erdinary share capital have the same rights and carry
one vote each. There are no unusual restrictions on the transfer of a share.
Further details of the shares in 1ssue during the financia! year are set outin
note 5.5 of the nancial statements

The full rights and obligations attaching to the Company’s shares as
well as the powers of Directors are set out in the Company’s Articles

of Association ('the Articles’), copies of which can be abtained from
Companies House or by writing to the Company Secretary. Shareholders
are entitled to receive the Company's reparts and accounts, 1o attend
and speak at general meetings, to exercise voting rights in person or by
appointing a proxy and (o receive a dividend where declared or paid
out of profits available for that purpose. There are no restrictions on the
transfer of issued shares or on the exercise of voting rights attached to
them, except where the Company has suspended their vouing rights

or prohibited their transfer following a failure to respond to a notice 1
shareholiders under section 743 of the Companies Act 2006, or where the
holder is precluded from transferring or voting by the Financial Services
Authorty's Listing Rules or the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers.

The 261,714 shares hetd in the name of the Employee Share Ownership
Trust are held as 3 hedge against awards previously made or to be made
pursuant to the Long-Term Incentive Plan and are held on terms which
provide voting rights ta the Trustee.

The Company 1s not aware of any agreements hetween its shareholders
which may restrict the transfer of their shares or the exercise of therr
voting rights, the anly exception 1o this being that the Trustees of the two
Employee Share Ownership Trusts have waived their rights 1o dividends

At the Company’s last AGM held on 28 January 2022, shareholders
authorised the Company to make market purchases of up to 3,102,329
of the Company’s issued ordinary shares. 765,098 shares were purchased
under this authonty duning the year A resolution will be put to
shareholders at the forthcoming AGM 1o renew this authorty
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The Directors require authority to aflot urissued share capital of the
Company and to disapply shareholders’ statutory pre-emption rights.
Such authorities were granted at the 2022 AGM and resolutions to renew
these authorities will be proposed at the 2023 AGM; see explanatory
notes on pages 173 to 174, No shares were allotted under this authority
durnng the ysar.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 1 Octeber 2022 the following shareholders held 3% or more of the
Company’s issued share capitai:

Alantra EQMC Asset Management SGIIC SA 10.43%
Kempeﬁ Capital Managernent Nv B 9‘67%_
Fidelity Management & Research Company 6.37%
Royal London aAsset Management Limited 3.83%
The Vanguard Group‘.;wc, 3.65%
Hargreaves Lansdown Stockbrokers 3.58%
Schroder Investment Management Limited 338%
Martin Currie Investment Management Limited 3.25%
Ancora Advisors LLC 3.25%

Significant agreements - change of control

The only significant agreements to which the Company is a party which
take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover bid are the Company's:

+ Revolving credit facility agreement
- Leng-Term Incentive Plan (‘the Plan’)

The unsecured revolving credit facility of $200 rmillion provided by Barclays
Bank PLC, Camerica Bank Inc,, Fifth Third Bank NA, National Westminster
Bank plc, CiC and Bank of Ireland contains a provision which, in the event
of a change of control of the Company, gives each lending bank the

right to cancel its commitments to the Cornpany and to declare all the
outstanding amounts and accrued interest owed t6 such lending bank
immediately due and payable )f a lending bank does not exercise this right
within 15 business days of being notified of the ¢hange of control, it shall
not be able to cancel its commitments or require repayment of its share

of the amounts outstanding under the facility in respect of such change
of cantrol.

A change of control will be deemed 1o have occurred if any person
or group of persons acting in concert {as defined in the City Code on
Takeovers and Mergers) gains direct or indirect control of the Company.

Under the rules of the Plan, on a takeover a proportion of each
outstanding grant will vest, The number of shares that vestis 1o be
determined by the Remuneration Committee, including by reference to
the extent to which the performance condition has been satisfied and the
number of months that have passed since the award was made

It is also possible that the trustee of the pension plan would seek 1o review
the current funding arrangements and deficit recovery plan as part of or
following a change of control, particularly if that resulted in a weakening of
the employer covenant

The Company does not have agreements with any Director of employee
that would provide campensarion far loss of office or employment
resulting from a change of control, exceptin relation to the Long Term
incentive Plan as described above,



Directors

The current Directors as at 22 Novemnber 2022 and their biographies are
shown on pages 74 and 75. Nick Keveth and Paul McDonald stepped down
from the Board on 31 March 2022 and 30 September 2022 respectively.
Rich Cashin was appainted Chief Financial Officer on 31 March 2027, Jos
Sclater will join the Board as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 16
January 2023

According to the Articles of Association, all Directors are subject to
election by shareholders at the first AGM following their appointment, and
10 re-election thereafter at intervals of no more than three years. In line
with best practice reflected in the UK. Corporate Gevernance Code, all
current Directors will be standing far re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM to be held on 27 January 2023,

The remuneration of the Directors including their respective shareholdings
in the Company is set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 86 to 105,

The Company's rules about the appointment and replacement of
Directors, together with the powers of Directors, are contained in the
Artictes. Changes to the Articles must be approved by special resolution of
the shareholders,

Directors’ and Officers’ indemnity insurance

In accordance with the Company’s Articles and subject to the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006 {'the Act’), the Company maintains, at its expense,
Directors’ and Officers’ insurance to provide cover in respect of legal action
againstits Directors. This was in force throughout the financial year and
remains in force as at the date of this report.

The Company’s Articles allow the Company to provide the Directors with
funds to cover the costs incurred in defending legal proceedings. The
Company is therefore treated as providing an indemnity for its Directors
and Company Secretary which is a gualifying third-party indemnity
provision for the purposes of the Act

Conflicts of interest

During the year no Director held any beneficial interest in any contract
significant to the Company’s business, other than a contract of
employment. The Company has procedures set out in the Articles for
managing conflicts of interest. Should a Director become aware that they,
or their connected parties, have an interest in an existing or prepased
transaction with the Group, they are required to notify the Board as soon
as reasonably practicable,

Research and development

The Group continues to utilise its technical and materials expertise to
remain at the forefront of innovative technology and produce specialist
products and services to maximise the performance and capabilities

of its customers, The Group maintains its inks to key universities in the
LS. and UK and continues to wark with new and existing customers
and suppliers to develop its knowledge and product range. Total Group
expenditure on research and development in the year was $10.9 million
(2021: 5191 million), further details of which are contained in the Strategic
Report an page 59.

Corporate governance

The Company's statement on corporate governance can be found in

the Corporate Governance Report on pages 76 to 79. The Corporate
Governance Report forms part of this Directors’ Report and is incorporated
intc it by cross-reference.

Stakeholder engagement

The Board factors stakeholder opinions and feedback inte its decisions to
ensure the impact on key stakeholders' needs and concerns is considered.
More information on how the Board engages with stakeholders can be
found in the Section 172 Statement on pages 38 to 41.

Employee share schemes and plans

The Group encourages its employees 1o share in the future success of the
Group and operates three share-based incentive plans. The Avon Rubber
Share Incentive Plan (SIP) 15 open to all eligible UK. employees. Under

the SIP participants are able to purchase shares in the Company manthly
using deductions from their pre-tax pay. The Avon Rubber Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) is open to all eligible U.S. employees. Under
the ESPP, participants are able to purchase shares in the Company ata
discounted rate from payroll deductions. The Avon Rubber Long-Term
incentive Plan (LTIP) is designed to align Executive Directors’ and senior
employees’ interests with those of shareholders and to incentivise the
delivery of sustainable earmings growth and superior shareholder returns.
Discretionary awards are granted under the LTIP over a fixed number of
shares by reference to salary, with awards ordinarily vesting, subject to
meeting performance criteria, on the third anniversary of the grant date.

Environmental and corporate social responsibility
Matters relating to environmental and corporate social responsibility
including reference to our policy on diversity are set out in the new
Sustainability Report on pages 42 to 55.

Greenhouse gas emissions
The disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions required by law are
included in the new Sustainability Report on page 49.

Political and charitable contributions

Na political contributions were made during the year or the prior year.
Contributions for charitable purpases amounted to $108,403 (2021
$45,132) consisting of numerous small donations to various community
charities in Wiltshire, Maryland, Michigan, New Hampshire, California,
Ohio and Kentucky, along with sponsorship of Bath Rugby's community
programmes,

Policy on employee disability

Avon Protection provides suppert, training and development
opportunities to all our employees imespective of any disabilities they may
have We give full and fair consideration to disabled apglicants, and where
an existing employee becormes disabled during their empioyment, we
will make every effort to enable them te continue their employment with
Avon Protection in their original or an alternative role,

Financial instruments

An explanation of the Group policies on the use of financial instruments
and financial risk management objectives is contained in note 54 of the
financial statements.

Independent auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors'
Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and each
Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director
to make themselves aware of any relevant auditinformaticn and to
establish that the Company's auditor is aware of thatinformation.

Auditor

KPMG LLP has expressed its willingness to continue in office as
independent auditor and a resolution to re-appoint It and authorising the
Board 1o agree its remuneration will be proposed at the AGM.

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s AGM will be held at our Hampton Park West facility,
Sermingron Road, Melksham, Wiltshire SN12 6NB, on 27 January 2023 at
10.30am Registration will be from 10.00am. The Nouce of the AGM and an
explanation of the resclutions 1o be put to the meeting are set out in the
Notice of Meeting and can be found an pages 172 to 176
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DIRECTQRS’ REPORT CONIINUED

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report and the financial statements

The Directors are respansible for preparing the Annual Report and the
Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with
appiicable law and regulations.

Company Yaw requires the DireCtors 1o prepare Group and Parent
Company financial statements for each financiat year. Under that law they
are required to prepare the Graup financial statements in [accordance with
UK. adopted International Accounting Standards.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr view of
the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of their profit or
loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company
financial statements, the Directors are reguired to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply therm consistently;

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant
and reliable,

+ for the Group financial staternents, state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with UK. adopted International
Accounting Standards;

« for the Parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable
UK. accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

-+ assess the Group and Parent Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gaing concern; and

- use the going concem basis of accounting unless they either intend to
liguidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative butto do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
thar are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company’s transactions
and disclase with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial postion
of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

They are responsibie far such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from materiat misstatermnent, whether due t fraud or error, and have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
otherirregularities

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for
preparing a Strateqic Report, Directors” Report, Directors’ Remuneration
Report and Corporate Governance Staternent that complies with that law
and those regulations. The Directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
Company’s website, Legisiation in the UK. governing the preparation

and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
ather junsdictions.

In accordance with Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule 41148, the
financial statements will form part of the annual financial report prepared
using the single electronic reparting format under the TD ESEF Regulation,
The Auditor's Report on these financial statements provides no assurance
over the ESEF format.
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Directors’ confirmations
Each of the Directars, whose names and functions are listed on pages 74
and 75, confirms that to the best of their knowledge:

- the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable
set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabitities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a2 whole,

the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of
the issuer and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken
as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face; and

+ the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whaole, 15 fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s position and performance,
business model and strategy.

The Directors’ Report and Responsibilities Statement were approved
by the Board of Directors on 22 Navember 2022 and are signed on its
behalf by

Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

22 November 2022



WHAT HAS ENCOURAGED ME TO WORK FOR AVON
PROTECTION FOR OVER 15 YEARS? IT WOULD HAVE
TO BE THE PEOPLE THAT SURROUND ME, | ENJOY
WORKING WITH AND HELPING OTHERS TO MEET
OUR TARGETS. | AM PROUD OF THE LIFE-SAVING
PRODUCTS WE MANUFACTURE, AND | STRIVE

TO ACHIEVE ZERO REJECTS.

Adam Freeland
Production Operator

ADJUSTED
PERFORMANCE
MEASURES
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ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

The Directors assess the operating performance of the Group based on adjusted measures of EBITDA, operating profit, net finance costs, taxation and
earnings per share, as well as other measures not defined under IFRS including orders received, closing order book, EBITDA margin, cash conversion,
return on capital employed, net debt excluding lease liabilities, and organic constant currency equivalents for relevant metrics These measures are
collectively described as Adjusted Performance Measures (APMs) in this Annual Report

The Directors believe that the APMs provide a useful camparison of business trends and performance. The APMs exclude exceptional items considered
unrelated to the underlying trading performance of the Group. The term adjusted is not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable with similarly
utled measures used by other companies.

The Group uses these measures for planning, budgeting and reporting purpases and for its internal assessment of the operational perfermance.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The following table summarises the staturory and adjusted profit and loss account measures for the period together with the adjustments made 1o each
line item.

52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 53 weeks ended 2 October 2021
Adjusted Adjustments Total Adjusted Adjustments Total
Sm Sm sm sm $m $m

Continuwing operations
Revenue 271.9 - 2719 248.3 - 2433
Cost of sales {192.1) 1.6} (193.7) (165 4} 4.0 (169.5)
Gross profit 79.8 {1.6) 78.2 829 (;H) 788
Selling and distribution costs " (26.0) - (26.0) 222 - 222)
G_e_n-.era\;d administrative expenses (43.7} (10.6) {54.3) (38_.7) {469} {85.6)
Operating profit/{loss) B 101 (12.-2-) {2.1) 220 (5100 (29.0)
EBITDA 255 (1.2) 24.3 376 8.0 46.6
Depreciation, emortisation and impairment (15:-4) {11.0) {26.4) (15.6) 7 (60.0} (796)
Operating profit/(loss) (nate 1) 7 101 (12.2) (.2.1) 220 (51.0} 290)
Net finance costs {note 2) 4.0 (2.4) (6.4) (3.1} (35) 6.6)
Profit/{loss) before taxation o 6.1 (14.6) (8.5) 189 (54.5) (35.6)
Taxation {(note 3) 0.1 2.8 29 - {0.3) 114 11
Profit/(loss) for the period from
continuing Operations 6.2 {11.8) (5.6) 186 431} (24.5)
Discontinued operations - loss ) ) 7
from discontinued cperat ans (note 4) - (2.0) (2.0) - an (.
Profit/{loss} for the period (note 5) 6.2 (13.8) (7.6) 186 44.2) {256)
Basic (loss)/earnings per share 20.4¢ (45.5¢) (25.1¢) 80.6¢C {144.1¢} (B3.5¢)
Diluted {[oss)/earnings per share 20.4¢ (45.5¢) {25.1¢) 60.6C {144.1¢) (83.5c)
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1 Adjustments to operating loss

Adjusted operating profit excludes exceptional items cansidered unrelated to the underlying trading performance of the Group. Transactions are classified
as exceptional where they relate to an event that falls outside of the underlying trading activities of the business and where individually, or in aggregate,
they have a material impact an the financial statements.

2022 2021
sm $m

Operating loss (2.1} (29.0}
Amortisation of acquired intangibles’ 6.8 14.2
Items related to armor L
Impairment of acquired intangibles h - 1.3
impairment of deve\;)—;;memt expenditure o ) 0-1: - 81
Ir"n_p;'a\rment of nght of use assets o - 11‘7\‘
Impairment of plant and machinery - 139
Impairment oflease;;d improverneants ) ‘ - 0
Inventary provisions ) 1.6 1.7
Release of contingmonsideratiom B (3.9) (15.7)
Transaction costs 0.6 -
Restructurir-wg costs o 1.3
Net (credit)/charge related to armor (0.2) 311
Restructuring costs (including $0.4m right of use asset impairment) 20 -
Impairment of non-current assets {excluding $0.4m right of use asset impairment) 3.6 -
Inventory fair value acquisition accounting adjustment - 24
Acquisition costs - - 26
Write down of brought forward capitalised cloud computing costs . 07
Other adjusting items 5.6 5.7
Adjusted operating profit 10.1 220
Depreciation 91 104
Other impairment charges 0.4 D4
Other amortisation charges 59 o 4.87
Adjusted EBITDA 25.5 376

1 Naoneof tne amartisaticn Charges for acquired ntarg:ble assets relats to the armar business following tne pniar per od imparrmen:s (2021 37 3 milign,

Amortisation of acquired intangibles
Amortisation charges for acquired intangible assets of $6.8 million (2021: $14.2 million) are considered exceptional as they do not change each period
based on underlying business trading and performance.

Itemns related to armor

On 12 Novemnber 2021 the Group announced the next generation VTP ESAPI body armor product had failed first article testing. This foliowed a similar
resultin Decermber 2020 for the legacy DLA ESAPI body armor product. It was also announced that the Group was experiencing further delays to
achieving final product approval for the DLA ESAPI product

The failure of the VTP ESAPI body armor product was considered an adjusting event that provided evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period. As such the Greup performed an impairment review of assets at 2 October 2021 removing all future revenue for VTP ESAPI body armaor.
The review also incorporated reduced revenue expectations for DLA ESAPI

The review resulted in total non-current asset impairments of $45.1 million in respect of assets relating to the armor business acquired from 3M as part of
the ballistic pratection acquisition. In addition, inventory provisions of $1.7 million were recagnised against VTP ESAPt armor materials.

Offsetting these charges, a gain of $15 7 miliion was recognised to reduce the net present value of the contingent consideration payable to 3M as a result
of the reduced revenue expectations from the DLA ESAPI body armor contract.

In 2022 revenue expectations from the DLA ESAP| body armor contract have further reduced, resulting in an additional gain of $3.9 million on release of
the remaining net present value of the contingent consideration payable. Offsetting this credit, inventory provisions of $1.6 million were recognised in
respect of raw materials held for the DLA ESAPI body armor contract. In addition, armor-specific development expenditure was impaired by $0.2 million
for a small number of reclassified assets (note 3.1).

The impairment charges, provisions and related release of contingent consideration resulted frorn changes in recaverable amounts and expected future
payments arising from assumptions of forecast trading. As such they are considered unrelated to trading performance.
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ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED

1 Adjustments to operating profit continued

Armor transaction costs

Transaction costs of $0.6 million (2021: $nil related to a potential sale of the armor business in the first half of 2022, This opportunity is no longer
considered (o be in the best interest of shareholders. These costs are considered exceptional as they are specific to the wind-down of the armor business
and do not form part of the underlying business trading and performance.

Restructuring costs

Restructuring costs related to the overhead reduction programme were $3.3 million (2021: $nil} These costs include a $0.4 milfion right of use

asset impairment relating to the closure of one of our U.S. offices and $0.2 million of professional fees relating to the strategic review of the armor
business. These costs are considered exceptional 25 they relate to a specific programme which does not form part of the underlying business trading
and performance

Impairment of non-current assets

Impairment reviews for the Group’s non-current sssets resulted in $3.6 million exceptional impairment losses {2021 $nif) as the carrying value of certain
cash-generating units exceeded estimated recoverable amounts. Further details are provided in note 3.1. The impairment losses are significant items
resulting from changes in assumptions for future recoverable armounts. As such they are cansidered unrelated o 2022 trading performance.

In the period the Group also recognised $0.4m other non-current asset impairments that were not considered exceptional on the basis of materiality
note 3.1).

Acquisition costs and accounting adjustments
These charges resulted from twa significant acquisitions by the Group, which are considered exceptional items as they are material and unrelated 1o the
underlying trading activities of the business:

- 2027 acquisition costs of $2 6 million relating to the acquisitions of Team Wendy and the 3M balistic protection business

Acquisition accounting adjustment of $2.4 millian to account for acquired inventory at the underlying historical cost before the fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition.

Write down of brought forward capitalised cloud computing costs

In 2021 $0.7 million brought forward capitalised costs relating to cloud computing arrang ements were written down. This followed updated guidance
fram the IFRS Interpretations Committee. The change in guidance was unrelated to the underlying trading performance of the Group; hence, the write
down was treated as exceptional. Costs associated with canfiguration and customisation of cloud computing arrangements after 26 September 2020 have
been expensed as incurred and included within adjusted performance measures,

2 Adjustments to net finance costs
Adjusted net finance costs exclude exceptional items considered unrelated to the underlying trading performance of the Group.

2022 2021
$m $m
MNet finance costs 6.4 6.6
Defined benefit pension unwm (1.3) {1.3)
EontTgént considerariommc_ﬁ* T S - (1.1) —;*(2,_3
Rdjusted netfinance costs - 4.0 21 '

- $1.3 million (2021: $1.3 million) unwind of discounting on the U.K. defined benefit pension scheme fiability 1s treated as exceptional given the scheme !
relates to employees employed prior to 31 January 2003 and was closed to future accrual of benefits on 1 October 2009 {note 6.2)

- $1.9 miltion (2621: $2 2 million} unwind of discounting an contingent consideration refated ta the acquisitran of the 3M Ballistic protection business

3 Adjustments to taxation
Adjustments to Taxation represent the tax effects of the adjustments to operating profit and net finance costs. Adjusting 1tems do not have significantly
different effective tax rates, with the overall effective rate of 19% (2021: 219%) approximating statutory rates applicable.

4 Loss from discontinued operations
The adjusted profit measures exclude the result from discontinued operations relatng to the divestrnent of milkrite | InterPuls.

During the peniod, the Group incurred a loss after tax of $2.0 million on these discontinued operations (2021 loss after tax of $1.1 million
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5 Adjustments to loss for the period

2022 201
Sm $m
Loss for the period (7.6) {256}
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 6.8 4.2
Impairments related to armor assets - 0.2 451
Armor inventory provisions -‘ A 1.6 17
Release of COwr;\'ngent consideration - (3A9)lw ST (15.7)
Dgﬁﬂed benefit pension unwind discoun?ﬁ 1.3 13
Eontimgent Consideration unwind discount 1.1 22
RESTFUCTUTir\gEJStS 33 S
\mpairme_r;nf of non-current assets o o 3.6 -
Transaction costs 0.6 -
Acquisitioné&s T 26
Inventory fair value acquisition accounting adjustment - 24
write down of braught forward capitatised cloud compﬁting costs - 0.7
Tax on exceptional items - {2.8) M4
[o?sl from discontinued operations 2.0 11
Adjusted profit for the period 6.2 186
6 Adjusted earnings per share
Weighted average number of shares 2022 2021
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue used in basic calculation (thousands) 30,308 30,669
Potentially dilutive shares fweighted average) {thousands) 221 189
Diluted number of ordinary shares (weighted average) {thousands) 30,529 30,858
2022 2021
Adjusted continuing earnings per share $ cents $ cents
Basic 20.4¢ 606
Diluted 20.4c¢ 5086
7 Netdebt
2022 201
$m $m
Cash and cash equivalents 9.5 141
Bank Ioans (53.7) (40.9)
Net debt excluding lease liabilities (44.2) (26.8)
Lease liabilities (23.8) (291
Net debtincluding lease liabilities (68.0) (559)
8 Adjusted dividend cover ratio
2022 2021
5 cents $ cents
Interim dividend 14.3 143
Final dividend - 306 306
Total dividend 449 449
Adjusted basi¢ earnings per share 204 60.6
Adjusted dividend cover ratio Q.5 times 1.3 umes )
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ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED

9 Cash conversion
Cash conversion excludes the impact of exceptional iterns from operating cash flows and EBITDA,

2022 2021

$m $m

Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional itemis 364 313

Adjusted EBITDA ' - T 255 178

Cash conversion 142.7% §3.2%

2022 2021

Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional items $m $m
Cash flows from conuinuing operations 34.8 2697

Resrrucr@ring COsts paidt - 1.0 -

Transaction costs paid 0.6 -

Acquisition and integration costs paid - 44

Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional items 36.4 313

10 Return on capital employed {(ROCE)
Return on capital employed (ROCE) is calcutated as adjusted operating profit over average capital employed. The following shows the ROCE calculations
and reconciling tables:

2022 2021

$m $m

Shareholders’ funds 210.5 2054
Current borroT’mgsqﬂ- 7 T 4.8‘_‘_ 75
Non-current liabilities e T 90.4 145;_
Capital employed 305.7 358.7

Average capital employed 332.2 3821
Ei)usted operating profit 7 - ) 10.1 ?&
Return on-cap\tah employed 3.0% 5.8%
2022 2021

Average capital employed $m sm
Current period capital emplayed 305.7 358.7
EDTIQI period cab‘wta\ emp\oyéd - - 358.7 4054
Average capital emp\o;/ed ) 332.2 382.1 )
2022 2021

Current borrowings $m Sm
Current barrowings 4.1 40
Eurrent provisions for labilities and charges - 07 35
Current borrowings for ROCE 48 75
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11 Organic constant currency reporting

Crganic constant currency measures remove the impact of acquisiions and changes in exchange rates, Constant currency measures are Catculated by

translating the prior peried at current period exchange rates.

The armor business transacts entirely in USD meaning there is no currency impact for this operating segment.

2022 20

$m 5m

{excluding {constant

Group acquisitions) currency)

Orders received 277.2 2817

Closing arder book 151.3 140.4

Revenue 2693 246.8

Adjusted EBITDA 2438 40.3

Adjusted operating profit 9.6 249

Adjusted profit before tax 5.6 219

Adjusted basic earnings per share 19.ic 70.5¢c

2022 2021

$m $m

(excluding (constant

Respiratory and head protection acquisitions) currency)

Orders received 265.0 280.0

Closing order book 1513 113.8

Revenue 260.9 240.3

Adjusted EBITDA 381 48.7

Adjusted operating profit 229 354

Adjusted profit before tax 19.1 327

Adjusted basic earnings per share 53.4¢C 99.8¢c

2022 2021

$m $m

{excluding [constant

U.K. & International acquisitions) currency)

Revenue 98.8 523
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ITIS A GREAT POINT OF PRIDE TO KNOW OUR
PRODUCT IS THE LAST LINE OF DEFENSE FOR OUR
WORLD’S MILITARIES AND FIRST RESPONDERS. AT
THE END OF THE DAY, WE HAVE TWO KEY STRENGTHS,
A PROOUCT EVERYONE BELIEVES IN AND A TEAM
THAT BELIEVES IN OUR PROOUCT.

Chandlar Gabara
Continuous Improvement Leader
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON PROTECTION PLC

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Avon Protection pie {"the
Company”) for the peried ended 1 October 2022 which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Comprekhensive Income, the Consolidated and
Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,
and the Consolidated and Parent Company Staterments of Changes in
Equity, and the related notes, including the accounting policies sections in
both the Group and Parent Company financial statements.

In our opinion:

+ the financial statemnents give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 1 October 2022 and of
the Group's loss far the period then ended;

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with
U.K -adopted international accounting standards;

- the Parent Company financial staternents have been properly prepared
in accordance with UK accounting standards including FRS 107
Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requiremnents of the Cormpanies Act 2006,

Overview

Basis far opinion

we conducted our audit in accordance with Internatianal Standards on
Auditing (U K 545 (UK and applicable law. Our responsibilities are
described below We belisve that the audit svidence we have obtained
is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion Is
consistent with our report to the Audit Committee.

We were first appointed as auditor by the sharehoiders on 1 February

2012, The period of total uninterrupted engagement is for the 4 financial
penods ended 1 October 2022 We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and we remain independent of the Group in accordance with, UK,
sthical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to iisted
public interest entities No non-audit services prohibited by that standard
were provided

Materiality: Group financial
statements as @ whole

S1.8 millign (2021: $1.5 million)
0.66% (2021: 0.6%) of revenue

Coverage

100% (2027: 100%) of Group revenue

Key audit matters
Recurring risks

2022 vs 2021

Recoverability of capitalised development expenditure

Parent Company

Recoverability of Parent Company's investment in subsidiaries
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material

misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements and
include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
{(whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which
had rhe greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement

team, We summarise below the key audit matrers, in decreasing order of
audit significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with
our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for
public interest entities, our results from those procedures. These matters
were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken,

in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in foerming our opinion thereon, and
consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do not pravide a
separate opinion on these matters.

The risk Our response
Recoverability of Subjective estimate: Qur proceduares included:
capitalised development - Withinthe capitalised development . . , ,
. ) . i - Historical comparison: We assessed the accuracy of the group’s
expenditure expenditure we identificd a number of ) ) .
) ) ) forecasting by comparing actual cash flows for products in the period
Included within capitalised praducts with a higher degree of risk arourd i
. o : to the prior period forecasts.
development expenditdre recaverability, including those whick have i .
of$21.1 million (2021, no prior track record of revenue and margin - Fora risk-based selection of products whereby judgements were made
$23.2 mrilliory generation, bave low headroom, and thase by the audit team in respect of said risk-rating, our procedures included:

awaiting regulatary approval
lmpairment charges of $2.0 gres yepe

million {2021: $0 3 millior)

intangible assets is supported by forecasting
Risk vs 2021: and discounting future cash flows (based
an assumptions such as discount rates and

Refer to page 83 (Audit
Committee Report), pages 133
and 135 {accounting poelicy)
and page 142, 143, 144, and
145 (firancial disclosures).

combined with the quartum of the

significant estimation uncertainty.

« Thecritical issue Is to establish whether there
is sufficient demand for the products which
generate these cash flows and whether the
praduct will meet the requirements of the
customer or required regulatory approval and
the timing of this approval, which is inherently
subjective as this irvalves an assessmert of

the probability of future cutcomes.

The effect of these mratters 1s that, as part of
our risk assessment, we determined that the
estimated recoverable amount of these assets
has a Figh degree of estimation uncertainty,
with a potential range of reasonable outcomes
greater than our materiality for the financal
staterents as a whole, and possitily many
times that amount. The financial statemerts
{page 143} disclose the sensitivity estimated

by the Group.

- The estimated recoverable amount of these

reverde growth rates), which are inherently
highly judgemertal. These urcertainties,

development costs balance for the higher risk
produgts, means that the recoverable amount
of these development costs |5 subject to

— QOur sector knowledge: We challenged the detailed forecasts
which support the estimated recoverable amount by reference to
discussions with project managers on the likelihood and timing of
wher rew products are expected to receive customer or regulatory
cleararce as compared to what was assumed in the forecasts and the
size of the potential market.

- Benchmarking assumptions: We compared the Group's
assamptions to externally derived data in relation to key inputs such
as revenue grawth rates and discount rates.

- Sensitivity analysis: We performed sensitivity aralysis to
determine if reasonably possible changes in discount rates, product
margins, ard growth rates would result in additicral impairments
beirg recognised.

- Assess transparency: We assessed whether the Group's disclosures
aboudt the sensitivity of the outcome of the impairment assessment to
changes in key assurmptions reflect the risks irherent in the estimation
of the recoverable amount of the developmen? costs.

We performed the tests above rather than seeking to rely on ary of
the Group’s contrals because the rature of the balance is such that we
would expect te abrain audit evidence primarily through the detailed
pracedures described. We performed an assessment of whether an
over/understaterrent of the recoveratnlity of capitalised development
expenditure idertufied through these procedures was material.

Our results

+ We fourd the developnment costs balance, and the related impairmert
charge 1o be acceptable (2021: We fourd the development costs
excluding armor business related costs balance, and the related
irpairment charge to be acceptable).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON PROTECTION PLC CONTINUED

2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement continued

Therisk

Qur response

Recoverability of Parent
Company’s investments
in subsidiaries

(£191.0 million;

2021 £191.0 million)

Low risk, high value

The carrying amount of the Parert Corrpary’s
irvestments in sabsidiaries represents 95%
{2021: 93%) of the Company’s total assets.

Their recoverahbility is not at a high nisk of
significart misstaternent or subject to significant
fudgemert. However, due to their materiality

in the context of the Farent Company financial
staternents, this is considered to be the area that
had the greatest effect on our overall Parent
Company audit.

Risk vs 2021

Refer to page 167 (accounting
pohcy) ard page 168 (financial
disclosuares)

Our procedures included:

- Tests of detail: Conmparing the carrying amaunt of 100% of irvestnents
with the relevant subsidiaries’ draft balance sheet to identify whether
their net assets, being an approximation of ther mirimum recoverable
amount, were In excess of their Carrying arrount and assessing whetrer
those subs:daries have histoncally been profit-making

- Assessing subsidiary audits: Assessing the work performed by the
subsidiary audit tearn ard the group team on all of those subsidianes
and considenng the results of that work, on those subsidiaries’ profits
and net assets

we perforrred the tests above rather thar seeking to rely on any of the
Company's contrals because the nature of the balance is such that we
would expect to obtain audit evidence primanly through the detailed
procedures descnbed,

Qurresults
we found the Company's conclusion that there is no im pairment of its
investrierts in subsidiaries to be acceptable (2021 acceptable).

Impairment of armor business related assets and Business Combinations were identified as event-driven key audit matters in 2021, There has not been any
equivalent activity of similar magnitude in the current perod and therefore we have not separately identfied thess areas in our report this period.

3. Qur application of materiality and an overview of the
scope of our audit

Materiakity for the Group financial staternents as a whole was setat $18
million (2021, 51.5 million), determined with reference to a benchmark

of total revenue, of which it represents 0.66% {2021: 0 6% of revenue).

We consider total revenue to be the most appropriate benchmark as

it provides a mare stable measure period on period than group loss
before tax.

Materiality for the Parent Campany financial statements as a whale was set
at £1.0 million (2021, £0.8 million), which is the component matenality for
the Parent Company determined by the group audit engagement team.
This is lower than the materiality we would atherwise have determined
with reference to a benchmark of Parent Cornpany total assets, of which it
represents 0.5% (2021: 0.4%).

In line with our audit methodology, our procedures an individual

account balances and disclosures were performed to a lower threshokd,
performance materiality, 50 as 10 reduce 1o an acceptable level the risk that
individually immaterial misstatements in individual account balances add
up to a material amount across the financial statements as a whale,

Performance materiality was set at 65% (2021; 65%) of materiality for the
Group financial statements as a whole, which equates ta 5117 million
(2021: $0.975 million). We applied this percentage 1n our determination of
performance materiality based an the level of identified misstatemenits
and control deficiencies dunng the prior period.
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Performance materiality was set at 75% {2021: 75%) of materiality for

the Parent Company financial statements as a whole which equates

to £0.75 million (2021 £0.6 miltion). We applied this percentage in our
determination of performance materiality because we did not identify any
factors indicanng an elevated level of risk,

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected
\dentified misstaternents exceeding 590,000 (2027: 575,000), in addition

to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on

qualitative grounds.

Of the Group's eight (2021: eight) reporting components, we subjected
five (2021 five) to full scope audits for group purposes and one (2021: one)
to specified risk-focused audit procedures over cash & cash equivalents
(2021: cash & cash equivalents). The latter was not individually financially
significant enough to reguire a full scope audit for group purposes, but did
present specific individual risks that needed to be addressed.

The compenents within the scope of our work accounted for the
percentages illustrated below. For the residual two components, we
performed analysis at an aggregated group level to re-examine our
assessment that there were no significant risks of material misstatement.



3. Our application of materiality and an overview of the
scope of our audit continued

The Group team instructed component auditors as to the significant
areas 1o be covered, including the relevant risks detailed above and

the information to be reported back. The Group team approved the
component materialities, which ranged from $0.15 million to $1.35 million
{2021: $0.15 million to $1.1 million), having regard to the mix of size and
risk profile of the Group across the cormnponents The work on one of

the components (2021: one of the components) included procedures
performed by component auditors and the rest, including the audit of the
Parent Company, was performed solely by the Group team The Group
tearn visited 5 (2021: 5 virtually visited) component locations in the LK.
and U.S,, to assess the audit risk and strategy. In the prior year in person
visits to component locations were prevented by movement restrictions
relating to the COVID-19 pandemic. Video and telephone conference
meetings were aiso held with the component auditors during which the
findings reported to the Group team were discussed in more detall, and
any further work required by the Group team was then performed by the
component auditor,

Revenue
$271.9m (2021: $248m revenue)

Revenue

$271.9m

Total
revenue

Group revenue

100%

(2021 100%%) (2021 1

100
100

Fuli scope for Group audi: purposes 2022
Szechied ns<-focused audit procedures 3022
Full scope for Croup aud't purooses 2021
Soecified nsk-focused audit procedures 2021
Sesiduzl components

Group
materiality

Group loss (2021: loss) before tax

100%

00%") {2021 100%*}

The scope of the audit work performed was predominately substantive
as we placed limitea reliance Lpor the Group's internal contral over
financial reporting.

4. The impact of climate change on our audit

In planning our audit we have considered the potential
impacts of climate change on the Group's business and
its financial statements. With the support of our climate
professionals we performed a risk assessment of the
impact of climate change on the financial statements
and our audit approach.

Climate change impacts the Groug in a variety of ways including the
impact of climate risk on manufacturing and procurement, potential
reputational nsk associated with the Group’s delivery of its clirate related
initiatives, and greater emphasis on climate related narrative and disclosure
in the annual report. The Group's exposure to climate change is primarily
through the acquisition of materials in its supply chain and increased costs
in relation to manufacturing end products.

Group materiality
$1.8m (2021: $1.5m)

$1.8m
Whole financial statements rnateriality
{2021: £1.5m)

$1.17m
Whole financial statements performance
materfality (2021: 50.975m)

$1.35m
Range of materiality at six components
{50 15m-5$1.25m) (2021: 50.15m to $1.1m)

$0.09m
Misstatements reported to the Audit Cormnmittee
(2021: $0.75m}

Group total assets

2
3

100%

97
)

Ir 2022 are 2021, duait coverage sca cudted an the above medsares to incluge all operaticns classed as
contiruirg or d scontirued
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON PROTECTION PLC CONTINUED

4. The impact of climate change on our audit continued
As part of our audit we have made enquiries of
management to understand the extent of the potential
impact of climate change risk on the Group’s financial
statements and the Group’s preparedness for this.

We have also read the Group's and the Parent Company's disclosure of
climate related information in the front half of the annual report as set aut
on pages 54 to 55. On the basis of the procedures performed above, we
concluded that the risk of climate change was not significant when we
cansidered the nature of the assets and relevant contractual terms. As a
result, there was no material impact from this on our key sudit matters.

We have not been engaged to provide assurance over the accuracy of
these disctasures.

5. Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going
concern basis as they do notintend to liquidate the Group or the Company
or to cease their operations, and as they have concluded that the Group's
and the Company’s tinancial position means that this is realistic. They have
also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have
cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern

for atleast a year from the date of approval of the financial szatemen:s
{"the going concern peried™.

We used our knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the general
econamic environment to identify the inherent risks 1o its business model
and analysed how those risks might affect the Graup’s and Company's
financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going
concern period, The risks that we considered most tikely to adversely
affect the Group's and Company's available financial resources and metrics
refevant to debt covenants over this period were:

= inflationary pressures on the Group’s cost base;
- the managed exit fror the armar business;
- dependence on a large customer or market; and

« disruption to the Group's supply chain;

we considered whether these risks could plausibly affect the liguidity or
covenant compliance in the going concern period by assessing the degree
of downside assumption that, individually and collectively, could resultin a
liguidity issue, taking into account the Group's current and prajected cash
and facilities (a reverse stress test),

Our pracedures also included:

- Comparing past budgets to actual results to assess the Directors” track
record of budgeting accurately.

- Inspecting the confirmatan from the tender of the level of cammitted
financing including re-financing of existing facilities, and the associated
covenant reguirements,

- We assessed the completeness of the going concern disclosure,
Our conclusions based cn this wark:

- We consider that the Directors’ use of the gaing concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropnate;

We have not identified, and concur with the Direcrors’ assessment that
there 1s not, a material uncertainty related to events or conditions that,
individually or callectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's
or Cormpany’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going
concern period;

We have nothing matenal to add or draw attention to in relation to the
Direcrors' statement on page 131 1o the financial statements on the use
of the going concern basis of accounting with no material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt over the Group and Company's use

of that basis far the going concern pertod, and we found the going
concern disclosure on page 131 ta be acceptable; and
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« The related statement under the Listing Rules set out on page
79 is mateniatly consistent with the financial statements and our
audit knowledoe.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as
subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with
judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above
conchusions are not a guarantee that the Group or the Company will
continue in operation.

6. Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations -

ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement
due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud ("fraud risks"y we
assessed events or conditions that could indicate an incentive or pressure
to cammit fraud or provide an opportunity w commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

Enquiring of Directors, the Audit Committee, internal audit and
nspection of policy documentation as te the Group's high-level policies
and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the internal

audit function, and the Group’s channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as
whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

+ Reading Board and Audit Cormmittee minutes

Considering remuneration incentive schiemes (annual bonus scheme &
performance share plan) and performance targets for management and
directors including the total shareholder return target and EPS target for
rmanagement remuneration

+ Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or
unexpected relationships.

We communicated idenufied fraud risks throughout the audit team and
remained alert 1o any indications of fraud throughout the sudit. This
included communication from the group to the component audit team of
relevant fraud risks identified at the Group level and request to component
audit teams to report to the Group audit team any instances of fraud that
could give rise to a material misstaternent at the Group level,

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possibie
pressures ta meet profit targets and our overall knowledge of the control
environment, we perform procedures 1o address the risk of management
overrde of controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in
particular the risk that revenue is recorded in the wrong pericd and the risk
that Group and component management may be In a position to make
inappropriate acCounting entries

We also 1dentified a fraud risk related to inappropriate capitalisation
of development costs in response to possible pressures to meet
profit targers

We also performed procedures including:

- Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test for all full scope
components based on nisk criteria and comparing the identified entries
to supportng documentation These included those posted to unusual
of unexpected accounts.

- Forasample of capiialised developmeant costs, assessing whether
the costs had been capitalised against the correct project, measured
corractly, and were eligible for capitalisation,

- For a sample of invoices raised around the period end date, assessing
whether reveriue had been recagnised n the approprate period by
comparing to dispatch notes or terms of specific sale agreements

- Assessing sigrificant accounting estumates for bias



Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement
due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be
expected to have a material effect on the financial statements from our
general commerdial and sector experience and through discussion with
the Directors {as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of
the Group's requlatory and legal correspendence and discussed with the
Directors the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws
and regulations.

As the Group is regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining
an understanding of the control environment including the entity's
procedures for complying with regulatory requirements. We
communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team
and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance throughaout
the audit. The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the
financial statements varies considerably. This included communication
from the Group audit team to camponent audit teams of relevant
laws and regulations identified at the Group tevel, and a request fer
component auditors to report to the Group audit team any instances
of non-compliance with laws and reqgulations that could give rise to 8
material misstatement at the Group level

Firstly, the Group Is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the
financial statements including financial reporting legislation {including
related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation, taxation
legislation, and pensions regulation and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on
the related financial staterment items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations where
the consequences of non-compliance could have a material effect on
amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, forinstance through
the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas

as those most likely to have such an effect: export control legislation
recognising the Governmental nature of many of the group's customers,
product regulation, health and safety, emplayment law, environmental
legislation, recognising the nature of the Group's activities. Auditing
standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance
with these [aws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and inspection
of requlatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore if a breach of
operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant
correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches
of law or regulation

Qwing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable

risk that we may not have detected some material misstatements in

the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and
performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example,
the further remaoved non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely
the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards would
identify it,

tn addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of
non-detection of fraud, a5 these may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional
amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controis. Our
audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are
not responsiple for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannat be
expected to detect non-compliance with ail laws and regulations.

7. We have nothing to report on the other information
in the Annual Report

The Directors are responsible for the other information presented in
the Annual Report together with the financial statements. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the otherinformation and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in deing sc,
consider whether, based on aur financial statements audit work, the
information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial staternents or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we
have not identified raterial misstaternents in the other information.

Strategic report and Directors’ report
Based solely on our work on the other information:

- we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report
and the Directors' report;

+ in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial
period is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006.

Directors” Remuneration Report

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 1o
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and

longer-term viability

We are required to perform procedures to identify whether there is a
material inconsistency between the Directors' disclosures in respect of
emerging and principal risks and the viability statement, and the financial
statements and our audit knowledge

Based on those procedures, we have nothing material to add or draw
attention to in relation to:

» the Directors’ confirmation within the Viability Staterent on page /79
that they have carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and
principal risks facing the Greup, including those that would threaten its
business modet, future performance, solvency and liquidity;

- the Principal risks disclosures describing these nisks and how emerging
risks are identified, and explaining how they are being managed and
mitigated; and

+ the Directors’ explanation in the Yiability Statement of how they have
assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they have done
so and why they considered that period to be appropriate, and their
staternent as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the
Group will be able to continue in ocperation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the pericd of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary gualifications
0r assumptions.

We are also required to review Viability Statement, set out on page

79 under the Listing Rules. Based on the above pracedures, we have
concluded that the above disclosures are materially consistent with the
financial statements and our audit knowledge.

Our work is limited to assessing these matters in the context of only the
knowledge acquired during our financial statements audit. As we cannot
predict all future events or conditions and as subseguent events may result
in outcornes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonabfe
at the time they were made, the absence of anything to report on these
staternents is not a guarantee as to the Group's and Company's longer-
term viabllity.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform pracedures to identify whether there is a
material iInconsistency between the directors’ corporate governance
disclosures and the financial staterments and our audit knowledge.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON PROTECTION PLC CONTINUED

7. We have nothing to repert on the other information
in the Annual Report continued

Corporate governance disclosures continued

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that each of the
following is materially consistent with the financial statements and our
audit knowledge:

the Directors' statement that they consider that the annual report

and financial statements taken as a whote is fair, balanced and
understandable, and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance, business
model and strategy;

«+ rthe section of the annual report describing the work of the Audit
Committee, including the significant issues that the audit committee
considered in relation to the financial statements, and how these issues
were addressed; and

the section of the annual report that descrities the review of
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
controf systems

We are required to review the part of the Corporate Governance Statement
relatung 1o the Group's compliance with the provisions of the UK.
Corporate Governance Cade specified by the Listing Rules for our review.
We have nothing to report in this respect,

8. We have nothing to report on the other matters on
which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are requirad 1o report to you if,

in our opinon:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

the Parent Campany financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of Directars’ remuneration specified by law are
not made; or

+ we have not received all the informarion and expianations we require
for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects,

9. Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained maore fully in their statement set out on page 108, the
Directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial staternents
including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal
contral as they determine 1s necessary 1o enable the preparation of
financial staternents that are free from material misstaternent, whether
due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and Parent Company’s ability ta
continue as 2 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liGuidate the Group or the Parent Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistc alternative but to do so
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Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstaternent,
whether due to fraud or errar, and to 1ssue our opinion in an auditor’s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (U.K) will
always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material i, indivictually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements,

A fuller description of our respansibilities is provided on the FRC's website
at www frc arguk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The Company is required to include these financial statements in an
annual financial report prepared using the single electronic reporting
format specified in the TD ESEF Regulation. This auditor’s report provides
no assurance over whether the annua! financial report has been prepared
In accordance with that format,

10. The purpose of our audit werk and to whom we owe
our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
mermbers thase matters we are required 1o state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpase. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility 1o anyone other than the Company
and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for thus report,
or for the opinions we have formed.

Andrew Campbell-Orde {Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditar
Chartered Accauntarts, 66 Queen Square, Bristol, BS1 4BE

22 November 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

10ctober 2022' 2 October 2021"

Note $m $m
Continuing operations
Revenue - 21 271.9 2423
Cost of sales {193.7] (169 5}
Gross profit 78.2 78.8
Selling and distribution costs (26.0) (22.2)
General and administrative e);benges (54.3) - (85.6)
Operating loss 21 (2.1)7” B {29.0)
Net finance costs o 7 5.2 6.4) (6.6)
[;:s; before taxation 25 8.5) (35.6)
Taxation 26 29 111
Loss fc;rthe period from continuing operations 7 (5.6) (24.5)
Discontinued operations o N
[(;ss from discontinued operations - 2.2 (2.0 an
Loss for the period (7.6) (25.6)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)
Jtems that are not subsequently reclassified to the f‘ncomc-;' statement
Remeasurernent gain recognised on retirement benefit scheme 6.2 50. 16.2
Deferred tax relating to retirement benefit s-cheme 28 9.6) (3.1
Deferred tax relating to change in tax rates i 26 (3.4) 41
Deferred tax relating to other temporary differences 26 - 0.3
Current tax relating to other temporary differences (0.1) i -
ftems that may be subsequently reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences offset in reserves c.8 0.6
Cash fiow hedges 0.5 -
Current tax relating to cash flow hedges (O:l) -
Other comprehensive income for the period 38.2 181
Total comprehensive income/(expensejfor the period 30.6 {7.5)
Earnings per share 23
Basic (25.1)c (8351;(
Diluted (25.1)c (83.5)c
Earnings per share from continuing operations 23
Basic - (18.5)c (799)c
b(luted (18.5)c : {79.9)c

1 nzrevigus penads, the Greup resorted financia state nents to 30 Sectember, thes berng the Compzany's account ng reference date Headings far the carrent and orior pe1od now show the actual

dares o wh 1 the financ al statements were drawn up. This has ro mpact or prev cusly reparted numbers
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AT 1 OCTOBER 2022

At 1 October At 2 October
2022' 2021"
Note $m $m
Assets
Non-current assets i )
Intangible assets 31 171.0 181.0
Property. plant and equipment 3.2 359 486
Deferred tax assefs 26 26.7 40.2
Derivative financial instrumenits 5.-4 0.3 -
2379 2698
Current assets
Inventories 41 65.6 62.3
Trade and other receivables 42 30.67 44.7
Derivative financial instruments 54 0.2
Current tax receivables 4.2 7.8
Cash and cash equwalénts 43 9.5 14.1
1101 1289
Liabilities
Current liabilities
ngwings 51 4.1 74.07
%ade and other payabies 44 423 45
Prowsit;ns for liabilities and charges 71 0.7 35
47.1 475
Net current assets 63.0 814
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 51 734 660
Deferred tax liabilities 26 5.8 ) ?
;e;irement benefit obligations 6.2 6.3 68.3
Provisions for hiabilities and ch;arges 71 4.9 54
90.4 145.8
Net assets 210.5 2054
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares 5.5 50.3 50.3
Share premium a‘ccount 5.5 54.3 54.3
Other reseryes (14.2) (15‘0;
Cash flow hedging reserve 0.4 -
Retained éarn'\ngs 119.7 1158
Total equity 210.5 205.4

T tnoreviods cenods e Gredp r2porTen f farc al statemierts w30 Seatemazer 10 s peig tre LomMpe Ty 5 cioart rg ference dare ~oad rgs for tne curent an@ o or peEr G2 W show e actal

Adzmes w0 wnick tha dnzacial sTatements were drawe Jg Thus nas 1o modcT o prenigusly reperned qumosrs

These financial statements on pages 127 to 163 were approved by the Board of Directors or 22 November 2022 and signed on its behalf by

Bruce Thompson Rich Cashin

Executive Chair Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying accounting paiicies ana notes form part of these financia! staterments

Company number 00032565
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

10ctober 2022' 2 October 2021’

Note $m $m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from continuing operations - 43 34.8 269
Cash flows from discontinued operations T 43 {1.3) 3.3
Cash flows from cperations 4.3 335 2386
Retrement benefit deficit recovery contributions o 6.2 (8.5) 29)
Tax received/(paid) T —3;’_ o m
Net cash flows from operating activities 28.7 74
Cash flows used in investing activities
Proceeds from dispos-a_lfof discontinued operations o - 34
Costs ofdi\;estment - 0.6}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment o 32 i A
Capitalised development costs and purchased sowgt\j\;;e - 31 o (6.0} (19.9)
Acquisition of b_usmess (2021: net of acquired cash of $1.1m) 71 (3.2) (31309)
Net cash used in investing activities T (12.1)7 o (159.7}
Cash flows used in financing activities
Proceeds frorﬁ loan drawdowns 5.3 429 420
Loar repayments 53 (30.1) (40.6)
Finance costs paid in respect of bank Ioans and overdrafts 5.2 (2.7) 1.6
Finance costs paid in respect of Ieas‘es 52 (1.0) 1.1
Repayment of lease liability T 4.n (3.7
D_lwd“e;zs paid to sharehaolders 56 {13.4) i (121
Purchase of own shares - Long Term Incentive Plan 55 - (4.3)
Purchase of own shares - Share Buyback Programme 5.5_ (12.4) -
Net cash used in financing activities (20.8) (214
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 4.2) {1737}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the pericd 14.1 1872
Effects of exchange rate changes {0.4) 06
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 43 9.5 14.1

tIr previous per ods, the Group reported financia stazenents to 30 September, this e rg the Compary s accounting reference date Heaairgs for the current and prior period nowe saow the actua

dates o which the financial statements were drawn up, This has nompac: or previously reported rumbers

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection ple 125

SINIWILYLS TVISNYNIL



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

Share Share Hedging Other Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserves earnings equity
Note $m $m $m $m $m $m
At 26 September 2020" 50.3 54.3 -~ {15.6) 1405 2295
Loss for the period - - - - {25.6) {256)
Nét exchange differences of%set in reserves : - - - 06 - O.6L
Deferred tax relating to other temporary differences 26 - - - - 02 0—3
Remeasurement gain recognised on reim ) - - a
benefit scheme 6.2 - - - - 6.2 16.2
Deferred tax relating to change in tax ra-tes 26 - - - 4.1 4.
Deferred ta);relating 1o retirement benefit scherme 26 - - - - 1an (3.1
Total comprehensive income/expense) for the period - - - 06 8.1} (75}
E)vadends paid ) 75.6 - - - — (2.1} 12,1
Own shares acquired 5.5 - - - - 43) (4.3}
Fair value of share-based payments 63 - - - 0.5 E
Current tax relatiiﬁg to employee sha}e schemes R
charged to equity 26 - - - 1.2 12
E)eferred tax relating to employee shrare schemés -
charged directly to equity 26 - - - - (19 (1.9)
At 2 October 2021' 50.3 543 - {15.0 158 2054
Loss for the period - - - - (7.6) (7.6)
Net exchange differences offset in reserves - - - 0.8 - 0.8
Current tax .relating to other temporary differences 26 - - 7 - - (0.1} 0.1)
Remeasurement gain recognised on retirement B
benefit scheme 6.2 - - - - 50.3 50.1
Deferred tax relating 1 change in tax rates 2.6 - - - - (3.4 (3-7)
Deferred tax relating to retirement Benefit schermne 26 - - - - {9.6) (9;
Iﬂnterest rate swaps - cash flow hedge ) 5.4 - - ‘ 0.5 - = 05
Current tax on mtérest rate swaps - cash flow hedge 2.6 - - (0.1) - - (0.1
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 0.4 0.8 29.4 306
Dividends paid 5.6 - - - - (13.4} (I?:;}
Own shares acquired 5.5 - - - - (12.4)7 (12.4)
Fair value of share—based payments 6.3 - - - - 1.0 IE
Deferred tax relating to employee share schemes . i
charged directly to equity 2.6 - - - - 0.7) 0.7
At 1 October 2022' 50.3 54,3 0.4 (14.2) 197 210.5

1 Inprevicus genods, the Group reperied firarcgl statements to 30 Segtember, *1 s ce g the Comeary s accuuntng refere~ce date Fead ngs for tne currantana pr o cer od ~ow show the acual
dates 1o whocn the financal statemert; were drawn up Tk s has re —pact an pravious y rsoo-ted rumbers

Other reserves consist of the capital redemption reserve af SO.8 miflion (2021 $0.6 miilion) and the transiation reserve of (514.8} rillion (2021 (515.6) million}

All movements in other reserves relate to the translation reserve.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTCBER 2022

Section 1 - Acceunting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below These policies have been
consistently applied to ail the periods presented, uniess otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Avon Protection plcis a public limited company incorporated and
domiciled in England and Wales and its ordinary shares are traded on the
London Stock Exchange.

The financial period presents 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 (prior
financial period 53 weeks ended 2 October 2021} The Company previously
reported that the reporting date for the latest annual financial statements
was 30 September 2021, being the Company’s arrniinting reference date.
The actual date to which the financial staterments were drawn up was

2 Octeber 2021 and therefore the headings of the financial statements
have been amended accordingly. This has no impact on previously
reported numbers,

The financial staternents have been prepared in accerdance with UK.
adopted International Accounting Standards. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
derivative instruments which are held at fair value through profit or loss,

Going concern
The financial staternents have been prepared on a going concern basis,
which the Directors believe to be appropriate for the following reasons:

The Diractors have prepared a going concern assessment covering the
12-month period from the date of approval of these financial statements.
The assessment indicates that the Group will have sufficient funds to meet
its liabilities as they fall due for that period.

As part of their assessment, the Directors considered a base case and a
severe downside scenario involving a 27% decline in bank-determined
adjusted EBITDA against the base case. Even in this severe downside
scenario, the assessment indicates that the Group will have sufficient funds
to meet its liabilities as they fall due, and will continue to comply with its
loan covenants, throughout the forecast period. The Group has committed
RCF facilities of $200 million {(see note 5.1) and related loan covenants
nclude a limit of 3.0 times for the ratio of net debt, excluding lease
liabilities, to bank-determined adjusted EBITDA (leverage)

On this basis, the Directors are confident that the Group and Company
will have sufficient funds to continue to meet their liabilities as they fall
due for at least 12 months from the approval of these financial statements.
Accordingly the Group and Company continue to adept the going
concern basis In preparing their financial statements.

Revision to IFRS not applicable in 2022

Standards and interpretations issued by the IASB are only applicable

if endorsed by the UK. The Group does not consider that any of the
below standards, amendrents or interpretations issued by the IASB,
but not yet applicable, will have a material impact on the corsolidated
financial staterments:

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts {effective date 1 January 2023)

- Amendments 1o 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and Making
Materiality Judgements (effective date 1 January 2023)

« Amendments 1o IAS 37: Onerous Contracts (effective date 1
January 2022)

- Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3
{effactive date 1 January 2022)

- Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (effective date
1 January 2022)

- Annual Impravements to IFRS Standards 2018 — 2020 {effective date
1 lanuary 2022}

« Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Frrors (effective date 1 January 2023)

- Amendments ta IAS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax Related to Assets
and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction leffective date
1 .anuary 2023}

Effective dates are for annual periads beginning on or after the
dates stated.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial results and
position of the Group and its subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has power, exposure
or rights to variable returns from its invclvernent with the entity and the
ability to use its pawer to affect the amount of the Group's returns.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group until the date that control ceases

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between Group companies are efiminated.

Foreign currencies

The results and financial position of all subsidiaries and associates that
have a functional currency different from LS. dollars are translated into
US dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the balance
sheet date; and

- income and expenses are translated at an average exchange rate for the
month where the relevant rate approximates to the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.

All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component
of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in entities with a funcuonal currency other than U.S. dellars,
and of borrowings and other currency instrurnents designated as hedges
of such investments, are taken to shareholders’ equity When an entity with
a functional currericy other than U.S. dollars is sold, the cumulative amount
of such exchange difference is recognised in the Censalidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in an entity’s functional
currency accounts at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date of monetary assets or liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the Conselidated Staterment of Comprehensive
Income, except when deferred in equity as qualifying hedges.

Revenue

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration which is
expected ta be received in exchange for goods and services provided,
net of trade discounts and sales-related Taxes.

Revenue is recognised when all of the fallowing conditions are satisfied:
« aconuact exists with a customer,

- the performance obligations within the contract have been identified;
« the transaction price has been determined;

- the transaction price has been allocated to the performance obligations
within the contract; and

« revenue s recognised as of when a perfurmance cbligation is satishied.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Revenue continued

Revenue recognition continued

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when controf of the
goods has transferred to the customer, usually being when the goods
have been shipped to the customer in accordance with the contracted
shipping terms.

Provision of services

Revenue from a contract to pravide services, including custorner funded
research and development and training, is recognised over time as those
services are provided. The Group recegnises the amount of revenue from
the services provided under & contract with reforence t the casts incurred
as a proportion of total expected costs,

Contract assets and liabilities

Assets and liahilities arising from contracts with customers are separately
identified. Contract assets relate to consideration recognised for work
completed but not billed at the balance sheet date Contract liabilities
relate to consideration received but not recagnised as revenue at the
balance sheet date. See notes 4.2 and 4 4 for further details.

Segment reporting
Segments are identified based on how management monitors
the business.

An operating segment is a companent of an entity:

that engages in business activities frorm which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses (including revenues and expensas relating to
transactions with other components of the same entityy,

- whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief
operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be
allocated 1o the segment and assess its parformance; and

-+ for which discrete financial information Is available.

Operating segments are aggregated into a single reportable segmenit
only when the segments have sirnilar economic characteristics, and the
segments are similar in each of the fallowing respects

- the nature of the products and services;
« the natare of the produclion processes;
- the type or class of customer far their products and services;

- the methods used to distribute their products or provide their
services; and

+ the nature of the regulatory environment

The Group Executive team, being the Chief Operating Decision Maker,
assesses the performance of operating segments based on measuras of
revenue, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted operating profit, as well as other
measures not defined under IFRS Including orders recaved, closing arder
book, organic revenue growth, EBITDA margin, cash conversion and return
on capital employed. Further details on these rmeasures can be found in
the Adjusted Performance Measures section.

The Group has, following a rearganisation, two different operaung

and reportable segments, these being the core respiratory and head
protection business and the armaor business which is in the process of
being wound down. In the prior period, the sole reportable segment was
made up of two operating segments, Team Wendy and Avon Pratection.
Avon Protection has been disaggregated inta armor and respiratory and
head protection following the decision to close the armor business Team
Wendy has been fully integrated into the wider respiratory and head
protection segment in the current financial period.
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Employee benefits
Pension obligations and post-retirement benefits
The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans,

The defined benefit plan's asset or liabitity as recognised in the balance
sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit methed. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated cash outflows
using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in full in the period

Iin which they occur, as part of other comprehensive income. Costs
associated with investment management are deducted from the return
on plan assets. Other expenses are recognised in the incame statement
as incurreq.

For the defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatary,
contractual or voluntary basis, Contributions are expensed as incurred.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives service from
employees as cansideration for equity instruments {options) of the
Group. The fair value of the employee service received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
1o be expensed is determined by reference to the fair vaiue of the
options granted:

ircluding any market-based perfarmance conditions;

+ excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time penod), and

+ including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requiremcnt for employees to save),

Non-rarket vesting conditions are included in assumptions about

the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all

of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each
reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected 1o vest based on the non-market vesting conditions, It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, with a corresponding
ad ustment 1o equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital Inominal value) and share premiurm when the
options are exercised

Exceptional items

Transactions are classified as exceptional where they relate to an event
that falls outside of the underlying trading activities of the business and
where individually or in aggregate they have a material impacton the
financial statements,



Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition aver the fair
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Identifiable net assets include
intangible assets other than goodwill. Any such intangible assets are
amortised aver their expected future lives unless they are regarded

as having an indefinite life, in which case they are not amortsed, but
subjected to annual impairment testing in a similar manner to goodwill,

Since the transition to JFRS, goodwill anising from acquisitions of
subsidiaries after 3 October 1998 is included in intangible assets. [tis not
amortised but is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment {osses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
erility include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill arising from acquisitions of subsidiaries before 3 October 1998,
which was set against reserves in the period of acquisition under UK.
GAAP, has not been reinstated and is not included in determining any
subsequent profit or foss on disposal of the refated enrity.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually or whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units for the purpase of impairment testing. The allacation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwilt arose.

Any impairrnent is recognised immediately in the Consolidared Statement
of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent reversals of rmpairment losses for
goodwill are not recognised.

Development expenditure

Expenditure in respect of the development of new products where the
outcome is assessed as being reasonably certain as regards viability and
technical feasibility is capitalised and amortised over the expected useful
life of the development (between five and 15 years) Expenditure that
does not meet these criteria is expensed as incurred. The capitalised
rosts are amortised over the estimated pericd of sale for each praduct,
commencing In the period in which the product is available for sale.
Development costs capitalised are tested for impairment annually where
not yet ready for use or wheneves there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

UK. development costs have not been treated as d realised loss by the
Directors as they relate to specific R&D projects from which the Group is
expected to obtan significant econemic benefit in the future.

Computer software
Computer software is included in intangible assets at cost and amortised
over its estimated life of three to ten years.

Other intangible assets

Otherintangible assets that are acquired by the Group as part of business
combinations are stated at cost less accumnulated amortisation and
impairment losses The useful lives take account of the differing natures
of each of e assats acquired.

The lives used are:

- Brands and trademarks - four to 15 years

- {ustomer relationships - three to 14 years

+ Order backlog - three months to one year

+ Technology and licence agreements - two to ten years

Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets through general and ad™inistrative expenses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost or deemed
cost where IFRS 1 exemptions have been applied, less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment losses.

Costs include the original purchase price of the asset and the
costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition
forits ntended use including any qualifying finance expenses,

Land s not depreciated Depreciation is provided an other assets
estimated to write down the depreciable amount of relevant
assets by equal annual instalments over their estimated useful lives,

In general, the lives used are:

- Freehold - 40 years
- Leasehold praoperty - over the period of the lease

- Plant and machinery:
- Computer hardware and moter vehicles — three years
- Presses - 15 years
- Qther plant and machinery - five to ten years

The residual vatlues and useful fives of the assets are reviewed, and
adjusted If appropriate, at each balance sheet date,

An asset’s carrying amaount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated net realisable
value. Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the Consolidated
Staterment of Comprehensive Income.

Leases

Right of use assets and lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the contract far all leases corweying the right to
control the associated asset for a peried of time.

The right of use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial measurement of the lease liability plus an estimate of dilapidation
provisions {note 7.1} where required. Subseguently the right of use assets
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.
In general the lives used are:

- Leasehold property - period of the lease

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments due aver the life of the lease. The lease payments are discounted
at the rate implicit in the lease or if that 1s not readily determined using the
Group's incremental borrowing rate.

The lease term is determined with reference to any non-cancellable period
of lease contracts plus any periods covered by an option to extend/
terminate the lease if itis considerad reasonably certain that the option
will/will not be exercised. In concluding whether or not it is reasonably
certain an option will be exercised for new leases management has
considered the three-year strategic outlook for the Group and other
operational factors.

Subsequently the lease lability is measured by increasing the carrying
value to reflect ‘nterest on the fiability and reducing the carrying value o
reflect lease payments made,

The carrying value of lease Iizbilities and associated assets wil
be remeasured to reflect any changes 1o the lease or other
assumptions applied.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Leases continued

The Group acts as an Intermediate lessor for certain properties, and
accounts for its interests in relevant head leases and subleases separately.
Lease classification of the sublease between finance and operating

is assessed with reference to the right of use asset arising from the

head lease.

Inventories

Irventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costis
determined using the first-in, first-out FIFQY method The cost of finished
goods and wark in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related nroduction overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable incremental
selling expenses.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated and
measured at the transaction price.

Trade pavables are abligations 1o pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of husiness from suppliers and are initially
recognised at fair value. Al other financial assets and financial liabiliues
are Initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the nstrurnent and measured at fair value.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Trade and other receivables and trade and other payables are classified as
measured at amortised cost.

The Group recognises 1oss allowances far expected creditiosses (ECLs) on
financial assets measured at amortised £ost and contract assets {as defined
inIFRS 15)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are
always measured at an amount equal to ifetime ECL; see note 54 far
more details.

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities If payment is due
within ane year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business If
longer). If not, they arc presented as non-current liakilities.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and highly
liquid interest-bearing securities with maturities of three months or less
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet,

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group classifies outstanding forward exchange contracts, interest rate
swaps and corresponding hedged items as cash flow hedges and states
them at fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in
the Income statement. See note 5 4 for mare detalls

impairment

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets
carried at amortised cost are creditimpaired. A financial 3sset is ‘credit-
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future Cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery See
note 5.4 for detaiis
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Provisions
Provisions are recognised when

- the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event; and

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligatian and the amount has been reiiably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, for example where a
warranty has teen given, the ikelihood that an outflow will be required
in settiement is determined by considering the class of obligations as

a whale A provision is recogmised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item Included in the same class of obligation
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the cbligation

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently stated at amortised cost Borrowing costs are
expensed using the effective interest methed.

Taxation
Incorne tax on the profit ar loss for the period comprises current and
deferred tax.

Taxable profit differs from accounting profit because it excludes certain
iterns of income and expense that are recognised in the financial
statements but are treated differently for tax purposes Current tax is

the amaunt of tax expected to be payable or receivable on the taxable
profitorloss for the current oeriod. This amount is then amended for any
adjustments inrespect of prior penods,

Current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been written into

law Cenacted’) or irrevocably anncunced/cornmitted by the respective
gavernment {substantively enacted’) at the penad end date. Current
tax recevable (assets) and payable (liabilities) are offset only when there
15 a legal right to settle them net and the entity intends to do so. This i3
generally true when the taxes are levied by the same tax authority.

Because of the differences between accounting and taxable profits and
losses reported In each periad, temporary differences arise on the amount
certain assets and liabilities are carried at for accounting purposes and
their respective tax values Deferred tax is the amount of tax payable or
recoverable or these temporary differences

Deferred tax labilities arise where the carrying amount of an asset is
higher than the tax value (more tax deduction has been taken). This can
happen where the Group invests in capital assets, as gavernments often
encourage investment by allowing tax depreciation 1o be recognised
faster than accounting depreciation. This reduces the tax value of the
asset relative toits accounting carrying amount. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally provided on all taxable temparary differences. Tne geriads over
which such temporary differences reverse will vary depending on the life
of the related asset or lability.

Deferred tax assets arise where the carrying amaunt of an asset is lower
than the tax value (less tax benefit has been taken). This can happen where
the Graup has trading lasses, which cannat bie offset in the current perfod
but can be carried forward Deferrad tax assets are recognised only where
the Group considers it probable that it wil be able 10 use such losses by
offsetting them against future taxable profits.

However, the deferred income tax 15 not accounted for if it arises from
irinal recognition of an asset or liability in 3 transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss



Taxation continued

Taxable temporary differences can also arise on investments in foreign
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures. Where the
Group 15 able to control the reversal of these differences and itis probable
that these will not reverse in the foreseeable future, then no deferred tax
15 provided Deferred tax is calculated using the enacted or substantively
enacted rates that are expected to apply when the asset is realised or

the fiability Is settled. Similarly to current taxes, deferred tax assets and
ligbilities are offset only when there is a legal right to settle them net and
the entity intends to do so. This normally requires both assets and liakbilities
1o have arisen in the sarme country.

Income tax expense reported In the financial statements comprises
current tax as well as the effects of changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Tax cxpense/credits are yenerally recogrused n the same place
as the items to which they relate. Far example, the tax associated with

a gain on disposal is recognised in the income statement, in line with

the gain on disposal. Equally, the tax associated with pensicn obligation
actuanal gains and losses is recognised in other comorehens ve income, in
lIne with the actuarial gains and losses

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
shareholders, while interim dividends are recognised in the period in
which the dividends are paid,

Share capital
Crdinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company equity share

capital {treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attzibutable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from
equity attributable to the Company's equity holders until the shares are
cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently
sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incrermental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company's equity holders.

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting
method. ldentifiable assets and liailities acquired are measured at fair
value at acquisition date. Costs related to the acguisition, other than

those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, are expensed
as incurred, Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified
as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is accounted for within
equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognised in profit or loss, Unwinding of discount an
contingent consideration is included within finance costs. Changes to the
fair value arising from changes in the contingent element, for example,
expected cash to be paid, or tming of when payments will be made, are
included in general and administrative expenses.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial staterments requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. It also requires management o exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

The key areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial staterments are disclosed below.

Judgements and estimates

Development costs

The Group capitalises the development costs of new products and
processes as intangible assets or property, plant and equipment

Initial capitalisation and any subsequent impairment are based on
management's judgernent of technelogical and economic feasibility,
including regulatory approvais required and forecast customer demand.
In determining the amounts to be capitalised the Group makes estimates
regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount
rates 1o be applied and the expected period of benefits, If either
technological or econemic feasibility is not demonstrated then the
capitalised costs will be written off 1o the income statement,

Intangible assets are tested for impairment by grouping development
assets into the smallest identifiable group of assets generating future
cash flows largely independent from other assets {CGUs}. Included in
these CGUs are development expenditure, tangible assets related 1o
the product group and acquired intangibles where assaciated with the
development project.

Significant judgements and estimates made and sensitivity in respect of
the assumptions used that could have a significant impact on the carrying
value of assets in determining the carrving amount of development costs
at the balance sheet date are disclesed in note 3.1,

Estimating the defined benefit pension scheme assets

and cbligations

Measurement of defined benefit pension obligations requires estimation
of future changes in inflation and mortality rates, and the selection of &
suitable discount rate.

The investments held by the pension scheme include both quoted and
unquoted securities, the latter which by their nature invalve assumptions
and estimates to determine their fair value. Where there 1s not an active
market for the unguoted securities the fair value of these assets is
estimated by the pension trustees based on advice received from the
investment manager whilst alsc using any available market evidence

of any recent transactions for an identical asset. The assumptions

used in valuing unguoted investments are affected by current market
conditions and trends which could result in changes in fair value after the
measurement date.

See note 6.2 for further details.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

Section 2 - Results for the period

Wwithin this section you will find disclasures explaining the Group's results for the period, segmental information, earnings per share and taxation, as well
as details of the discontinued operations,

2.1 Operating segments

The Group Executive team is respansible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. Operating segments are
therefore reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group Executive team,

The Group has, following a reorganisation, two different operating and reportable segments, these being the core respiratory and head protection
business and the armor business which is in the process of being wound down. In the prier pericd, the sole reportable segment was made up of two
operating segments, Team Wendy and Avon Protection. Avon Protection has been disaggregated into armor and respiratary and head protection
following the decision to close the armor business, Team Wendy has been fully integrated into the wider respiratary and head protection segment.

52 weeks ended 1 October 2022

Respiratory and  Adjustments and

Armor  head protection discontinued’ Total

$m sm $m $m

Revenue 8.4 263.5 - 2719
Adjusted EBITDA (13.3) 388 1.2) 243
Depreciation and amaortisation - (15.0) ) - (1591
Impairment charges - (0.4) (4.2) (4.6)
Amortisation ofac-qu—ired intan?@ T - S (6.8} {6.8)
Operating (loss)/profit {13.3) 234 (12.2) (2.}
Finance costs 0.3) {3.7) (2.4) (6.4)
(Lassy/profit before taxation (13.6) 19.7 (14.6) (8.5)
Taxation 3.2 3.1 2.8 29
{Lossy/profit for the period from continuing operations {10.4) 16.6 (11.8) (5_.@
Discontinued operations - loss far the year T T - - (2.0) (2.0)
(Loss)/profit for the year (10.4) 16.6 (13.8) (7.6)
Total assets 23.2 324.8 - 348.0
éaswc earnings per share (cents) (34.3)c\‘ \;.k ﬁjﬁﬁcig—; @
Exluted earnings per share ECEF?ST &_-37?_ 54.70 (45.5)c (253

53 weeks ended 2 October 2021
Respiratoryand Adjustmentsand

Armor  head protection discontinued’ Total

sm $m $m $m

Revenue 6.5 2418 - 2483
Adjusted EBITDA 8.4) 460 30 46.6
Depreciation and amortisation 2.0 (3.1 - (15.2}
Fpa\'rmem‘ charges - - 04 45.8) 46.7)
Amartisation of acquired intangibles - - ~ (14,2} 14.2)
Operating {loss)/profit o {10.5} 325 {510 (2900
Finance costs ©3 s (as) 66)
lLossiprofit before taxation {10.8] 297 (54 5) (35 6}

Taxation 2.3 (2.6) 114 i
{Loss)/profit for the year from continuing aperations {8.5) 271 431 (245)
Discontinued operations ~ loss for the year - - (1)) oy
(‘Lossjfprofit for the year 7 - (8.5} 271 T (442} (256}

Total assets 14.5 384.2 - 3587
éaswc earnings per share (centsj - T E?}T 88 3c*:_;iﬂ::££

Ciluted earnings persh?e {cents) —;k**_ﬁ(ﬂ.?)c o 88 3c (144.1}c 183 5)c

1 Fease sefor 1o AQjusied 2erioriar 1o Measures Se0tor or g ful Zrea<iown of 22 usteg meatgres re Ld G 4 "EL0NE 13T G DA APEN 31, JSIED

A a0 AL CRETA NG ET0F

v e remizn 2age 112

Revenue ingludes $1071 million (2021 $130.8 million) of revenues from the LS DOD sold drectly and through Indirect channels, the only custormer which
individually cortributes more than 10% to Group revenues.,
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Section 2 - Results for the period continued
2.1 Operating segments continued
Revenue analysed by geographic origin

2022 2021

sm $m

Europe 73.0 323

us. - 198.9 2160

Total 2718 2483
Revenue by line of business — restated’

52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 53 weeks ended 2 October 2021"
o Head Head

Respiratory protection Armor Total Respiratory protection Armor Total

$m $m s$m $m $m sm $m $m

Us. Do 63.2 35.5 84 107.1 861 391 6.5 37

Cemmercial Americas 40.5 25.2 - - 65.7 40.4 o 224 - 628

UK. & International - 89.3 9.8 - 99.1 421 1.7 - 53.8

193.0 70.5 8.4 2719 168.6 73.2 6.5 2483

1 Followirga re-grganisation and further intearanar of “eam Wendy, the Srcup classifies revenue inte U.S BO3 {campnsing afl US miitary revenue), Commerciai Amencas (wiich includes U 'S first
responder plus all revenue from ather parts of the Amercasy, ard U & & internat onal {carmansing al’ revenue outside the continents of Amenical Pries pencd f gures have been rec'assified w0 they ane

praseared on a conaistent basis with the current peniod

Revenue by nature of performance obligation

2022 2021

$m $m

Sale of goods’ 270.7 246.5
Provision of services! ~ 1.2 1.8
2719 2483

1 Products transferred o the customer and therefore revenue recogn sed at a point in time.

2 Products and seivices transferreg over [ me and theretore revenue recognised over thar penod of tme

2.2 Discontinued operations

In Septernber 2020 the Group disposed of the entire milkrite | InterPuls business. As a result of the divestrent the milkrite | InterPuls business has been
classified as discontinued. As part of the sale and purchase agreement, the Group entered into @ Manufacturing Service Agreemenit with the purchasers
of mitkrite | InterPuls to provide ongoing manufacturing whilst arrangements are made to relocate manufacturing equipment from our UK. facility. The
Group also entered Into agreements 1o provide certain other information technology and administrative services under a 12-month Transitional Services
Agreement which has now concluded, As the activities under these agreements are not part of the continuing aperations of the Group, the revenue and
casts during the period associated with these agreements have been classified as discontinued operations.

The results of discontinued operations are as follows:

2022 2021

5m $m
Revenue 3.2 4i
Cost of sales {5.8) (5.3)
Gross loss {2.6} (1.2
General and administrative expenses - - ©9)
Operating loss {2.6) 20
Finance costs - -
Loss before taxation {2.6) 2.0
Taxation 0.6 1.0
Loss from discontinued operations (2.0) {an
Basic earnings per share {6.6¢) {3.60)
b\;\;erdh—eémmgs per share T o (é.ﬁc) {3.60
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 2 — Results for the period continued
2.2 Discontinued operations continued
Cash flows from discontinued operations included in the cash fiow staternent are as follows:

2022 2021
$m $m
Net cash flows from operating activities L B33
ge?cash flows from (Hvesﬂng activitiés T - - 28
Net cash flows from discontinued operations {1.3) {©5)

2.3 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weightad average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the period, excluding thase held in the employee share ownership trust. The Company has dilutive potential ordinary shares in respect of the
Performance Share Plan.

Reconciliations of the earnings and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are set out below. As the Group was loss making on a
statutory basis in the current and prior periods, basic and diluted earnings per share are equivalent

Weighted average number of shares 2022 2021
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue used in basic calculations (300) 30,308 30,665
Potentially dilutive shares (weighted average) (000) T an 89
Diluted number of ordinary shares (weighted average) (000} B - ' 30,529 30,858
2022 2021
Earnings sm $m
Basic (7.6 {256)
t;ic— ém\ng operations I Em) (24.5)
éasic - discontinued operations S 7 2.0 - (1.1}
2022 2021
Earnings per share $cents % cents
Basic (25.1) (83.5)
Basic - conunuing aperations S - B T (18.5) 7 (?99)7
Basic - aiscontmued operatians 7 7 - ——_—(5?) T E
Diluted {25.1) (83.9)
E)Itred - continuing operati;ms - - {(18.5) (795
ME‘mcominued operations - 7 *_(6\6) o Tﬁ)
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Section 2 — Results for the period continued
2.4 Expenses by nature

2022 201

$m $m

Employee and other staff costs’ B1.7 671
Legal and professional fees o 109 97
Deprec‘\at\'on‘and amaortisation charges {notes 3.1 and 3.2) o 7 21.8 294
Impairment charges (including $0.4m ré”s::’ructuring-relared impairment) A 4.6 46.2
Exchange differences o 0.3 19
Transportation expenses - 9.2 70
Material costs o 1594;7 920
Release of contingent cansideration (3.9) (15.7}
Acqguisition refated COSIS‘ - 26
Restructuring costs (excluding $04m restructuring-related ir;w—b;irmem] o 29 —_
Transaction costs 6.6 -

Other expenses 362 371
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution costs and general and administrative expenses 7 274.0 2773

1 Emplayee cosis discosedn note 2.4 are presented on a contiruirg basis for all staf-relaed cos s expensed to the Consolicated Statement of Comprehensive Income They do not therefore recuncile

to note 5.1

Expenses include $3.8 million (2021 51.8 million) of staff costs and overheads in relation to expensed research and development expenditure.

2.5 (Loss)/profit before taxation

2022 2021
$m $m
{Loss)/profit before taxation is shown after charging/{crediting):
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - -
Repairs and maintenance of property, plant and equipment 4.2 05
Research and development 7 4 3.8 18
;;r-]-;;rment of trade receivables {note 5.4) 01 02
Services provided to the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) by the Company's auditor:
Audit fees in respect ofrthe audit of the accounts of the Group including subsidiaries - 1.0 086
Audit fees in respect of the audit of the accounts of the Parent Company 0.2 0.2
Total audit fees 1.2 0.8
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 2 - Results for the period continucd
2.6 Taxation

2022 2021

$m $m

UK. current tax 07 04

UK adjustment in respect of previous perf(;ds {0.6) -
aferseas current tax 0.1 27
Overseas adjuﬂ-;nem in respect of previous periods - 01 ) —(O?)
Total current tax charge/icredit 03 F29)
Deferred tax — current pericd - (4. - 7(?57)
Deferred'tax - adjustment ir{ respect of previous periods 09 T?)
Tota! deferred tax charge {3.2) 82)
Total tax credit (2.9) {1

The overseas adjustment in respect of the prior penod of $0.7 million {2021: credit of $0.6 million) includes a $0.3 million credit in connectian with the
resolution of a number of prior period uncertain tax positions (2021: $0.3 million).

The above table excludes tax on discontinued operations which amounted to a credit of $0.6 million in the current period (2021: credit of $1.0 million).

The UK. Budget Announcement on 3 March 2021 stated that the corporation tax rate would increase to 25% (effective 1 April 2023); this increase was
substantively enacted on 14 May 2021 and will increase the Company's future current tax charge accordingly. The impact of this increase is also reflected

in these financial statements for all UK. deferred tax assets

The tax on the Group's {loss/profit before taxation differs from the thearetical amount that would arise using the standard UK. tax rate applicable to

profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

2022 2021

$m $m

Loss before taxation (8.5) (35.6)
Taxation at the average standard rate of 19.0% (202-1: 190%;) (1.6 (6_)
Tax allowances (UK and US} (&JAJ 0.3
Non-deductible expenses - - 0.2 0.2-
a‘nanges in tax rates S (0.8) -@
DTfferences in overseas tax rates i 0.7} (@7
Adjustment in respect of previous periods - 04 \(Zg)
Total rax credit 2.9 (1.1

The income tax charged directly to other comprehensive income during the period was $0.2 million (2021: credit of $1.2 million), The deferred tax charged
directly to ather comprehensive income during the period was $15 7 million {2021: credit of $2.6 million). The deferred tax charged directly ta equity

during the penod was $0 7 million (2021 $1.9 million).

Deferred tax liabilities

Accelerated

capital allowances Total

$m $m

At 26 September 2020 56 5.6
Charged 1o profit for the period 0.5 a5
At 2 October 2021 6.1 6.1
Credited to profit for the period (0.3) (0.3
At 1 October 2022 5.8 538
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Section 2 - Results for the period continued

2.6 Taxation continued
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where itis probable that these assets will

be recovered.

Retirement Accelerated Other
benefit Share capital Tax Pension Rightof temporary
obligation  options allowances losses spreading Intangibles Use Assets differences Total
sm $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

At 26 September 2020 15.1 29 01 1.2 37 25 05 37 297
Credited/{charged) against profit
for the period . 0. o1 34 (1.3) 50 28 (1.0} 89
Impact of change in tax rates
credited to profit for the period - - - 06 02 - 0.1 - 08
{Charged)/credired to other
camprehensive income 3n B B - - - - 03 (2.8
impact of change in tax rates
credited to other
comprehensive income 41 - - - - - - 4.1
Exchange differences offset
in reserves 1.0 02 - 0.} 02 - - - 1.3
Charged to equity - {19 _ - - - - _ 19)
At 2 October 2021 171 13 - 51 2.8 7.5 34 30 40.2
Credited/{charged) against profit
for the period (1.2) 0.2 - 1.9 (0.4) (1.6) (0.2) 4.4 31
Impact of change in tax rates
credited to profit for the pericd - - - - 0.2) - - - {0.2)
Charged to cther
camprehensive income (9.6) - - - - - - - (9.6}
Impact of change in tax rates
charged to other
comprehensive inccme (3.4) - - - - - - - (3.4)
Exchange differences offset
inreserves (1.3) (0.2) - {0.6) (0.1) - - (0.5) {2.7)
Charged to equity - 0.7) - - - - - - {0.7)
At 1 October 2022 1.6 0.6 - 6.4 21 59 3.2 6.9 26.7

The standard rate of corporation tax In the UK 1s 19% The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of $3.8 million (2021: 54./ million} in respect of

capital losses where it is not considered that there will be sufficient available future profits to utlise these losses. The gross amount of unrecognised

deferred tax assets is 5152 million and has no expiry date.

Deferred tax on pension spreading relates 1o excess pension contributions made in the previous periods and in the current period for which tax relief is

spread across four years,

$2.8 million (2021 $1& milliom) of the deferred tax asset within other temporary differences relates to inventory reserves and differing cost capitalisation
rues for accounting dnd tax purposes. $1.8 million of deferred taxes wathin other tempotary ditferences relates 1o the deductabitity o° business interest
expense under IRC Section 163()), with the remainder of other temporary differences relating to a number of smaller timing differences between the tax

and accounting treatmert.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 3 - Non-current assets
3.1 Intangible assets

Acquired Development Computer
Gaodwill intangibles expenditure software Total
$m $m $m $m $m

At 26 September 2020
Cost - 30‘3\—\ 46.5 494 10.2 13;4_
Evcumulaited amortisation and impairment - (135)——; (29,O)E— (4,2i (47.0%
Net book amount 30.3 327 204 6.0 894
53 weeks ended 2 October 2021
Opening net book amount - 30.3 32.7- 204 7 6.0 - 54-
Exchange differernces - 0.2 - 0.2 . O.é—i 1.0
Qditions - - T 150 T 49 19.9_
Acquisitions mﬁj 517 T 01 kﬁﬂ?
m;iared impalrments T - (11.3) [8‘-1) - (15.4}
Other impairments - § ©3) 072 a0
Armortisation - (14.2) (4.0) oa 7 w[;
Closing net book amount 88.8 58.9 232 10 181.0
At 2 October 2021
Cost a8 T w2 646 50 266.7
Eum ulated amortisation and impairmem- T (39.3) —g(mg— (50 ‘E’)r
Net book amount 88.8 589 232 101 1810
52 weeks ended 1 October 2022
Dpening net baok amount - 88.8 589 23.2—— 10,1—m 181.0
éxchamge dlfférences S (OAi{—\ - (1.2) - (E
MHS - - —;3 0.27 6.0
Fbairments 7 7 - - - (2.0) e (2.0_)
Amortisatbn S - (6.8) ﬁM.T) - —;(1—2); - (1—2_7)—
Closing net book amount 88.7 521 211 23 171.0
At 1 Octobar 2022
Cost 88.7 93-3.2 69.2 7 15.3 ;1_;
Icumulated amortisation ana impairment - (46.1) (48.1) (6.2) (100.4i
Net book amount 88.7 521 213 91 171.0

1 Anongairg deve opmert project was witten off gunrg the prior peniod as a tender to obzam andmonal third party funing was not suceessful,

2 Comouter software inc.uges tre wiite down of 36 7 million broughs ferward capimahsed costs e a1 ng o ™e corfigurat on ard custem sanor Cesls N cud cemputng a-rargements, sé2 adjustec

oerformarce measures

The remaining useful economic life of the development expenditure is between four and ten years
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Section 3 - Non-current assets continuad
3.1 Intangible assets continued
Impairment review

Development costs
The Group tests development cost assets not yet ready for use annually for impairment, or mare frequently if there are indications of impairment.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment by grouping development assets inta the smallest identifiable group of assets generating future cash flows
largely independent from other assets {CGUs). Included in these CGUs are development expenditure as well as tangible assets related to the product
aroup The CGUs have been tested against their recoverable amount deemed to be their value in use. Cash flows were discounted to give a present
value using pre-tax discount rates ranging between 17.5% and 2919 (2021: 10.4%-37.2%) depending on the deemed associated risk profiles of each CGU
Discount factors applied to each CGU change year on year, driven by varying market factors and perceived risk profiles for each CGU. The increase of the
risk-free rate in the current financial period has led to increased discount factors.

As a result of the review for the period, the following impairment charges were identified:

.+ General Service Respirator (GSR}, fully impaired by $2.9 million due to a change made on costing assumptions and forecast cash flow periods, driven by
changes in market factors ($0.7 miilion development expenditure, $2.2 million plant and machinery);

« other respiratory asset development expenditure, impaired by 51.1 million due to a change In expected forecast cash flows and changing market
factors. 507 million of these impairments were considered exceptional, due to their materiality (see alternative performance measures); and

« armor-specific development expenditure, exceptionally impaired by $0 2 million for a small number of reclassified assets.
Following the impairment charges recognised, recoverable amounts were egual to carrying amounts.
For the GSR the following key assumptions were used as part of the value in use analysis:

+ apre-tax discount rate of 24.1%; and

» cash flow over a period of 2.5 years, including an assumption of contractual extensions and improved gross profit margins.

Sensitivity analysis has shown that if operating profit margins for this product improved by a further 25% in the extended contract periods, 2 full
impairment would still need to be recegnised.

Sensitivity analysis an other respiratory assets has shown that a decrease in forecast net cash flows from the relevant product range by 10% would lead 1o
an additional impairment of $0.2m.

At the year end $12.2 million of developrment costs refate to technology under development (2021: $13.0 million), including $1.5 million subject to final
feasibility tests (2021: $3.9 millian). If final feasibil ity tests are unsuccessful or delayed such that the projected economic benefit will not be achieved in the
asset’s lifetme, these costs, along with associated assets, could be subject to impairment.

Mew product development in its early development stages is subject to assumptions made regarding demands in the market. If such demand did
not materizlise approximately 9% of capitalised development costs (51.9 million) could be subject to impairment, along with associated assets (2021:
$1.0 million).

Goodwill impairment testing

Separately, goadwill was tested for impalrment by comparing the carrying values against the value in use of the relevant CGU group, being the respiratory
and head protection operating segment which is now the only operating segment with goodwill (see goodwill section below). The value in use
calculations were based an projected cash flows derived from the latest three-year plan appraved by the Board. Cash flows for beyond three years for the
respiratory and head protection CGU were projected to grow by 2.0% p.a. Cash flows were discounted to give a present value using a pre-tax discount rate
of 14.3% (2021: 8.9%). The post-tax discount rate applied across the Group was 95% (2021: 74%). These discount rates were derived using external expert
advice taking into consideration current market conditions based on U5, market data,

Sensitivity analysis demonstrates that a decrease in forecast ERITDA of more than 319 (2021: 58%) could be sustained befare an impairment may be
required. In addition, increasing the discount rate by 2% would not lead to any indications of impairment.

2021 armor-related impairments

On 12 November 2021 the Group announced the next generation VTP ESAPI body armar product had failed first article testing. This followed a similar
result in December 2020 for the legacy DLA ESAPI body armor product. It was alsa announced that the Group was experiencing further delays to
achieving final product approval for the DLA ESAPI product.

The failure of the VTP ESAPI body armor product was considered an adjusting event that provides evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period. As such the Group's Impairment review of assets at 2 October 2021 included the removal of all future revenue for VTP ESAPI body armor.
The impairment review also incorporated reduced revenue expectations for DLA ESAPI
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 3 — Non-current assets continued

3.1 Intangible assets continued

2021 armor-related impairments continued

Impairment testing at 2 October 2021 for assets related to the armor business was performed at multiple levels as these assets generate cash inflows along
with assets in other parts of the Group. The levels of impairment testing were as follows:

i

Product level - VTP ESAPI and DLA ESAP! are both separate products. Included in these CGUs are develapment expenditure, tangible assets related to
the product group, inventary and acquired intangibles where associated with the development project.

2} Armor business level - this includes the VTP ESAPI and DLA ESAP| CGUs, and other armor specific assets such as acquired intangibles as well as PPE
lincluding right of use assets) which solely relate to the entire armaor business,

3

Ballistic fevel - this includes the armor business assets, and the assets related to the acquired Ceradyne helmet business.

4]

Avon Protection business level — this includes ballistic assets and other assets that make up the Avon Protection operating segrment, incJuding goodwill
relating to the Ceradyne acguisition {see belowl.

The impairment review of the prior peried resulied in total non-current asset impairment of $451 million in respect of assets relating to the Ceradyne
armor business acquired from 3M as part of the ballistic protection acquisition — these arose at the individual product level and the armor business level,
In addition, inventory provisions of $1.7 million were recognised against VTP ESAPI armor materiais. Offsetting these charges, a gain of $15.7 milllon was
recognised to reduce the net present value of the contingent cansideration payable to 3M as a resuit of the reduced revenue expectations fram the DLA
ESAPI body armor contract

In 2022 revenue expectations from the DLA ESAP| body armor contract have further reduced, resulting in an additional gain of $3.3 million on release of
the remaining net present value of the contingent consideration payable, Offsetting this credit, inventory provisions of 51.6 millicn were recognised in
respect of raw materials held for the DLA ESAPI body armer contract

The pre-tax discount rates used in FY21 in determining the vatue in use at each level were between 8.9% on the Avon Protection business level and 62.3%
at the praduct level, reflecting the level of uncertainty associated with each of the asset groups reviewed far irmpairment

There was no further impairment when subsequently testing ballisuc protection level assets and finally Avon Protection CGU assets against expected values
in use. Goodwill relating to the Ceradyne acquisition of $78.0 million ana the Ceradyne helmeat intangible assets w tn a carrying value of $28.5 m Lion were
unaffected by the impairment review and have been allocated in full to the respiratory and head protection operating segment,

The impairments fully wrote down armor assets to recoverable amounts, The overal armar asset base, impairments charged and remaining recoverable
armounts gt 2 Jctober 2021 were as follows.

Recoverable

Carrying value Impairment amounts

Armor-specific assets at 2 October 2021 $m S$m $m

Acguired intangibles 1.3 (1.3 -

D_evelopmem expenditure . ) S 8.1 o (8,i) 7 -
Right of use assets ) S 11.7 m—_ n
Mand machmery—w—_ - 144 (139 iO.Sr
Leasehold improvements 01 ———;(0 1 S
Inventory ’ B T ——.—?3———-; an 7 WE

Total 589 46.8) 121

There were no further additions or other changes to armaor-specific non-current assets in the current period.

Recoverable amounts for plant and machinery are based on fair value less costs to sell. These are considered leve) 2 assets in a fair value hierarchy,
valued based on rrarket data for resale values on disposal. fhe recoverable zimount for all other assets 1s basea ucor the relevant value in use,
Remaming non-cuirent assets have both fair value less casts to sell and value i use of $nit,

Changesin the discount rate or growth rate utilised in the product level and armaor level reviews would not have materally changed the total impairment,
Impairments were recognised through general and administrative expenses n the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The failures in testing within the armor business did not impact respiratory and head protection products, and the Group remains confident future
regulatory approvals will be obtained for these businesses as required.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the groups of cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expacted to benefit from that business
combination During the prior period additional goodwill of $58 3 million was recognised on the acquisition of the assets of Tearn Wendy. Subsequent
ta these transactions the full carrying value of 5583 millon assocated with Team Wendy was recognised in the Team Wendy CGU waith the full carrying
value of $28 .G million associated with the acquisition of the 3M bailistc protection business being recogrised ir the Avon Pratectiaon CGU, following the
incorporation of the 3M ballistic protection business into the Aven Protection operating segment
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Section 3 - Non-current assets continued
3.1 Intangible assets continued
Goodwill continued

Following a recrganisation in the current period, the Avon Protection operating segment has been disaggregated into two operating and reporting
segments, these being respiratory and head protection and armor. Team Wendy has been fully integrated into the wider respiratory and head
protection segment. As a consequence, the goodwill previously recognised within the Team Wendy CGU has been fully allocated to the respiratory
and head protection segment. On the creation of armor as a separate operating segment, the Group evaluated the allocation of goodwill generated
on the acquisition of the 3M ballistic protection business using the relative value method On this basis, no goodwill was allocated to the armor

operating segment,

Acquired intangibles

Acquired intangibles include brands, customer reiationships and other intangibles:

At

At 2 October 1 October

2021 2022

Netbook amount Additions Amortisation Impairment Netbookamount

m $m sm sm $m

Brand 11.5 - (1.1 - 10.4
Customer relationships 284 - {3.0) - 254
Other intangibles 19.0 - (2.7) - 16.3
589 - (6.8) - 521

At 26 September At 2 October

2020 201

Netbookamount Additions  Amortisation Impairment Net book amount

$m $m sm $m $m

Brand 22 104 {1.1) - 1.5
Customer relationships 200 282 (10.0) (98} 284
Other intangibles 105 131 30 1.5) 19.0
327 517 (14.2) {11.3) 589

The valuation of acquired assets is determined at point of acquisition, using complex valuation techniques including forecasting and discounting of future
cash flows. This inciudes assumptions such as discount rates, royalty rates and estirnates for growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and useful lives.

In the prior periad, the Group acquired additional intangibles through the acquisition of the Team Wendy business (see note 7.2) which releted to

trade names ($10.4 million), technology ($13.1 million) and customer contracts ($28.2 million). External experts were engaged to support the Group in
astablishing appropriate estimates for the fair values of these assets. Trade names and technology were valued using the relief from royalty method, whilst
customer contracts were valued using the excess earnings method. Assumptions adopted for the valuation of the individual assets included average
annual growth rates of 4.7-5.4% for revenue forecasts, royalty rates between 1-7.5% depending on the individual assets, relevant qualitative factors and
comparable market data as weli discount factars of 10.6-12.6%, based on current market data and the risks associated with each of the individual assets.

Sensitivity analysis has shown that a reduction of assumed growth rates by 2% would have led to a reduced value of $1.6 million across the acguired
intangibles with a corresponding increase in value of goodwill. A change in assumed discount factors by 1% would have led to a change in value
of 52.1 million and a 10% variance in assumed royalty rates would have led 1o a change in value of $2.4 mill an a¢ross acquired intangibles with a

corresponding change in the valuation of goodwill.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships include two separately identifiable individually material contracts, one with the National Industries for the Blind (NIB) and one
with the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA) The NIB contract was acquired in the prior period through the acquisition of Team Wendy at a fait value of
$149 milhon. As at 1 October 2022, this acquired intangible had a carry'ng value of $12.3 million and a remaining amortisation period of nine years.

The DLA contract was acquired in the period ending 26 September 2020 through the acquisition of the 3M ballistic protection business at a fair value of
$20.0 million and an initial amortisation peried of three years, As a result of lower revenue expectations from this contract, an impairment of $8.3 million
was recognised in the prior periad within general and administrative expenses to reduce the carrying value to $nil as at 2 October 2021,

Other customer relationships include those associated with the acquisition of the 3M ballistic protection business originally recognised at a fair value of
$5.9 miltion amertised over five years, The remaining carrying value of these assets is $16 million, after amortsation charges, and a $1.5 million Impairment

In the prior year as a result of the armor review,

Other customer relatiorskips also included other Team Wendy cusiomer relaiionships acquired at far value of $13.3 million, As at 1 October 2022 these
acquired intangibles had a carrying value of $11 5 million and a remaining amortisation period of 12 years,
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 3 - Non-current assets continued

3.2 Property, plant and equipment

Lease Plantand Leasehold
Freeholds assets machinery improvements Total
$m $m $m $m $nm

At 26 September 2020
Cost 28 375 83.8 1.3 1254
Eumulated deprediation and impairment ’ (. (18 {46 6) - (59.5;
Net book amount 17 257 372 13 859
53 weeks ended 2 October 2021
Opening net book amount 17 257 372 13 659
Exchange differences - - 05 0.5 - - 1?
Additions 0.2 16 90 25 13.3-
Acquisition - - 3 54 al 8.6
Reclassificatié)n - - 4.0) - (4.0)
Armar review impairments - (117 {135} on 257
Other impairment - - on - [N}
Deprecva.non charge ) - o (42)—7 (58} Q3 (a4
Closing net book amount 1.8 15.0 283 35 48.6
At 2 October 2021
Cost 3.0 427 94.7 39 144.3
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 (27.7) 66.4) Q4 —_(;7)
Net book amount 1.8 150 283 35 48.6
52 weeks ended 1 October 2022
Opening net book amount 1.8 15.0 283 35 48.6
Exchange differences - (.2) 0.9) - (2.1)
Additions - 22 29 I 51
Impairments . ‘ - (0.4) (2.2) - (25
Depreciation charge 0.1) (3.0) (5.5) 7 (0.5) (9.1;
Closing net book amount 1.7 12.6 226 3.0 399
At 1 October 2022
Cost 3.0 43.2 96.8 39 146.9
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1.3) (30.6) (74.2) 0.9) (107.0;
Net book amount 1.7 126 226 30 399

1 Follzwiag an irterng. review of asseTs acgu red in the orior peaod as par- of the acgu T on of the 3M Dahst € protectic~ business, the Group nas rec'assi ec $4.0 n 1l en frem xes assers 1o nvertory

GJe 75 the urger ying nalue 5f sucs assers bairg consumable and naving a srott useful 2consmic e
¥ 3 g

Property, plant and equipment with a net book armnount of $29 4 million is located within the Uruted States of America (2021: $35.5 million) The balance 1s

located in the United Kingdom.

$3.7 millian (2021, $4.1 million} of expenditure included in the carrying value of plant and machinery relates 10 assets under construction,

The 50.4 million right of use assetimpairment relates to the closure of ane of our US. offices under the overhead reduction programme The $2 2 million

plant and machinery impairment is detailed in note 31

2021 armor review related impairments

The Group performed an impairment review of assets at 2 October 2021 following the failure of the VTP ESAP! body armor product (note 3.1). As a result of

this review iImparrments totalling 525.7 million were recognised on praperty, plant and equipment

The nght of use asset impairment of $11 7 million fully wrote down amounts relating to U.S. leasehold properties that will be vacated following closure of

the armor business.

The plant and machinery impairment of 5139 million wrote down assets related to the armor business located at thess facilities to their esumated

recoverable amount following closure of the operations.
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Section 4 - Working capital

This section presents disclosures around the Group's working capital balances, inventories, trade receivables, payables and cash.

4.1 Inventories

2022 2021

$m $m

Raw materials 36.6 394
Work in progress o 21.0 186
Finished goods o T 18.2 o 169
Inventory — gross 75.8 749
Inventory provisions (10.2) (12.6)
Inventory  net 65.6 62.3

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales amourted to $109.7 miliion (2021 $92.0 million). The amount of inventory

carried as fair value less costs to sell is 5nil (2021 $nif).

4.2 Trade and other receivables

2022 2021
$m $m
Trade receivables 26.6 398
Less: provision for 1mpa\rmen£ of receivables (0.5) 0.4)
Trade receivables - net 26.1 394
E;-re—p;yments 4.3 44
Other recejvables 0.2 Dg
306 447

The Group has no contract assets in the current or priar period.

See note 5.4 (11} Credit risk for further details in relation to the Group provision for iImpairment of recelvables. Changes in provisions for impaired receivables
are included within general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income.

4.3 Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
$m $m
Cash and cash equivalents 9.5 14.1
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in U.5. doilars, pounds sterling and eurcs and earn interest based on national rates.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 4 - Working capital continued
4.3 Cash and cash equivalents continued

The Group generatas cash from its operating activities as follows

2022 2021
$m sm
Continuing operations i B
Loss for the period (5.6) 24.5)
Adjustments for: _ .
Taxation 2.9 ain
Depreciation 21 104
Amortisation of intangible assets 127 190
Impairment of non-current assets {excluding 50.4% right of use asset irﬁpairmemt) 4.2 46.2
Df—:ﬂned benefit pension scheme cost 7 0.8 1.2
;inance COstS ‘ - 4.0 31
Other finance expense 2.4 3.57
Change in contingent consideration (3.9) (15.7}
I;a'\r value of she;re—basea paymem; l.q ) 2
Acquis;'on costs expensed - 26
Transaction costs expensed 0.6 -
Restructuring costs expensed (incmguse asset impairment) 33 -
Fcrease in irventoties 7 {5.0) (Tﬂ
Decrease in recelvables 1.6 54
Increase in payables and provisions 4.1 0.2
Cash flows from continuing operations before restructuring, transaction and acquisition costs 364 313
Restructuring, transaction and acquisition costs paid (1.6} a4
Cash flows from continuing operations 348 269
Discontinued operations
Lass for the period (2.0) ) (ll
Adjustments for: -
Taxation (0.6) (1.0
Decrease in receivables OT -
;crease/(decréase) in payables and provisions 1.1 (1.2)
Cash flows from discontinued operations (1.3} 3.3}
Cash flows from operations 335 236
4.4 Trade and other payables
2022 2021
$m $m
Trade payables 200 229
Contract liabilities - 1.7 33
Other taxan’c;n anc som;\ security - LD_ W
?he; payables 01 O?
Accrualg ) 19.5 128
42.3 4G0.0

Contract liabilities represent amounts invoiced under contracts with customers but net recognised as revenue at the balance sheet date and cash
received in advance $3.3 million (2021 509 million) of the balance in contract hiabilities at the start of the pericd was recognised as revenue in the current
period. The cutstanding balance at the end of the period is expected to be recagnised within the next 12 months,

Other payables comprise sundry 1tems which are not individualiy sigmificant for disclosure.
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Section 5 - Funding

The following section provides disclosures about the Group's funding position, including borrowings, finance costs, expusute Lo financiat risks and capital

management policies,

5.1 Borrowings

2022 2021
Sm $m
Current
Lease liabilities o o 4.1 Z)
Non-current -
Bank loans o 53.7 409
L?ase liabilities 19.7 251
734 66.0
Total Group borrowings 775 70.0
Bank loans comprise drawings under the revolving credit facility.
The Group has the following undrawn committed facilities:
2022 2021
$m $m
Expiring beyond ane year
Total undrawn committed borrowing F;\-ities 151.3 1641
Bank loans and overdrafts utilised 53.7 409
Total Group facilities 205.0 2050

The Group has a revolving credit facility {RCF} with a total commitment of $200 million across six lenders with an accordion option of an additicnal 550
million. $142 million of the facility matures on 8 September 2025. The remaining $58 million matures on 8 September 2024, subject 10 a one-year extension

aption to 8 September 2025.

The RCF is subject to financial covenants measured on a biannual basis. These include a limit of 3.0 times for the ratio of net debt, excluding lease liabilities,

to bank-defined adjusted EBITDA (leverage). The Group was in compliance with all financial covenants during the current and prier finandial periods.

The RCF is drawn in short to medium-term tranches of debt which are repayable within 12 menths of draw-down. These tranches of debst can be rolied over
provided certain conditions are met, Including covenant compliance. The Group considers that it is highly unlikely it would be unable to exercise its right 1o
roll aver the debt based on forecast covenant compliance. Even in a severe downside scenario there are mitigating actions (within the control of the Group)
that could be taken to maintain cornpliance with these conditions, including future covenant requirements. The Directors therefore believe that the Group
has the ability and the intent to roll over the drawn RCF amounts when due and consequently has presented the RCF as a non-current liability,

The RCF is floating rate priced on the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus a margin of 1.45-2.35% depending on leverage. The Group has

provided the lenders with a negative pledge in respect of certain shares in Group companies.

in addition to the RCF our U S operations have access to a $5.0 million overdraft facility, used to manage short-term liguidity requirements.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1t OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 5 — Funding continued
5.1 Borrowings continued
The table below presents the maturity analysis in respect of lease liabilites and bank loans:

2022 2021

$m $m

In one year or less, or on demand 41 40
Two to five ye:ars T 765.5 -;—;55#8
Maore than five years - 7.97* 10.2_

Total Group borrowings 775 70.0

Lease lizbilities retate to land and buildings (right of use assets) leased by the Group for its oftice space and manufacturing facilities, The leases typically
run for a period of 5-15 years. Most leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional peried of 3-12 years after the end of the contract
term. Where practicable, the Group seeks to include extension options in new leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held

are exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors. The Group assesses at lease commencement whether 1t is reasonably certain to excrcise the
exfension options. It reassesses whether itis reasonably certain to exercise the options if there Is a significant change in circumstances within its control
and discloses any potential future lease payrments not included in lease liabilities where it is reasonably certain extension options will be exercised.

Payrments associated with short-terrm leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in the incorme statement,
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less, Law-value assets comprise 1 and other equipment.

5.2 Net finance costs

2022 2021
$m sm
Finance costs:
merest payable 6n bankloans and overdr/afts ' - (2.5) 0.4
— Interest payable in respect of leases o - .0 o ﬁ
- Amort-\'sation of finance fees ‘_—as) 0.8
(4.0} (3.}
Other finance expenses:
j;et \'merc5§ cost: UK defined benememe (note 6.2} j_ 7 (1.3 - (ﬂ
-~ Unwinding of discount on contimgemderation (note 7.1} - T (1.1 2.2
(2.4) (35)
Net finance costs (8.4 16.6)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet dates were as follows:
2022 2021
Sterling Dollar Sterling Dollar
% % % %
Bank loans (iInterest payable on drawn facilities) ~ 4.75% - 1.60%
Lease liabilities 7.70% 2.80% 6.50% 2.50%
Floating interest on bank Joans has been hedged using interest rate swaps as described in note 5.4(iv).
Movement analysis for interest due on bank loans
At 02 October Non cash Exchange At 01 October
20 Cash flow movements movements 2022
$m $m $m $m $m
Interest due on bank loans - (2.5) 2.3 - -
At 26 September Non cash Exchange At02 October
2020 Cash flow movements movements 2021
$m $m $m sm $m
Interest due on bank loans (0.3) {1.3) 14 - -

in addition to cash flows disclosed above for interest payabie, the Group paid $0 2 million in the penod (2021, 50 3 million) relating to RCF extension
options (note 5.1}
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Section 5 - Funding continued
5.3 Analysis of net cash/(debt)

At 2 October Non-cash Exchange At 1 October

2021 Cash flow movements movements 2022

$m $m $m $m $m

Cash and cash equivalents 141 (4.2} - 0.4} 9.5
Bank loans (40.9) {12.8} - - (53.7}
Net debt excluding lease liabilities (26.8) (17.0) - {0.4) (44.2)
Lease ligbilites (29.1) 51 {1.4) 1.6 (23.8)
Net debt (55.9) (11.9) (1.4) 1.2 {68.0)
At 26 September Non-cash Exchange At 2 Octoher

2020 Cash flow movements movements 2021

$m $m $m $m $m

Cash and cash equivalents 1872 (173.7) - 06 14.1
Bank foans (39.5) (1.4 - - (409
Net cash/{debt) excluding lease tiabilities 1477 750 - 0.6 (26.8)
Lease liabilities 29.0) 4.8 4.2 0.7) {29.0)
Net cash/(debt) 1187 (170.3) (4.2} {oR)] {559

5.4 Financial instruments

Financial instruments by category

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) and cash and cash equivalents are classified as 'financial assets’ Borrowings and trade and other
payables are classified as ‘other financial liabilities at amortised cost' Both categories are initially measured at fair value and subsequently held at
amaortised cost.

Derivatives {interest rate swaps} are classified as derivatives used for hedging' and accounted far at fair value with gains and losses taken to reserves
through the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,

Contingent consideration arising from the 3M ballistic protection business acguisition 15 accounted for at fair value. For further details see note 7.1

Financial risk and treasury policies

The Group's finance tearn maintains quidity, manages relations with the Group's bankers, identifies and manages risk and provides a treasury service to
the Group's businesses, Treasury dealings such as investments, borrowings and foreign exchange are conducted only to suppart underlying business
transactions.

{i) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group If 2 customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group’s receivables from custemers and manies an deposit with financiat institutions.

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) an financial assets measured at amortised cost and contract assets (as defined
in IFRS 15},

[CLs arc 2 probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i e the difference between
the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive), ECLs are discounted at the
effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and avaitable without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-loaking information.

Lifetirne ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument,
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 5 - Funding continued

5.4 Financial instruments continued
Financial risk and treasury policies continued
(i} Credit risk continued

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maxirmum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2022 20
Carrying amount of financial assets sm sm
Trade receivables 26.1 394
C?ér receivables - 0.2 ——0?
Cash and cash quivalents ) 9.5 - 147
358 54.4
The maximum exposura to credit risk for financial assets at the reporting date by currency was:
2022 2021
Carrying amount of financial assets $m &m
Pound sterling 2.2 59
U.S. dollar e 472
Euro B o T E
Other currencies ) - \b.s \‘le
35.8 544
The ageing of trade receivables and associated provision for impairment at the reparting date was:
Gross Provision Met Gross Provision Net
2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
$m sm $m Sm $m $m
Not past due 18.8 - 18.8 366 - 366
;5( due 0-30 days ' 6.9 - 6.9 25 - 25
Past due 31-60 days 0.3 (0.2 Q.1 03 - 03
Past due 61-90 days ' - - - - 0. 1 -
lPast due more than 1 days 0.6 - 10.3) 0.3 0.3 0.3 .
26.6 (0.5) 26.) 398 04 394

The total past due receivables, net of pravisions, is $7.3 million (2021, $2.8 million}.

Individually impaired recelvables relate to a small number of specific customers. Provisions for impairment are based on expected creditlosses and are
estimated based on knowledge of customers and historical experience of losses. A portion of these receivables is expected to be recovered.

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2022 2021

sm $m

At the beginning of the period 0.«_1 0.6
Provision for impairment of trade receivasles 0. o2
At the end of the period 0.5 04

The only significant concentration of credit risk 1s with the U S. Government Department of Defense. At the balance sheet date outstanding trade

receivables for this customer were $30 million (2021: $17.6 milkion).

The credit risk in relation (o trade receivables 1s managed via credit evaluations for all non-Government customers requiring credit above a certain
threshold, with required approval levels dependent on the value of sales, Where possible, letters of credit or payments In advance are received for

significant export sales.
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Section 5 - Funding continued

5.4 Financial instruments continued
Financial risk and treasury policies continued
(i) Ligquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far s possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group uses weekly cash flow forecasts 1o monitor cash requirements and to opuinise its borrowing pasition. Typically the Group ensures that it has
sufficient borrowing faciiities to meet fareseeable operational expenses.

The following shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments, where applicable, and excluding the impact of netting

agreements and on an undiscounted basis

Carrying Contractual Less than
amount cash flows 12 months 2-5 years After 5 years
Analysis of contractyal cash flow maturities sm $m $m $m $m
2 October 2022
Bank loans and overdrafts 537 63.6 4.2 59.4 -
Trade and other payables 41.3 41.3 41.3 - -
Lease liabilities 238 29.6 - 4.9 141 10.6
Derivatives - 0.5 0.5 0.2 0.3 -
ajntmgent consideration - - - - -
119.3 135.0 50.6 73.8 10.6
Carrying Contractual Less than
amount cash flows 12 months 2-5 years After 5 years
Analysis of contractual cash flow maturities $m $m $m $m $m
1 October 2021
Bank loans and overdrafts 409 445 14 43 -
Trade and other payables 39.2 392 392 - B
Lease liabilities 29, 366 50 1727 139
Derivatives - - -— - - -
Contingent consideration 6.0 72 35 37 =
115.2 1275 491 64.5 139

{ifi) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to transactional foreign exchange risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales and purchases
are denominated and the respective functional currencies of Group companies, The functional currencies of Group companies are sterling and LS. dollars.

Transactional risk is minimised through natural hedging of sales and purchase currencies at a Company tevel The Group monitors net transactional
exposure and can utilise forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the remaining currency risk. These contracts are generally designated as cash flow

hedges. At the end of the reporting period there were no forward contracts outstanding (2021 $nil).

The Group is also exposed to translational foreign exchange risk arising when the results of sterling denominated companies are consolidated into the
Group presentational currency, U.S. dollars, Group policy 1s not to hedge translational foreign exchange risk.

In respect of monetary assets and liabilities that are not denominated in Company functional currencies, the Group reguiarly reviews net exposure and
ensures this is kept to an acceptable level by manitering intercompany funding structures and buying or selling foreign currencies where necessary o

address short-term imbalances.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 5 - Funding continued

5.4 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk and treasury policies continued

(iiiy Currency risk continued

Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that, with all other variables held equal (in particular other exchange rates), a one cent Increase in the value of the U.S. dollar against sterling
would have increased the Group's current year profit before interest and tax by $0.2 million {2021: 30.2 million), increased the Group's profit after tax by
$0.2 million {2021: 50.2 million) and Increased shareholders' funds by $0.2 millior (2021: $0.6 million)

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate Closing rate Average rate Closing rate

2022 2022 2021 2021

Pound sterling 0.7841 0.9058 73N 07384
(iv) Interest rate risk

2022 2021

Derivative financial instruments - interest rate swaps $m $m

Current 0.2 -

Non-current 03 _

0.5 -

At 2 October Non-cash At 1 October

2021 Cash flow mavemernts 2022

$m sm im $m

Interest rate swaps - - 0.5 0.5

The RCF is floaung rate priced using the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR). In 2022 the Group has implemented a new hedging policy using
interest rate swaps to fix a portion of SOFR floating rate interest. The notional value of interest rate swaps at 1 Qctober 2022 was $30.0 million (2021: $nil),
expifing on 8 Septermber 2025 10 line with the RCF

After taking account of hedging, & 1.0% Increase in SOFR would increase interest payable on bank loans by $0.2 million (2021: $0 2 miltion).

v} Capital risk management
The Group's objectves when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability te continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, whilst mantaining an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
155ue new shares,

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, calculated as net debt excluding lease liabilities divided by capital, and leverage (note 5.1).
The Group's gearing ratio at the balance sheet date was:

2022 2021

im $m

Net debr excduding lease liabilities {44.2) (26.8)
aoup market capitalisation T ) 585.0 - 8159
Gearing ratic 7 - - - an O‘O;
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Section 5 - Funding continued
5.4 Financial instruments continued
Financial risk and treasury policies continued

{vi) Fair values
The fair values of financial assets and liahilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet, are as follows:

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

2022 2022 2021 2021

$m $m $m Sm

Trade receivables 26.1 261 394 394

Other receivables 0.2 - 0.2 0.9 09
Dervatives 7 0.5 0.5 - -

Cash and cash equiva\ent;— 9.5 9.5 ]41— 14.1
Bank loans and overdrafts (53.7) (53.7) 409 (409)
Trade and other payables ) (41.3) 41.3) (39“2) {39.2)
Contingent consideration 7 - - Eo (66)7

Basis for determining fair value
The following summarises the significant methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instrurnents reflected in the table above.

Derivatives
The Group's interest rate swaps are not traded in active markets, These have been fair valued using observable interest rates. The effects of non-
observable inputs are not significant for interest rate swaps.

Counterparty banks perform valuations of interest rate swaps for financial reporting purposes, determined by discounting the future cash flows at rates
determined by year end yield curves.

Secured loans
As the loans are floating rate barrowings, amortised cost is deemed to refiect fair value.

Trade and other receivables/payables
As the majority of receivables/payables have a remaining life of less than one year, the noticnal amount is deemed to reflect the fair value.

Contingent consideration

The estimated fair value is calculated as the present value of the future expected cash flows relating to the contract discounted using a risk-adjusted
discount rate. Key unocbservable inputs into the fair value calculation are the expected future cash flows and the risk adjusted discount rate. The estimated
fair value would change if the expected cash flows were lower than expected or the discount rate applied was higher.

5.5 Equity
Share capital
Ordinary Share Ordinary Share
Number shares premium Number shares premium
of shares 2022 2022 of shares 2021 2021
2022 $m $m 2021 $m $m
Called up allotted and fully
paid ordinary shares of £1 each
At the beginning of the period 31,023,292 5.3 54.3 31,023,292 503 543
At the end of the period 31,023,292 50.3 54.3 31,023,292 503 54.3

Ordinary sharehaolders are entitled 1o receive dividends and to vote at meetings of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 5 - Funding continued
5.5 Equity continued
Own shares held - Long-Term Incentive Plan

2022 2021

Number of shares Number of shares

Opening balance 334,933 7398,560
;Cq uired in the pericd 7 ) - 95,855
Disposed of on ex-ercise of options . {73,219) {159,482)
Closing balance 261,714 334933

These shares are held in trust in respect of awards made under the Avon Rubber pl.c Lang-Term incentive Plan. Dividends on the shares have been
waived. The market value of shares held in trust at 1 October 2022 was $3.2 mitlion (2 October 2021: $8.8 million}. The shares are held at cost as treasury
shares and deducted from shareholders’ equity.

In December 2021 73,219 shares vested under the Avon Rubber plc. Long-Term Incentive Plan and were distributed to employees {2021: 159,482 shares
vested and were distributed to employees in January 2021).In the 53 weeks ended 2 October 2021 95,855 shares were acquired by the trust

Own shares held - Share Buyback Programme
2022 2021

Number of shares Number of shares

Opening balance - -
Acquired in the period 765,098 -
Closing balance 765,098 -

In the 52 weeks ended 1 QOctaber 2022 the Group completed a £5.25 mitlion (512.4 million) Share Buyback Programme, purchasing 765,098 ordinary
shares. Dividends an the shares have been waived. Purchased shares under the programme are held at cost as rreasury shares and deducted from
shareholders' equity.

5.6 Dividends
On 28 January 2022, the shareholders approved a final dividend of 30.6 cents per qualifying ordinary share in respect of the 53 weeks ended 2 October
2021, This was paid on 11 March 2022 utilising $9.1 million of sharehalders’ funds {2021: $7.7 million),

The Board of Directors declared an interim dividend of 14.3 cents (2021: 14.3 cents) per qualifying ordinary share in respect of the 52 weeks ended
1 Qctober 2022, This was paid on 2 September 2027 utilising $4.3 million {2021, $4.4 million) of shareholders’ funds,

The Board 1s recommending a final dividend of 30.6 cents per share (2021: 30 6 cents) which together with the 14 3 cents per share interim dividend gives a
total dividend of 44 9 cents {2021, 44.9 cents). The final dividend will be paid on 10 March 2023 to shareholders on the register at 10 February 2023 with an
ex-dividend date of @ February 2023,

Dividend cover

2022 2021

$ cents $ cents

Interirn dividend 14.3 143
Final div'\rdend 30.6 306
Total dividend 449 449
Basic earnings per share - continuing operations (18.5) 1799}
Dividend cover ratio {0.4) times (1.8)times
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Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits
The following pages include disclosures on wages and salaries and share option schemes which allow employees of the Group to take an equity interest
in the Group.

This section also includes disclosures in relation to both the U K defined benefit scherne which was closed to future accrual of benefitin 2009, and
contributions made to defined contribution schemes

6.1 Employees
Total remuneration and associated costs for the periad, in relation to both continuing and discontinued operations, were:

2022 20

sm $m

Wages and salaries 66.3 630
Social security €osts o o 6.0 o 56
Er%'ér peENsSion Costs 30 29
LS, healthcare costs T N 6.4 ) 58
;‘;r;-bascd payments (note 6.3) 1.0 0.7
827 780

Detailed disclosures of Directors’ remuneration and share options, including disclosure of the highest paid Director, are given on page 98.

The average monthly number of employees (including Executive Directors) during the period was:

2022 2021
Number Number
Avon Protection 1,024 1,043

At the end of the financial peniod, the total number of employees in the Group was 1,007 (2021: 1,057).

Key management compensation
The key management compensation below includes the Executive Directors plus five (2021: seven) others who were members of the Group Executive
during the period. It does not include Non-Executive Directors.

20

2022 $m
$m restated’

Salaries and other employee benefits 3.8 31
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.3
4.0 34

1 Restated o exclude Nor-Executive Directars
The value of LTIP share awards held by key management that vested during the period was $0.7 million (2021: $3.3 million).

6.2 Pensions and cther retirement benefits
Defined contribution pension scheme
The charge in respect of defined contribution pension schemes was $3.0 muillion {2027: $2.9 million).

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc 157

SINIWILYLS TYIONVYNIA



NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits continued
6.2 Pensions and other retirement benefits continued

Defined benefit pension scheme

Retirement benefit assets and liabilities can be analysed as follows:

2022 2021
sm sm
Net pension liatility 6.3 68 3

The Group operated a contributory defined benefit plan to provide pension and death benefits for the employees of Avon Protection plc and 1ts Group
undertakings in the UK. employed prior te 31 January 2003, The plan was closed to future accrual of benefit on 1 October 2009 and has a weighted
average maturity of approximately 12 years. The assets of the plan are held in separate trustee administered funds and are invested by professional
investment managers. The trustee is Avon Rubber Pension Trust Limited, the Directors of which are members of the plan. Three of the Directors are
appointed by the Company and two are elected by the members. The defined benefit plan exposes the Group to actuarial nisks such as longevity risk,
inflation risk and fnvestrment risk,

The funding of the plan s based on regulat actuarial valuations. The mostrecent full actuarial valuation of the plan was carned out et 31 Maich 2019 when
the market value of the plan’s assets was £335.8 million, The fair value of those assets represented 83% of the value of the benefits which had accrued to
members, after allowing for future increase in pensions.

The net pension liability for the scheme amounted to $6.3 million as at 1 Qctober 2022 (2021, $66.3 million) The reduction is due to a higher discount rate
being applied to pension liabilities, partially offset by a fall in plan asset values

During the period the Group made payments to the plan of $8.5 million (2021. $2.9 million} in respect of scheme expenses and deficit recovery plan
payments, including a $4.0 million prepayment covering all contributions due in FY¥23. In accordance with the deficit recovery plan agreed following
the 31 March 2019 actuarial valuation, the Group will make payments in FY24 of $4 3 million in respect of deficit recovery and scheme expenses. These
payments are subject to review following the March 2022 actuarial valuation which will be finalised in 2023.

Plan assets include Liability Driven Investments (LD} of $54 4 million (2021 $122.2 rmullion), which are held to manage funding risk The fall in LDI
valuation reflects increases in government bond yields through 2022, The Group is in close contact with the trustees of the scheme to monitor cash
liquidity risk in context of recent market volatility, including collateral requirements for the LDI. To the date of this report, the scheme has covered all LDt
collateral requirements.

The Directors have confirmed no additional liability is required to be recognised as a conseguence of minimum funding requirements The trustees have
no rights to wind up the scheme or improve benefits without Company consent,

An updated actuarial vatuation for IAS 19 (revised) purposes was carnied out by an independent actuary for period end using the projected unit
credit method,

Movement in net defined benefit liability

Defined benefit obligation Defined benefit asset Net defined benefit liability

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
$m $m $m sm $m $m
At the beginning of the period (534.7) {526.3} 4664 446.7 (68.3} {796)
Includedin profitﬂor loss 7 o
merlnstranve expenses - (2.8} {1.2) - - ) {0.8) 3.2)
Net interest Cost (10.3) 8.6) 9.0 73 (3.3) {1.3)
. (9.8) 2.0 7.3 2.1} 2.9)
Included in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement {loss)/gain _
Actuarial (loss)/gain arising from:
. Demographic assumptions (0.2) (0.4) - - 0.2 E
- Financial assumptians 175.4 36 - - 175.;« 36
‘—_Experience adjustment (11.3) 73 - ) - (11.3) ?37
- Return on plan asséts excluding interest income - - {113.8) 57 (113.8) 5/77
163.9 10.5 (113.8) 57 501 162
Other
Contributions by the e-»mp\oyer - - 8.5 29 8.5 _g
Net benefits baid out 215 7 24.5 (21.5}‘ (245} - -

FX gain/(loss)

755

(3363

{70.0) 283

5.5

At the end of the period

(284.9)

15347}

2786 466 4

6.3)

158 Avon Protection ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022



Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits continued
6.2 Pensions and other retirement benefits continucd

Plan assets
The fair value of the assets of the pension scheme analysed by asset categaory is shawn below:

2022 20

5m $m

Equities and other securities 105.6 1807
Liability Driven Investment - o 544 1229
Secured income fund T 7 ) 53.1 535
Infrastructure fund - o 55.2 ) 67.6
Cash B o - 10.3 25
Total fair value of assets 278.6 4664

Equity securities are valued using gquoted prices in active markets where available. The Liability Driven Investment (LDI) comprises an investment in a
level 2 pooled investment vehicle which combines a series of variable interest-earning cash deposits combined with contracts to hedge interest rate and
inflation risk. The LD! is valued using a net asset value published on the Irish Stock Exchange.

$1698 million (2021 $194.8 million) of the remaining investments are classified as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. Holdings in unquoted securities are
valued at fair value which is typically the net asset value provided by the fund administrator at the rost recent quarter end. Holdings in the infrastructure
fund are valued by an independent valuer using a model-based valuation such as a discounted cash flow approach.

The significant assumpticns used in the valuation are the discount rate and the expected cash flows, both of which are subject to estimation uncertainty.
Changes in assumptions relating to these variables could pasitively or negatively impact the reported fair value of these instrurnents.

The Aven Rubber defined benefit pension scheme has an investment strategy which is targeted at maximising investment returns with a low-risk strategy
which still represents a prudent approach to meeting the plan's liabilities and ensuring that members’ benefits are protected. The strategy considers

the need for appropriate asset class diversification to batance the risks and rewards across a range of alternative asset classes, The investments held by
the pension scheme include both quoted and unquoted securities, the latter which by thewr nature involve assurmptions and estimates to determine

their fair value. Where there is not an active market for the unquoted securities the fair value of these assets are estimated by the pension trustees based
on advice received from the investment manager whilst also using any available market evidence of any recent transactions for an identical asset. The
target weightings under the current asset allocation strategy are 40% to matching investments, 50% to cash flow driven investments and 10% to return-
seeking investments.

Actuarial assumptions
The main financial assumptions used by the independent qualified actuaries to caiculate the liabilities under IAS 19 {revised) are set out below;

2022 2021

% p.a. % p.a.

Inflation (RPI) 3.60 3.55
Inflaticn (CPY) 2.80 ' ' 275
Pension increases post-August 2005 2.30 2.30
Pension increases pre-August 2005 3.45 340
Discount rate for';Acheme liabilities 7 5.30 2.00
Base mortality 7 100% of S2NA tables, based on membérs' year of birth 100% of S2NA tables, based on members year of birth

Future improvements in longevity  CMI 2021 projections with a long-term trend of 1.50% p.a. (M1 2020 projections with a long-term trend of 1.50% p a.

RPlinflation has been setin line with market break even expectations less an inflation risk premium of 0.3% {2021: 0.2%) The impact of the 0.1% change
ininflation risk premium reduced period end halance sheet liabilities by approximately $2.5m.

Changes to RPI

The conclusion of the joint consultation between the U K. Government and the U.K, Statistcs Authority in November 2020 was that RFl is intended to
be algned with CPIH from February 2030 and therefore the margin between RPLand TPl will reduce over time, As a result, the Company reduced the
long-term gap between RPI and CPI by ten basis points from 0.9% to 0.89%) in the prior period.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 6 — Key management and employee benefits continued

6.2 Pensions and other retirement benefits continued

Mortality rate

Assumptions regarding future mortality expenence are set based on advice, published statistics and experience

The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 on the baiance sheet date is as follows:

2022 2021
Male 21.8 a7
Female ' ' 238 38
The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, 20 years after the balance sheet date is as follows

2022 2021
Male 234 234
Female - 256 256

No adjustments have been to mortality assumptions at period end to reflect the effects of COVID-19 as it is too soon to make a judgement on the impact
of the pandemic on future mortality improvements. Mortality experience analysis for the schemes will be carried out as a part the next full actuarial
valuation.

Sensitivity analysis
Defined benefit obligation

increase/{decrease)

sm

inflation (1.0% increase) ] 21.4
Inflation {1.0% decrease) ) ) (22.0)
D»scqym rate for scheme liabilities (1.0% increase} {30.7)
ﬁﬁount rate for scheme habilities (1.0% decrease) 372
Future mortality (cne-year in-crease) ] 10.9

The above sensitivity analysis shows the impact on the defined benefit obligation only, not the net pension liability as it does not take into account any
impact oh the asset valuation. Each sensitivity analysis disclosed in this note is based on changing one assumptian while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur.

6.3 Share-based payments

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based Performance Share Plan (PSP) Details of the plan are set out in the Remuneration Report, section
‘Long-Term Incentive Plan’ on page 94, An expense of $10 million {2021: 50 7 million) was recegnised in the period relating to share-based payments
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Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits continuad

6.3 Sharc-based payments continued

The table below summarises the movements in the number of share options outstanding for the Group, all of which are nil cost options:

Number of Number of

options options

2022 201

'‘000s ‘000s

Outstanding at the beginning of the period 372 423
Forfeited during the period (165) (13}
Exercised during the periad (74) {159}
Granted during the period 285 71
Outstanding at the end of the period 418 372

The weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding share options 15 17 maonths {2021: 14 months). All the share options that vested in the

period vested on 20 December 2021 at a share price of £1157.

A Monte Carlo simulation was used to calculate the fair value of awards granted that are subject to a total shareholder return performance condition,
The fair value of other awards was calculated as the market price of the shares at the date of grant reduced by the present value of the dividends expecied

to be paid ver the vesting period. The principal assumptions used were:

2022 201
Weighted average fair value (£) 9.07 21.79
Key assumptions used:
ac;smg share price at date of grant (£) 11.41 31.25
Expected volatility (%) 439 367
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.1 -
Expected option term {yrs) 3.0 28
Dividend yield (%) - -
volatility is estimated based on experience over the last three years.
Section 7 - Other
7.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges Warranty Property Contingent
provisions obligations consideration Total
$m $m $m sm
Batance at 26 September 2020 - .7 19.5 222
Provision created during the period - 01 - 01
Release of contingent con5|dcratilon - - (15.7) (15.7)
Unwind of discount on provisions - - 2.2 22
Foreign exchange movernents - 01 - Q1
Balance at 2 October 2021 - 29 6.0 89
Transferred from accruals on 3 October 2021 1.5 - - 1.5
Provision created during the periad 2.2 0.8 - 3.0
Cash payments (1.3) - 7 (3.2) {4.5)
Release of contingent consideration - - (3.9 (3.9
Unwind of discount on provisions - - 1.1 1.1
Foreign exchange mavernents (Ojl) {0.4) - (0.5)
Balance at 1 October 2022 23 3.3 - 5.6
2022 2021
Analysis of total provisions sm $m
Current 0.7 35
Non-current o 49 54
5.6 89
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 7 - Other continued

7.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges continued

Warranty provisions cover expected costs under guarantees provided with certain products. Warranty provisions were previously included within accruals.
On 3 Octeber 2021 warranty provisions were transferred from accruals to provisions for liabilities and charges, this being considered a more appropriate
categerisation. The Directors have reviewed the impact on the prior period and considered this not material.

Froperty obligations relate to leasced premises of the Group which are subject to dilapidation risks and are expected to be utilised within the next 15 years.

The purchase consideration in relation to the 3M ballistic protection business acquisition included contingent consideration up to a maximum of

$25 0 millicn depending on the cutcome of certain tenders which were pending at the acquisiton date and the level of sales wh ¢h were generated on
these contracts if secured. At acguisition the fair value of the contingent consideration was recogrised as 520.0 million based on the expected value and
timing of those payments after applying a discount rate of 129% to reflect the risk in the cash flows at that date.

The contract that triggered the contingent consideration was awarded shortly after the acquisition date with subsequent orders resulting in payments of
$34 million in 2020 and $3.2 million in 2022

The release of $15.7 millian in the prior period was due ta reduced expectations of the timing and amount of orders ($14.9 million), and an increase to
the discount rate applied to expected future payments ($0.8 million). In 2022 the contractual order period closed with no further orders. As a result the
remaining $3.9 million was released.

7.2 Acquisitions and divestments
Acquisition — Team Wendy
The acquisition of the Team Wendy business completed on 2 November 2020,

The Group acquired 100% of the equity for a total consideration of $132.0 million, beirg the $130 0 million initial consideration and purchase price
adjustments of 520 mitlion reflecting the cash and working capital position at close. The net assets acquired had a book value of $22.3 million before fair
value adjustments.

Set out below 15 an analysis of the assigned fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed relating to this acquisition:

Fair value

$m

Customer relationships - 282
Brand WwO.T
Other intang\blre assets " 13?1 -
Praperty, plant and equfpmem 7 ) B 7 84
Inventories - - 122
Trade and other reccivables o ?
Cash k . - 11
Lease lisbuhty gﬁ
Trade and other pavables - (2.6
Net assets acquired 73.7
Gaoodwill 583
Total consideration 1320
Initial cash consideration 1300
Post-comptetion working capital adjustment - 0%
Cash acquired 11
Total consideration 1320

Goodwill of $58.3 million was recognised in respact of this acquisition, representing the amount paid for future sales growth from both new customers
and new products, operating cost synergies and employes know-how 100% of the value of goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax purposes

From the date of acguisiton to 2 Octaber 2021, Team Wendy generated $41 0 million of revenue (including 56.7 million from other Group companies)
and reported an operating profit of $4.6 million. The operating profitis stated after amortisation of acquired intangibles of 54 0 milllon and expensing
the $2.4 million inventory fair value step-up fallowing the sell througk of the acquired inventory. Had Teem Wendy been acquired on the first day of the
financial peniad, then the estimated contribution to revenue would have been 544 7 million and operating profit $5 0 million, In 2022 Team Wendy has
been fully integrated into the wider respiratory and head protection segment (note 2.1)

Acquisition costs of $2.2 million were expensed in the prior penod, following the recognition of $7.4 million of such costs in 2020, Acquisition costs of
S 1A milion were paid in the prior penod
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Section 7 - Other continued
7.3 Other financial commitments

2022 2021
$m $m
Capital expenditure committed 1.7 28

Capital expenditure committed represents the amount contracted in respect of property, plant and equipment at the end of the financial period for
which no provision has been made in the financial statements

7.4 Group undertakings . .
Country in which
Registered office address Activity incorporated
Held by Parent Company
Avon Polymer Products Limited Hampton Park West, Melksham, SN12 8NB UK The manufacture and distribution UK.
of respiratory protection systems
Avon Pratection Holdings Limited Hampton Park West, Melksham, SN12 6NB ULK. Investment holding company UK,
Avon Rubber Pension Trust Limited Hampton Park West, Melksham, SN12 6NB UK. Pension fund trustee UK.

Held by Group undertakings

Avor Protection Systems, Inc. 503 8th St, Cadillac, M1 49601, United States The manufacture and distribution of respiratary us
and ballistic protection systemns

Avon Rubber & Plasucs, Inc. 503 8th St, Cadillac, M1 49601, United States Investment holding company us

Avon Protection Ceradyne, LLC 4000 Barranca Parkway, Suite 100, lrvine, The manufacture and distribution us,
CA 82604, United States of ballistic protection systems

Team Wendy LLC 17000 St Clair Ave, Cleveland, OH 44110, The manufacture and distribution us.
United States of helmet systems

Aven Technologies Limited Hampton Park West, Melksham, SN12 6NB UK. Darmant company UK.

Avon Protection UK. Limited Hampton Park West, Melksham, SN12 6NB UK, Dormant company UK.

Shareholdings are ordinary shares and all undertakings are wholly owned by the Group and operate primarily in their country of incorporation. All
companies have the same financial year end. Avon Polymer Products Limited and Avon Protection Holdings Limited are exempt from the requirement to
file audited accounts by virtue of section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act’). All remaining UK. subsidiaries are exempt from the requirement to
file audited accounts by virtue of section 480 of the Act.

7.5 Related party transactions

Exceptin respect of the defined benefit pension scheme, intemal transactions between Group companies, and compensation of key management
personnel there were no refated party transactions during the period or outsianding at the end of the period (2021 $nil}. Transactions with the defined
benefit pension scheme are disclosed in note 6.2. Key management compensatian is disclosed in note 6.1,
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AT 1 OCTOBER 2022

2021
2022 £m
Note £m restated’
Assets -
En-current assets
Tangible assets ) 4 44 45
Intangible assers ~ .
mments n subsidiaries 5 181.0 191.07
beferred tax assets & 2.5 25
197.9 198.0
Current assets
;a_de and other receivables 7 2.0 0
Cash and cash equivalents 0.2 ) 5.2
2.2 12.2
Liabilities
Current Iiabilitie;
Barrowings 10 7 0.5 05
;a_de and other payables 78 21.3 2;
21.8 280
Net current liabilities (15.6} {15.8}
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 0 5.1 5.4
m'\ons for liabilities and éharges ) 9 2.2 1‘5—
73 69
Net assets 171.0 1753
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares - " 31.0 SIT
thare premium account 347 3;
Capital redemprtion reserve 0.5 O;
Retained earnings 104.8 ’ 1091
Total equity 171.0 1753

1 Seencte 13%r details aof -estaternent

The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the Company profit and loss account
The prefit “or the Company for the period was £15.3 million (2021: vrofit of £12.6 mullion).

These financial stazements on pages 164 to 171 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 November 2027 and signed on its behalf by:

Bruce Thompson Rich Cashin

Executive Chair Chief Financial Officet

The accompanyirg accounting policies and notes form part of these financial staterments.
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

Capital

Share Share redemption Retained Total

capital  premium reserves earnings’ equity

Note £m £m £m £m £m

At 26 September 2020 as previously reported 310 347 05 1246 1903
Restaternent’ i 13 . - {15.3) {(153)
At 26 September 2020 as restated " - 31.0 347 ‘ 05 109.3 T 175.5
Profit for the vear 1 - - - 126 126
Ew—igiénds paid 2 - - - &7 8.7}
Own sha_res acquired ) 1 - - - E_li (3n
Fair valuomharc based payments 12 7 - - - 04 04
Deferred tax relating to ermployee slzware schemes ” 6 - - - 4 (1.4)

At 2 October 2021 as restated 310 3a7 0.5 1091 175.3

Profit for the year - 1 - - - 15.3 15.3
Dividen('j';—;);d 2 - - - (10.5) (10.5)
Own shares acquired n - - - (9.3} (9.3)
a;alue of share-based payments 12 - - - 0.7 0.7-
Deferred tax relating 1o employee share schemes 6 - - - (0.5) (0.5)

At 1 October 2022 31.0 347 0.5 104.8 171.0

1 Seenote 13 fat further cetails of restaterment
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PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below These policies have been
consistently anplied 1o all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101).

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the
recognition, measurement and disclosure requirernents of International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 (Adopted IFRSs'), but makes amendments where
necessary in order to comply with the Companies Act 2006 and has set
out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has
been taken:

« presentation of a cash flow staterment and related notes (AS 7),

cornparative period reconciliations for share capital and intangible
and tangible fixed assets (paragragh 38, IAS 1);

transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries (A5 241,
- capital management {paragraphs 134136, IAS 1);
share-based payments (paragraphs 45(b) and 46-52, IFRS 2}
- financial instruments (IFRS 7);
+ compensation of key management personnel (paragraph 17, |AS 24);

» fairvalue measurement (paragraphs 91-99, IFRS 13);

leases {paragraphs 90-93, IFRS 16);

- the reguirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors; and

» the requircments of paragraph 18A of 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the Group financial
staternents,

Foreign currencies

The Company's functional currency is sterling as this is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates. Foreign
currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate ruling on the
date of transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions, and from the retranslation at year end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit and loss account

Pensions

The Group operated a contributory defined benefit plan to provide
pension and death benefits for the employees of Avon Protection plc and
its Group undertakings in the UK. employed priar 1o 31 January 2003,
The scheme s closed to new entrants and was closed o future accrual of
benefits from 1 October 2009, Scheme assets are measured using market
values, while abilities are measured using the projected unit method,
One of the Company's subsidiaries, Avon Polymer Products Limited, is
the employer that 1s legally responsible for the scheme and the pension
obligations are included in full in its accounts. No asset or provision has
been reflected in the Company's balance sheet for any surplus or deficit
ansng ‘nrespect of pension oblizations.

The Comgany also provides pensions by contributing to defined
contribution schemes. The charge in the profit and loss account reflects
the contributions pard and payable to these schermes duning the period,
Full disclosures of the UK pension schemnes have been provided in the
Group financral staterme- s
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Share-based payments

The Company operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total armount to be expensed aver the vesting penad is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conaitions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets) Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected 1o vest At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, 1In the profit and loss account, The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited

to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised

Plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historcal cost less accurnulated
depreciation and any recognisec imparment losses.

Costs include the original purchase price of the asset and the
costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use including any qualifying finance expenses.

Depreciation 15 provided o write down the depreciable amount
of relevant assets by equal annual instalments over their estimated
useful lives,

In general, the lives used are:
+ Leasehold property - period of lease agreement

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount iIf its carrying amount is greater than its estimated net realisable
value. Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts

Leases

Right of use assets and lease liabilities are recognised ar the
commencement date of the contract for all leases conveying
the right to control the associated asset for a period of time,

The right of use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial measurement of the lease liahility plus an estmate of dilapidation
provisions (note 10} where required. Subsequently the right of use

assets are measured at cost less accurnulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease lizbility.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis aver the life of the lease,
In general the lives used are.

+ Leasehold property — period of the lease

The lease llability is initially measured at the present value of the legse
payments due over the life of the lease, The lease payments are discounted
at the rate implicit in the lease or if that is not readly determined using the
Company's incremental borrowing rate.



Leases centinued

The lease terrm is deterrnined with reference to any non-canceilable period
of lease contracts plus any periods covered by an option to extend/
terminate the lease if it is considered reasonably certain that the option
will/will not be exercised. In concluding whether or not it is reasanably
certain an option will be exercised for new leases managernent has
considered the three-year strategic outlook for the Group and other
operational factors.

Subsegquently the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying
value to reflect interest on the liability and reducing the carrying value 1o
retlect lease payments made,

The carrying value of lease liabilities and associated assets will
be remeasured ta reflect any charges tu Lhie fease or other
assumptions applied.

Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are recorded at cost plus incidental
expenses less any provision for impairment. Impairment reviews are
performed by the Directors when there has been an indication of potential
impairment.

Deferred taxation

Because of the differences between accounting and taxabie profits and
losses reported in each period, temporary differences arise on the armount
certain assets and liabilities are carried at for accounting purposes and
their respective tax values, Deferred tax is the amount of tax payable or
recoverable on these temparary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities arise where the carrying amount of an asset is higher
than the tax value (more tax deduction has been taken). This can happen
where the Company invests in capital assets, as governments often
encourage investrment by allowing tax depreciation to be recognised
faster than accounting depreciation This reduces the tax value of the

asset relative to its accounting carrying amount, Deferred tax habilities are
generally provided on all taxable temporary differences. The periods over
which such temporary differences reverse will vary depending on the lif2
of the related asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets arise where the carrying amount of an asset is lower
than the tax value {less tax benefit which has been taken). Deferred tax
assets are recognised only where the Company considers it probable
that it will be able to use such losses by offsetting them against future
taxable profits.

However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination thart at the tme of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the enacted or substantively enacted
rates that are expected to apply when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recevables are classified as measured at amortised cost
The Company recognises loss aliowances for expected credit losses (ECLs)
on financial assets measured at amortised cost. Loss allowances for trade
receivabies are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,

highly liquid interest-bearing securities with maturities of three months
orless, and banx overdrafts. Bank overdrats are shawn within borrowings
in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade payables
Trade pavables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ardinary course of business from supplhers

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. They are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently heid at amortised cast.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:

the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event; and

« itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated

Where there are a number of similar obligations, for example where a
warranty has been given, the likelhood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as

a whole, A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligation
rmay be smali.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred and subsequently stated at amortised cost. Borrowing costs are
expensed using the effective interest method.

Dividends

Final dividends are recegnised as a liability in the Company's financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
shareholders, while interim dividends are recegnised in the period In
which the dividends are paid.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, nel of tax, ltom the pioceeds.

Where the Company purchases its own share capital (treasury shares)
through employee share ownership trusts, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxes), is deducted from sharehciders’ funds until the shares are cancelled,
reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently soid or
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in shareholders’ funds
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 CCTOBER 2022

1 Parent Company
As g Consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive ncome is published, a separate profit and loss account for the Parent Company is amitied from the
accounts by virtue of section 408 of the Campanies Act 2006 The Parent Company's profit for the financial year was £15.3 million (2021 £12.6 million).

The audit fee n respect of the Parent Company is set out in note 2.5 to the Group financial statements.

2 Dividends
Details of the Company's dividends are set out in note 5.6 to the Group financial statements.

3 Employees
The only employees of the Company during the current period were the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finandial Officer to the Group.
Detailed disclosures of the Execuuive Directors' remuneranon packages are provided in the Remuneration Repo't on page 98 to 100

In the prior period, the Company alsc employed a monthly average of 54 administrative staff. These employees were transferred to Avon Polymer
Products Lirnited, a wholly owned substdiary of the Company, on 2 October 2021,

4 Tangible assets
Lease assets
£m
Cost ] )
A2 October 2021 - R , - es
Additions S T V 05
At 1 October 2022 1.3
Depreciation charge
At2October2021 T 63
aa.rge fort.he period‘_ - - - T . 06
At 1 October 2022 69
Net book value
At 1 October 2022 4.4
At 2 October 2021 45
Lease assets relate to the Group's leased preperties,
5 Investments in subsidiaries
2022 2021
Em £m
Opening net hook value 191.0 n37z
Additions - 773
Closing net book vaiue 191.0 191.0

During the prior period, the Campany rmade an additional cash investrnent in Avon Protecuon Holdings Limited of £773 million to support the funding of
the Tearmn Wendy acquisition,

The investments consist of a 100% {unless indicated as otherwise) interest in the following subsidianes:

Country in which

Principal activity Registered office incorporated
Avon Polymer Products Limited The manufacture and distribution Hampton Park West, Melksham, SN12 6NB UK. UK,

of respiratory protection systems _
Avon Protection Holdings Limited Invésrment compam_y__ Hampton Parchsp Melksharn, SN12 6NB UK. LK
Avon Rubber Pension Trust Limited Pension fund trustee Harnpron Park Wesrt, Melksham, SN12 6NB UK U K.i

PDetarls of investments hald by these subsidiaries are given in note 74 to the Group finandial siatements,
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6 Deferred tax assets

Accelerated Other
Share capital temporary
options allowances differences Total
£m £m £m £m
At 26 September 2020 2.3 0.1 04 28
Credited/{charged) to profit for the year 0.1 01} 11 13
Charged to equity (id) - - (1.4}
At 2 October 2021 10 - 1.5 2.5
Credited to profit for the year 0.1 - 04 0.5
Charged to equity {0.5) - - (0.5)
At 1 October 2022 0.6 - 19 25
7 Trade and other receivables
2021
2022 £m
£m restated’
Other receivables 0.2 02
Prepayments 1.0 18
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 0.8 50
2.0 70
1 Seerpie 13 ‘or cetals of resratement
Amounts due to Group undertakings are unsecured, are interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand
8 Trade and other payables
2022 2021
£m £m
restated’
Trade payables 0.3 0.6
Accruals 30 17
Amounts due to Group undertakings 18.0 252
21.3 275

1 See noie 13 for detans of resratement

Amounts due to Group undertakings are unsecured, are interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

9 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Property

obligations

£m

Balance at 26 September 2020 15
Addition during the period -
Balance at 2 October 2021 15
Addition during the period 07
Balance at 1 October 2022 22
2022 201

Analysis of total provisions £m £m
Non-current 2.2 15
2.2 15

Provisions relate to property obligations arising in relation to leased premises of the Company which are subject to dilapidation risks and are expected 1©
be utilised within the next ten years Property provisions are subject to uncertainty in respect of any final negotiated settlement of any dilapidation claims
with landlords,

10 Borrowings
The Group has 3 revolving credit facility with total commitments of 5200 million across six lenders with an accordion option of an additional 550 millicn
Further details regarding credit nisks are disclosed in note 54 1o the Group finandial staternents.

2022 2021
£m £m
Current
Lease liabillties T 05 05
Non-current
Lease liabilities T T S 51 54
Total borrowings 5.6 59
The table beiow presents the contractual maturity analysis in respect of lease liabilities
2022 202
£m £m
In one year arless, or on demand 0.5 0.5
ﬁo five years - ?— 2?
Maore than five years - - 25 3
Total lease liabilities 5.6 5.9

Lease liabilives relate to land and buiidings (lease assets) leased by the Company for its office space and manufacturing facilities of UK, trading subsidianes.

11 Share capital
Details of the Company’s share capftal are set out in note 5.5 1o the Group financial statements

12 Share-based paymaents
The Company operates an equity-settled share-based Lang Term Incentive Plan (LTI} details of which are disclosed in note 6.3 1o the Graup
financial statemerts,

The Cormpany recognises share-based payment charges for awards held by the Chief Exacutive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. Share-based
payment charges for other employees are recharged to the relevant subsidiary.
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13 Restatement
Comparatives have been restated for the following irems:

1 The recognition of a net intercompany payable of £15 3 million between the Company and its subsidiary Avon Polymer Praducts Limited arising
from the reallocation of the proceeds received by the Company on the divestment of milkrite | InterPuls in September 2020 but attributable to
Aven Polymer Products Limited of £43.3 million and the recognition of a dividend received of £28 million from Avon Polymer Products Lirited in
September 2020 Bath of these items were previously omitted in the Company's financial staternents but were correctly reflected in the 2021 and
2020 Avon Polymer Products Limited company accounts, meaning no restatement was required at the subsidiary level

2. The gross presentation of intercompany receivables and payables which had previously been offset as at 2 October 2021

There was no iImpact ta the profit and lass account for the 53 weeks period ended 2 October 2021,

A reconciliation of the previously reported figures to the restated figures is presented below:

Adjustment to

amounts Gross

As reported due to Group intercompany 2 October 2021

2 October 2021 undertakings balances restated

£m £m £m £m

Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 5.0 50

Armiounts due o Group undertakings 4.9) {15.3) {5.0) (25.2)

Retained earnings {124.4) 15.3 - (1091}
Adjustment to
amounts

As reported due to Group 26 September 2020

26 September 2020 undertakings restated

£m £m £m

Amounts due to Group undertakings (15.7} 115.3) 31

Retained earnings (1246} 153 {106.3)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION
If you are in any doubt as to what action you should take, vou are recommended to seek your own financial advice from your bank ranager,
stackbroker, solicitar, accauntant ar other independent financial advisor autharised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, If you have
sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares in Avon Protection ple, please forward this document, together with the accempanying documents,
as soon as possible either to the purchaser or transferce or to the person who arranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these documents 1o
the persan who now holds the shares,

Notice of Annual General Meeting for the year ended
30 September 2022

Matice is hereby given that the AGM of shareholders of Avon Protection
plc {'the Company} will be held at Hampton Park West, Semington Raad,
Melksham SN12 6NB, W ltshira on 27 lanuary 2023 at 10:30am for the
purposes sat out below.

You will not receive a form of proxy for the AGM in the post Instead,
you will receive instruciions to enable you to vote electronically and
outlining how to register to do so. You may request a hard copy form of
proxy directly from the Registrar, Link Group, 10th Flaor, Centrat Square,
28 Wellingtor Street, Leeds 1 S1 4D ([el: 0371 664 0300 or +44 371 664
300 If overseash

Ordinary business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass resolutions 1-12 {inclusive) as
ordinary resclutions.

Resolution 1
To receive the Company’s accounts and the reparts of the Directors and
the auditor for the year ended 30 September 2022

Resolution 2

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the part
containing the Directors’ Remuneration Palicy) far the financial year ended
30 Septemnber 2022,

Resolution 3
To decfare a final dividend of 30.6 US cents per ordinary share as
recommended by the Directors,

Resolution 4
To efect Jos Sciater as a Director of the Company

Resolution 5
To elect Rich Cashin as a Director of the Company.

Resolution 6
To re-elect Bruce Thompson as a Director of the Company

Resolution 7
To re-elect Chlae Pansonby as 8 Director of the Company.

Resolution 8
To re-elect Bindi Foyle as a Director of the Company.

Resoclution 9
To re-elect Victor Chavez CBE as a Director of the Company.

Resolution 10

To re-appoint KPMG LLP as auditor of the Companry, 1o hold office unti! the
conclusion of the next general meeting at which accounts are laid hefore
the Company

Resolution 11
To authorise the Directors to determine the auditor's remuneration,

Resolution 12

That, in accordance with sections 366 and 367 of the Companies Act 2006
{the AcU), the Compary and all its subsicharies during the period for which
this resclution has effect be and are hereby aurhorised, in aggregate, 1o
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(@ make political donations to political parties or to independent
elecuon candidates not exceeding £100,060 in wtal;

(b} make political donations to politcal organisations (other than political
parties) not exceeding £100,000 in total, and

{©) incur any political expenditure nat exceeding £100,000 in total,

during the period baginning with the date of the passing of this resolution
and ending at the close of business on 27 Decernber 2023 or, if sooner,
the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company. For the purpose of

this resolution pelitical donation’, ‘political party’, ‘political orgarisation’,
‘independent election candidate’ and ‘pelitical expenditure’ are to be
construed in accordance with sections 363, 364 and 365 of the Act.

Special business
To consider and if thought fit, pass resolution 13 as an ordinary resolution
and resolutions 14-17 (inclusive) as special resolutions:

Resolution 13

That In accordance with section 551 of the Act, the Directors be generally
and unconditionally authorised to allot Relevant Securities (as defined in
the notes to this resolution) comprising egquity securitiss (as defined by
section 560 of the Act) up (o an aggregate nominal amount of £10,086,064
bt subject ta such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directars
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to treasury shares, fractional
entitlements, record dates, legal or practical problems in or under the

laws of any tertitory or the requiremenits of any regulatory body or stock
exchange, provided that this authority shall, unless reriewed, varied or
revoked by the Company, expire on the date 15 months after the date of
this resolution or, if earlier, the date of the next AGM of the Company save
that the Company may, before such expiry, make offers or agreements
which would or might require Relevant Securities 1o be allotted and

the Directors may allot Relevant Securities in pursuance of such offer or
agreement notwithstanding that the authority conferred by this resolution
has expired.

This resolution revokes and replaces all upexercised authorities previgusly
granted to the Directors to allot Relevant Securities but without prejudice
to any allotment of shares or grant of rights already made, offered or
agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities

Resolution 14

That, subject to the passing of resolution 13, the Directors be authorised to
allot equity securities {as defined by section 560 of the Act) for cash under
the authornity conferred by that resalution and/or 1o sell ordinary shares
held by the Company as treasury shares for cash, as if section 561 of the Act
did not apply 1o any such allotrment or sale, provided that this power shall.

{a) be limtedto the allotment of equity securities or sate of treasury
shares up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,512809; and

tb) expire an the date 15 rmonths after the date of this resolution or,1f
earlier, the date of the next AGM of the Company (untess renewed,
varied of revoked by the Company prior to or on that date) save that
the Cormpany may, before such expiry, make an offer or agreement
which would or might require equity securities ™ be allotted for
traasury shares to be sold) after such expiry and the Directors may
allot equity securities (or seil treasury shares) in pursuance of any such
offer or agreement novwithstanding that the power conferred by this
resolution has expired



Resolution 15

That, subject to the passing of resolution 13, the Directers be authorised,
in addition to any authority granted under resolution 13, to allct equity
securities (as defined by section 560 of the Act} for cash under the
authority conferred by that resolution and/or to sell ordinary shares held
by the Company as treasury shares for cash, as if section 561 of the Act did
not apply to any such allotment or sale, provided that this power shall:

{2) be limited to the allotment of equity securities or sale of treasury
shares up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,512,909;

(b} be used far the purposes of financing {or refinancing, if the authority
is To be used within six months after the original transaction) a
transaction which the Directors have determined to be an acquisition
or cther capital investment of a kind conternplated by the Statement
of Principles on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recently
published by the Pre-Emption Group prior to the date of this
Notice; and

(¢} expire on the date 15 months after the date of this resclution or, if
earlier, the date of the next AGM of the Company (unless renewed,
varied or revoked by the Company prior to or on that date) save that
the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or agreement
which would or might require equity securities to be allotted (or
treasury shares to be sold) after such expiry and the Directors may
allot equity securities (or selt treasury shares) in pursuance of any such
offer or agreement notwithstanding that the power conferred by this
resolution has expired.

Resolution 16

That the Company be and is hereby unconditionally and generally
authorised for the purpose of section 701 of the Act to make market
purchases {within the meaning of section £§93(4) of the Act) of ordinary
shares of £1 each in the capital of the Company provided that:

{3} the maximum number of shares which may be purchased is 3,025,819

() the minimum price (excluding expenses) which may be paid for each
share is £1;

{c) the maximum price (excluding expenses) which may be paid for each
ordinary share is an amount egual to the higher of:

i 105% of the average of the midd|e market quotations of the
Company's ordinary shares as derived from the Daily Official
List of the Landon Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the day on which such share is contracted
to be purchased; or

(i) the value of an ordinary share calculated on the basis of the
higher of the price quoted for the last independent trade of
and the highest current independent bid for any number of the
Company’s ordinary shares on the London Stock Exchange Daily
Official List at the time the purchase is agreed; and

{d) this authority shall expire on the date 15 months after the date of
this resolution or, if earlier, the date of the next AGM of the Company
fexcept in relation to the purchase of shares the contract for which
was concluded before the expiry of such authority and which might
be executed wholly or partly after such expiry) unless such authority is
renewed prior to such time.,

Resolution 17
That a general meeting of the Company (other than an AGM) may be
called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice.

By order of the Board

Miles Ingrey-Counter
General Counsel and Company Secretary

Explanatory notes relating to the resolutions

The Board believes that the adoption of reselutions 1 to 17 will promote
the success of the Company and is in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders as 2 whole. The Board unanimously recommends that
ali shareholders should vote in favour of all the resclutions 1o be proposed
at the AGM. £ach of the Directors of the Company intends to vote in favour
of all resolutions in respect of their own beneficial holdings.

Resolution 1 - Reports and accounts

The Directors are required by law to present to the AGM the accounts, and
the reports of the Directars and auditor, for the year ended 30 September
2022, These are contained in the Company’s 2022 Annual Report.

Resolution 2 - Directors’ Remuneration Report

This resclution seeks shareholders’ approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 September 2022 contained
on pages 86 to 105 of the 2022 Annual Report. As in previous years, the
vore is advisory only and the Directors’ entitlement to remuneration is not
conditional on it being passed.

Resolution 3 — Declaration of final dividend

Afinal dividend can only be paid after the shareholders have approved it
at a general meeting. The Directors recommend that a final dividend in
respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2022 of 30.6 US. cents
be paid. Subject to approval, the final dividend will be paid on 10 March
2023 to eligible shareholders on the Company’s Register of Members at
close of business on 10 February 2023. The dividend will be converted
into pound sterling for payment at the prevailing exchange rate prior to
payment. The exchange rate will be notified to shareholders through a
Requlatory News Service in advance of the dividend payment date.

Resolutions 4 to 9 - Re-appointment of Directors

Each member of the Board has offered himself/herself for election or
re-elaction in accordance with best practice corporate governance
standards. The Board unanimously recommends that they each be elected
or re-elected as Directors of the Company. The Chair confirms that each

of the Non-Executive Directors who are seeking re-efection at the AGM
continues to be an effective member of the Board and to demonstrate
thelr commitment to their role Chloe Ponsonby, in her capacity as Senior
independent Director, has confirmed that Bruce Thompson is an effective
Chair and demanstrates commitment to his role as Chair.

The Company announced on 17 October 2022 that Jos Sclater would
be appointed to the Board as Chief Executive Officer with effect from
16 January 2023. Resolution 4 proposes his election to the Beard by
shareholders on the assumption that he will have been appointed by
the Directors to the Board prior to AGM on 27 January 2023,

Biographical details for each Director are set out on pages 72 and 73 of
the 2022 Annual Report

Resolutions 10 and 11 - Re-appointment of auditor

and authorisation for the Directors to set the auditor’s
remuneration

The Company is required to appoint an auditor at each general meeting
at which its accounts are presented. The Board is recammending to
shareholders the re-appointment of KPMG LLP as the Company’s auditor
for the financial year commencing on 1 Cctober 2022,

Resolution 12 - Authority to make political donations

The Act reguires companies to obtain shareholders’ authority before they
can make donations to political organisations or incur political expenses.
It is not proposed or intended to alter the Company’s policy of not
rmaking political donations, within the normal meaning of that expression.
Hawever, this resolution is proposed to ensure that the Company and

its subsidiaries do not, because of any uncertainty as to the bedies or
activities covered by the Act, unintentionally commit any technical breach
of the Act by making political donations. Resolution 12, if passed, will give
the Board authority to make political donations until the close of business
on 27 December 2023 or, If sooner, the next AGM of the Company (when
the Board intends to renew this authority), up to an aggregate of £100,000
for the Company and its subsidiary companics.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED

Resolution 13 — Directors’ authority to allot

This resolution deals with the Directors’ authority 1o allot Relevant
Securities in accordance with section 551 of the Act. The authority granted
at the last AGM is due to expire at the conclusion of this year's AGM and
accordingly it is proposed to renew this authority

This resolution will, if passed, authorise the Directors to allot Relevant
Securities up to a maximum nominal amount of £10,086,064, which

is equal to approximately one-third of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 22 November 2022 in accordance with institutional
shareholder guidelines The Directors have no present intention of
exercising this authority. The authority granted by this resclution will
expire on the date 15 months after the date of this resolution or, if earlier,
the date of the next AGM of the Company.

In this resolution, ‘Relevant Securities’ means:
{a) shares in the Company other than shares allotted pursuant to:

«an employee share scheme (as defined by section 1166 of the Act),

- aright to subscribe for shares in the Company where the grant of
the rightitself constituted a Relevant Security; or

a right to convert securities into shares in the Company where the
grant of the right wtself constituted a Relevant Security; and

{b) any right to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares in the
Company other than rights ta subscribe for or convert any security
into shares allotted pursuant 1o an employee share schemne (as
defined by section 1166 of the Act). References to the allotment of
Relevant Secunties in this resolution Include the grant of such rights.

Resolution 14 - General disapplication of pre-emption rights
This resolution will, if passed, give the Directors power, pursuant 1o

the authority to allot granted by resclution 13, to allot equity securities
(as defined by section 560 of the Act) or sell treasury shares for cash
without first offering them to existing shareholders in proportion to their
existing holdings up to a maximum nominal amount of £1,512,909 which
represents approximately 5% of the Company's issued share capital as at
22 November 2022 and renews the authonty given at the AGM in 2021,

The figure of 5% reflects the Pre-Emption Group 2015 Statement of
Principles for the disapplication of pre-emption rights (‘the Statement

af Principles’). The Directors will have due regard to the Statement of
Principles in relation to any exergise of this power; in particular they do not
intend to allot shares for cash on a non-pre-emptive basis pursuant to this
power in excess of an amount equal t© 7.5% of the total 1Issued ordinary
share capital of the Company in any rolling three-year period, without prior
consultation with shareholders save as permitted in connection with an
acquisition or specified capital investment as described in the notes for
resolution 15.

The power granted by this resolution will expire on the date 15 months
after the date of this resalution or, if earlier, the date of the next AGM of
the Campany.

The Directars have no presentintention to exercise the authority conferred
by this resolution.

Resolution 15 - Additional disapplication of

pre-emption rights

This resolution seeks a further power, pursuant to the authonty granted
by resolution 13, to allot equity securities (as defined by section 560 of the
Act) or sell treasury shares for cash without first offering them o existing
shareholders in proportion 1o their existing holdings up 1o a maximum
nominal amaount of £1,512.909 which represents aporoximately 5% of the
Company's issued share capital as at 22 November 2022 This s in addition
to the 5% referred 1o in resolution 14 above

The power granted by this resolution will expire on the date 15 months
after the date of this resolution or, f earlier, the date of the riext AGM of
the Company.
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The Directors will have due regard to the Statement of Principles in relation
to any exercise of this power and in particular they confirm that they
intend to use this power only in connaction with a transaction which they
have determined to be an acguisition or other capital investment {of a kind
contemplated by the Statement of Principles most recently published prior
to the date of this Notice) which is announced contemporaneously with
the announcement of the issue, or which has taken place in the preceding
six-rnonth periad and 1s disclosed in the announcement of the issue.

Resolution 16 — Authority to purchase own shares

This resolution seeks autharity for the Company to make market purchases
of its own shares and is proposed as a special resolution. If passed, the
resolution gives authority for the Company to purchase up to 3,025,819
ordinary shares of £1 each, representing appeoximately 10% of the
Company's issued share capital as at 22 November 2022,

The resolution specifies the minimum and maximum prices which may be
pald for any ordinary shares purchased under this authority. The authority
will expire on the earlier of the date 15 maonths after the date of this
resolution and the Company's next AGM The Company purchased 765,098
shares in the periad from the last AGM to 22 November 2022 under the
existing authority,

The Directors have no present intention of exercising the authority to
make market purchases: however, the authority provides the flexibility to
allow them to do so in the future.

The Directors will exercise this authority only when, in light of market
conditions prevailing at the ume, they believe that the effect of such
purchases will be to increase the earnings per ordinary share having
regard to the intent of the guidelines of institutional investors and that
such purchases are In the best interests of shareholders generally. Other
investment opporturuties, appropriate gearing levels and the overall
position of the Company will be taken into account befere deciding upon
this course of action. In the event of any purchase under this autharity, the
Directors would either hold the purchased ordinary shares in treasury or
cancel them.

Bonus and incentive scheme targets for Executive Directors would not
be affected by any enhancement of earnings per share following a share
re-purchase

As of 22 November 2022, there were options to subscribe outstanding
over 418,028 shares, representing 1.38% of the Company's issued share
capital. If the authority given by resolution 16 were to be fully exercised,
these options would represent 1.53% of the Company's issued share
capital after cancellation of the re-purchased shares. As of 22 Novemnber
2022, there were no wafrants outstanding over shares

Resolution 17 - Notice of Meeting
Resclution 1715 a resolution to allow the Company 1o hoid general
meetings (©ther than AGMs} on 14 days’ notice,

Before the introduction of the Companies (Shareholders’ Rights)
Regulations 1n August 2009, the Company was able to call general
meetings (other than AGMs) an 14 clear days’ notice. One of the
amendments that the Companies (Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009
made to the Act was 10 increase the minimum notice period for listed
company general meetings to 21 days, but with an ability for companies to
reduce this period back to 14 days (other than for AGMs) provided that

) the Company offers facilities for shareholders to vote by electronic
means, and

(i) thersis am annual resolution of shareholders approving the reduction
in the minimum notice period from 21 days to 14 days.

Resolution 17 is therefore proposed as a special resclution to approve
14 days as the minimum perod of notice for all general meetings of

the Company other than AGMs, The approval will be effective unnl

the Company's next AGM, whenitis intended that the approval be
renewed. The Company will use this notice pericd only when permitted
to do so in accordance with the Act and when the Directors consider it
appropriate to do so



Notice of Meeting notes

The following notes explain your general rights as a shareholder and your
right to attend and vote at this AGM or to appoeint someone else to vote on
your behalf.

1 To be entitled to vote on the business of the AGM (and for the
purpose of the determination by the Company of the number of
votes they may cast), shareholders must be registerad in the Register
of Members of the Company by close of business on 25 January 2023.
Changes to the Register of Members after the relevant deadline shall
be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to vote on the
business of the AGM,

2. Shareholders are entitled to appoint another person as a proxy to
exzivise oll vl parl wlhedrrights to attend and to speak and vote on
their behalf at the AGM. A shareholder may appoint more than cne
proxy in relation to the AGM provided that each proxy is appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different ordinary share or ordinary
shares held by that shareholder. A proxy need not be a shareholder of
the Company.

3 Inthe case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders
DUrports to appaoint a proxy, only the appointment submitted by
the most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is determined
by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the
Company's Register of Members in respect of the joint holding (the
first named being the most senior)

4, Avote withheld is not a vote in law, which means that the vote will not
be counted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution.
If no voting indication is given, your proxy will vote or abstain from
voting at his or her discretion. Your praxy will vote (or abstain frem
voting) as he or she thirks fit in relation to any other matter which is
put before the AGM,

5. You can vote either:

by logging on to www.signalshares com and following
the tnstructionrs;

. you may request a hard copy form of proxy directly from the
Registrar, Link Group, on Tel: G371 664 0300 (+44 371 664 0300
if averseas). Calls are charged at the standard geographical rate
and will vary by provider. Calls outside the United Kingdom wiil
be charged at the applicable International rate. Lines are apen
between 2:00 am and 5:30 prn, Monday to Friday excluding public
holidays in England and Wales; or

+inthe case of CREST members, by utilising the CREST electronic
proxy appointment service in accerdance with the procedures set
out below.

in order for a proxy appointment to be valid, a form of proxy must
be completed. In each case the form of proxy must be received by
Link Group at 10th Floor, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds
LS1 4DL by 1¢:30 am (GMT) on 25 January 2023,

6, Ifyou return more than one proxy appointment, either by paper or
electronic communication, the appointment receved last by the
Registrar before the latest time for the receipt of proxies will take
precedence. You are advised to read the terms and conditions of
use carefully. Electronic communication facilities are open to all
shareholders and those who use them will not be disadvantaged.

7. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through
the CREST electronic proxy appotntment service may do so
for the AGM {and any adjournment of the AGM) by using the
procedures described in the CREST Manual {available from
www euroclearcam/site/public/EU). CREST personal members or
other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who
have appointed a service provider(s), should refer to their CREST
spansor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the
appropriate action on their behalf.

8

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made by means of
CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message ('a CREST Proxy
Instruction’} must be properly authenticated in accordance with
Euroclear UK. & lreland Limited's specifications and must contain the
information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST
Manual. The message must be transmitted so as to be received by the
issuer’s agent {ID RA10) by 10:30 am (U K_time) on 25 January 2023,
For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to mean the time (as
determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST
application host) frorn which the 1ssuer’s agent is able to retrieve the
message by enguiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST.
After this time, any change of instructions to proxies appointed
through CREST should be communicated to the appeintee through
nther means,

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or
voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK. & freland
Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST for

any particular message. Normal system timings and limitations will,
therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions.
Itis the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or,

if the CREST member i1s a8 CREST personal member, or sponsored
member, or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure
that their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) such
action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by
means of the CREST systern by any particular time. In this connection,
CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or
voting systerm providers are referred, in particular, to those sections
of the CREST Manual concermning practical limitations of the CREST
systern and tmings. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction in the circurstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(@) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.

If you are an institutional investor you may be able to appoint a proxy
electronically via the Proxymity platform, a process which has been
agreed by the Company and approved by the Registrar. For further
information regarding Proxymity, please go to www.proxymity.io
Your proxy must be lodged by 10.30 am on 25 January 2023 in order
to be considered valid or, if the meeting is adjourned, by the ime
which is 48 hours before the time of the adjourned meeting. Before
you can appoint a proxy via this process you will need to have agreed
to Proxymity's associated terms and conditions. It is important that
you read these carefully as you will be bound by them and they will
govern the electronic appaintment of your proxy

Unless atherwise indicated on the Form of Proxy, CREST, Proxymity
or any other electronic voting instruction, the proxy will vote as they
think fit or, at their discretion er withhold from voting.

Any carporation which is a shareholder can appoint one or more
corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its
powers as a shareholder provided that no more than one corporate
representative exercises powers in relation to the same shares.

As 3t 22 Novemnber 2022 (being the {atest practicable business day
pricr to the publication of this Notice), the Company's issued share
capital consists of 30,258,194 ordinary shares of £1 each, carrying one
vote each. 765,098 ordinary shares of £1 each are held in treasury.
These shares are not taken inte consideratian in relation to the
payment of dividends or voting. Therefore, the total voting nghts in
the Company as at 22 November 2022 are 30,258,194

2 MAIVAS TYIDNYNIY
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Under section 527 of the Act, shareholders meeting the threshold
requirements set out in that section have the right to require the
Company to publish on a website a statement setting out any
maitter relating to: {i} the audit of the Company’s financial statemen
{including the Auditor's Report and the conduct of the audit) that
to be laid before the AGM; or (i) any Circumstances connected wi.
an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the prev o1«
meeting at which annual financial statements and reports we

In accordance with section 437 of the Act (in each case) that
shareholders propose 1o raise at the relevant meeting. The

may not require the shareholders requesting any such we::
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED

Notice of Meeting notes continued
publication to pay its expenses in complying with sections 527 or 528
of the Act. Where the Company is required to place a statementon a
website under section 527 of the Act, it must forward the statement
to the Company’s auditor not later than the time when it makes the
statement available on the website. The business which may be dealt
with at the AGM for the relevant financial year includes any statement
that the Company has been reguired under section 527 of the Act to
publish on a website,

15. The following documents are available for inspection at our registered
office from the date of this Notice untll the canclusion of the AGM
and at the place of the meeting fram at least 15 minutes pricr to and
during the meeting until its conclusion:

- copies of the Directors’ letters of appointment or service
contracts; and

- acopy of the current Articles of Association of the Company.

Scanned capies are also be available on request from the
Company Secretary.

16. You may not use any electronic address (within the maaning of
section 333(4) of the Act} provided in either this Notice or any related
documnents (including the form of proxy) to communicate with the
Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated.
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GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Term

Definition

Adjusted basic @arnings per share

Adjusted profit for the year divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue

Adjusted dividend cover

The ratio of adjusted basic earnings per share from continuing operations to the total dividend for the year

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as adjusted operating profit before depreciation, amartisation and impairment of
non-curtent assets. It excludes any effect of discontinued operations

Adjusted EBITDA margin

The ratio of adjusted EBITDA to revenue

Adjusted operating profit

Operating profit adjusted to exclude exceptional items

BP5

Basis points

Cash conversion percentage

The ratio of cash generated from cperations before the effect of exceptional items, as a percentage of
adjusted CBITDA

Closing order b;k

Orders held by the Group at the end of the year which are not yet fulfilled

Continuing operations

The segments of the Group that are expected to still be cperating in the future

Discontinued operations

The segments of the Group that no lenger function within the core business and which are separately disclosed
within the income statement

Dividend cover

The ratio of basic earnings per share from continuing operations 1o the total dividend for the year

Dividend per share

Dividends paid/proposed, divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue

EBITDA

The Group's earnings before charging interest, tax, depreciation, amaortisation and impeairment of non-current assets

Exceptional itemns

Transactions are classified as exceptional itemns where they relate to an event that falls outside of the underlying
trading activities of the business and where individually, or in aggregate, they have a material impact on the
financial staternents

Intellectual property

Intangible property created by the Group through research and development, that is protected through patents,
copyrights or trademarks

Net debt

Net debt is the Group's drawn bank debt, overdrafts and lease obligations net of any cash

Orders received

The orders received throughout the year and recognised as revenue togetherw'th orders in the closing order book

Return on capital employed

Adjusted operating profit as a percentage of average capital employed. Capital emplayed is the sum of
shareholders’ funds adjusted for non-current liabilities and current borrowings

Total research and development
as % of revenue

Total expenditure on research and development expressed as a percentage of revenue

Term Explanation

50 series Range of masks based on the proven technology of the M50 mask system

AGM . Annual General Meeting

ﬂf. . Asla-Pacific

APC Avon Protection Ceradyn:

CBRN Chemical, biological, radiclogical and nuclear

DLA Defense Logistics Agency

DOD . Department of Defense

ESAPI Enhanced Small Arms Protective Insert e
ESG Environmental, social and corporate governance

ESPP Employee Stock Purchase Plan

FAT o First Article Testing

FTSE Financial Times Stock Excha ngep- - - o
FX - #--Foreign exchange

FY Financial year o

GE_G _ L Greenhouse Gas -

H1/H2 First half of the financial year (October-March)/second half of financial year (AprlI—Septgmber)

ITAR 7 al’nternatuona\ Traffic in Arms Regulatién) ] -
JSGPM Joint servic;;enera! protection mask B

[(BIL B - Key Performance Indicators o

LTIP . o Long-Term Incentive Plan T

MENA Middle-East and North Africa a -

MOD Ministry of Defence o o )

North Atlantic Treaty Organization
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GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS CONTINUED

Term Explanation

NG IHPS Next Generation Integrated Head Protection System - L

N7$PA - The NATO Support and Fgc_urc‘me_m@?‘me executive body of the NATO Suppart and Procurement o
Organisation (NSPQ, of which all 30 NATO nations are members) o

PAPR Powered Alr Purifying Respirator - ] .

PSP N Performance Share Plan o .

RoW Rest of World

SCTA - Self-Contained Brea(hir;g Apparatusr -

giP Share incemive Plan 7 7 ) - - o

SSA Spedial Security Agreement ) _:;—_ ;

SWAT Special Weapons and Tactics

EI - Traurnatic Brain Pnju}y -

tCO:ze The amount of greenhouse g_asses emitted during a gwenﬁd.m\easured in metric tons of carbon dioxide
eguivalent

TFCD Task Force for Climate Re!ated Financial Disclosures . - ____

TSR - Total shareholder return - 7 -

GN SDGS - United Nations Sustainable Development Goatsﬁ - e

vTP o Vital Torso Protection - -
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder information
As at 31 Qctober 2022 the Company had 1,202 shareholders, of which 723
had 1,000 shares or fewer,

Financial calendar
Half year results are usually announced in May and year end results
in Novernber.

In respect of the year ended 30 September 2022 the AGM wiil be held
an 27 January 2023 at Hampton Park West, Semmington Road, Melksham,
Wiltshire SN12 6NEB, England.

Corporate information

Registered office

Hampton Park West, Semnington Road, Melksham, Wiltshire
SN1Z2 6NB. Lkngland.

Registered
In England and Wales No. 32965

VAT No. GB 137 575 643

Board of Directors

Bruce Thompsen {Executive Chair)

Rich Cashun (Chief Financial Officer)

Chloe Pansanby {Non-Executive Director)
Bindi Foyle {Non-Executive Directorn)

Victor Chavez CBE (Non-Executive Director

Company secretary
Miles Ingrey-Counter

Auditor
KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants and Staturory Auditor

Registrar and transfer office
Link Group, 10th Floor, Central Square, 29 Wellingtan Street, Leeds LS1 4DL

Tel: 0371 664 0300 {+44 371 664 0300 if overseas)

Calls are charged at the standard geographical rate and will vary by
provider; [Ines are open 9 00 am-5:30 pm, excluding public holidays in
England and Wales.

Financial advisor
Rothschild & Co

Brokers
Peel Hunt LLP
Jefferies Group LLC

Financial PR
MHP Communications

Lawyer
White & Case LLP

Principal bankers
Barclays Bank PLC
Comerica Inc,
Natwoest

Fifth Third

Bank of Ireland

CIC

Website
www avon-protection-plc.com

All Team Wendy product names referenced in this Annual Report
are tradernarks of Team Wendy LLC. Team Wendy LLC is part of the
Avan Protecton ple group of companies.
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Hampton Park West
Semington Road
Melksham, Wiltshire
SN12 6NB

England

Telephone: +44(0) 1225 896 800

Email: enquiries@avon-protection.com



